
1 

City Council Agenda 
Thursday, April 14, 2022 

6:00 PM 
35 Cabarrus Avenue, W, Concord NC  28025 

Cell phones are to be turned off or placed on vibrate during the meeting. Please exit the Council 
Chambers before using your cell phone. 

The agenda is prepared and distributed on Friday preceding the meeting to Council and news 
media. A work session is then held on the Tuesday preceding the regular meeting at 4:00 pm. 

I. Call to Order
II. Pledge of Allegiance and Moment of Silent Prayer
III. Approval of Minutes

February 22, March 8, and March 10, 2022.
IV. Presentations

1. Presentation of a Proclamation recognizing April 18, 2022, as National Lineworker 
Appreciation Day. (Work Session)

2. Presentation of a retirement plaque to Lannie A. Cruse Jr. for 30 plus years of service 
to the City of Concord. (Work Session)  Lannie was born and raised here and has called
Concord home his entire life. He graduated from Northwest Cabarrus High School in 1983 
and came to work for the city in March of 1991. He began his career in public service at 
the Rocky River Wastewater Treatment Plant, which at that time was part of the City. He 
then transferred to the Electric Systems tree crew, where he worked for about a year, 
before joining the overhead line crew. Lannie worked his way up becoming a journeyman 
lineman in 2002, an advanced position that requires expert skills and several years of 
experience in the field. Lannie later became an overhead line crew supervisor in 2012, a 
role which he held until his retirement.  

3. Presentation of a Proclamation recognizing April 10-16, 2022 as National Public
Safety Telecommunicator Week.  Beginning in 1981, the second week in April (April 10-
16, 2022) has been designated as National Public Safety Telecommunicator Week. It is a 
time to celebrate and thank the thousands of men and women who dedicate their careers 
to be the vital link between the person calling and emergency services. These 
professionals are the voices that people reach out to for help and the voices that guide 
public safety personnel to where they need to be when seconds count.  

4. Administer Oath of Office to newly appointed Board of Adjustment member, Robert
Danner.

V. Unfinished Business
VI. New Business

A. Informational Items
B. Departmental Reports
C. Recognition of persons requesting to be heard
D. Public Hearings

1. Conduct a public hearing and consider adopting the Agency Plan for the Concord
Housing Department.   The Housing Department staff is required to submit an
Agency Plan to the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development 
(HUD) every year seventy-five (75) days prior to the beginning of the fiscal year.  This 
Plan must be available for public review for forty-five (45) days prior to adoption and 
submission.  The Plan has been completed and ready for review since February 13, 
2022.  A public hearing must be held prior to adoption for any public comments relative 
to the proposed changes in the Plan.  Updated policies include: 1) updated ACOP and 
ADMIN plan per HUD's new policies and guidelines; 2) to request HUD's approval to 



2 

initiate the application process for the Wilkerson Public Housing conversion under 
RAD; and 3) to proceed with the application to HUD for the voluntary conversion of 
Larkhaven to project-based housing choice vouchers. 

Recommendation: Motion to adopt the Agency Plan for the Concord Housing 
Department. 

2. Conduct a public hearing to consider approving the submission of the Cabarrus,
Iredell, Rowan County HOME Consortium's HOME-American Rescue Plan
(HOME-ARP) Action Plan to the Department of Housing and Urban Development. 
The American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 appropriated $5 billion to provide housing, 
services, and shelter to individuals experiencing homelessness and other vulnerable 
populations.  This funding was allocated by formula to jurisdictions that qualify for 
HOME Investment Partnerships Program allocations in FY2021.  On September 22, 
2021, Concord was notified by the Department of Housing and Urban Development 
(HUD) the Cabarrus, Iredell, Rowan HOME Consortium was awarded $4,772,338 of 
HOME-ARP funds.  As recipients of this funding, Concord and the 
Cabarrus/Iredell/Rowan HOME Consortium are required to submit an Action Plan for 
the Consortium's proposed use of HOME-ARP funds.  This plan evaluates the 
homeless and housing needs within the region and details proposed eligible actions 
to address the identified needs.  Concord's portion of the HOME-ARP funding will be 
$736,698.00, which will be used for the reconstruction of the Wilkerson Home Public 
Housing Units once the RAD Conversion is complete for those units/parcel.   As lead 
entity for the Consortium, Concord will also receive a total of $452,220 for 
administration and oversight of the program. Also, as lead entity, Concord staff is 
responsible for gathering, compiling, and submitting to HUD information from all 
members.  This effort results in a unified plan outlining all activities to be undertaken 
during the upcoming 8 years for the entire region.  Due to COVID-19 limitations, HUD 
amended public comment periods to a shorter timeframe (15 days) and allowed 
jurisdictions to host a virtual public hearing to safely obtain input from residents and 
community stakeholders.  Concord held a virtual public hearing from December 14, 
2021 to January 10, 2022 with a survey and video message explaining the need for 
input and eligible uses.  Concord HOME members and community stakeholders 
distributed the survey in their respective areas to gather input. The greatest need 
identified for Concord was the development and support of more affordable housing.  
Other needs noted by residents were: buying, repairing and building rental housing, 
more rental assistance opportunities, and increased supportive services.  

Recommendation: Motion to approve the submission of the Cabarrus, Iredell, 
Rowan County HOME Consortium’s HOME-American Rescue Plan (HOME-ARP) 
Action Plan to the Department of Housing and Urban Development. 

3. Conduct a public hearing to consider adopting an ordinance amending Articles
8, Use Regulations, and 14, Definitions, of the Concord Development Ordinance
(CDO) relative to the spacing requirements for tattoo and piercing parlors and 
the addition of a definition for tattoo parlors.   The proposed text amendment 
resulted from a citizen inquiry and subsequent Council directive to review the current 
CDO standards for the permitting of tattoo and piercing parlors in comparison to other 
jurisdictions.  As a result of the review, staff has proposed a potential amendment to 
CDO Articles 8, Use Regulations, and 14, Definitions.  The amendment would add a 
definition for tattoo parlors and eliminate spacing between tattoo/piercing parlors.  The 
amendment would include a minimum distance of 300ft between an existing tattoo 
and/or piercing parlor and a newly requested business of the same use.  

Recommendation: Motion to adopt an ordinance amending Sections Articles 8 
“Use Regulations” and 14 “Definitions” of the Concord Development Ordinance 
(CDO). 

E. Presentations of Petitions and Requests



3 

1. Consider authorizing the City Manager to sign a contract with Gillig LLC utilizing
the Piedmont Authority for Regional Transportation (PART) consortium contract
for the purchase of six (6) new 35' heavy duty hybrid electric diesel replacement 
buses for the Rider system.  Concord is a member of the PART consortium bus 
procurement contract that was established in 2020 for heavy duty 35' and 40' diesel 
and hybrid diesel electric buses. Rider Transit is seeking to purchase six (6) heavy-
duty 35' hybrid buses using this contract to replace six of our existing buses that have 
met their FTA designated useful life.  In March, Rider Transit was awarded a 
$3,966,318 FTA 5339(b) Bus & Bus Facilities Discretionary grant specifically for the 
purpose securing these replacement buses, which have a current cost of $822,000, 
including registration. The FTA funds will cover 80.42% of the cost of each vehicle. 
The remaining 19.58% ($965,682) will be split 50/50 between Concord and Kannapolis 
($482,841 each). 

Recommendation: Motion to authorize the City Manager to sign a contract with 
Gillig LLC utilizing with a not to exceed maximum cost of $4,932,000. 

2. Consider a request from WeBuild Concord for a $1,000,000 contribution from the
City's affordable housing revolving fund.  WeBuild Concord is requesting $1 million
from the Affordable Housing Revolving Fund to develop and build affordable housing 
projects through reimbursable contracts with the City of Concord and Cabarrus 
County. WeBuild will use the funds for land purchases, construction, and 
administrative expenses. Projects partners include the City of Concord Neighborhood 
Development and other private and social sector partners. This project's first phase 
aims to develop 50 to 60 affordable units for single-family, multi-family, and senior 
housing with approximately 75% for ownership and 25% for rent. The first phase will 
get WeBuild's collective impact model with the City of Concord and partners past the 
60% mark for our goal of 90 plus units over the next two years. WeBuild will market 
this phase as a joint venture between WeBuild Concord, the City of Concord, and 
partners that engage with us on individual projects. 

Recommendation: Motion to approve the request allocating $1,000,000 to 
WeBuild Concord from the Affordable Housing Revolving Fund and approve the 
related budget amendment. 

3. Consider adopting a resolution directing the publication of Notice of Intention to
Apply to the Local Government Commission for Approval of Bonds.  The City is
considering the issuance of general obligation bonds in the maximum amount of 
$60,000,000 to pay capital costs of providing parks and recreation facilities, including 
without limitation land, athletic fields, parks, shelters, parking, lighting, trails and 
greenways and the renovation and improvement of existing facilities.  The attached 
resolution directs the City Clerk to publish a copy of the "NOTICE OF INTENTION TO 
APPLY TO THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT COMMISSION FOR APPROVAL OF 
BONDS" to be published in a newspaper of general circulation in the City. 

Recommendation: Motion to adopt a resolution directing the publication of Notice 
of Intention to Apply to the Local Government Commission for Approval of Bonds. 

4. Consider adopting a resolution making certain statement of fact concerning
proposed bond issue and authorizing the application to the Local Government
Commission.  The City is considering the issuance of general obligation bonds in the 
maximum amount of $60,000,000 to pay capital costs of providing parks and 
recreation facilities, including without limitation land, athletic fields, parks, shelters, 
parking, lighting, trails and greenways and the renovation and improvement of existing 
facilities.  Certain findings of fact by the City Council must be presented to enable the 
Local Government Commission of the State of North Carolina to make certain 
determinations as set forth in Section 159-52 of the North Carolina General Statutes, 
as amended.  The statements of fact are in the attached resolution. 



4 

Recommendation: Motion to adopt a resolution making certain statement of fact 
concerning proposed bond issue and authorizing the application to the Local 
Government Commission. 

5. Consider approving the acquisition of one parcel totaling 6.1733 acres adjacent
to Clarke Creek, Cox Mill Road, and the Granary Oaks subdivision (parcel ID#
4680-40-3406-0000) from Beverly D. Hooks and Freddie Anne Davis for future 
development of the Clarke Creek Greenway and sidewalk connectivity along 
Cox Mill Road and consider adopting budget ordinances to amend the Parks 
and Recreation Capital Reserve Fund and Recreation Capital Project Fund.  The 
parcel under consideration for acquisition (PID# 4680-40-3406-0000) would be 
developed as part of the Clarke Creek Greenway and Cox Mill Loop, which includes 
sidewalk connectivity and crosswalks along Cox Mill Road. The property will provide 
direct pedestrian and bicycle connections to Granary Oaks, Edenton at Cox Mill, and 
Christenbury neighborhoods.  The negotiated purchase price, agreed to by the 
owners, is $110,000. This property is critical for overall connectivity in the Cox Mill 
area as part of the Clarke Creek Greenway, which will connect area neighborhoods to 
the existing Cox Mill Fields, Future Jim Ramseur Park, Cox Mill Elementary School 
and Cox Mill High School. Approximately 1.85 acres of the property is outside of the 
floodplain.  The total cost for acquisition of the 6.1733 acres, including due diligence, 
is $119,112. Funding is identified for greenway acquisition in the Parks & Recreation 
Reserve Fund. 

Recommendation: Motion to approve the acquisition of one parcel, totaling 
6.1733 acres (PIN# 4680-40-3406-0000) from Beverly D. Hooks and Freddie Anne 
Davis for future development of the Clarke Creek Greenway for $110,000, and to 
adopt ordinances to amend the Parks and Recreation Capital Reserve Fund and 
Recreation Capital Project Fund to complete transfers for approved property 
purchases including due diligences totaling $119,112. 

6. Consider authorizing the City Manager to negotiate and execute a contract with
J.D. Goodrum Co., Inc., in the amount of $3,132,489.99, for the North Apron
expansion project at the Concord-Padgett Regional Airport.  Bids were opened
on March 30, 2022.  J.D. Goodrum Co., Inc. submitted the low responsive base bid in
the amount of $3,132,489.99. Talbert, Bright and Ellington reviewed the bid and
concurred all bid requirements of the specifications were met. This project will be 90%
funded using funds from the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) and the 10% match
will come from the North Carolina Department of Transportation Division of Aviation
funds.

Recommendation: Motion to authorize the City Manager to negotiate and execute 
a contract with J.D. Goodrum Co., Inc., in the amount of $3,132,489.99, for the 
North Apron Expansion project at the Concord-Padgett Regional Airport. 

7. Consider adopting a resolution to impose and use a passenger facility charge at
the Concord-Padgett Regional Airport.  Concord-Padgett Regional Airport began
offering commercial service in 2013.  The Passenger Facility Charge (PFC) Program 
allows the collection of PFC fees up to $4.50 for every eligible passenger at 
commercial airports controlled by public agencies. PFC’s are capped at $4.50 per flight 
segment, with a maximum of two PFCs charged on a one-way trip or four PFCs on a 
round trip, for a maximum of $18 total. Airports use these fees to fund FAA-approved 
projects that enhance safety, security, or capacity; reduce noise; or increase air carrier 
competition. The FAA must issue a final decision to approve or disapprove a PFC 
application, in whole or in part, no later than 120 days after the application is received 
by the FAA from the public agency. Following the FAA's full or partial approval of an 
application to impose a PFC, the public agency must notify air carriers and foreign air 
carriers required to collect PFC's at its airport(s) of the FAA's approval. The charge 
effective date of the PFC collection is the first day of a month which is at least 60 days 
from the date the public agency notifies the carriers of approval to impose the PFC. 



5 

Recommendation: Motion to adopt a resolution allowing Concord-Padgett 
Regional Airport to apply to the FAA for approval to implement a PFC charge. 

8. Consider authorizing the City manager to execute an amendment to the On-Call
Transportation Services contract for the engineering and design work to permit
the replacement of the Lincoln Street Bridge.  This amendment consists of a task 
order with the current on-call professional services consultant with the Transportation 
Department, Stantec Consulting Inc., to perform the engineering and design work for 
the Lincoln Street Bridge Replacement. The task order would consist of project 
management and coordination, planning, permitting coordination, roadway design, 
structure design, transportation management plan, signing and delineation plan, 
hydraulic design, utility coordination, and geotechnical services. Per the submitted 
scope, the task order for the design of the bridge replacement plans is $475,283.29, 
which is equal to the department’s estimate. 

Recommendation: Motion to authorize the City Manager to execute an 
amendment to the On-Call Transportation Services contract, in the amount of 
$475,283.29 for the engineering and design work to permit the replacement of the 
Lincoln Street Bridge. 

9. Consider entering into an Agreement with the North Carolina Department of
Transportation (NCDOT) covering work to be performed under Project
Agreement ID No. 11107, TIP # HL-0001 - WBS Elements 49345.1.1, 49345.2.1, 
49345.3.1 for the Poplar Tent and Harris Intersection.  It is requested that City 
Council enter into an Agreement ID No. 11107 with the NCDOT to support the Project 
as outlined in the agreement.  On May 14th, 2020, City Council supported the 
application to pursue Surface Transportation Block Grant Program Direct Allocation 
(STBGP-DA) funds through the Cabarrus-Rowan Metropolitan Planning Organization 
(CRMPO).  Subsequently the funds were awarded for the subject project.  This 
agreement is for the Design, Right of Way, and Construction Phases of the Project, 
consisting of the design and construction for Improvements at the intersection of 
Poplar Tent Road and Harris Road to a Reduced Conflict Intersection. The total 
estimate for this Project is $15,080,000, NCDOT will participate in 80% of the 
estimated cost, $12,064,000.  The City of Concord will participate in 20% of the 
estimated cost, $3,016,000.  Under this Project Agreement, overpayment will be the 
responsibility of the City of Concord. 

Recommendation: Motion that City Council enter into an Agreement with the 
North Carolina Department of Transportation (NCDOT) covering work to be 
performed under Project Agreement ID No. 11107, TIP # HL-0001 - WBS Elements 
49345.1.1, 49345.2.1, 49345.3.1 for the Poplar Tent and Harris Intersection. 

10. Consider approving the acquisition of the property at 708 Arbor St. NE (PIN
5621-45-0236) for $365,000 to facilitate future expansion at the Hillgrove Water
Treatment Plant.  The property at 708 Arbor St. NE is directly next door to the
Hillgrove Water Treatment Plant. The acquisition of this property will allow for future
expansion of water plant activities for many years to come. In the short term, the
current design of the GAC facility will be much more efficient and provide an immediate
cost savings by locating the GAC system on this new property by reducing the piping
required to connect.

Recommendation: Motion to approve the acquisition of the property at 708 Arbor 
St. NE (PIN 5621-45-0236) for future expansion at the Hillgrove Water Treatment 
Plant. 

11. Consider authorizing the City Manager to negotiate and execute a contract with
Insituform Technologies, LLC. for the lining of 21,433 linear feet of sewer lines
and rehabilitation of 89 manholes.  The Water Resources department performs
inspections of the City's sewer lines and identifies those that need to be repaired or
replaced. Lines that would cause excessive disturbance to the public if they were
repaired or replaced by conventional methods are earmarked for the cure-in-place



6 

pipe rehabilitation method (CIPP). The CIPP method allows the sewer lines to be 
rehabilitated without the disturbances to the public caused by the conventional method 
of excavation and replacement. This project was publicly bid and eight (8) bids were 
received.  The lowest responsible bidder was Insituform Technologies, LLC. in the 
amount of $916,568.21. The total amount of the lowest responsible bidder is below 
the budgeted amount. 

Recommendation: Motion authorizing the City Manager to negotiate and execute 
a contract with Insituform Technologies, LLC. in the amount of $ 916,568.21 for 
the rehabilitation of 21,433 linear feet of sewer lines and 89 manholes. 

12. Consider amending the sewer allocation policy for the development of
speculative industrial projects less than 75,000 sf in I-1 and any size building in
I-2 zoning. This proposal is being brought to City Council after receiving input from
both industrial developers as well as the Economic Development Corporation (EDC)
regarding the current policy provision for speculative industrial development "at risk"
with sewer allocation considered when a tenant is identified.  The policy makes it
difficult for developers to obtain project financing without any allocation prior to
commencing construction.  Therefore, the proposal is to allocate up to 7,500 gallons
per day (GPD) for projects in I-1 and I-2 that do not exceed 75,000 sf total within a
permitted phase.  In addition, to accommodate larger speculative development the
proposal is to allocate up to 12,500 gpd for buildings of any size greater than 75,000
sf in I-2 zoning.  Sewer allocations for tenant(s) that would result in amounts greater
than approved would have to come back to Council for consideration. Council would
continue to consider these projects at the quarterly allocation meeting.  Please note,
Council would continue to consider projects in I-1 as specified in the existing policy
which is "at risk" until such time that a user is identified.

Recommendation: Motion to amend the sewer allocation policy for the 
development of speculative industrial projects less than 75,000 sf in I-1 and any 
size building in I-2 zoning as specified in the amended Sewer Allocation Policy. 

13. Consider a Preliminary Application from Karen Braswell.  In accordance with City
Code Chapter 62, Karen Braswell has submitted a preliminary application to receive
sewer service outside the City limits.  The property is located at 254 Litaker Lane and
the applicant proposes to develop with a single family home.  The lot is one acre and
zoned county medium density residential (MDR).  City water is not available to the
parcel.

Recommendation: Motion to accept the preliminary application and have the 
owner proceed to the final application phase excluding annexation. 

14. Consider a Preliminary Application from Bobby Hatley.  In accordance with City
Code Chapter 62, Bobby Hatley has submitted a preliminary application to receive
sewer service outside the City limits.  The property is located off of Kimberly Lane.
The parcel is vacant, 1.5 acres,  and zoned LDR.   The applicant wants to build a single
family home on the parcel.  The applicant would be required to obtain a private sewer
service easement.  City water is not available to the parcel.

Recommendation: Motion to accept the preliminary application and have the 
owner proceed to the final application phase excluding annexation. 

15. Consider a Preliminary Application from Danny Hinson. In accordance with City
Code Chapter 62, Danny Hinson has submitted a preliminary application to receive
water and sewer service outside the City limits.  The properties are located at 33 and
37 Denise Court and the applicant proposes to develop with a single family homes.
The  parcels are between 1.2 and 1.4  acres and zoned county LDR and is currently
developed with a single family home.

Recommendation: Motion to accept the preliminary application and have the 
owner proceed to the final application phase including annexation. 



7 

16. Consider adopting the 2022 State and Federal Legislative Goals. During the
January Planning Session, State and Federal legislative goals were presented to the
Council for their consideration.

Recommendation: Motion to adopt the 2022 State and Federal Legislative Goals. 
17. Consider appointing a voting delegate for the NCLM CityVision 2022 conference.

(Work Session)  CityVision 2022 will be held April 26-28 in Wilmington. Prior to the
annual business meeting, an electronic voting process for board elections will be
conducted.  During CityVision, League members can attend the annual business
meeting where the 2022-2023 electronic Board of Directors election results will be
announced.  Each member municipality is asked to designate one voting delegate who
is eligible to cast a single vote for the 2022-2023 League Board of Directors in advance
of the annual business meeting.

Recommendation: Motion to appoint a voting delegate for the NCLM 2022-2023 
Board of Directors. 

18. Consider making reappointments to the Concord United Committee.  In April
2021, when the Committee members were first appointed, they were appointed to
staggered terms with a group of members only being appointed to a one (1) year term
which expires on April 30, 2022.  Therefore, these members are eligible to be
reappointed to their first full three (3) year term.  Please see the attached list of
members eligible for reappointment.

Recommendation: Motion to make reappointments to the Concord United 
Committee. 

19. Discussion relating to the distribution of remaining American Rescue Plan
(ARP) funds.  At the March 22nd 2nd Work Session, the Council approved the
allocation of ARP funds for the WeBuild Concord Lincoln Street Townhomes project.
The consensus of the Council was to discuss further appropriations at the April 14th
City Council meeting.

Recommendation: Continue discussion relating to the distribution of remaining 
ARP funds. 

VII. Consent Agenda
A. Consider authorizing the Concord Police Department to apply for the 2022 Office

of Community Oriented Policing Services (COPS) Law Enforcement Mental
Health and Wellness Act (LEMHWA) Program grant from the US Department of
Justice. If awarded, the LEMHWA Program funds would be used for the delivery of
mental and emotional support services, development of an employee wellness
program, enhanced team building, peer support, mentoring programs, wellness
training and suicide prevention. Each award is for 24 months in duration for a
maximum of $175,000 per award and there is not a local match required.

Recommendation:  Motion to authorize the Concord Police Department to apply 
for the 2022 Office of Community Oriented Policing Services (COPS) Law 
Enforcement Mental Health and Wellness Act (LEMHWA) Program grant from the 
US Department of Justice. 

B. Consider authorizing Parks and Recreation staff to submit an application for a
Kubota Hometown Proud Grant for up to $100,000 for Caldwell Park. The
approval for the application for the Kubota Hometown Proud grant program is for
community revitalization. The Caldwell Park project meets three (3) of the primary
grant requirements as follows: 1) cultivating a Community Garden, 2) the creation of a
new playground area, and 3) beautifying a Community Park. For cultivation of a
Community Garden, staff is considering developing a community garden within
Caldwell Park in accordance with the adopted master plan and design of the park. For
a new playground, this may be used as additional match to assist with the creation of
an inclusive playground and assist with the City’s awarded LWCF grant already
designated in the budget. The third item of beautifying a Community Park, involves
several components to the plan that are applicable here including the landscaping plan



8 

or additional rain and pollinator gardens based on the adopted master plan.  The 
application deadline is April 15, 2022. On July 13th, Kubota will announce five projects 
for the $100,000 grant and then put out to the public an opportunity to vote on each 
project, which could lead to an additional $100,000 plus entry into a sweepstakes to 
win Kubota Equipment  The winner of the sweepstakes will be announced on August 
1, 2022. 

Recommendation:  Motion to approve Parks and Recreation to move forward with 
the application for a Kubota Hometown Proud Grant Application. 

C. Consider approving policies and procedures manual for the HOME-American
Rescue Plan (HOME-ARP) allocation for the Cabarrus, Iredell, Rowan County
HOME Consortium. The American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 appropriated $5 billion
to provide housing, services, and shelter to individuals experiencing homeless and
other vulnerable populations.  This funding was allocated by formula to jurisdictions
that qualify for HOME Investment Partnerships Program allocations in Fiscal Year
2021.  On September 22, 2021, Concord was notified by the Department of Housing
and Urban Development (HUD) the Cabarrus, Iredell, Rowan HOME Consortium was
awarded $4,772,338 of HOME-ARP funds.  To fulfill HUD requirements of lead entity
oversight, staff has crafted jurisdictional policies and procedures to guide The
Cabarrus, Iredell, Rowan HOME Consortium.  The HOME-ARP Policy Manual
identifies allowable activities, eligible households to assist and details Concord
oversight of Consortium members. All changes were guided by Concord's HUD
representative in conjunction with multiple HUD trainings.

Recommendation:  Motion to approve policies and procedures manual for the 
HOME-American Rescue Plan (HOME-ARP) allocation for the Cabarrus, Iredell, 
Rowan County HOME Consortium. 

D. Consider accepting an offer of infrastructure at The Haven at Rocky River
Subdivision, PH 1 MP 4 and Kensley East Subdivision PH 1. In accordance with
CDO Article 5, improvements have been constructed in accordance with the City's
regulations and specifications.  The following are being offered for acceptance: 2,557
LF of 8-inch water line, 524 LF of 2-inch water line, 8 valves, 7 fire hydrants, 1,252 LF
of 8-inch sanitary sewer line and 19 manholes.

Recommendation:  Motion to accept the offer of infrastructure acceptance in the 
following subdivisions and sites, The Haven at Rocky River Subdivision, PH 1 MP 
4 and Kensley East Subdivision PH 1. 

E. Consider accepting an Offer of Dedication of utility easements and public rights-
of-ways in various subdivisions. In accordance with CDO Article 5, the following
final plats and easements are now ready for approval: Hannah’s Meadow and Spring
Meadow Phase 3 Map 1. Various utility easements and public rights-of-ways are
offered by the owners.

Recommendation:  Motion to accept the offer of dedication on the following plat 
and easements: Hannah’s Meadow and Spring Meadow Phase 3 Map 1. 

F. Consider accepting an Offer of Dedication of an access easement and approval
of the maintenance agreement. In accordance with the CDO Article 4, the following
access easements and maintenance agreements are now ready for approval: Yoxbox,
LLC, (PIN 5509-23-8573) 3231, 3301, & 3307 Perry Street.   Access easements and
SCM maintenance agreements are being offered by the owners.

Recommendation:  Motion to approve the maintenance agreements and accept 
the offers of dedication on the following properties: Yoxbox, LLC. 

G. Consider adopting an American Rescue Plan Fund grant project budget
amendment. At the March 22, 2022 2nd Work Session, Council approved additional
projects to be funded by American Rescue Plan funds. The attached grant project
budget ordinance appropriates funding for the additional approved projects.

Recommendation:  Motion to adopt an American Rescue Plan Fund grant project 
budget amendment. 



9 

H. Consider approving the 2019 Emergency Safety and Security Grant from the US
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) and adopt a budget
ordinance in the amount of $97,676. HUD has awarded the Housing Department
the Emergency Safety and Security Grant for federal year 2019 in the amount of
$97,676 to install security cameras at all our Public Housing communities.  These
cameras will ensure the health and safety of our residents and improve their quality of
life.  We believe these cameras will have a significant impact on our Public Housing
residents.

Recommendation:  Motion to approve the 2019 Emergency Safety and Security 
Grant received by the Housing Department from HUD and adopt the budget 
ordinance in the amount of $97,676. 

I. Consider adopting a Fire Project Fund project budget amendment and a General
Fund operating budget amendment. The fire station #10 project is coming in under
budget.  The savings from this project is being transferred back to the General Fund
to cover the purchase of two vehicles in the fire department's FY22 budget.

Recommendation: Motion to adopt a Fire Project Fund project budget 
amendment and a General Fund operating budget amendment. 

J. Consider adopting an ordinance to amend the FY 2021/2022 Budget Ordinance
for the General Fund. The attached budget amendment appropriates contingency
funds to cover the cost of an IT study.

Recommendation:  Motion to adopt an ordinance to amend the FY 2021/2022 
Budget Ordinance for the General Fund. 

K. Consider authorizing the City Manager to accept and execute Federal Aviation
Administration Grant Offer for 2022 in the amount of $ 3,748,306.62 for Airport
Improvement Projects at Concord-Padgett Regional Airport and budget
amendment. The Aviation Department has received confirmation the grant amount
this year will be $3,748,306.62.  FY 22 grant funds will include the following projects:
North Apron Expansion construction and Runway Widening design and bid.
The FAA is currently behind schedule in announcing Airport Improvement program
grants.  We anticipate FAA will require a short turnaround for acceptance and
execution of said grant.  In order to meet the deadline, we are requesting approval of
the grant offer.

Recommendation:  Motion to approve the City Manager to accept and execute 
the grant agreement . 

L. Consider authorizing the City Manager to accept and execute the Concessions
Rent Relief Airport Rescue Grant Agreement and to adopt a budget ordinance
appropriating the grant funds. Concession Rent Relief Airport Rescue Grants were
awarded to the commercial service airports for providing relief to in-terminal airport
concessions from rent and minimum annual guarantees including relief to small
concessions and large airport concessions. Concord-Padgett Regional Airport was
awarded $154,194 in January.

Recommendation:  Motion to authorize the City Manager to accept and execute 
the Concessions Rent Relief Airport Rescue Grant Agreement and to adopt a 
budget ordinance appropriating the grant funds. 

M. Consider adopting ordinances to amend the General Capital Project Fund
budget, the Stormwater Project Fund budget, the Water Project Fund budget,
the Wastewater Project Fund budget, the Electric Project Fund budget, and the
Transportation Project Fund budget. Currently, there are funds for the Streetscape
project in six different project funds.  Staff recommends combining all of these into one
fund to make administration of the project and coding of payments related to this
project less cumbersome.  The total budget for the project and the way in which it is
funded is not changing.  The attached project budget amendments remove the project
from the various utility project funds and move all of the funding to the General Capital
Project Fund.



10 

Recommendation:  Motion to adopt ordinances to amend the General Capital 
Project Fund budget, the Stormwater Project Fund budget, the Water Project Fund 
budget, the Wastewater Project Fund budget, the Electric Project Fund budget, 
and the Transportation Project Fund budget. 

N. Consider amending Article 3.2, Salary Increases, in the Personnel Policies and
Procedures manual. Staff recommends an update to clarify the process for
implementing changes to the compensation structure as a result of a City-wide salary
study.

Recommendation:  Motion to amend Article, 3.2, Salary Increases, in the 
Personnel Policies and Procedures manual. 

O. Consider acceptance of the Tax Office reports for the month of February 2022.
The Tax Collector is responsible for periodic reporting of revenue collections for the
Tax Collection Office.

Recommendation:  Motion to accept the Tax Office collection reports for the 
month of February 2022. 

P. Consider approval of Tax Releases/Refunds from the Tax Collection Office for
the month of February 2022. G.S. 105-381 allows for the refund and/or release of
tax liability due to various reasons by the governing body.  A listing of various
refund/release requests is presented for your approval, primarily due to overpayments,
situs errors and/or valuation changes.

Recommendation:  Motion to approve the Tax releases/refunds for the month of 
February 2022. 

Q. Receive monthly report on status of investments as of February 28, 2022. A
resolution adopted by the governing body on 12/9/1991 directs the Finance Director
to report on the status of investments each month.

Recommendation:  Motion to accept the monthly report on investments. 
VIII. Matters not on the agenda

• Transportation Advisory Committee (TAC)
• Metropolitan Transit Commission (MTC)
• Centralina Regional Council
• Concord/Kannapolis Transit Commission
• Water Sewer Authority of Cabarrus County (WSACC)
• Public Art Advisory Committee
• WeBuild Concord
• Barber Scotia Community Task Force Committee
• Concord United Committee

IX. General comments by Council of non-business nature
X. Closed Session (if needed)
XI. Adjournment

*IN ACCORDANCE WITH ADA REGULATIONS, PLEASE NOTE THAT ANYONE WHO NEEDS
AN ACCOMMODATION TO PARTICIPATE IN THE MEETING SHOULD NOTIFY THE CITY
CLERK AT (704) 920-5205 AT LEAST FORTY-EIGHT HOURS PRIOR TO THE MEETING.



 
 
 

pg. 1 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Cabarrus/Iredell/Rowan County 
HOME Consortium 

 
 

 
 
  

   

15



 
 
 

pg. 2 
 

HOME-ARP Allocation Plan 

 
Participating Jurisdiction (PJ): Cabarrus-Iredell-Rowan County HOME Consortium  Date: 
4/15/2022  
 
Introduction  
In September 2021, the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development announced the appropriation of $5 billion 
to communities across the U.S. to provide housing, services, and shelter to individuals experiencing homelessness and other 
vulnerable populations. These funds were allocated by formula to jurisdictions that qualified for funding through the HOME 
Investment Partnership Program (HOME Program) from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD). This 
special round of funding is called the “HOME-ARP” program and funds must be expended on eligible activities by 2030.  
The Cabarrus-Iredell-Rowan County HOME Consortium was allocated $4,772,338 to provide homelessness assistance 
and supportive services through several eligible activities. Eligible activities include acquisition and development of non-
congregate shelter, tenant based rental assistance, supportive services, HOME-ARP rental housing development, 
administration and planning, and nonprofit operating and capacity building assistance.  
HOME-ARP funds must assist people in HOME-ARP "qualifying populations”, which include:  
▪ Sheltered and unsheltered homeless populations  
▪ Those currently housed populations at risk of homelessness  
▪ Those fleeing or attempting to flee domestic violence or human trafficking  
▪ Other families requiring services or housing assistance or to prevent homelessness  
▪ Those at greatest risk of housing instability or in unstable housing situations  
 

To receive funding, each member of the Consortium must develop a HOME-ARP Allocation Plan which describes the 
distribution and planned eligible activities of HOME-ARP funds. The consolidated HOME Consortium plan will be 
submitted and approved by HUD. The development of the HOME-ARP Allocation Plan must also be informed through 
stakeholder consultation and public engagement. The following is the Cabarrus-Iredell-Rowan County’s HOME-ARP 
Allocation Plan. 

 
Consultation  
Before developing its plan, a PJ must consult with the CoC(s) serving the jurisdiction’s geographic area, homeless and 
domestic violence service providers, veterans’ groups, public housing agencies (PHAs), public agencies that address the needs 
of the qualifying populations, and public or private organizations that address fair housing, civil rights, and the needs of 
persons with disabilities, at a minimum. State PJs are not required to consult with every PHA or CoC within the state’s 
boundaries; however, local PJs must consult with all PHAs (including statewide or regional PHAs) and CoCs serving the 
jurisdiction.  

Summarize the consultation process:  

The Cabarrus-Iredell-Rowan County HOME Consortium’s consultation process was made up of three key components.  

The first component was a virtual public hearing with an information video sent to the respective HOME Consortium 
members along with a primary needs survey distributed within the HOME Consortium service areas where community 
stakeholders were asked about funding, suggested activities, and program parameters. The Virtual public hearing and 

16



 
 
 

pg. 3 
 

information video was distributed to all HOME Consortium members and on December 14, 2021. The online survey was open 
from December 14, 2021 through January 10, 2022 and resulted in 103 response that addressed the area needs. 

The second component is that each member of the HOME consortium held a public hearing with their local leadership in 
approving the proposed area to address and submission of the HOME-ARP Plan to HUD. 

The third component is the public hearing held by Concord on April 14, 2022 which was advertised in the Independent 
Tribune April 3, 2022 and April 10, 2022 to notify residents of the hearing, provide a method for residents to view the 
proposed plan and request comments.    

Lastly, Concord sought data and feedback specifically from the following agencies/organizations.  

The organizations consulted by the HOME Consortium, and summarize the feedback received from these entities. 

Agency/Org Consulted Type of Agency Method of Consultation Feedback 
The NC Balance of State 
Continuum of Care (BoS CoC) 
 

Regional State Agency Direct Contact and/or website Data, Unmet Needs, Needs, 
General Info, and Identify of 
qualifying populations that 
need supportive services 

NCCEH Regional State Agency Direct Contact and/or website Data, Unmet Needs, Needs, 
General Info, and Identify of 
qualifying populations that 
need supportive services 

Salvation Army Local Public Service  Direct Contact and/or website Data, Unmet Needs, Needs, 
General Info, and Identify of 
qualifying populations that 
need supportive services 

United Way Local Public Service  Direct Contact and/or website Data, Unmet Needs, Needs, 
General Info, and Identify of 
qualifying populations that 
need supportive services 

Fifth St Ministries Local Public Service  Direct Contact and/or website Data, Unmet Needs, Needs, 
General Info, and Identify of 
qualifying populations that 
need supportive services 

Cove Church Local Public Service  Direct Contact and/or website Data, Unmet Needs, Needs, 
General Info, and Identify of 
qualifying populations that 
need supportive services 

NCCEH Regional State Agency Direct Contact and/or website Data, Unmet Needs, Needs, 
General Info, and Identify of 
qualifying populations that 
need supportive services 

Rowan Helping Ministries Local Public Service  Direct Contact and/or website Data, Unmet Needs, Needs, 
General Info, and Identify of 
qualifying populations that 
need supportive services 

Watchmen of the Streets Local Public Service  Direct Contact and/or website Data, Unmet Needs, Needs, 
General Info, and Identify of 
qualifying populations that 
need supportive services 

Cooperative Christian 
Ministries 

Local Public Service  Direct Contact and/or website Data, Unmet Needs, Needs, 
General Info, and Identify of 

17



 
 
 

pg. 4 
 

qualifying populations that 
need supportive services 

Opportunity House Local Public Service  Direct Contact and/or website Data, Unmet Needs, Needs, 
General Info, and Identify of 
qualifying populations that 
need supportive services 

Cabarrus Meals on Wheels Local Public Service  Direct Contact and/or website Data, Unmet Needs, Needs, 
General Info, and Identify of 
qualifying populations that 
need supportive services 

Prosperity Unlimited Local Public Service  Direct Contact and/or website Data, Unmet Needs, Needs, 
General Info, and Identify of 
qualifying populations that 
need supportive services 

Coltrane Life Center Local Public Service  Direct Contact and/or website Data, Unmet Needs, Needs, 
General Info, and Identify of 
qualifying populations that 
need supportive services 

Hope Haven Local Public Service  Direct Contact and/or website Data, Unmet Needs, Needs, 
General Info, and Identify of 
qualifying populations that 
need supportive services 

Community Link 
 

Local Public Service  Direct Contact and/or website Data, Unmet Needs, Needs, 
General Info, and Identify of 
qualifying populations that 
need supportive services 

Public Housing Authority PHA Direct Contact and/or website Data, Unmet Needs, Needs, 
General Info, and Identify of 
qualifying populations that 
need supportive services 

CVAN Local Public Service  Direct Contact and/or website Data, Unmet Needs, Needs, 
General Info, and Identify of 
qualifying populations that 
need supportive services 

Crisis Ministry  Local Public Service  Direct Contact and/or website Data, Unmet Needs, Needs, 
General Info, and Identify of 
qualifying populations that 
need supportive services 

Homes of Hope  Local Public Service  Direct Contact and/or website Data, Unmet Needs, Needs, 
General Info, and Identify of 
qualifying populations that 
need supportive services 

Rape, Child, and Family Abuse 
Crisis Council  

 Direct Contact and/or website Data, Unmet Needs, Needs, 
General Info, and Identify of 
qualifying populations that 
need supportive services 

Turning Point (Emergency 
response) 

 Direct Contact and/or website Data, Unmet Needs, Needs, 
General Info, and Identify of 
qualifying populations that 
need supportive services 

Carolina Homeless Information 
Network (CHIN) 

Regional State Agency Direct Contact and/or website Data, Unmet Needs, Needs, 
General Info, and Identify of 
qualifying populations that 

18



 
 
 

pg. 5 
 

need supportive services 
Crisis Ministry   Direct Contact and/or website Data, Unmet Needs, Needs, 

General Info, and Identify of 
qualifying populations that 
need supportive services 

 
 

 

Public Participation  
PJs must provide for and encourage citizen participation in the development of the HOME-ARP allocation plan. Before 
submission of the plan, PJs must provide residents with reasonable notice and an opportunity to comment on the 
proposed HOME-ARP allocation plan of no less than 15 calendar days. The PJ must follow its adopted requirements for 
“reasonable notice and an opportunity to comment” for plan amendments in its current citizen participation plan. In 
addition, PJs must hold at least one public hearing during the development of the HOME-ARP allocation plan and prior 
to submission.  
For the purposes of HOME-ARP, PJs are required to make the following information available to the public:  

• The amount of HOME-ARP the PJ will receive,  
• The range of activities the PJ may undertake.  

 
Describe the public participation process, including information about and the dates of the public comment period 
and public hearing(s) held during the development of the plan:  

The City of Concord continues to acknowledge the importance of citizen participation when developing activities for the 
HOME-ARP funding. The Consortium’s Citizen Participation Plan was adjusted to include virtual, electronic, and website 
support in an effort to increase public awareness and to solicit input. Furthermore, the HOME Consortium will always seek 
guidance from HUD, other municipalities, and most importantly people from target communities. In the past, the HOME 
Consortium has encouraged participation in developing of this Plan by making a copy of the plan assessable and available for 
community review at the offices of the HOME Consortium, Public Libraries, on the City Website, and holding public hearings. 
Due to COVID restrictions, we were discouraged from having face to face meetings. Staff then conducted a virtual public 
hearing with a video that was distributed throughout the HOME Consortium service area, placed on local governmental 
websites, referenced in newsletters, social media, and survey for the public to provide input. 

The general public, boards and commissions, non-profits, and other interested parties were asked to review and submit 
comments from December 14, 2021 – January 10, 2022. The outlets provided opportunities for the community to have input 
on the Plan. 

• Public comment period: start date - 12/14/2021 end date - 1/10/2022  
• City Council Work Session: March 12, 2022  
• Public hearing: March 14, 2022  

 
 
Describe any efforts to broaden public participation:  
In addition to the public notice and public comment period, the HOME Consortium addressed questions and informed 
public service providers about the availability of funds and partnership opportunities. Community stakeholders included 
representatives of social service organizations, homeless services providers, and other nonprofit organizations. Each 

19



 
 
 

pg. 6 
 

member of the HOME Consortium also shared the public hearing/information video, posted the public notice, drafted 
HOME-ARP allocation plan, presentations were posted on each member’s respective websites, and each member 
presented their plans to submit to their respective councils or boards.  
 
A PJ must consider any comments or views of residents received in writing, or orally at a public hearing, when preparing 
the HOME-ARP allocation plan.  
 
Summarize the comments and recommendations received through the public participation 
process:  
A Primary Needs Assessment Survey was sent out to assess the community’s priorities for HOME-ARP eligible activities. 
The survey produced 103 community responses with the top two responses for the eligible activities is listed below. 
Community Stakeholders were also asked for their top two priorities from the four eligible HOME-ARP areas. 

1. Development and Support of Affordable Housing 
• Buying, repairing, and building rental housing for qualified households 
• Purchasing abandoned and dilapidated rental properties to demo and rebuild new rental housing for 

qualifying households 
2. Tenant-Based Rental Assistance 

• Providing payments to cover the entire or insufficient amounts: rental assistance 
• Provide payments to cover the entire or insufficient amounts: security deposits 

3. Supportive Services-Including services listed in Section 401 of the McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act, 
homeless prevention services and housing counseling services 
• Providing McKinney-Veto Supportive Services assistance to qualifying households 
• Providing homeless prevention services for qualifying households 

4. Need for more non-congregate housing  
• Yes 

5. Of the four eligible uses what is most needed 
• Development and Support of Affordable Housing 
• Supportive services 

 
 
Summarize any comments or recommendations not accepted and state the reasons why:  
All comments and recommendations were accepted 

 
Needs Assessment and Gaps Analysis  
PJs must evaluate the size and demographic composition of qualifying populations within its boundaries and assess the 
unmet needs of those populations. In addition, a PJ must identify any gaps within its current shelter and housing 
inventory as well as the service delivery system. A PJ should use current data, including point in time count, housing 
inventory count, or other data available through CoCs, and consultations with service providers to quantify the 
individuals and families in the qualifying populations and their need for additional housing, shelter, or services. The PJ 
may use the optional tables provided below and/or attach additional data tables to this template.  
 
 
Describe the size and demographic composition of qualifying populations within the PJ’s boundaries: 

20



 
 
 

pg. 7 
 

According to the 2020 Continuum of Care annual Point-in-Time Count that includes valuable data for addressing the 
needs of residents who are experiencing homelessness or at risk of homelessness, there was an estimated 9,280 people 
that experienced homelessness on any given day in North Carolina. Of that Total, 809 were family 
households, 798 were Veterans, 485 were unaccompanied young adults (aged 18-24), and 1,272 were individuals 
experiencing chronic homelessness. Of the total in NC, Cabarrus County had an estimated total of 78 persons, 
Iredell has 56, and Rowan County having 93 for a total HOME Consortium area of 227 facing homelessness. The 
HOME Consortium Service Area data showed that White residents are the largest demographic of people experiencing 
homelessness with nearly 68% of population total. Overall, men are more at-risk to experience homelessness than 
women. Approximately 123 people have a severe mental illness and 104 have chronic substance abuse.  Of these, 79 
people are veterans and nearly 195 are victims of domestic violence. COVID may have had an impact on the reported 
numbers because unsheltered homeless data was not collected. 
 
 
Describe the unmet housing and service needs of qualifying populations, including but not limited to:  

• Sheltered and unsheltered homeless populations;  
• Those currently housed populations at risk of homelessness;  
• Other families requiring services or housing assistance or to prevent homelessness; and,  
• Those at greatest risk of housing instability or in unstable housing situations:  

 
The primary unmet need as it pertains to homeless needs inventory is the availability of beds and units for adults who 
are experiencing homelessness. There is a need for more beds in order to provide housing services for adults. 
Additionally, the bulk of the beds available are emergency shelters and may not help residents escape homelessness or 
address housing insecurity. During our consultation, respondents also highlighted the following unmet service needs for 
the homeless population: legal aid, housing search and counseling, mental health services, outpatient health services, 
substance abuse treatment services, and comprehensive case management. Many of these services are available in the 
city, but residents are unaware. Additional outreach and intentional community engagement is needed to raise 
awareness of the services available in the areas of the Consortium.  
 
The unmet needs for the populations at risk of homelessness and housing instability include resources for rental or 
utility deposit assistance and development of affordable rental housing units. This common theme was highlighted by 
multiple stakeholders citing the unmet need of sufficient supply of safe and affordable rental housing or emergency 
shelter. Inadequate supply of affordable rental housing inventory was highlighted in info gleaned in reporting. 
 
Other families requiring services or housing assistance or to prevent homelessness include persons fleeing domestic 
violence and single mothers—a need highlighted by public service provider feedback as qualifying populations needing 
a more specialized support as they face housing instability challenges. A shortage of funding and staff administering 
specialized services have been identified as a gap.  
 
Providers also have indicated that an overwhelming number of participants have health related issues and that a 
majority of those are not receiving treatment/care. Public service providers indicated that a considerable number of the 
homeless population had experienced some type of emotional/trauma, indulged in substance abuse, and may have 
suffered from mental illness. These factors may have ultimately contributed to the loss of stable housing. 
 
Identify and consider the current resources available to assist qualifying populations, including congregate and non-
congregate shelter units, supportive services, Tenant-Based Rental Assistance (TBRA), and affordable and permanent 
supportive rental housing: 

21



 
 
 

pg. 8 
 

Identify any gaps within the current shelter and housing inventory as well as the service delivery system: 
The increased number within the qualifying populations, lack of funding, and the availability of staff to provide the 
needed specialized service is among some of the gaps identified by service providers. Other gaps include shelter, 
housing inventory, and service delivery systems include:  non-congregate shelter for families; sufficient case 
management to quickly resolve the household’s homelessness; staffing to allow for a reasonable caseload; non-
congregate shelter beds for single adults, and permanent supportive housing.  
 
As noted above, the primary gap in the shelter and housing inventory is the availability of beds and units for adults with 
no children present. There is a need for more beds for this population. There is a shortage of affordable housing in the 
HOME Consortium service area which is not unique to most areas of the country. The availability of affordable housing 
units does not meet the needs of the qualifying population. There is a need for quality affordable housing units of 
multiple sizes in all neighborhoods. Housing inventory gaps include affordable 1-bedroom and 2-bedroom units. 
Vacancy rates of rental housing are extremely low and underscores the importance of creating and preserving 
affordable rental housing that can address the housing needs of the most vulnerable. Wages haven’t kept pace with 
cost of living increases and rising house prices. All of these things have contributed to higher rates of homeless 
recidivism with the lack of effective case management and follow-up preventing a successful and sustainable outcome.  

 

Identify the characteristics of housing associated with instability and an increased risk of homelessness if the PJ will 
include such conditions in its definition of “other populations” as established in the HOME-ARP Notice: 

The members of the HOME Consortium do plan to formally adopt a definition of “other populations” the Consortium 
and its members will focus its HOME-ARP activities to address 1) the development and support of affordable housing; 2) 
tenant based rental assistance; 3) supportive services-including service listed in 401 (29) of the McKinney-Vento 
Homeless Assistance Act, homeless prevention services, and housing counseling services; 4) Non-Aggregate housing. 

Identify priority needs for qualifying populations: 

• the development and support of affordable housing 
• supportive services-including service listed in 401 (29) of the McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act, 

homeless prevention services, and housing counseling services 
• tenant based rental assistance 

 

Explain how the level of need and gaps in its shelter and housing inventory and service delivery systems based on the 
data presented in the plan were determined:  The level of need and gaps within the HOME Consortium Service Area 
were assessed from direct comments from public service providers, feedback from community stakeholders, input from 
the primary needs survey, and the evaluation of available homeless data.  

 

22



 
 
 

pg. 9 
 

HOME-ARP Activities  
Describe the method for soliciting applications for funding and/or selecting developers, service 
providers, subrecipients and/or contractors and whether the PJ will administer eligible activities 
directly:  
Each member of the Cabarrus-Iredell-Rowan County HOME Consortium will administer their 
respective HOME-ARP program directly with the lead entity, the City of Concord, providing 
administrative, oversight, and compliance support. Our HOME-ARP activities will be governed by 
the attached HOME-ARP Policy and Procedure Manual. Once the HOME Consortium has received 
the full HOME-ARP grant award from HUD (and HOME-ARP agreements executed), the members of 
the HOME Consortium will conduct a Request for Proposals for a specified period of time to make it 
a more competitive process in awarding these funds. During that time any organization, developer, 
subrecipient, or Community Housing Development Organization (CHDO) will be eligible to apply. At 
the close of the application period, all applications received will be reviewed for completeness, 
eligibility, and their ability to deliver on the priority needs identified within their respective plan. 
Each applicant will also be reviewed for their ability to carry out the project meeting all eligibility 
criteria.  
Award(s) will be made based on the applicant’s project scope as it pertains to the outlined priority 
needs in this plan as well as the applicant’s familiarity with utilizing federal funding and ability to 
comply with all federal and local requirements.  
 
 
If any portion of the PJ’s HOME-ARP administrative funds were provided to a subrecipient or 
contractor prior to HUD’s acceptance of the HOME-ARP allocation plan because the subrecipient 
or contractor is responsible for the administration of the PJ’s entire HOME-ARP grant, identify the 
subrecipient or contractor and describe its role and responsibilities in administering all of the PJ’s 
HOME-ARP program:  
The City of Concord, lead entity for the Cabarrus-Iredell-Rowan County HOME Consortium, will 
provide management, administration, oversight, and compliance on behalf of the HOME-ARP 
program for the consortium. The City provided a community stakeholder survey and public hearing 
and information video to assist the data collection, data analysis, stakeholder outreach, allocation 
plan development, and submission to HUD. No portion of administrative funds was provided to a 
subcontractor prior to HUD’s acceptance of the HOME-ARP allocation plan.  
 
 
PJs must indicate the amount of HOME-ARP funding that is planned for each eligible HOME-ARP 
activity type and demonstrate that any planned funding for nonprofit organization operating 
assistance, nonprofit capacity building, and administrative costs is within HOME-ARP limits. Each 
member of the Consortium’s activity type, planned use of funds, and administration funding: 
   
  
  
  
  
    

23



 
 
 

pg. 10 
 

    
    
  
Rowan County  

• Create and Develop Non-Congregate Housing -554,109 
• Tenant Based Rental Assistance and Support Services -184,703 
• General Program Administration -58,670 

 

Mooresville 

• Development and Support of Affordable Housing $479,130 
• General Program Administration $38,049 

 

Salisbury 

• Acquisition and Development of Non-Congregate Housing $487,247 
• Program Administration  33, 693 
• Fair Housing Activities $5000 

 

Cabarrus County 

• Acquisition and Development of Non-Congregate Housing $578,00.40 
• Program Administration $45,900.17 

 

Kannapolis 

• Acquisition and Development of Non-Congregate Housing $561,907.11 
• Program Administration $44,622.17 

 

Statesville 

• Development and Support of Affordable Housing $474,693.92 
• Program Administration $37,695.92 

 

Concord 

• Development and Support of Affordable Housing $736,697.79 
• Program Administration $58,502 (lead entity $393,718.14) 

 

TOTAL $4,772,338 

Additional narrative, if applicable:  

24



 
 
 

pg. 11 
 

n/a 
 
 
Describe how the characteristics of the shelter and housing inventory, service delivery system, and 
needs identified in the gap analysis provided a rationale for the plan to fund eligible activities: 
The community needs and gap analysis showed that there is a gap in our homelessness response 
system for supportive services, permanent housing and non-congregate emergency shelters 
facilities. The Consortium has identified activities that will hopefully assist individuals and families of 
the most vulnerable qualified populations. Feedback shows that there is a need to strengthen our 
respective community emergency response system. The connection for those experiencing 
homelessness or at risk of homelessness need access to housing quickly with opportunities to move 
from homeless to housed permanently. Continued development of effective supportive services can 
help address these needs directly.  
One of the major gaps in the HOME Consortium service area is the limited homeless inventory and 
available affordable housing. Households experiencing a housing crisis or fleeing an unsafe situation 
need to find a place to stay quickly. Creation and access affordable housing and emergency housing 
options represent the current gap in the current system. Emergency shelter and bridge housing can 
help to fill this gap and strengthen the crisis response system. The HOME-ARP funds could possibly 
provide an opportunity to assist households with temporary supportive housing through the 
acquisition and development of non-congregate shelters. These shelters will not only help those 
experiencing homelessness, but they will also assist families or individuals who are fleeing, or 
attempting to flee, domestic violence and sexual assault.  
Many of the individuals and families who receive assistance to mitigate homelessness or to flee 
violent circumstances require all-encompassing services that are population specific with their 
housing because of the compounding and complex challenges they face. HOME Consortium 
members will be assisting in the creation of more affordable housing for the 50% and below 
population. 
 
HOME-ARP Production Housing Goals  
Estimate the number of affordable rental housing units for qualifying populations that the PJ will 
produce or support with its HOME-ARP allocation:  
The City of Concord plans to produce at least 46 units with the possibility of more and Cabarrus 
County and Kannapolis plan to produce 25-35 units with other members pursuing opportunities to 
acquire and develop non-congregate housing. 
 
 
Describe the specific affordable rental housing production goal that the PJ hopes to achieve and 
describe how it will address the PJ’s priority needs:  
Concord HOME-ARP funds will be only a portion of the total funds Concord will contribute to the 
reconstruction of the existing Public Housing units once the RAD conversion is completed.  Overall, 
the goal for the area is to increase from the current 46 units to 110 units which is the number 
allowed by current zoning for the parcel.   

 

25



 
 
 

pg. 12 
 

 
 
Preferences  
Identify whether the PJ intends to give preference to one or more qualifying populations or a 
subpopulation within one or more qualifying populations for any eligible activity or project:  
 Preferences cannot violate any applicable fair housing, civil rights, and nondiscrimination 
requirements, including but not limited to those requirements listed in 24 CFR 5.105(a).  
 PJs are not required to describe specific projects to which the preferences will apply.  
 
The Cabarrus-Iredell-Rowan HOME Consortium will not provide preferences to any population or 
subpopulation.  
 
HOME-ARP Refinancing Guidelines  
The HOME Consortium members does not intend to use HOME-ARP funds to refinance existing debt 

secured by multifamily rental housing 

26



 
 
 Staff Report                    City Council 
 
DATE:   April 14, 2022 
 
CASE: TA-04-22 Text Amendment- 

Tattoo Parlor & Body Piercing Distance Separations 
  
PREPARED BY: Brad Lagano, Senior Planner 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Staff recently received an inquiry from a citizen desiring to open a tattoo parlor in a C-2 (General 
Commercial) zoning district. This district does allow tattoo parlors by right, but includes the 
supplemental regulation that tattoo parlors shall be separated by at least three hundred (300) feet 
from any existing residential use, religious institutional use, day care use, public park, or school 
elementary, middle, or senior high. The building for the proposed tattoo parlor is approximately 
140’ from an existing apartment building thereby preventing the tattoo parlor from meeting the 
required distance separation.  Thus, the use cannot be permitted under the current zoning 
ordinance.  The citizen reached out to City Council and requested that the City revisit the 
regulations related to tattoo parlors.  In response to a Council initiated request to evaluate tattoo 
parlor regulations, staff has prepared amendments to CDO Articles 8 “Use Regulations” and 14 
“Definitions” relative to tattoo parlors.  As tattoo parlors and piercing parlors are separate uses 
but grouped within the Use Table, alterations to the supplemental regulations for piercing parlors 
have also been amended for consistency.   
 

Staff reviewed zoning regulations within the Charlotte, Kannapolis, High Point, Greenville, 
Ashville, and Wilmington ordinances. These cities were chosen based on either proximity to 
Concord or similar population size. All treat tattoo parlors and body piercing establishments as 
by right uses within commercial districts with the exception of Kannapolis which requires a 
Special Use Permit (SUP). Charlotte requires a distance separation between tattoo parlors and 
body piercing establishments of four hundred (400) feet. None of the ordinances investigated 
require a tattoo parlor or body piercing business to be separated a minimum distance from any 
other specific uses.  
 

Therefore, in response to the inquiry and in an effort to modernize the Concord Development 
Ordinance (CDO) and bring it into conformity with other similar jurisdictions as it relates to the 
zoning treatment of tattoo parlors and body piercing establishments, Staff has proposed potential 
amendments to Article 8 Use Regulations, Sections 8.1.8 (Use Table), 8.3.5(K) and 8.3.5(M) 
under Commercial Uses in the following manner: 
1. Add the section letter “M” to the Use Table standards column to specifically reference the 

supplemental conditions for Body Piercing establishments under Section 8.3.5(M). 

27



2. Remove the distance separation provision requiring a tattoo parlor establishment to be located 
a minimum of three hundred (300) feet from any existing residential use, religious institutional 
use, day care use, public park, or school elementary, middle, or senior high. 

3. Remove the distance separation provision requiring a body piercing establishment to be located 
a minimum of three hundred (300) feet from any existing residential use, religious institutional 
use, day care use, public park, or school elementary, middle, or senior high. 

4. Remove signage supplemental condition for body piercing parlors as it is already regulated 
under Article 12 Sign Regulations. 

5. Add a distance separation provision requiring a minimum of three hundred (300) feet between 
tattoo parlors. 

6. Add a distance separation provision requiring a minimum of three hundred (300) feet between 
body piercing establishments. 

 
In addition, Staff has suggested amending Article 14 (Definitions) in the following manner: 
1. Add the following definition “Tattoo parlor means any location where tattooing is engaged in 

or where the business of tattooing is conducted or any part thereof”. 
 
 

28



TA-04-22 
 

                                                                                                        Staff Report             
 Planning and Zoning Commission 
 
DATE:   March 15, 2022 
 
CASE: TA-04-22 Text Amendment – Tattoo Parlor & Body Piercing 

Distance Separations 
 
PREPARED BY: Brad Lagano, Senior Planner 
  
BACKGROUND 
Though tattoo and body piercing acceptance has evolved drastically over the past twenty 
(20) years, prior generations have tended to carry with them their original preconceptions. 
Previously, these body alterations were not viewed favorably and associated with the image 
of an outcast and a form of rebellion. Modern society has transformed and brought tattoo 
and body piercing culture into the mainstream. Today, these body alterations can be seen 
on a variety of ages, sexes, cultures, races, and professions. 
 
Staff recently had an inquiry from a citizen desiring to open her second tattoo parlor in a 
C-2 (General Commercial) zoning district. This district does allow tattoo parlors by right, 
but includes the supplemental regulation that tattoo parlors shall be separated by at least 
three hundred (300) feet from any existing residential use, religious institutional use, day 
care use, public park, or school elementary, middle, or senior high. The existing building 
for the proposed tattoo parlor is approximately 140’ from an existing apartment building 
thereby preventing the tattoo parlor from meeting the required distance separation. 
 
Staff reviewed existing zoning regulations within the Charlotte, Kannapolis, High Point, 
Greenville, Ashville, and Wilmington ordinances. These cities were chosen based on either 
proximity to Concord or similar population size. All treat tattoo parlors and body piercing 
establishments as by right uses within commercial districts with the exception of 
Kannapolis which requires a Special Use Permit (SUP). Charlotte requires a distance 
separation between tattoo parlors and body piercing establishments of four hundred (400) 
feet. None of the ordinances investigated require a tattoo parlor or body piercing business 
to be separated a minimum distance from any other specific uses.  
 
Therefore, in the effort to modernize the Concord Development Ordinance (CDO) and 
bring it into conformity with other similar jurisdictions as it relates to the zoning treatment 
of tattoo parlors and body piercing establishments, Staff is seeking to amend Article 8 Use 
Regulations, Sections 8.1.8 (Use Table), 8.3.5(K) and 8.3.5(M) under Commercial Uses in 
the following manner: 

1. Add the section letter “M” to the Use Table standards column to specifically 
reference the supplemental conditions for Body Piercing establishments under 
Section 8.3.5(M). 

2. Remove the distance separation provision requiring a tattoo parlor establishment to 
be located a minimum of three hundred (300) feet from any existing residential use, 

29



TA-04-22 
 

religious institutional use, day care use, public park, or school elementary, middle, 
or senior high. 

3. Remove the distance separation provision requiring a body piercing establishment 
to be located a minimum of three hundred (300) feet from any existing residential 
use, religious institutional use, day care use, public park, or school elementary, 
middle, or senior high. 

4. Remove signage supplemental condition for body piercing parlors as it is already 
regulated under Article 12 Sign Regulations. 

5. Add a distance separation provision requiring a minimum of three hundred (300) 
feet between tattoo parlors. 

6. Add a distance separation provision requiring a minimum of three hundred (300) 
feet between body piercing establishments. 

 
In addition, Staff is seeking to amend Article 14 (Definitions) in the following manner: 

1. Add the definition “Tattoo parlor means any location where tattooing is engaged in 
or where the business of tattooing is conducted or any part thereof”. 

 
A redlined version of Articles 8 and 14 are provided in addition to the details included in 
the staff report.  
 

30



Concord Development Ordinance 8-10
Concord, North Carolina 

AG RESIDENTIAL COMMERCIAL IND 

USE CATEGORY SPECIFIC USE A
G

 

R
E 

R
L 

R
M

-1
 

R
M

-2
 

R
V

 

R
C

 

O
-I

B
-1

C
C

 

C
-1

C
-2

I-
1

I-
2

Standards 
Grocery/Food Store P P P P 
Fortuneteller, 
Divination, Palmistry S 
 

Funeral Home P P P P P 
Internet/Electronic 
Gaming PS PS PS 8.3.5.L 

Laundromat (self 
service) P S P P 
Lawn and Garden 
Supply, Nursery with 
Outdoor Storage 

P PS PS 8.3.5.J 

Lawn and Garden 
Supply without 
Outdoor Storage 

P P P P 

Massage Therapist P P P P P P 
Pawnshop S S P 
Photofinishing 
Laboratory P P P 

Printing and Related 
Support Activities  P P P 
 

Shopping Centers, 
less than 25,000 sq. 
ft. 

P P P P 
 

Shopping Centers, 
greater than 25,000 
sq. ft. 

P 

Sign or Banner Shop 
with outdoor storage P P 
Sign or Banner shop 
without outdoor 
storage 

P P P P 

Swimming Pool, Hot 
Tub Sales and 
Service P P 

Tattoo Parlor, Body 
Piercing PS 

8.3.5.K 
And  

8.3.5.M 
 

Taxidermist  P 
Weight Loss Centers P P P P P 

Self Service 
Storage  

Self-service storage, 
including mini-
warehouses 

PS PS 8.3.6.E 

Vehicle Sales 
and Service 

Automobile Towing 
and Wrecker Service, 
Vehicle Storage Lot 

PS PS 8.3.6.H 

Article 8

31



Concord Development Ordinance 8-57
Concord, North Carolina 

K. TATOO PARLOR
1. SEPARATION

Tattoo parlors shall be separated by at least three hundred (300)
feet from any existing residential use, religious institution use, day
care use, public park, or school (elementary, middle, or senior
high)tattoo parlor.  Distance betweens to residences, religious
uses, day cares or schoolstattoo parlors shall be measured radially
from the building wall of the establishment to the building wall of
the referenced use at their closest points.

L. INTERNET/ELECTRONIC GAMING
1. PERMITTED ZONING DISTRICT

Internet/electronic gaming shall be permitted only in the B-1
(Neighborhood Commercial/Office) District and the C-1 (Light
Commercial and Office) Districts as accessory uses and the C-2
(General Commercial District) as either a principal or accessory
use, subject to the following requirements.

2. ACCESSORY USE
Internet/electronic gaming is allowed as an accessory use to the
extent that the use functions are a use accessory, incidental, and
subordinate in area, extent, and purpose to the principal use of the
premises.  Such accessory uses are allowed in convenience stores
and restaurants.  Accessory uses shall be limited to no more than
four (4) individual machines or terminals.  Within the B-1 and C-1
zoning districts, internet/electronic gaming is permitted as an
accessory use only, and only provided that the associated principal
use is permitted within the zoning district.

3. SEPARATION FROM CERTAIN USES
Internet/electronic gaming shall not be located within 200 feet in
any direction from other internet/electronic gaming, or from any
cemetery, congregate care facility, religious institution, municipal
government facilities, including but not limited to municipal public
parks, public or private child care center or child care facility,
public or private school or non-profit club.  This required separation
shall apply whether the above uses are principal or accessory uses.

4. MAJOR GATEWAY SETBACKS
Internet/electronic gaming shall maintain a two hundred (200) foot
setback along the gateway corridors listed below.  The setback shall
be measured perpendicular to the existing road right-of-way and
shall extend one mile from the city limit line.  For the purposes of
this section, a major gateway is identified as an entry way into the
City limits along any of the following transportation corridors:  NC-
3, NC-73, NC-49, Concord Parkway, US 601, Poplar Tent Road,
George W. Liles Parkway, and Christenbury Parkway.

5. MEASUREMENT

Article 8

32



Concord Development Ordinance 8-59
Concord, North Carolina 

M. BODY PIERCING
1. SEPARATION

Body piercing establishments shall be separated by at least three
hundred (300) feet from any existing residential use, religious
institution use, day care use, public park, or school (elementary,
middle, or senior high)body piercing establishment. Distances to
residences, religious uses, day cares or schoolsbetween body
piercing establishments shall be measured radially from the
building wall of the tattoo parlorestablishment to the building wall
of the referenced use at the closest point.

2. SIGNAGE
All signage to comply with Article 12, Signs Regulations.

N. BANQUET HOME
1. LOCATION

Banquet Homes shall only be established in accordance with the
Use Table, subject to the following location limitations:
A. On a parcel with frontage on a major or minor thoroughfare;
B. On a parcel or combination of parcels in common ownership

totaling no less than two (2) acres.

2. STRUCTURE
A residential structure which shall be used for a banquet home shall
not be altered in any way that changes its general residential
appearance.

3. APPROVAL CRITERIA
A. All required off-street parking shall be provided in the rear yard

and shall be located in such a manner as to not be visible from
the public right-of-way.  For minimum off-street parking
requirements see § 10.3.

B. Other than event guests, no meals shall be served to the general
public.

C. A Class “C” buffer shall be required adjacent to all residentially
zoned or developed properties.  For additional landscaping and
buffering requirements, see Article 11.

D. Lighting. All outdoor lights must be shielded to direct light and
glare only onto the facility’s premises and may be of sufficient
intensity to discourage vandalism and theft.  Lighting and glare
shall be deflected, shaded and focused away from any adjoining
residential property.  A lighting plan illustrating compliance
with these requirements shall be submitted as part of the
special use permit application.

E. Signage. Signs for banquet homes shall meet the requirements
of the Sign Regulations, Article 12, and the supplemental
requirements set forth below.

Article 8

33



CITY OF CONCORD DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE Article 14 

or to connect the antenna to the tower via cable, adding an 
appurtenance to the body of a wireless support structure that protrudes 
horizontally from the edge of the wireless support structure the greater 
of (i) more than 20 feet or (ii) more than the width of the wireless 
support structure at the level of the appurtenance. 

3. Increasing the square footage of the existing equipment compound by
more than 2,500 square feet.

4. 
SUPERSTORE - A retail structure or group of structures have a total of in excess of 

twenty-five thousand (25,000) square feet of Gross Floor Area. 

SURFACE, IMPERVIOUS - See Impervious Surface.  

SURVEYOR - A land surveyor registered by the State of North Carolina. 

SWALE - An elongated depression in the land surface that is at least seasonally wet, is 
usually heavily vegetated, and is normally without flowing water.  Swales direct 
storm water flows into primary drainage channels and allow some of the storm 
water to infiltrate into the ground surface. 

SWIMMING POOL, PRIVATE - A pool established or maintained on any premises by an 
individual for use by his/her family or guests of his/her household. 

SWINE FARM - A tract of land devoted to raising 250 or more animals of the porcine 
species.  (Source:  NCGS § 106-802, Swine Farm Siting Act) 

SWINE HOUSE - A building that shelters porcine animals on a continuous basis. 
(Source:  NCGS § 106-802, Swine Farm Siting Act) 

TATTOO PARLOR - Any location where tattooing is engaged in or where the business 
of tattooing is conducted or any part thereof. 

TECHNICAL BULLETIN AND TECHNICAL FACT SHEET - A FEMA publication that 
provides guidance concerning the building performance standards of the NFIP, 
which are contained in Title 44 of the U.S. Code of Federal Regulations at Section 
60.3. The bulletins and fact sheets are intended for use primarily by State and 
local officials responsible for interpreting and enforcing NFIP regulations and by 
members of the development community, such as design professionals and 
builders. New bulletins, as well as updates of existing bulletins, are issued 
periodically as needed. The bulletins do not create regulations; rather they 
provide specific guidance for complying with the minimum requirements of 
existing NFIP regulations.  
It should be noted that Technical Bulletins and Technical Fact Sheets provide 

Article 14

34



1 
 

 ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ZONING ORDINANCE 
OF THE CITY OF CONCORD, NORTH CAROLINA 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Concord, North Carolina pursuant to the authority 
conferred by the North Carolina General Statute §160A-364 enacted an Official Zoning 
Ordinance for the City of Concord, North Carolina and the Area of Extraterritorial 
Jurisdiction on July 28, 1977; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Concord, North Carolina pursuant to the authority 
conferred by North Carolina General Statute §§160D-601 through 160D-605, 160D-701 
through 160D-706, 160D-801 through 160D-808 and 160D-901 through 160D-951, may 
from time to time as necessary amend, supplement, change, modify or repeal certain 
of its zoning regulations and restrictions and zone boundaries; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Concord, North Carolina pursuant to the authority 
conferred by North Carolina General Statute 160D-601 through 160D-605, 160D-701 
through 160D-706, 160D-801 through 160D-808 and 160D-901 through 160D-951 does 
hereby recognize a need to amend the text of certain articles of the City of Concord 
Development Ordinance. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Concord, 
North Carolina: 
 
SECTION 1: That the following section of Concord Development Ordinance (CDO) Article 
8 “Use Regulations”, Section 8.1.8. “Use Table”, be amended in relevant part: 

 
SECTION 2: That Section 8.3.5.K. be amended to read as follows: 

K. TATOO PARLOR  
1. SEPARATION 

Tattoo parlors shall be separated by at least three hundred (300) 
feet from any existing tattoo parlor.  Distance between tattoo 
parlors shall be measured radially from the building wall of the 
establishment to the building wall of the referenced use at their 
closest points.   

SECTION 3: That Section 8.3.5.M be amended to read as follows: 

M. BODY PIERCING  
1. SEPARATION 

Body piercing establishments shall be separated by at least three 
hundred (300) feet from any existing body piercing establishment. 
Distance between body piercing establishments shall be measured 
radially from the building wall of the establishment to the building 
wall of the referenced use at the closest point. 

SECTION 4: That Section 12.1.2 be amended to include the following definition: 

TATTOO PARLOR - Any location where tattooing is engaged in or where the 
business of tattooing is conducted or any part thereof. 

SECTION 5: That this Ordinance be effective immediately upon adoption. 

Adopted in this April 14th, 2022. 

        CITY COUNCIL 

35



2 
 

        CITY OF CONCORD 

        NORTH CAROLINA 

 

 

ATTEST:      _________________________          

William C. Dusch, Mayor 

______________________________ 

Kim Deason, City Clerk 

         

 

__________________________ 

VaLerie Kolczynski, City Attorney                            

36



 

 
451 Discovery Drive, Livermore, CA 94551      |      www.gillig.com      |      510.264.5000 

 

 
 

 

 

March 24, 2022 

 

 

LJ Weslowski 

Transit Manager 

Concord Kannapolis Area Transit 

3600 South Ridge Ave 

Concord, NC 28025 
 

Dear LJ, 

 

Thank You for your interest in purchasing SIX (6) 35’ Gillig BRT Low Floor BAE Hybrid bus utilizing options off 

the Piedmont, NC contract with GILLIG.  I prepared the following price quote based on your previous 

specifications. I also included the applicable PPI adjustment per the contract. Please reference the price summary 

dated March 24, 2022, for complete details.  

 

 Gillig is pleased to quote the following: 

 

  

 (6) 35’ BRT LOW FLOOR BAE HYBRID    $819,218.00 Each 

 

 

 

Pricing valid for Thirty (30) days and is FOB Concord, NC.  Prices exclude any taxes and license fees. Delivery 

will be within 54 weeks after receipt of purchase order. 

 

We thank you very much for this opportunity and appreciate your continued support. Should you have any 

questions, please do not hesitate to contact us. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

Butch Sibley 

Sales Manager 

Gillig LLC 

510-589-9430 

bsibley@gillig.com 

 

 

37

file:///C:/bsibley@gillig.com


  

 

 
ORD.  #  

 
CAPITAL PROJECT ORDINANCE AMENDMENT 

Affordable Housing Fund 
 

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Concord, North Carolina that pursuant to Section 13.2 
 Chapter 159 of the General Statutes of North Carolina, the following project ordinance is hereby 
 adopted/amended: 
 

SECTION 1. The project authorized is Affordable Housing. 
 
SECTION 2. The City Manager is hereby authorized to proceed with the implementation and 

amendments of the projects within the terms of the plans and specifications for the projects. 
 
 SECTION 3. The following revenues are anticipated to be available to the City of 

Concord for the completion of the projects: 
 

Revenues 

Account Title 
 Current 
Budget  

 
Amended 
Budget  

 
(Decrease)  
Increase 

     
     

 
SECTION 4. The following amounts are appropriated for the project: 

Expenses/Expenditures 

Account Title 
 Current 
Budget  

 Amended 
Budget  

 (Decrease)  
Increase 

3700-5811082 
3700-5811082 
3700-5475100 
3700-5475100 

 
Future Projects 
 
We Build 

$1,789,850 
 

$300,000 

$789,850 
 
$1,300,000 

($1,000,000) 
 
$1,000,000 

 Total    $0 
 
SECTION 5. Accounting records are to be maintained by the Finance Department of the City of Concord 

in such manner as (1) to provide all information required by the project agreement and other agreements executed 
or to be executed with the various parties involved with the project; and (2) to comply with the Local Government 
Budget and Fiscal Control Act of the State of North Carolina. 
 

SECTION 6. Within five (5) days after adoption, copies of this capital projects ordinance shall be filed 
with the City Manager, Finance Director, and City Clerk for direction in carrying out this project. 

 
 SECTION 7. The Finance Director is directed to report on the financial status of this project in accordance 

with the existing City policy, and shall also report to the City Manager any unusual occurrences. 
 

Duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Concord, North Carolina this 14th day April, 2022. 
        
 
 CITY COUNCIL 
       CITY OF CONCORD 
       NORTH CAROLINA  
    
                                                                               ____________________________ 
       William C. Dusch, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST:_____________________  ______________________________ 
              Kim Deason, City Clerk   Valerie Kolczynski, City Attorney 

38



PPAB 7057065v1 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CONCORD, NORTH CAROLINA 
DIRECTING THE PUBLICATION OF NOTICE OF INTENTION TO APPLY TO THE LOCAL 
GOVERNMENT COMMISSION FOR APPROVAL OF BONDS 

 
 WHEREAS, the City Council (the “City Council”) of the City of Concord, North Carolina 
(the “City”) is considering the issuance of general obligation bonds of the City which shall be for the 
following purposes and in the following maximum amount: 
 

$60,000,000 of bonds to pay capital costs of providing parks and 
recreation facilities, including without limitation land, athletic fields, 
parks, shelters, parking, lighting, trails and greenways and the renovation 
and improvement of existing facilities; 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council that the City Clerk is hereby 
directed to cause a copy of the “NOTICE OF INTENTION TO APPLY TO THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT 
COMMISSION FOR APPROVAL OF BONDS” to be published in a newspaper of general circulation in the 
City. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Resolution shall become effective on the date of its 
adoption. 
 
Read, approved and adopted this 14th day of April, 2022. 
 
 CITY COUNCIL 
       CITY OF CONCORD 
       NORTH CAROLINA 
ATTEST: 
 
       ________________________________ 
       William C. Dusch, Mayor 
__________________________   
Kim J. Deason, City Clerk  

39



 

PPAB 7057065v1 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA  ) 
) SS: 

CITY OF CONCORD   ) 

I, Kim J. Deason, City Clerk of the City of Concord, North Carolina, DO HEREBY CERTIFY 
that the foregoing is a true and exact copy of a resolution titled “RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF CONCORD, NORTH CAROLINA DIRECTING THE PUBLICATION OF NOTICE OF 
INTENTION TO APPLY TO THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT COMMISSION FOR APPROVAL OF BONDS” 
adopted by the City Council of the City of Concord, North Carolina in regular session convened on the 
14th day of April, 2022, as recorded in the minutes of the City Council of the City of Concord, North 
Carolina. 

WITNESS my hand and the seal of the City of Concord, North Carolina, this the ____ day of 
__________________, 2022. 

(SEAL) 
       
City Clerk 
City of Concord, North Carolina 

 
 
 

40



 

PPAB 7057065v1 

NOTICE OF INTENTION TO APPLY TO THE 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT COMMISSION FOR APPROVAL OF BONDS 

 
 NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN of intention of the City of Concord, North Carolina to file 
application with the Local Government Commission, Raleigh, North Carolina for its approval of the 
issuance of general obligation bonds of the City of Concord, North Carolina which shall be for the 
following purposes and in the following maximum amount: 
 

$60,000,000 of bonds to pay capital costs of providing parks and 
recreation facilities, including without limitation land, athletic fields, 
parks, shelters, parking, lighting, trails and greenways and the renovation 
and improvement of existing facilities. 

 
Any citizen or taxpayer of the City of Concord, North Carolina objecting to the issuance of any or 

all of said bonds, within seven (7) days after the date of publication of this notice, may file with the Local 
Government Commission, 3200 Atlantic Avenue, Longleaf Building, Raleigh, NC 27604, Attention: 
Secretary, and with the City Council of the City of Concord, North Carolina, a written statement setting 
forth each objection to the proposed bond issue and such statement shall contain the name and address of 
the person filing it. 
 
 CITY OF CONCORD, NORTH CAROLINA 
 
       /s/ Kim J. Deason  
       City Clerk 
       City of Concord, North Carolina 
 

41



PPAB 7057078v1 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CONCORD, NORTH CAROLINA 
MAKING CERTAIN STATEMENTS OF FACT CONCERNING PROPOSED BOND ISSUE AND 
AUTHORIZING THE APPLICATION TO THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT COMMISSION 

 
 WHEREAS, the City Council (the “City Council”) of the City of Concord, North Carolina (the 
“City”) is considering the issuance of general obligation bonds of the City which shall be for the 
following purposes and in the following maximum amount:  
 

$60,000,000 of bonds to pay capital costs of providing parks and 
recreation facilities, including without limitation land, athletic fields, 
parks, shelters, parking, lighting, trails and greenways and the renovation 
and improvement of existing facilities. 

 
 WHEREAS, certain findings of fact by the City Council must be presented to enable the Local 
Government Commission of the State of North Carolina to make certain determinations as set forth in 
Section 159-52 the North Carolina General Statutes, as amended. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council, meeting in open session on the 
14th day of April, 2022, has made the following factual findings in regard to this matter: 
 
 A. Facts Regarding Necessity of Proposed Financing.  The proposed bonds are necessary 
and expedient to pay capital costs of providing parks and recreation facilities, including without limitation 
land, athletic fields, parks, shelters, parking, lighting, trails and greenways and the renovation and 
improvement of existing facilities. 
 
 B. Facts Supporting the Amount of Bonds Proposed.  The sums estimated for these bonds 
are adequate and not excessive for the proposed purposes.  Estimates for the proposed projects have been 
carefully analyzed and determined by persons knowledgeable about the projects. 
 
 C. Past Debt Management Procedures and Policies.  The City’s debt management 
procedures and policies are good and have been carried out in compliance with law.  The City employs a 
Finance Officer to oversee compliance with applicable laws relating to debt management.  The City 
Council requires annual audits of City finances.  In connection with these audits, compliance with laws is 
reviewed.  The City is not in default in any of its debt service obligations.  The City Attorney reviews all 
debt-related documents for compliance with laws. 
 
 D. Past Budgetary and Fiscal Management Policies.  The City’s budgetary and fiscal 
management policies have been carried out in compliance with laws.  Annual budgets are closely 
reviewed by the City Council before final approval of budget ordinances.  Budget amendments changing 
a function total or between functions are presented to the City Council at regular City Council meetings.  
The Finance Officer presents financial information to the City Council which shows budget to actual 
comparisons annually and otherwise as the City Manager deems necessary or as a member of the City 
Council may request. 

42



PPAB 7057078v1 

 
 E. Increase in Taxes; Retirement of Debt.  The increase in taxes, if any, necessary to 
service the proposed debt will not be excessive.  The schedule for issuance anticipates issuing all of the 
bonds in one or more series during the seven years following the adoption of the bond order. 
 

F. Marketing of Bonds.  The proposed bonds can be marketed at reasonable rates of 
interest. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council hereby authorizes and directs the City 

Manager and the Finance Officer of the City, individually and collectively, to file with the Local 
Government Commission an application for its approval of General Obligation Parks and Recreation 
Bonds hereinbefore described, on a form prescribed by said Commission, and (1) to request in such 
application that said Commission approve the City’s use of Parker Poe Adams & Bernstein LLP, as bond 
counsel for the City and (2) to state in such application such facts and to attach thereto such exhibits in 
regard to such General Obligation Parks and Recreation Bonds and to the City and its financial condition, 
as may be required by said Commission. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Resolution shall become effective on the date of its 
adoption. 
 
Read, approved and adopted this 14th day of April, 2022. 
 
 CITY COUNCIL 
       CITY OF CONCORD 
       NORTH CAROLINA 
ATTEST: 
 
       ________________________________ 
       William C. Dusch, Mayor 
__________________________   
Kim J. Deason, City Clerk  

43



PPAB 7057078v1 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA  ) 
) SS: 

CITY OF CONCORD   ) 

I, Kim J. Deason, City Clerk of the City of Concord, North Carolina, DO HEREBY CERTIFY 
that the foregoing is a true and exact copy of a resolution titled “RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF CONCORD, NORTH CAROLINA MAKING CERTAIN STATEMENTS OF FACT 
CONCERNING PROPOSED BOND ISSUE AND AUTHORIZING THE APPLICATION TO THE LOCAL 
GOVERNMENT COMMISSION” adopted by the City Council of the City of Concord, North Carolina in 
regular session convened on the 14th day of April, 2022, as recorded in the minutes of the City Council of 
the City of Concord, North Carolina. 

WITNESS my hand and the seal of the City of Concord, North Carolina, this the ____ day of 
__________________, 2022. 

(SEAL) 
       
City Clerk 
City of Concord, North Carolina 

 

44



45



 

   Page 1 of 8 STANDARD FORM 580L-T 
Adopted 7/2020 

© 7/2020 
 

 
AGREEMENT FOR PURCHASE AND SALE OF LAND 

 
THIS AGREEMENT, including any and all addenda attached hereto (“Agreement”), is by and between 

The City of Concord, a North Carolina municipal corporation (“Buyer”), and Betty Jo Denny (an unmarried woman), Freddie A. Davis 
(widow), and Beverly D. Hooks and husband, William C. Hooks (“Seller”). 
         (individual or State of formation and type of entity) 

 
FOR AND IN CONSIDERATION OF THE MUTUAL PROMISES SET FORTH HEREIN AND OTHER GOOD AND VALUABLE 
CONSIDERATION, THE RECEIPT AND SUFFICIENCY OF WHICH ARE HEREBY ACKNOWLEDGED, THE PARTIES 
HERETO AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Terms and Definitions: 
(The terms listed below shall have the respective meaning given them as set forth adjacent to each term.) 

 (a)         “Property”:  (Address) 1800 Cox Mill Road, Concord, NC 28025 

Plat Reference: Lot(s) ____________________, Block or Section _________________, as shown on Plat Book or Slide 

_______________ at Page(s) _______________, ___Cabarrus___________ County, consisting of 6.720 Acres, more ore less.  

nEXHIBIT A is attached.  
 
For information purposes ONLY: (i) the tax parcel number of the Property is: 4680-40-3406; and, (ii) some or all of the Property, 
consisting of approximately 6.720 Acres and is described in Deed Book 10662, Page No. 323, Cabarrus County), together with all 
buildings and improvements thereon and all fixtures and appurtenances thereto.  
 
$    110,000.00      (b)   “Purchase Price” 

, 

$________________ (i) “Earnest Money” The Earnest Money shall be deposited in escrow with 

_____N/A_______________________ (name of person/entity with whom deposited- “Escrow 

Agent”) within five (5) calendar days of the Contract Date, to be applied as part payment of the 

Purchase Price of the Property at Closing, or disbursed as agreed upon under the provisions of 

Section 10 herein.  IF ANY MONIES HELD IN AN INTEREST EARNING ACCOUNT, ANY 

INTEREST EARNED THEREON SHALL BELONG TO THE ACCOUNT HOLDER IN 

CONSIDERATION OF THE EXPENSES INCURRED BY MAINTAINING SUCH 

ACCOUNT AND RECORDS  
 

$________________ (ii) Cash, balance of Purchase Price, at Closing. 
 
(c)  “Closing” shall mean the date of completion of the process detailed in Section 11 of this Agreement.  Closing shall occur on 

or before    , TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE. 

 
(d) “Contract Date” means the date this Agreement has been fully executed by both Buyer and Seller. 

 
(e) “Examination Period” shall mean the period beginning on the first day after the Contract Date and extending through 5:00pm 
(based upon time at the locale of the Property) on ________________________________.  TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE AS TO THE 
EXAMINATION PERIOD. 
 
(f) “Broker(s)” shall mean: 

  _____________________________________________________________________________(“Listing Agency”), 

  ___________________________________________________(“Listing Agent” – License #               ) 

  Acting as:  q  Seller’s Agent;        q  Dual Agent 

  and _________________________________________________________________________ (“Selling Agency”), 

46



 

   Page 2 of 8 STANDARD FORM 580L-T 
Adopted 7/2020 

© 7/2020 
 

  _____________________________________________________ (“Selling Agent”- License #               ) 

  Acting as:  q  Buyer’s Agent;         q   Seller’s (Sub)Agent;         q   Dual Agent 

  
(g) “Seller’s Notice Address” shall be as follows: 
  616 Jasmine Ln SW, Sunset Beach, NC  28468       e-mail address: bdhooks@gmail.com 

(h)  “Buyer’s Notice Address” shall be as follows: 

  35 Cabarrus Avenue West, Concord, NC 28025;    e-mail address:kolczynv@concordnc.gov 

 
Section 2. Sale of Property and Payment of Purchase Price: Seller agrees to sell and Buyer agrees to buy the Property for the Purchase 
Price. 
 
Section 3. Proration of Expenses and Payment of Costs: Seller and Buyer agree that all property taxes (by calendar year), leases, 
rents, mortgage payments and utilities or any other assumed liabilities as detailed on attached Exhibit B, if any, shall be prorated as of 
the date of Closing. Seller shall pay for preparation of a deed and all other documents necessary to perform Seller’s obligations under 
this Agreement, excise tax (revenue stamps), and other conveyance fees or taxes required by law, any fees required for confirming 
Seller’s account payment information on owners’ association dues or assessments for payment or proration; any fees imposed by an 
owners’ association and/or a management company as agent of the owners’ association in connection with the transaction contemplated 
by this Agreement other than those fees required to be paid by Buyer in this Section 3 below, and the following: 
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________
___________________________________________________________________________________________________________. 
 
Buyer shall pay recording costs, costs of any title search, title insurance, survey, the cost of any inspections or investigations undertaken 
by Buyer under this Agreement, charges required by an owners’ association declaration to be paid by Buyer for Buyer’s future use and 
enjoyment of the Property, including, without limitation, working capital contributions, membership fees, or charges for Buyer’s use of 
the common elements and/or services provided to Buyer, any costs or charges for determining restrictive covenant compliance, and the 
following: 
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________. 
Each party shall pay its own attorney’s fees. 
 
Deferred/Rollback Taxes:  Buyer n intends to continue  q does not intend to continue the existing present use valuation property tax 
deferral(s) relating to the Property.   In the event the Buyer intends to continue the existing present use valuation property tax deferral(s) 
relating to the Property, Buyer shall be responsible for making all necessary applications for continuation of the existing present use 
valuation property tax deferral(s) relating to the Property and shall be responsible for payment of any deferred/rollback taxes applicable 
to the Property. If Buyer does not intend to continue the existing present use valuation property tax deferral(s) relating to the Property, 
then the Seller shall be responsible for payment of any deferred/rollback taxes applicable to the Property. 
 
Section 4. Deliveries: Seller agrees to use best efforts to deliver to Buyer copies of all material information relevant to the Property in the 
possession of Seller, including but not limited to: information regarding matters detailed on Form 502- Land Information Worksheet, title 
insurance policies (and copies of any documents referenced therein), surveys, soil test reports, environmental surveys or reports, site plans, 
civil drawings, building plans, maintenance records and copies of all presently effective warranties or service contracts related to the 
Property. Seller authorizes (1) any attorney presently or previously representing Seller to release and disclose any title insurance policy in 
such attorney's file to Buyer and both Buyer's and Seller's agents and attorneys; and (2) the Property’s title insurer or its agent to release and 
disclose all materials in the Property's title insurer's (or title insurer's agent's) file to Buyer and both Buyer's and Seller's agents and attorneys.  
If Buyer does not consummate the Closing for any reason other than Seller default, then Buyer shall return to Seller all hard copy materials 
delivered by Seller to Buyer pursuant to this Section 4 (or Section 7, if applicable), if any, and shall, upon Seller's request, following release 
of the Earnest Money, provide to Seller copies of (subject to the ownership and copyright interests of the preparer thereof) any and all 
studies, reports, surveys and other information relating directly to the Property prepared by or at the request of Buyer, its employees and 
agents, without any warranty or representation by Buyer as to the contents, accuracy or correctness thereof. Notwithstanding the above 
provisions regarding delivery and return of information and documentation, should there exist a separate non-disclosure, confidentiality, 
or similar agreement between Buyer and Seller, the terms of which conflict with this provision insofar as delivery and return of 
information and documentation, then the terms of such non-disclosure, confidentiality, or similar agreement shall control as to the 
delivery and return of information and documentation. 
 
Section 5. Evidence of Title: Seller agrees to convey fee simple insurable title to the Property without exception for mechanics’ liens, 
free and clear of all liens, encumbrances and defects of title other than: (a) zoning ordinances affecting the Property, (b) Leases (as 
defined in Section 7, if applicable) and (c) specific instruments on the public record at the Contract Date agreed to by Buyer (not objected 

47

mailto:bdhooks@gmail.com
mailto:address:kolczynv@concordnc.gov


 

   Page 3 of 8 STANDARD FORM 580L-T 
Adopted 7/2020 

© 7/2020 
 

to by Buyer prior to the end of the Examination Period), which specific instruments shall be enumerated in the deed referenced in Section 
11 (items 5(a), 5(b) and 5(c) being collectively “Permitted Exceptions”); provided that Seller shall be required to satisfy, at or prior to 
Closing, any encumbrances that may be satisfied by the payment of a fixed sum of money, such as deeds of trust, mortgages or statutory 
liens.  Seller shall not enter into or record any instrument that affects the Property after the Contract Date without the prior written 
consent of Buyer. 
 
Section 6. Conditions: This Agreement and the rights and obligations of the parties under this Agreement are hereby made expressly 
conditioned upon fulfillment (or waiver by Buyer, whether explicit or implied) of the following conditions:  

(a)  Title Examination: After the Contract Date, Buyer shall, at Buyer’s expense, cause a title examination to be made of the 
Property before the end of the Examination Period.  In the event that such title examination shall show that Seller’s title is not fee simple 
insurable, subject only to Permitted Exceptions, then Buyer shall promptly notify Seller in writing of all such title defects and exceptions, 
in no case later than the end of the Examination Period, and Seller shall have thirty (30) days to cure said noticed defects. If Seller does 
not cure the defects or objections within thirty (30) days of notice thereof, then Buyer may terminate this Agreement and receive a return 
of Earnest Money (notwithstanding that the Examination Period may have expired). If Buyer is to purchase title insurance, the insuring 
company must be licensed to do business in the state in which the Property is located. Title to the Property must be insurable at regular 
rates, subject only to standard exceptions and Permitted Exceptions. 
 (b)  Same Condition: If the Property is not in substantially the same condition at Closing as of the date of the offer, reasonable 
wear and tear excepted, then the Buyer may (i) terminate this Agreement and receive a return of the Earnest Money or (ii) proceed to 
Closing whereupon Buyer shall be entitled to receive, in addition to the Property, any of the Seller's insurance proceeds payable on 
account of the damage or destruction applicable to the Property. 

(c)  Inspections: Buyer, its agents or representatives, at Buyer’s expense and at reasonable times during normal business hours, 
shall have the right to enter upon the Property for the purpose of investigating matters such as those detailed on Form 502- Land 
Information Worksheet, conducting timber cruises, and examining and surveying the Property; provided, however, that Buyer shall not 
conduct any invasive testing of any nature without the prior express written approval of Seller as to each specific invasive test intended 
to be conducted by Buyer. Buyer shall conduct all such on-site inspections, examinations, testing, timber cruises and surveying of the 
Property in a good and workmanlike manner, at Buyer’s expense, shall repair any damage to the Property caused by Buyer's entry and 
on-site inspections and shall conduct same in a manner that does not unreasonably interfere with Seller's or any tenant's use and 
enjoyment of the Property.  In that respect, Buyer shall make reasonable efforts to undertake on-site inspections outside of the hours 
Seller’s or any tenant's business is open to the public.  Buyer shall provide Seller or any tenant (as applicable) reasonable advance notice 
of and Buyer shall cause its agents or representatives and third-party service providers (e.g. inspectors, surveyors, etc.) to give reasonable 
advance notice of any entry onto the Property.  Buyer shall be obligated to observe and comply with any terms of any tenant lease which 
conditions access to such tenant’s space at the Property. Upon Seller's request, Buyer shall provide to Seller evidence of general liability 
insurance.  Buyer shall also have a right to review and inspect all contracts or other agreements affecting or related directly to the 
Property and shall be entitled to review such books and records of Seller that relate directly to the operation and maintenance of the 
Property, provided, however, that Buyer shall not disclose any information regarding this Property (or any tenant therein) unless required 
by law, and the same shall be regarded as confidential, to any person, except to its attorneys, accountants, lenders and other professional 
advisors, in which case Buyer shall obtain their agreement to maintain such confidentiality. Buyer assumes all responsibility for the acts 
of itself and its agents or representatives in exercising its rights under this Section 6(c) and agrees to indemnify and hold Seller harmless 
from any damages resulting therefrom. This indemnification obligation of Buyer shall survive the Closing or earlier termination of this 
Agreement.  Except as provided in Section 6(a) above, Buyer shall have from the Contract Date through the end of the Examination 
Period to perform the above inspections, examinations and testing. IF BUYER CHOOSES NOT TO PURCHASE THE PROPERTY, 
FOR ANY REASON OR NO REASON, AND PROVIDES WRITTEN NOTICE TO SELLER THEREOF PRIOR TO THE 
EXPIRATION OF THE EXAMINATION PERIOD, THEN THIS AGREEMENT SHALL TERMINATE, AND BUYER 
SHALL RECEIVE A RETURN OF THE EARNEST MONEY. 
 
Section 7. Leases (Check one of the following, as applicable):  
 
 n  If this box is checked, Seller affirmatively represents and warrants that there are no Leases (as hereinafter defined) affecting 
the Property. 
 q  If this box is checked, Seller discloses that there are one or more leases affecting the Property ("Leases”), and the following 
provisions are hereby made a part of this Agreement. 
 
 (a)  A list of all Leases shall be set forth on Exhibit B. Seller represents and warrants that, as of the Contract Date, there are no 
other Leases, oral or written, recorded or not, nor any subleases affecting the Property, except as set forth on Exhibit B; 
 (b)  Seller shall deliver copies of any Leases to Buyer pursuant to Section 3 as if the Leases were listed therein; 
 (c)  Seller represents and warrants that, as of the Contract Date, there are no current defaults (or any existing situation which, 
with the passage of time, or the giving of notice, or both, or at the election of either landlord or tenant could constitute a default) either 
by Seller, as landlord, or by any tenant under any Lease ("Lease Default").  In the event there is any Lease Default as of the Contract 
Date, Seller agrees to provide Buyer with a detailed description of the situation in accordance with Section 3.  Seller agrees not to 
commit a Lease Default as Landlord after the Contract Date; and agrees further to notify Buyer immediately in the event a Lease Default 

48



 

   Page 4 of 8 STANDARD FORM 580L-T 
Adopted 7/2020 

© 7/2020 
 

arises or is claimed, asserted or threatened to be asserted by either Seller or a tenant under the Lease. 
 (d)  During the Examination Period, Buyer and Seller shall cooperate in good faith to determine if any Lease shall be terminated 
prior to Closing or shall continue after Closing.  As to any Lease determined to continue after Closing, Seller shall deliver an assignment 
of Seller's interest in such Lease to Buyer in form and content acceptable to Buyer (with tenant's written consent and acknowledgement, 
if required under the Lease).  Seller agrees to deliver such assignment of Lease at or before Closing, with any security deposits held by 
Seller under any Leases to be transferred or credited to Buyer at or before Closing.  The assignment shall provide: (i) that Seller shall 
defend, indemnify and hold Buyer harmless from claims, losses, damages and liabilities (including, without limitation, court costs and 
attorneys’ fees) asserted against or incurred by Buyer which are caused by or the result of any default by Seller under any Lease prior 
to the date of Closing, and (ii) that Buyer shall defend, indemnify and hold Seller harmless from claims, losses, damages and liabilities 
(including, without limitation, court costs and attorneys’ fees) asserted against or incurred by Seller which are caused by or the result of 
any default by Buyer under any Lease after the date of Closing.  
 (e)  Seller also agrees to work diligently to obtain any tenant signatures on any estoppel certificates in such form as Buyer may 
reasonably request and to work diligently to obtain any subordination, non-disturbance and attornment agreements in such form as Buyer 
may reasonably request.  
 
Section 8. Environmental/Physical Aspects of Property: Seller represents and warrants that it has no actual knowledge of the presence 
or disposal, except as in accordance with applicable law, within any structures on the Property or on the Property of hazardous or toxic 
waste or substances, which are defined as those substances, materials, and wastes, including, but not limited to: those substances, 
materials and wastes listed in the United States Department of Transportation Hazardous Materials Table (49 CFR Part 172.101) or by 
the Environmental Protection Agency as hazardous substances (40 CFR Part 302.4) and amendments thereto, or such substances, 
materials and wastes, which are or become regulated under any applicable local, state or federal law, including, without limitation, any 
material, waste or substance which is (i) petroleum, (ii) asbestos, (iii) polychlorinated biphenyls, (iv) designated as a Hazardous 
Substance pursuant to Section 311 of the Clean Water Act of 1977 (33 U.S.C. §1321) or listed pursuant to Section 307 of the Clean 
Water Act of 1977 (33 U.S.C. §1317), (v) defined as a hazardous waste pursuant to Section 1004 of the Resource Conservation and 
Recovery Act of 1976 (42 U.S.C. §6903) or (vi) defined as a hazardous substance pursuant to Section 101 of the Comprehensive 
Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act of 1980 (42 U.S.C. §9601). Seller has no actual knowledge of any 
contamination of the Property from such substances as may have been disposed of or stored on neighboring tracts.   
 
Section 9. Risk of Loss/Damage/Repair: Until Closing, the risk of loss or damage to the Property, except as otherwise provided herein, 
shall be borne by Seller. Except as to maintaining the Property in its same condition, Seller shall have no responsibility for the repair of 
the Property, including any improvements, unless the parties hereto agree in writing. 
 
Section 10. Earnest Money Disbursement: In the event that any condition hereto is not satisfied, then the Earnest Money shall be 
refunded to Buyer. In the event of breach of this Agreement by Seller, the Earnest Money shall be refunded to Buyer upon Buyer’s 
request, but such return shall not affect any other remedies available to Buyer for such breach. In the event of breach of this Agreement 
by Buyer, the Earnest Money shall be paid to Seller as liquidated damages and as Seller’s sole and exclusive remedy for such breach, 
but without limiting Seller’s rights under Section 6(c) or Section 22 of this Agreement. It is acknowledged by the parties that payment 
of the Earnest Money to Seller in the event of a breach of this Agreement by Buyer is compensatory and not punitive, such amount being 
a reasonable estimation of the actual loss that Seller would incur as a result of such breach. The payment of the Earnest Money to Seller 
shall not constitute a penalty or forfeiture but actual compensation for Seller's anticipated loss, both parties acknowledging the difficulty 
determining Seller’s actual damages for such breach. 

NOTE: In the event of a dispute between Seller and Buyer over the disposition of the Earnest Money held in escrow, a licensed real 
estate broker is required by state law (and Escrow Agent, if not a broker, hereby agrees) to retain the Earnest Money in the Escrow 
Agent’s trust or escrow account until Escrow Agent has obtained a written release from the parties consenting to its disposition or until 
disbursement is ordered by a court of competent jurisdiction. Alternatively, if a broker or an attorney licensed to practice law in North 
Carolina is holding the Earnest Money, the broker or attorney may deposit the disputed monies with the appropriate clerk of court in 
accordance with the provisions of N.C.G.S. §93A- 12. 

Seller and Buyer hereby agree and acknowledge that the Escrow Agent assumes no liability in connection with the holding of the Earnest 
Money pursuant hereto except for negligence or willful misconduct of Escrow Agent. Escrow Agent shall not be responsible for the 
validity, correctness or genuineness of any document or notice referred to under this Agreement.  Seller and Buyer hereby agree to 
indemnify, protect, save and hold harmless Escrow Agent and its successors, assigns and agents pursuant to this Agreement, from any 
and all liabilities, obligations, losses, damages, claims, actions, suits, costs or expenses (including attorney fees) of whatsoever kind or 
nature imposed on, incurred by or asserted against Escrow Agent which in any way relate to or arise out of the execution and delivery 
of this Agreement and any action taken hereunder; provided, however, that Seller and Buyer shall have no such obligation to indemnify, 
save and hold harmless Escrow Agent for any liability incurred by, imposed upon or established against it as a result of Escrow Agent’s 
negligence or willful misconduct. 
 
Section 11. Closing: At or before Closing, Seller shall deliver to Buyer a general warranty deed and other documents customarily 
executed or delivered by a seller in similar transactions, including without limitation, an owner’s affidavit, lien waiver forms (and such 

49



 

   Page 5 of 8 STANDARD FORM 580L-T 
Adopted 7/2020 

© 7/2020 
 

other lien related documentation as shall permit the Property to be conveyed free and clear of any claim for mechanics’ liens), W-9 
Statement and Vendor Information Sheet, and a non-foreign status affidavit (pursuant to the Foreign Investment in Real Property Tax 
Act), and Buyer shall cause to be delivered the funds necessary to pay to Seller the Purchase Price. The Closing shall be conducted by 
Buyer’s attorney or handled in such other manner as the parties hereto may mutually agree in writing. Possession shall be delivered at 
Closing, unless otherwise agreed herein. The Purchase Price and other funds to be disbursed pursuant to this Agreement shall not be 
disbursed until the Buyer’s attorney’s (or other designated settlement agent’s) receipt of authorization to disburse all necessary funds. 
 
Section 12. Notices: Unless otherwise provided herein, all notices and other communications which may be or are required to be given 
or made by any party to the other in connection herewith shall be in writing (which shall include electronic mail, with 
confirmation/receipt) and shall be deemed to have been properly given and received (i) on the date delivered in person or (ii) the date 
deposited in the United States mail, registered or certified, return receipt requested, to the addresses set out in Section 1(g) as to Seller, 
and in Section 1(h) as to Buyer, or at such other addresses as specified by written notice delivered in accordance herewith, (iii) at such 
time as the sender performs the final act to send such transmission, in a form capable of being processed by the receiving party’s system, 
to any electronic mail address or facsimile number, if any, provided in Section 1(g) as to Seller, and in Section 1(h) as to Buyer or (iv) 
on the date deposited with a recognized overnight delivery service, addressed to the addresses set out in Section 1(g) as to Seller, and in 
Section 1(h) as to Buyer, or at such other addresses as specified by written notice delivered in accordance herewith.  If a notice is sent 
by more than one method, it will be deemed received upon the earlier of the dates of receipt pursuant to this Section. 
 
Section 13. Counterparts; Entire Agreement: This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, which taken together, 
shall constitute one and the same original document.  Copies of original signature pages of this Agreement may be exchanged via 
facsimile or e-mail, and any such copies shall constitute originals.  This Agreement constitutes the sole and entire agreement among the 
parties hereto and no modification of this Agreement shall be binding unless in writing and signed by all parties hereto. The invalidity 
of one or more provisions of this Agreement shall not affect the validity of any other provisions hereof and this Agreement shall be 
construed and enforced as if such invalid provisions were not included. 
 
Section 14. Enforceability:  This Agreement shall become an executory contract when signed by both Buyer and Seller, such signing 
is communicated to both parties, AND the purchase (or sale) has been approved by the Concord City Council.  The parties acknowledge 
and agree that: (i) the initials lines at the bottom of each page of this Agreement are merely evidence of their having reviewed the terms 
of each page, and (ii) the complete execution of such initial’s lines shall not be a condition of the effectiveness of this Agreement.  This 
Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties, their heirs, successors and assigns and their personal 
representatives. 
 
Section 15. Adverse Information and Compliance with Laws: 
 

(a) Seller Knowledge/Assessments: Seller has no actual knowledge of (i) condemnation(s) affecting or contemplated with 
respect to the Property; (ii) actions, suits or proceedings pending or threatened against the Property; (iii) changes contemplated in any 
applicable laws, ordinances or restrictions affecting the Property; (iv) governmental special assessments, either pending or confirmed, 
for sidewalk, paving, water, sewer, or other improvements on or adjoining the Property, and no pending or confirmed owners’ association 
special assessments or (v) any caves, mineshafts, tunnels, fissures, open or abandoned wells, gravesites, pet cemeteries, animal burial 
pits or landfill operations (past or present) located at the Property, except as follows (Insert “None” or the identification of any matters 
relating to (i) through (v) above, if any): 
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
___________________________________________________________________________________________________________. 
Note: For purposes of this Agreement: (i) a “special assessment” is defined as a charge against the Property by a governmental authority 
in addition to ad valorem taxes and recurring governmental service fees levied with such taxes, or by an owners’ association in addition 
to any regular assessment (dues), either of which may be a lien against the Property; a special assessment may be either pending or 
confirmed; (ii) .a “confirmed” special assessment is defined as an assessment that has been approved by a governmental agency or an 
owners’ association for the purpose(s) stated, whether, at the time of Closing, it is payable in a lump sum or future installments; (iii) a 
“pending” special assessment is defined as an assessment that is under formal consideration by a governmental agency or an owners’ 
association but which has not been approved prior to Closing. Seller shall pay, in full at Closing, all confirmed governmental or 
association special assessments, provided that the amount thereof can be reasonably determined or estimated.  The payment of such 
determined or estimated amount shall be the final payment between Buyer and Seller as to any confirmed special assessments. If the 
amount of any special assessment cannot be reasonably determined or estimated, the special assessment shall be deemed a pending 
special assessment.  Buyer shall take title subject to all pending special assessments disclosed by Seller herein, if any. 
 (b)  Compliance: To Seller’s actual knowledge, (i) Seller has complied with all applicable laws, ordinances, regulations, 
statutes, rules and restrictions pertaining to or affecting the Property; (ii) performance of the Agreement will not result in the breach of, 
constitute any default under or result in the imposition of any lien or encumbrance upon the Property under any agreement or other 
instrument to which Seller is a party or by which Seller or the Property is bound; and (iii) there are no legal actions, suits or other legal 
or administrative proceedings pending or threatened against the Property, and Seller is not aware of any facts which might result in any 
such action, suit or other proceeding. 

50



 

   Page 6 of 8 STANDARD FORM 580L-T 
Adopted 7/2020 

© 7/2020 
 

 (c)  Owners’ Association: If the Property is subject to regulation by an owners’ association, Seller shall deliver the following 
information to Buyer pursuant to Section 4 as if the same were listed therein (or Seller shall state that Seller does not have same in their 
possession or that such item is not applicable): (i) the name of the owners’ association; (ii) the amount of regular assessments (dues); 
(iii) the name, address and telephone number of the president of the owners’ association or of the association manager or management 
company; (iv) the owners’ association website address; (v) the Seller’s statement of account; (vi) the master insurance policy showing 
the coverage provided and the deductible amount; (vii) copies of any Declaration and/or Restrictive Covenants; (viii) the Rules and 
Regulations, (ix) the Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws of the owners’ association; (x) the current financial statement and budget of 
the owners’ association; (xi) the parking restrictions and information; and (xii)  the architectural guidelines.  Seller authorizes and directs 
any owners’ association, any management company of the owners’ association, any insurance company and any attorney who has 
previously represented the Seller to release to Buyer, Buyer’s agents, representative, closing attorney or lender true and accurate copies 
of the foregoing items affecting the Property, including any amendments thereto.  If it is a requirement by the closing attorney or title 
insurance company for this transaction, a Right of First Refusal Letter, verification of payment in full of delinquent association dues, a 
dismissal (of any pending lawsuit involving the property), or a resolution authorizing the sale of the property to the Buyer, will be the 
responsibility of the Seller.  
 
Section 16. Survival of Representations and Warranties: All representations, warranties, covenants and agreements made by the 
parties hereto shall survive the Closing and delivery of the deed.  Seller shall, at or within six (6) months after the Closing, and without 
further consideration, execute, acknowledge and deliver to Buyer such other documents and instruments, and take such other action as 
Buyer may reasonably request or as may be necessary to more effectively transfer to Buyer the Property described herein in accordance 
with this Agreement. 
 
Section 17. Applicable Law: This Agreement shall be construed under the laws of the state in which the Property is located.  This form 
has only been approved for use in North Carolina. 
 
Section 18.  Assignment:  This Agreement is NOT assignable. 
 
Section 19. Tax-Deferred Exchange: In the event Seller desires to effect a tax-deferred exchange in connection with the conveyance 
of the Property, then the Buyer agree to cooperate in effecting such exchange; provided, however, that the exchanging party shall be 
responsible for any and all additional costs associated with such exchange, and provided further, that a non-exchanging party shall not 
assume any additional liability with respect to such tax-deferred exchange. Seller and Buyer shall execute such additional documents, 
at no cost to the non-exchanging party, as shall be required to give effect to this provision. 
 
Section 20.    Authority: Each signatory to this Agreement represents and warrants that he or she has full authority to sign this 
Agreement, pending approval by the Concord City Council and such instruments as may be necessary to effectuate any transaction 
contemplated by this Agreement on behalf of the party for whom he or she signs and that his or her signature binds such party.   
 
Section 22.  Brokers:  Except as expressly provided herein, Buyer and Seller agree to indemnify and hold each other harmless from 
any and all claims of brokers, consultants or real estate agents by, through or under the indemnifying party for fees or commissions 
arising out of the sale of the Property to Buyer.  Buyer and Seller represent and warrant to each other that: (i) except as to the Brokers 
designated under Section 1(f) of this Agreement, they have not employed nor engaged any brokers, consultants or real estate agents to 
be involved in this transaction and (ii) that the compensation of the Brokers is established by and shall be governed by separate 
agreements entered into as amongst the Brokers, the Buyer and/or the Seller. 
 
Section 23. Attorneys Fees: If legal proceedings are instituted to enforce any provision of this Agreement, the prevailing party in the 
proceeding shall be entitled to recover from the non-prevailing party reasonable attorney’s fees and court costs incurred in connection 
with the proceeding. 
 

BUYER: 
       CITY OF CONCORD,  
       A North Carolina municipal corporation 
ATTEST: 
  
________________________________   By__________________________________   
Kim J. Deason, City Clerk     Lloyd Wm. Payne, Jr., City Manager 
 
(Corporate Seal) 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM 
 

51



 

   Page 7 of 8 STANDARD FORM 580L-T 
Adopted 7/2020 

© 7/2020 
 

________________________________ 
VaLerie Kolczynski, City Attorney 
 
 
This instrument has been preaudited in the manner required by the "Local Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act."  
 
_________________________________________ 
Jessica Jones, Finance Director 
 
 
 
SELLER:         
Individual        
    
_____________________________________________ 
Betty Jo Denny 
 
Date: _________________________________________   
 
 
 
Widow        
    
_____________________________________________ 
Freddie A. Davis 
 
Date: _________________________________________   
 
 

 

Married Couple        
    
_____________________________________________ 
Beverly D. Hooks 
 
_____________________________________________ 
William C. Hooks 
 
Date: _________________________________________   
 
  

52



 

   Page 8 of 8 STANDARD FORM 580L-T 
Adopted 7/2020 

© 7/2020 
 

 
WIRE FRAUD WARNING AND DISCLOSURE 

 
To Buyers:  Before sending any wire, you should call the closing agent’s office to verify the instructions.  If you receive wiring 
instructions for a different bank, branch location, account name or account number, they should be presumed fraudulent.  Do not send 
any funds and contact the closing agent’s office immediately. 
 
To Sellers: If your proceeds will be wired, it is recommended that you provide wiring instructions at closing in writing in the presence 
of the closing agent.  If you are unable to attend closing, you may be required to send an original notarized directive to the closing 
agent’s office containing the wiring instructions.  This directive may be sent with the deed, lien waiver and tax forms if those documents 
are being prepared for you by the closing agent.  At a minimum, you should expect a call the closing agent’s office & the City of Concord 
Finance Department to provide the wire instructions.  The wire instructions should be verified over the telephone via a call to you 
initiated by the closing agent’s office to ensure that they are not from a fraudulent source.                  (Initials and Date) 
 
Whether you are a buyer or a seller, you should call the closing agent’s office at a number that is independently obtained.  To ensure 
that your contact is legitimate, you should not rely on a phone number in an email from the closing agent’s office, your real estate agent 
or anyone else. 
 
___________________ (Initial)  IF you refuse to verify this information to the City of Concord Finance Department when 
contacted, your funds will be released to you via check within 1 (ONE) week of the recordation of the documents.  
 
 
SELLER: 
  
Individual        
    
_____________________________________________ 
Betty Jo Denny 
 
Date: _________________________________________   
 
 
 
Widow        
    
_____________________________________________ 
Freddie A. Davis 
 
Date: _________________________________________   
 
 
 
Married Couple        
    
_____________________________________________ 
Beverly D. Hooks 
 
_____________________________________________ 
William C. Hooks 
 
Date: _________________________________________  
 
The undersigned hereby acknowledges receipt of the Earnest Money set forth herein and agrees to hold said Earnest Money in 
accordance with the terms hereof. 
 
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

(Name of Escrow Agent) 
 
Date:___________________________________________  By: _______________________________________________ 

53



CO
X M

ILL
 R

D

DERITA RD

POPLAR TENT RD

CHRISTENBURY PKWY

LEGOLAS LN

MILLSTREAM RIDGE DR

OLD TRACE RD NW

PAPA PL

DEWITT RD
CL

AR
KE

 C
RE

EK
 PK

WY

BURRIS LN

ELROND DR NW

THUNDER RD NW

MCGRUDEN DR NW

SYBBIE ST

EL
EN

DIL
 LN

 NW

PA
CIN

G 
LN

 NW

SOLWAY LN NW

HIGH RIDGE LN

MOSS DR

EDENBURY DR

GARAMONT PKWY NW

WILBURN PARK LN NW

SP
EA

RS
 D

R 
NW

ARAGORN LN NW

POPLAR VIEW DR NW

KARTEY AVE NW

BE
AR

D R
D

N SCALYBARK TRL

SUTRO FOREST DR NW

DO
NN

ING
TO

N L
N N

W

WE
ST

 W
IN

DS
 B

LV
D 

NW

HERRONS NEST PL NW

FALLING LEAF DR NW

LEMMON AVE NW

NUMENORE DR NW

PRESSLEY DR NW

PARKLAND PL NW

TREETOP WAY NW

WALTHAM CT NW

LAVETA RD

FALMOUTH LN NW

PO
KE

BE
RR

Y T
RL

SUMMERS GLE
N DR NW

NICOLE LN NW

HERRINGBONE LN NW

KA
LIS

PE
LL

 LN

PAISLEY DR NW

BENJAMIN WALKER LN

BA
RR

OW
CL

IFF
E D

R 
NW

MA
PL

E G
RO

VE
 LN

 N
W

SWEET SHRUB CT NW

AN
DU

IN
 FA

LL
S D

R 
NW

MACALLUM DR NW

COX MILL LOOP
PHASE 1

PHASE 2

PHASE 3

PHASE 4

PHASE 5

FEMA 100-YR

Park Property

0 1,500 3,000750 Feet

O

54

paulingj
Polygon

paulingj
Text Box
Cox Mill Elementary School & Odell Fields

paulingj
Text Box
JE "Jim" Ramseur Park

paulingj
Text Box
HOOKS PROPERTY

paulingj
Arrow

paulingj
Text Box
Granary Oaks

paulingj
Text Box
Christenbury

paulingj
Text Box
Highland Creek

paulingj
Text Box
Highland Creek

paulingj
Text Box
Highland Creek

paulingj
Text Box
Winding Walk

paulingj
Text Box
Allen Mills

paulingj
Text Box
Edenton

paulingj
Text Box
Christenbury Hall

paulingj
Text Box
Carolina International School



ORD.   

 

PARKS & CAPITAL RESERVE FUND ORDINANCE  
AMENDED 

 
  

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Concord, North Carolina 
that pursuant to Section 18-22 Chapter 159 of the General Statutes of North 
Carolina, the following Capital Reserve Fund ordinance is hereby amended: 
 

SECTION 1. The purpose authorized is to accumulate funds for future 
capital projects and capital outlay.  Funds will be accumulated until such time the 
City Council designates the funds for projects or capital outlay.  These funds may 
only be designated for projects that are listed in the City’s Capital Improvement Plan 
or capital outlay approved in the City’s operating budget ordinance.  The General 
Fund will serve as the funding source for the Capital Reserve Fund upon City 
Council approval and withdrawals must be approved by City Council through an 
ordinance. 

 
SECTION 2.  The City Manager is hereby authorized to proceed with the 

implementation and amendments of the project/projects within the terms of the plans 
and specifications for the projects. 

 
SECTION 3. The following revenues & expenditures are anticipated to be 

available to the City of Concord for this fund: 

Account Title 
 Current 
Budget  

 Amended 
Budget  

 (Decrease) 
Increase  

 
8100-5987000 
8100-5987000 

 
8100-5811082 
8100-5811082 
 

 

 
Transfer to Project 
Fund 
 
 
Future Projects 
 
 

 
$2,275,965 

 
 
 

$489,717 
 
 

 
$2,395,077 

 
 
 

$370,605 
 

 

 
$119,112 

 
 
 

$(119,112) 
 

 
 

SECTION 4. Accounting records are to be maintained by the Finance 
Department of the City of Concord in such manner as (1) to provide all information 
required by the capital reserve fund and (2) to comply with the Local Government 
Budget and Fiscal Control Act of the State of North Carolina. 
 

SECTION 5. Within five (5) days after adopted, copies of this capital reserve 
fund amendments/adoption shall be filed with the City Manager, Finance Director, 
and City Clerk for direction in carrying out the purpose of this fund. 
 

     SECTION 6. The Finance Director is directed to report on the financial status 
of this fund in accordance with the existing City policy.  She shall also report to the 
City Manager any unusual occurrences. 
 

Duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Concord, North Carolina this 
14th day of April, 2022.  

 
       CITY COUNCIL 
       CITY OF CONCORD 
       NORTH CAROLINA 
       
             
       ____________________________ 
       William C. Dusch, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: ______________________  ______________________________ 

55



                Kim Deason, City Clerk  VaLerie Kolczynski, City Attorney 

56



  

 

 
ORD.  #  

 
CAPITAL PROJECT ORDINANCE AMENDMENT 

Parks & Recreation Projects-Clarke Creek Greenway 
 

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Concord, North Carolina that pursuant to Section 13.2 
 Chapter 159 of the General Statutes of North Carolina, the following project ordinance is hereby 
 adopted/amended: 
 

SECTION 1. The projects authorized are the projects included for Clarke Creek Greenway. 
 
SECTION 2. The City Manager is hereby authorized to proceed with the implementation and 

amendments of the projects within the terms of the plans and specifications for the projects. 
 
 SECTION 3. The following revenues are anticipated to be available to the City of 

Concord for the completion of the projects: 
 

Revenues 

Account Title 
 Current 
Budget  

 Amended 
Budget  

 
(Decrease)  
Increase 

420-4501280 
420-4501280 Transfer from P&R Reserve $2,498,821 $2,617,933 $119,112 
     
    $119,112 

 
SECTION 4. The following amounts are appropriated for the project: 

Expenses/Expenditures 

Account Title 
 Current 
Budget  

 
Amended 
Budget  

 
(Decrease)  
Increase 

8300-5811102 
8300-5811102 Clarke Creek Greenway 

 
$323,520 

 
$442,632 

 
$119,112 

 Total    $119,112 
 
SECTION 5. Accounting records are to be maintained by the Finance Department of the City of Concord 

in such manner as (1) to provide all information required by the project agreement and other agreements executed 
or to be executed with the various parties involved with the project; and (2) to comply with the Local Government 
Budget and Fiscal Control Act of the State of North Carolina. 
 

SECTION 6. Within five (5) days after adoption, copies of this capital projects ordinance shall be filed 
with the City Manager, Finance Director, and City Clerk for direction in carrying out this project. 

 
 SECTION 7. The Finance Director is directed to report on the financial status of this project in accordance 

with the existing City policy, and shall also report to the City Manager any unusual occurrences. 
 

Duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Concord, North Carolina this 14th day April, 2022. 
        
 
 CITY COUNCIL 
       CITY OF CONCORD 
       NORTH CAROLINA  
    
                                                                               ____________________________ 
       William C. Dusch, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST:_____________________  ______________________________ 
              Kim Deason, City Clerk   Valerie Kolczynski, City Attorney 

57



58



 
Page 1 of 2 

RESOLUTION 
 

OF THE 
 

CONCORD, NORTH CAROLINA CITY COUNCIL 
 

TO 
 

IMPOSE AND USE A PASSENGER FACILITY CHARGE 
 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Concord, North Carolina ("City") is owner, operator and Federal 
Aviation Administration (“FAA”) sponsor of the Concord-Padgett Regional Airport ("Airport"); 
and 
 

WHEREAS, the City has completed a program of capital improvements for the Airport 
(“Airport Capital Projects”) for the purposes of, among other things: preserving or enhancing 
safety, security or capacity of the Airport and the national air transportation system; reducing and 
mitigating noise impacts of Airport operations; and furnishing opportunities for enhanced 
competition between or among air carriers; and 
 

WHEREAS, the authority granted by the United States Congress the FAA has 
promulgated a 14 Code of Federal Regulation (CFR) Part 158, Passenger Facility Charges, 
("Regulation") allowing owners, operators and sponsors, operating commercial airports such as 
the Airport, to impose a Passenger Facility Charge ("PFC") on passengers enplaning commercial 
passenger aircraft at the airports and to use the proceeds thereof to fund the Allowable Costs (as 
defined in the Regulation) of Eligible Projects (as defined in the Regulation) as provided and 
described in the Regulation; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City believes certain costs of certain improvements included in the 
Airport Capital Projects would be so allowable and eligible; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City believes a PFC would be an equitable means to raise revenues to 
fund some or all of the said Allowable Costs of Eligible Projects of the Airport Capital Projects. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council hereby resolves that: 
 

1) The Aviation Director is authorized and directed to apply to the FAA, for and in 
the name of the City, for approval to impose a PFC at the Airport of $4.50 per enplaning 
passenger and to use the resulting net revenues to pay the Allowable Costs of the Eligible 
Projects of the Airport Capital Projects including, when appropriate, annual payments of 
principal, interest and fees ("Debt Service”) on debt issued to finance the costs of the Eligible 

59



 
Page 2 of 2 

Projects, to the maximum extent said revenues may be available and to the maximum extent 
consistent with the Regulation; and the Aviation Director is authorized and directed to take all 
such reasonable actions as necessary or desirable to obtain approval of said application. 
 
2)  Said PFC shall be collected by the commercial air carriers on behalf of and remitted 
monthly to the City for so long as may be necessary to make those payments, including Debt 
Service, or portions of Debt Service payments, arising out of and directly associated with 
Allowable Costs of Eligible Projects, or such shorter period as may be required by the 
Regulation. 
 
3) With respect to that class of air carriers comprising only those air carriers operating under 
FAR Part 135 and which provide only on-demand non-scheduled service and do not sell tickets 
to individual passengers enplaning their aircraft at the Airport ("Air Taxis") the City Council 
finds that: 
 

a)  requiring Air Taxis operating at the Airport to collect the PFC would not generate a 
substantial amount of PFC revenues for the City and would be an undue burden to the Air 
Taxis;  

 
b)  said Air Taxis enplane less than one percent (1%) of all passengers enplaned at the 
Airport; and 

 
c)  said Air Taxis, therefore, should be exempted from the requirement of collecting the 
PFC at the Airport and the Aviation Director is hereby directed to include in said 
application a request that Air Taxis be so exempted. 

 
 
SO RESOLVED, this the _________________ day of __________________________, 2022. 
 
 

CITY OF CONCORD 
 
 

BY:______________________________________________________ 
 
  Mayor 

60



 

  
  
 

Stantec Consulting Services Inc. 
801 Jones Franklin Road, Suite 300 
Raleigh NC  27606-3394 

February 4, 2022 

Project/File: 171002544 

Phillip L. Graham, PE 
City of Concord Transportation Department 
635 Alfred Brown Jr. Ct. SW 
Concord, NC 28025 

Dear Mr. Graham:  

Reference: Scope of Work for Lincoln Street Bridge Replacement Project, Task Order #1 

Stantec is pleased to submit this scope of services and fee proposal for the Lincoln Street Bridge 
Replacement Project assigned under the FY22 Transportation Services On-Call Contract.  

Stantec will perform consulting services associated with the replacement of the Lincoln Street bridge over 
Irish Buffalo Creek.  

Summary of Scope 

Task #1 is generally for planning, public involvement, survey, and final design effort to produce plans, 
specifications, and estimates to let the project to construction. Below is a summary of the services included 
in this task order.  

1. Project Management and Coordination  
2. Planning  

a. Data Collection and Mapping for Planning Purposes 
b. Community Impact Assessment (Direct and Indirect Screening Form)  
c. Environmental Document 
d. Public Involvement Assistance  
e. USDOT Grant Preparation (may be omitted or deferred to a future task order at client’s 

discretion)  
3. Natural Resources and Permitting Coordination  
4. Survey and SUE (Subsurface Utility Engineering) 
5. Roadway Design 
6. Structure Design 
7. Transportation Management Plan (TMP) 
8. Signing and Delineation (Pavement Marking) Plan 
9. Hydraulic Design and Erosion Control – Mead & Hunt 
10. Dry Utility Coordination – Mead & Hunt 
11. Geotechnical Services – S&ME, Inc.  

61



February 4, 2022 
Phillip L. Graham, PE 
Page 2 of 16  

Reference: Scope of Work for Lincoln Street Bridge Replacement Project 

  
  

 

Exclusions 

The following items or disciplines may be needed for this project but can be included in a future task order, 
as directed by the City. They are therefore excluded from this current scope for Task Order #1. Other 
exclusions may be noted in the specific scope writeups for each discipline.  

1. Wet utility (water/ sewer) design – to be scoped later and performed by Mead & Hunt 
2. Right-of-Way services (estimates, mapping, platting, acquisitions, staking, easements, etc.) 
3. Preparation of bid documents/ assistance with project letting/ advertisement of CE&I services 
4. Construction Services/ Design Support during Construction 

 
The following items or disciplines are not anticipated or do not fall under Stantec’s understanding of our 
responsibility for this project and are therefore excluded from this scope. If it is later determined that these 
services are needed, they may be scoped and compensated under a future task order.  
 

1. Traffic Analysis/ Modeling 
2. Signal Design, Signals Communications, Signal Corridor Timing, ITS 
3. Landscape/ Hardscape 
4. Greenway Design 
5. Stream Restoration  
6. CE&I Services/ Construction Administration (not offered by Stantec)  

Detailed Scopes for each discipline are provided below. 

1. Project Management and Coordination  
Stantec will coordinate with the City and other relevant external partners, review agencies, or stakeholders 
concerning project management activities and design review. This includes regular phone and email 
communication, as well as up to 4 in-person meetings held in Concord, and up to 12 virtual meetings (Teams, 
Zoom, or similar) with the named stakeholders.  
 
The Stantec Project Manager will direct the design team, including subconsultants, to meet schedules and 
deliverables. The PM will hold regular internal team meetings, likely virtual via Teams. Meetings will be weekly 
for the project duration. Not all project team members will need to attend each week; anticipated meetings 
for each discipline are included in the individual scopes for each discipline.  
 
The Stantec PM will perform independent reviews of all design disciplines to ensure continuity.  
 
Stantec will provide monthly invoices according to the percent completion for each task. Progress reports or 
work logs may be provided as back-up if requested by the City.  
 
Stantec will alert the City of any out-of-scope items immediately upon discovery and before beginning work 
on these items, so that all parties can agree on an action plan for completion.  

 

 

62



February 4, 2022 
Phillip L. Graham, PE 
Page 3 of 16  

Reference: Scope of Work for Lincoln Street Bridge Replacement Project 

  
  

 

2. Planning 
The proposed bridge replacement project is not anticipated to induce significant or foreseeable alterations in 
land use, planned growth, travel patterns, the natural environment, the human environment, or cultural 
resources.  Background research, field investigation, and coordination with the appropriate local, state and 
federal agencies will provide the basis for assessing the effects of the project on the aforementioned issues. 
 
It is anticipated the environmental document for this project will qualify as a Federal Categorical Exclusion 
(CE).  Technical information, methodologies, and results of analysis will be assembled and summarized in 
the environmental document. 
 
The Planning scope of work includes the following: 
 
I. Data Collection and Mapping 
 

A. Data Collection 
The following information will be obtained during the course of the project: 
• Federal and State functional classification of the roadway 
• The existing land use in the vicinity of the project and the topographic features  
• The existing bridge and approach roadway will be inventoried, including such items as length, 

width, clearance, date, and type of construction, load restrictions, sufficiency rating, roadway 
geometrics, posted speed limit and the existing utilities in the project study area. 

• A history of major repairs, closings, and any public concern or controversy will be discussed. 
• An EDR report for the project study area will be requested that will summarize hazardous 

material sites within the study area.   
• Review of the latest NCDOT ADT maps and coordinate with the City Project Manager for traffic 

data for the project study area.   
• Coordination with the City Project Manager for crash data within the project study area.  

Additionally, a Crash Data request will be submitted to NCDOT’s Traffic Safety Unit.   
 

B. Field Review 
Stantec will visit the proposed project site to observe the existing conditions and possible 
alternatives to be considered during functional design.   
 

C. Vicinity Map 
Stantec will develop a Vicinity Map, preferably 8.5” x 11”, for the proposed bridge replacement 
project.  This map should illustrate the bridge location, potential off-site detours, and other projects 
in the vicinity.  The map will be provided in pdf format. 
 

D. Study Area Map 
Stantec will develop a Study Area Map, preferably at a scale 1” = 100’ or other appropriate 
standard scale for the proposed bridge replacement project.  This map will include the Study Area 
overlaid on the aerial photography.  Aerial photography will be provided by others.  The map will be 
provided in pdf format.  Typically, the Study Area encompasses an area, at a minimum, 200 feet 
wide and 1,400 feet long centered on the bridge.  The Study Area should be provided in 
MicroStation format.   
 

63



February 4, 2022 
Phillip L. Graham, PE 
Page 4 of 16  

Reference: Scope of Work for Lincoln Street Bridge Replacement Project 

  
  

 

 
E. Start of Study Letter & Mail Out 

To initiate coordination and solicit comments on the project from federal and state-level resource 
agencies, a Start of Study letter will be prepared and distributed.  Stantec will develop the Start of 
Study letter using City of Concord letterhead.  Stantec will develop and distribute a Start of Study 
letter for the project.  The Start of Study letter will include, but not be limited to, the Vicinity Map and 
Study Area Map.  A Start of Study letter will be submitted to the Project Planning Engineer for 
review and approval.   
 
Agency(s) Coordination – Stantec will maintain coordination with the appropriate local, state and 
federal agencies having an interest in the project and in order to collect data.  The City will be advised 
of all contact with other agencies. 

 
II.  Community Impact Assessment (Direct and Indirect Screening Form) 
 
Stantec will prepare the NCDOT standard Direct and Indirect Screening form to document community 
impacts.   
 
III.          Environmental Document  
 
It is anticipated the environmental document for this project will qualify as a Federal Categorical Exclusion 
(CE).  The CE will be prepared in an approved format, in accordance with the applicable State procedures, 
and the requirements of the National Environmental Policy Act 23 CFR-771 and TA 6640.8A. 
 
The CE will address the following topics: 
 

• Description of Proposed Action - This section of the document will present the project purpose, a 
general description of the project and cost estimates for the project. 

 
• Need for Project - This section of the document will present a description of the existing facility, 

including the Federal and State functional classification of the roadway.  The existing land use in the 
vicinity of the project and the topographic features will be described.  The existing bridge and 
approach roadway will be described.  The description will include such items as length, width, 
clearance, date, load restrictions, sufficiency rating, roadway geometrics, posted speed limit and the 
existing utilities in the project study area.  A history of major repairs, closings, and any public concern 
or controversy will be discussed, if applicable.  The existing and future (design year) traffic volumes 
(AADT, VPD, DHV) will be presented with directional distribution (D) and truck percentages (Duals, 
TT-ST’S).  Available accident data and reported crashes, if any, will be documented.  

 
• Proposed Improvements - This section of the document will present a description of the preferred 

build alternative.  
 

• Alternatives to the Proposed Action - The Alternatives evaluated for the project will be discussed in 
the CE, including a “no-build” alternative.  Maintenance of traffic will be considered in investigating 
the possible alternatives.  Alternatives eliminated from further consideration will be listed, along with 
the reasons for elimination. The preferred alternative will be identified.  

 

64



February 4, 2022 
Phillip L. Graham, PE 
Page 5 of 16  

Reference: Scope of Work for Lincoln Street Bridge Replacement Project 

  
  

 

• Environmental Analysis - A table will present a summary of the environmental effects of the proposed 
project.  A discussion of the following environmental considerations and impacts will be presented, 
where applicable: 

 Cultural Resources 
 Section 4(f)/6(f) Resources 
 Natural Resources 
 Floodplains 
 Relocation of Homes and Businesses 
 Minority/Low-Income Populations 
 Land Use 
 Indirect/Cumulative Effects 
 Prime and Important Farmland 
 Traffic Noise Analysis 
 Air Quality Analysis 
 Hazardous Materials 

 
Information will be presented in tabular form as much as possible. 
 

• Coordination and Agency Comments - Correspondence with environmental resource agencies will 
be included in the CE in a separate appendix.  
 

• Public Involvement - Public outreach related to the project will be documented in the CE. 
 

Environmental Document Review 
Stantec will submit an electronic version of the draft CE (text in Microsoft Word format, figures in PDF 
format) to the City for review before submitting to the State.  Stantec will revise the draft CE per the City’s 
and State’s comments and submit an electronic version of the revised draft CE (PDF format) for City of 
Concord review.  Once comments have been addressed, Stantec will provide an electronic version of the 
draft CE (complete CE as PDF and text in Microsoft Word) for USACE review.  Once USACE comments 
have been addressed, Stantec will provide a PDF file of the complete CE for upload to DocuSign for 
electronic signatures. 

 
• Deliverables: Draft and final USDOT-standard Categorical Exclusion CE.   

 
IV. Public Involvement Assistance 
Stantec will prepare materials for one public meeting as directed by the City of Concord.  The materials will 
describe the study elements, including a graphic of the study area and alternatives, and provide a status 
update on the project.  The draft materials will be submitted electronically for review prior to finalization.  
Stantec will coordinate printing and distribution of the meeting materials with the Project Manager. This 
scope does not include participation or attendance at the meetings.  

 

 

65



February 4, 2022 
Phillip L. Graham, PE 
Page 6 of 16  

Reference: Scope of Work for Lincoln Street Bridge Replacement Project 

  
  

 

V. USDOT Grant Preparation (may be omitted or deferred to a future task order at client’s discretion) 
 

A. Data Collection/Analysis 
 

A comprehensive narrative and Benefit-Cost Analysis (BCA) is required by USDOT and the 
competitive grant program, to be carefully documented and cited in the grant application. Stantec 
team will be responsible for procuring and analyzing the necessary data readily available from the 
City of Concord and other sources (e.g. GIS data/mapping); on-line sources (e.g., U.S. Census), 
STI Project Scoring, etc.    
 

B.  Benefit-Cost Analysis  

Stantec will prepare a Benefit-Cost Analysis (BCA) for this application. The BCA analysis will be 
performed in accordance with the following USDOT Guidance 

Benefit-Cost Analysis Guidance for Discretionary Grant Programs 

https://www.transportation.gov/sites/dot.gov/files/2021-
02/Benefit%20Cost%20Analysis%20Guidance%202021.pdf 

Additionally, once the Notice of Funding Availability (NOFA) for the grant program is published, 
Stantec will review updated guidance to ensure the BCA analysis is compliant with the most recent 
guidance. 

C. Coordination 

Collaboration with the municipality, the Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO), or Rural 
Planning Organization (RPO) is critical to meet the target deadlines. This coordination will primarily 
be accomplished via email and phone calls to ensure that every benefit of the project is brought 
forward both in the qualitative descriptions and technical, quantitative evaluation.   
 

D. Meetings 

It is assumed that Stantec will facilitate three (3) virtual meetings between key staff and 
stakeholders.   
 

E.  Narrative and Graphics 

The NOFO defines succinctly how the application is to be structured. Stantec team will follow this 
outline closely, including a clear and annotated table of contents, to ensure reviewers can readily 
locate information. Additionally, the NOFO also defines specific application needs and criteria in 
terms of the project’s merits, as follows: 

• Project Description 
• Project Location 
• Grant Funds, Sources and Uses of Project Funds 

66

https://www.transportation.gov/sites/dot.gov/files/2021-02/Benefit%20Cost%20Analysis%20Guidance%202021.pdf
https://www.transportation.gov/sites/dot.gov/files/2021-02/Benefit%20Cost%20Analysis%20Guidance%202021.pdf


February 4, 2022 
Phillip L. Graham, PE 
Page 7 of 16  

Reference: Scope of Work for Lincoln Street Bridge Replacement Project 

  
  

 

• Selection Criteria:  
 Primary Selection Criteria 
 Secondary Selection Criteria 

• Environmental Risk Review 
• BCA Methodology and Results 

 

3. Natural Resources and Permitting Coordination 
Stantec scientists will complete natural resource studies and permitting services for the Lincoln Street 
bridge replacement project including a jurisdictional waters delineation, protected species assessments, 
findings memo and Section 401/404 permitting.  
 

Jurisdictional Waters Delineation  

Stantec will conduct a detailed delineation of wetlands and other waters of the US (WOUS) within the 
project area, subject to jurisdiction by the US Army Corps of Engineers (Corps) under Section 404 of the 
Clean Water Act. Stantec will utilize the Routine Determination Method as outlined in the 1987 Corps of 
Engineers Wetland Delineation Manual and methods described in the 2012 Regional Supplement to the 
Corps of Engineers Wetland Delineation Manual: Eastern Mountains and Piedmont Region (Version 2.0) to 
identify and delineate the jurisdictional wetland boundaries within the project area. Stantec will use the NC 
Division of Water Quality Methodology for Identification of Intermittent and Perennial Streams and Their 
Origins (Version 4.11) to identify potentially jurisdictional streams. Stantec will prepare a preliminary review 
of archival information of wetland features on-site, including available resources such as National Wetlands 
Inventory (NWI) Maps, US Geologic Survey (USGS) topographic maps, aerial color infrared photography, 
and soils maps. A site visit will then be conducted to delineate and flag the boundaries of jurisdictional 
waters. Stantec will record the necessary data to complete the wetland delineation data sheets, which are 
required by the Corps for confirmation. The jurisdictional waters boundaries will be located using a sub 
meter accurate Trimble Global Positioning System (GPS). A packet suitable for requesting a Preliminary 
Jurisdictional Determination (PJD) will be prepared and submitted to the USACE.  The packet will include 
data sheets, a letter summarizing findings and describing characteristics of the site, a stream and wetlands 
map depicting the on-site boundaries of WOUS (either field mapped or GPS located), and data point 
locations. An AutoCAD or Microstation version of the delineation will be produced for use in the design 
process. If required, a site visit with USACE and NCDWR will be completed to review the delineation. All 
documentation will be prepared in PDF format and will be submitted electronically to the USACE and 
NCDWR.  
 
Threatened and Endangered Species 

The United States Fish and Wildlife Service lists one threatened or endangered species for Cabarrus 
County. During the delineation fieldwork, Stantec will note the presence or absence of suitable habitat for 
the one endangered plant (Schweinitz’s sunflower). A bald eagle habitat assessment will also be completed 
and a potential nest survey undertaken if appropriate habitat is found. Additional surveys, including bat 
surveys or aquatic surveys are not included. It is anticipated these surveys will not be necessary based on 
preliminary data. The findings along with a summary of the Jurisdictional Waters Delineation will be 
included in a natural resources memo in PDF format.  

67



February 4, 2022 
Phillip L. Graham, PE 
Page 8 of 16  

Reference: Scope of Work for Lincoln Street Bridge Replacement Project 

  
  

 

 
401/404 Nationwide Permit  

Stantec scientists will coordinate with the designers to minimize impacts to waters of the US. When impacts 
are finalized, Stantec will prepare, submit, and coordinate a Section 401/404 Nationwide Permit application 
for the project to pursue state and federal approval to impact jurisdictional wetlands and/or streams. Stantec 
will complete protected species and cultural resource documentation required for the 401/404 in the office 
using online databases and site knowledge based on fieldwork completed as part of the jurisdictional 
waters delineation. This scope assumes that the project will qualify for a Nationwide Permit (NWP). This 
project is anticipated to qualify as a minor project related to NCDWR with a 401/404 permit fee of $240 and 
is included in the fee below.  
 
Assumptions/ Exclusions 

• Consultation with USFWS is not anticipated nor included in this scope.  
• A Nationwide Permit (NWP) is included in this scope. If the project has more environmental impacts 

than expected and does not qualify for a NWP an Individual Permit (IP) may be required and can 
be undertaken for an additional fee. 

• NCDWR permit fee is $240 for minor projects 
• Stream, wetland, and/or riparian buffer mitigation is not anticipated and is not included in this 

scope. 
• Detailed bat and aquatic wildlife surveys are not anticipated and not included in this scope.  
• Permit drawings will be prepared by the hydrologic engineering group as part of their section of this 

scope.  
• Stantec does not guarantee regulatory agency decisions.  
• This scope does not include obtaining permits that may be required for utility crossings.  

 
4. Survey and SUE (Subsurface Utility Engineering) 

Stantec will provide an existing conditions survey for the Lincoln Street Bridge Replacement project to 
include: 
  

• Provide site control by setting 2 control points, 1 pair at the beginning of the project. The control 
pairs will be tied to the NC RTK network by a GPS survey. Horizontal datum will be NAD 83(2011), 
vertical datum will be NAVD 88. 

• Stantec’s crew will run a traverse from the GPS pair through the BL point to create a project control 
baseline.  

• Provide a level loop through the baseline points looped back to the control pair. Set one BM.  
• Survey the pavement along Lincoln Street to include the edges of pavement, centerline crown, 

sidewalk, back of curb, and other break lines.  
• Provide a topographic survey outside of the pavement for the length and width of the project limits. 

Locate signs, fences, and other plan features. Limits provided by our roadway design group.  
• Provide a survey of the sanitary and storm sewers in the limits to one structure outside of the limits. 

The survey will include top of structure, pipe type and size and pipe invert or bottom of structure.  
• Survey the existing power and communication poles running with Lincoln St. and crossing Lincoln 

St.  

68



February 4, 2022 
Phillip L. Graham, PE 
Page 9 of 16  

Reference: Scope of Work for Lincoln Street Bridge Replacement Project 

  
  

 

• Provide a survey of the existing bridge to include, bridge corners and joints, support structures, 
wings walls or bulkheads, piles if visible and accessible, bridge seat elevations.  

• Provide a hydrographic survey of the stream to include a floodplain survey. Limits will be 300’ up 
and down the stream. Provide cross sections at 40’ intervals, extended to 100’ each side of the 
creek. Cross section will include top of bank, edge of water and the center of the channel. Major 
changes and bends in the channel will be located. Locate the perennial ditch running from the NE 
into the creek.  

• Research properties adjacent to the corridor and pull deeds and plats for current owners. Review 
deeds and plats for existing easements.  

• Provide a survey of the properties to create a parcel map of all properties affected by the project 
limits. Provide a CAD file of the properties and easements.  

• Provide a utility survey at SUE level “B”. This includes researching utility records from owners in the 
area. Designating underground utilities with our Electromagnetic equipment. Utilities that cannot be 
designated by our EM equipment will be shown at a level “C” per the utility records. Level “A” test 
holes is not included in the initial scope.  

• Provide a base map of the plan features and 3D surface files.  

Notes: 
• ROW/Easement mapping and staking is not included in this scope. This task may be scoped as 

part of a future task order after 25% roadway design has been submitted.   
• The City of Concord will provide notification to the property owners prior to our field work. We need 

to allow 30 days after notifications are sent out to begin work.  
• The City of Concord will provide utility test holes if needed. SUE level “A” is not included in our 

scope. 
• A tree survey is not part of this scope.  

 

5. Roadway Design  
Design Criteria 
Based on the traffic projections, terrain, and facility type, Stantec will develop design criteria for the proposed 
bridge replacement. Criteria will include description of proposed roadway section on and off the bridge. Draft 
design criteria will be submitted to the City of Concord for review.  Stantec will revise the design criteria per 
the city’s comments. Revisions to design criteria after design commences may result in additional work.  

General 

Stantec will prepare roadway plans, profiles, cross sections, special provisions (not full bid documents/ 
project proposal), and quantity estimates for the project according to NCDOT and City of Concord 
standards and guidelines. All designs will be developed utilizing MicroStation and Geopak design software.  

This scope does not include a public meeting/hearing map.  

Stantec will coordinate with the various design disciplines including structures, hydraulics, utilities, right-of-
way, signing & marking, TMP, and Geotech.  

69



February 4, 2022 
Phillip L. Graham, PE 
Page 10 of 16  

Reference: Scope of Work for Lincoln Street Bridge Replacement Project 

  
  

 

 
In addition to the 65% design review meeting, Stantec roadway staff will attend up to five virtual meetings 
and up to two meetings either on-site or at City offices, with City staff.  
 

The following submittals will be provided for roadway plans: 

 25% Preliminary Plans 
 65% Plans 
 75% Right of Way Plans 
 90% Final Plans 
 100% Final Sealed Plans 
 

25% (Preliminary) Plans 

Stantec will develop one design for the bridge replacement. Stantec will submit PDF’s of the 25% design for 
review and approval by the City prior to commencing other design disciplines including hydraulic design.  
 

25% plans will include horizontal alignments, vertical alignments, cross sections, slope stakes, and 
preliminary right-of-way. All designs will be developed utilizing MicroStation and Geopak design software.  

Deliverables at 25% stage include: 
 

• 1 set of electronic PDF’s plans  
• 1 set of electronic PDF’s cross sections 
• Opinion of Probable Construction Cost (OPCC) for construction of project. OPCC will not 

be based on quantity take-offs at this stage, but will be a programmatic level OPCC based 
on length and width of roadway and structure.  

 
65% Plans 

Stantec will progress the preliminary plans to 65% stage based on the approved 25% plans. Significant 
deviation from the 25% design will constitute additional work. 
 
Stantec recommends holding a 65% design review meeting (similar to the Final Design Field Inspection for 
DOT projects) at this stage to gain concurrence across disciplines and various City Departments before 
moving to ROW acquisition. This meeting can be held either in person or virtually. A virtual format may 
facilitate attendance across multiple disciplines.  
 
Stantec will coordinate with the City to set up the 65% design review meeting, prepare for the meeting, present 
the plans at the meeting, take notes, and distribute notes after the meeting.  
 
Deliverables at 65% stage include: 
 

• 1 set of electronic PDF’s plans  
• 1 set of electronic PDF’s cross sections 

 

70



February 4, 2022 
Phillip L. Graham, PE 
Page 11 of 16  

Reference: Scope of Work for Lincoln Street Bridge Replacement Project 

  
  

 

75% (Right-of-Way) Plans 

Stantec will revise the 65% plans based on comments received at the 65% design review meeting (and other 
review comments as applicable) and will submit 75% plans. These plans can be used by the City for Right-
of-Way acquisition.  
 
Deliverables at 75% stage include: 
 

• 1 set of electronic PDF’s plans  
• 1 set of electronic PDF’s cross sections 
• Opinion of Probable Construction Cost (OPCC) for construction of project. OPCC will be 

based on actual quantities as available, but certain disciplines such as signing, marking, 
TMP may still be based on programmatic-level numbers with contingencies added for 
uncertainty.  

90% Final Plans 

Stantec will develop final roadway plans from the 75% plans. Significant deviation from the 75% design will 
constitute additional work.  

Deliverables at 90% stage include: 
 

• 1 set of electronic PDF’s plans  
• 1 set of electronic PDF’s cross sections 
• Project quantities 
• Opinion of Probable Construction Cost (OPCC) for construction of project based on actual 

quantity take-offs.   
• Any required Special Provisions (word documents and/or pdf’s as required by the City). It is 

assumed that Standard Project Special Provisions as provided by either NCDOT or the City 
will be used for this project; no additional Special Provisions will need to be developed by 
Stantec. 

 

100% Final Sealed Plans 

Stantec will make any required revisions to the 90% plans based on review comments and will submit final 
sealed 100% plans ready for project advertisement.   

Deliverables at 100% stage include: 
 

• 1 set of electronic DocuSigned PDF’s plans  
• 1 set of electronic DocuSigned PDF’s cross sections 
• Final Project quantities 
• Final Opinion of Probable Construction Cost (OPCC) for construction of project based on 

actual quantity take-offs.   
• Electronic dgn files  

71



February 4, 2022 
Phillip L. Graham, PE 
Page 12 of 16  

Reference: Scope of Work for Lincoln Street Bridge Replacement Project 

  
  

 

6. Structure Design  
Bridge Site 
 
Based on the Virtual Field Scoping Meeting, it is anticipated that the site will be closed to traffic during 
construction; staged construction will not be required.  Utilities will not be connected to the bridge.  No 
additional walls or secondary structures are anticipated to be required at the bridge site to support roadway 
or portions of the bridge.  It is assumed slope protection at the bridge site will be rip rap. 

It is assumed that design will consist of a 3 – span, 21” Cored Slab Unit superstructure.  The bridge deck will 
be an AWS with sidewalk and NCDOT Standard 2-bar metal rails.  Sidewalks may be wider than standard 5’-
6”, depending on coordination with the City.  The bridge will be supported by post and beam interior bents on 
drilled shaft foundations or driven steel pipe piles.  End bents will be reinforced concrete caps supported by 
H-pile foundations.  It is assumed the bridge will span a future City of Concord greenway on the North side 
of the stream, with 8’ vertical clearance required and a 14’ wide bench to support the greenway.  It is assumed 
12’ approach slabs will be used for this bridge.  Approach slabs will be modified to include sidewalk on both 
sides and 2 bar metal rails. 

It is assumed that Stantec will utilize NCDOT Standard Design Plans for all portions of the design set apart 
from P/E drawings, Location Sketch/Total Bill of Material, and details required for the sidewalk and bridge 
railing.  Designs and drafting will be in accordance with NCDOT Structures Management Unit (SMU) policy 
and design procedures unless stated otherwise.  It is assumed Concord will ask for assistance from NCDOT 
to perform reviews. 

Preliminary Design 
 
Stantec engineers will develop preliminary general drawings consistent with NCDOT SMU Policy and 
Procedures as detailed by the NCDOT Structures Management Unit Design Manual.  Preliminary designs will 
be submitted to Concord and NCDOT (upon request) for review. Submittal of preliminary design will occur 
concurrently with submittal of 65% roadway plans. Approval of preliminary designs and drawings will be 
completed before designers progress to final design.  Preliminary design will include development of span 
arrangements, establishment of bridge work point stations, bridge width, skew, and other special details will 
be as detailed in the hydraulic Bridge Survey Report for the site. 
 
Deliverables at Preliminary Design stage include: 
 

• 1 set of electronic PDF’s plans  
• Quantities and cost estimate (may be programmatic costs at this stage) to be included with 

project OPCC at 75% roadway plan stage 
 
90% Final Design 

 
Final design will commence following approval of preliminary bridge plans and will consist of completion of 
NCDOT Standard Bridge Plans as modified for sidewalk and barrier details.  Designers will implement the 
design standards as provided by NCDOT and not make attempts to optimize or change designs as provided 

72



February 4, 2022 
Phillip L. Graham, PE 
Page 13 of 16  

Reference: Scope of Work for Lincoln Street Bridge Replacement Project 

  
  

 

by the Department, except as required for specific site conditions.  Engineers will verify all designs as detailed 
in standard bridge plans including superstructure and substructure designs.  Foundation loads will be 
provided to geotechnical engineers using standard ‘Geotech Loads’ from NCDOT Structure Management 
Unit Standard Design Plans.   

 
Following design, final bridge plans will be submitted to Concord and NCDOT (upon request) for review.  
Released for Construction plan development and submission will not commence until full approval of plans 
from NCDOT. 
 
Deliverables at 90% Final Design stage include: 
 

• 1 set of electronic PDF’s plans  
• Quantities and cost estimate to be included with project OPCC at 90% roadway plan stage 

 
 
100% Sealed Final Design 

 
100% Sealed Final Design plans will include the resolution of all City of Concord and NCDOT comments for 
Final Plans and submission of sealed plans and Project Special Provisions.  It is assumed NCDOT Standard 
Project Special Provisions as provided by NCDOT SMU will be used for this project; no additional Special 
Provisions will need to be developed by Stantec.  It is assumed that no construction elevations will be 
prepared for the bridge.  NCDOT standard specifications will otherwise provide means and methods for bridge 
construction.  Plans and specifications will be electronically sealed and delivered to City of Concord for 
bidding purposes. 
 
Deliverables at 100% Sealed Final Design stage include: 
 

• 1 set of electronic PDF’s plans  
• All Microstation design files with borders merged into the design file 
• PDF of sealed design calculations 
• PDF of sealed Project Special Provisions 
• Summary of structure bid items and quantities provided in master pay item list for project 
• Bid estimate for bridge construction to be included with final project OPCC 

 

7. Transportation Management Plan (TMP) 
 
Stantec will prepare a Transportation Management Plan (TMP) that meets current NCDOT criteria and 
guidelines.  Written phasing will be provided in the TMP which addresses what construction is taking place, 
what method of traffic control will be used, and where traffic will be at the end of each workday.  Detail 
drawings will be provided to show traffic using an off-site detour during construction. 
 
Stantec will include all work zone signage, as well as any temporary signage on the plans, either on detail 
sheets or by reference to Roadway Standard Drawings (RSD’s).   

73



February 4, 2022 
Phillip L. Graham, PE 
Page 14 of 16  

Reference: Scope of Work for Lincoln Street Bridge Replacement Project 

  
  

 

 
The scope for the TMP will include coordination time with the City of Concord and Stantec planning staff on 
pedestrian accommodation issues.  
 
Scope of work includes the following basic TMP submittals: 
 

• 25% Staging Concept Submittal (to be submitted with 65% Roadway Submittal) 
 

• 90% Final TMP Submittal (to be submitted with 90% Roadway Submittal)  
 

• 100% Final Sealed TMP Submittal (to be submitted with 100% Roadway Submittal) 
 
TMP quantities will be included with master project estimate at 90% and 100% submittal stage.  

Any necessary Special Provisions (including Intermediate Contract Times or ICT’s) will be included with the 
90% submittal.  

8. Signing and Delineation (Pavement Marking) Plan 
 
Stantec will prepare final Signing & Delineation (pavement marking) plans to current City of Concord and 
NCDOT criteria and guidelines. It is anticipated that the Signing and Marking plans can be combined into one 
plan set under one cover sheet.  
 
Scope of work includes the following submittals: 
 

• 90% Signing and Delineation Plans (to be submitted with 90% Roadway Submittal)  
• 100% Final Signing and Delineation Plans (to be submitted with 100% Roadway Submittal)  

 
Signing and Delineation quantities will be included with master project estimate at 90% and 100% submittal 
stage.  
 
Scope for the Signing & Delineation plans will include a google-street-view inventory of existing signs and 
markings, as well as one (1) additional virtual meeting related to the Signing & Delineation plans.  
 
No overhead or type “A”, “B”, or “C” signs (large ground-mounted signs) will be required for this project and 
are excluded from this scope. No Type “D” special signs, wayfinding, or Type “F” route assembly signs will 
be required and are excluded from this scope. The only signs anticipated for this project and included in this 
scope are Type “E” warning or regulatory (speed limit) signs.  
 
Plans will not address signing or marking outside the project limits.  
 
Plans will not include signing and marking for bike lanes, as these are not anticipated for this project.  
 
Plans will incorporate Sharrow shared-lane pavement markings as directed by the City.  
 

74



February 4, 2022 
Phillip L. Graham, PE 
Page 15 of 16  

Reference: Scope of Work for Lincoln Street Bridge Replacement Project 

  
  

 

There are no curb ramps anticipated for this project. Placement and identification of curb ramps is therefore 
excluded from this scope.  
 
 

9. Hydraulic Design and Erosion Control- Mead & Hunt 
 
Refer to attached scope of work from Mead & Hunt for Hydraulic Design and Erosion Control.  
 

10. Dry Utility Coordination- Mead & Hunt 
 
Refer to attached scope of work from Mead & Hunt for Dry Utility Coordination.   
 

11. Geotechnical Services- S&ME, Inc.  
 
Refer to attached scope of work from S&ME for Geotechnical Services.  
  

75



February 4, 2022 
Phillip L. Graham, PE 
Page 16 of 16  

Reference: Scope of Work for Lincoln Street Bridge Replacement Project 

  
  

 

Fee Breakdown for Task Order #1 
 

Task Fee 

Project Management and Coordination  $45,156.00 

Planning  
a.  Data Collection and Mapping $10,918.00 

b. Community Impact Assessment $5,804.00 

c. Environmental Documentation  $18,032.00 

d. Public Involvement $5,156.00 

e. USDOT Grant Preparation (OPTIONAL) $38,626.00 

Natural Resources and Permitting Coordination $19,786.00 

Survey and SUE $31,980.50 

Roadway Design $56,321.00 

Structure Design $40,291.00 

TMP $12,164.00 

Signing and Delineation $9,600.00 

Hydraulic Design and Erosion Control $83,000.00 

Dry Utility Coordination $11,500.00 

Geotechnical Services  $84,330.25 
 
Subtotal $472,664.75 

Direct Costs (1% of Stantec fees)  $2,618.54 

  
TOTAL $475,283.29 

 
Sincerely, 

 
Betsy L. Watson PE 
Senior Principal 
Phone: (919) 865-7561 
Mobile: (919) 413-1460 
betsy.watson@stantec.com 

 

 

76



 

 

January 21, 2022 

Mead & Hunt | 111 East Hargett Street, Suite 300, Raleigh, NC, 27601 | 919-714-8670 | meadhunt.com 

 

Betsy Watson, PE 

Senior Principal 

Stantec 

801 Jones Franklin Road Suite 300 

Raleigh, NC 27606-3394 

 

Subject: Lincoln Street Hydraulic, EC, UC & Utility Design Scope of Services 

 

Dear Ms. Watson, 

 

MEAD & HUNT, Inc. (the “Consultant”) is pleased to provide the following scope: 

 

1. Hydraulic Design 
2. Erosion Control 
3. Utility Design & Coordination 

 
 

 

1. Hydraulic Design 

1.1 Hydraulic Design 

• The Consultant will prepare the drainage plans and hydraulic design after 25% 

Roadway Design approval in accordance with the NCDOT Hydraulics Unit’s 

Guidelines for Drainage Studies and Hydraulic Design, as well as Client 

guidelines and standards as applicable. The Drainage Design will use 

MicroStation as the plan development platform. The consultant anticipates the 

following tasks: 

• Pre Design Review  

• Site visit / field reconnaissance prior to the design  
• HEC RAS Hydraulic Bridge Analysis with a Bridge Survey Report.  
• FEMA No Rise Submittal: The Consultant will submit the No Rise Certification to 

FEMA for review on behalf of the Client.  
• Storm systems and cross pipes will be designed to function properly for 

the design storms, with impacts to any jurisdictional features as well as the 

impacts to nearby property owners considered. The City of Concord 

Design Standards will be used.   

• CADD - Mainline and Cross-street drainage layout and plan sheet 

preparation for the submittal packages.   

• Meetings & Coordination with Others as needed. 

• Pre- and post-runoff outfall analysis (up to two outfalls). 

• Permit Drawing delineating wetland and stream impacts. 

• Drainage Quantities with a Drainage Summary Sheet. 

77



Ms. Betsy Watson 

January 21, 2022 

Page 2 

Mead & Hunt | 111 East Hargett Street, Suite 300, Raleigh, NC, 27601 | 919-714-8670 | meadhunt.com 

• Excluded Scope Items: 

• CLOMR submittal – If the Impact to the FEMA floodway causes an 

increase in the 100 year water surface elevation a Conditional Letter 

or Map Revision (CLOMR) will be required to be obtained from 

FEMA.  

• Design of any major Stormwater BMP’s such as detention ponds or 

bio-retention basins. 

• Any Hydraulic Revisions that may be due to development within the 

Project Study area after preliminary plans are approved.  

• Any Drainage submittals to the NCDOT 

 

2. Erosion Control 

2.1 Erosion & Sedimentation Control Design (E&SC) 

The Consultant will develop a final phase E&SC Plans that will minimize erosion and 

sedimentation during construction.  The design will meet the requirements of the North 

Carolina Department of Environmental Quality (NCDEQ) and the Client. For the land 

disturbances, the Consultant will develop the E&SC plans using MicroStation. The 

Consultant will submit E&SC Plans to NCDEQ for review on behalf of the Client. An 

additional $2000 dollars was added to the EC Design fee to cover the permit application fee 

and the time to process the fee internally. Note: This was based on an assumed land 

disturbance of 6 acres.  

 

3. Utility Coordination and Design 

3.1 Utility Coordination 

Consultant will be responsible for utility coordination necessary for construction, with services 

including:  

• Prepare materials for and conduct Utility Coordination Kick-off Meeting with all 

utilities within the project limits. Follow up with Meeting Minutes and any 

additional documentation the utility companies need to determine and provide 

relocation designs, as necessary. 

o Deliverable: Kickoff meeting minutes 

• Coordinate utility relocation designs and incorporate any Proposed Utility 

Easements (PUE) into CADD to be used in the Right-of-Way design file. 

o Deliverable: PUE limits shown in right-of-way design file 

• Prepare Utilities by Others (UBO) plans showing proposed relocation work done 

by others. 

o Deliverable: Preliminary UBO Plans 

• Finalize UBO plans reflecting any and all design changes. 

o Deliverable: Final UBO Plans 

• Coordinate utility relocation schedule with all utility owners.  

o Deliverable: Utility relocation schedule 

78



Ms. Betsy Watson 

January 21, 2022 

Page 3 

Mead & Hunt | 111 East Hargett Street, Suite 300, Raleigh, NC, 27601 | 919-714-8670 | meadhunt.com 

 

This scope and fee include up to two site visit trips, and all drafting done in MicroStation. 

This scope and fee are assuming the project improvements will not impact the Duke Energy 

overhead transmission line approximately 300 feet to the southwest of the bridge – if 

impacts are determined, additional scope and fee will be needed for coordination with Duke 

Energy Transmission. 

 

 

The City of Concord will be responsible for: 

• Providing utility staff at the Utility Coordination Kickoff Meeting and coordinating with 

Concord water, sewer, power, and the Water & Sewer Authority of Cabarrus County 

sewer prior to, during, and after the kickoff meeting.  

• Submit any utility relocation designs and PUE limits for Concord water, sewer, 

power, and Water & Sewer Authority of Cabarrus County sewer to Mead & Hunt. 

• Submit any required design changes for Concord water, sewer, power, and Water & 

Sewer Authority of Cabarrus County sewer to Mead & Hunt for final incorporation 

into UBO plans. 

• Provide utility relocation schedule for Concord water, sewer, power, and Water & 

Sewer Authority of Cabarrus County sewer to Mead & Hunt. 

• Administration of relocation agreements with utility owners. 

 

3.2 Utility Design (Task Order 2) 

 

The utility design scope and fee will be determined after 25% design plans have been 

approved, to determine the impact to the existing water and sanitary sewer lines owned by 

the City of Concord and the Water & Sewer Authority of Cabarrus County. 

 

 

 

General Notes 

The Client will have an opportunity to review and/or inspect the deliverables prior to final submittal. 

Deliverables for engineering work shall be in the form of electronic (PDF and CADD) and paper copy. 

When work is complete, the Client will have ownership of all work products.  

 

 

 

Fees and Expenses 

The Consultant will perform the services outlined above. This includes all expenditures,  

 

 

 

79



Ms. Betsy Watson 

January 21, 2022 

Page 4 

Mead & Hunt | 111 East Hargett Street, Suite 300, Raleigh, NC, 27601 | 919-714-8670 | meadhunt.com 

The Lump Sum Fee below is for all tasks that are known at this time to be required for construction 

plans: 

 

 

Task No. Description Lump Sum Fee 

1 Hydraulic Design $57,000.00 
2 Erosion Control $26,000.00 
3 Utilities $11,500.00 
 Lump Sum Fee: $94,500.00  

 

If you have any questions or require additional information, please contact me. 

 

Sincerely, 

MEAD & HUNT, Inc.  

 

Roger Weadon, PE 

Project Manager 

roger.weadon@meadhunt.com 

919-714-8669 

 

 

 

80



Replace Bridge No. 120320 
Prepared for: Stantec 
Prepared by: Joey Daily, PE 
1/24/2022 

1 

REPLACE BRIDGE NO. 120320 ON LINCOLN STREET SW OVER IRISH 
BUFFALO CREEK IN CONCORD, NORTH CAROLINA 

S&ME, INC. SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 

GEOTECHNICAL AND FOUNDATION DESIGN 

This project will replace Bridge No. 120320 on Lincoln Street SW over Irish Buffalo Creek in Concord, NC. 
S&ME’s scope of work detailed below is based on a Microsoft Teams Meeting, with Stantec, on January 
24, 2021. S&ME has been requested to provide structures recommendations and pavement 
recommendations for the bridge replacement project. We understand the replacement Bridge No. 120320 
will be a three span, cored slab bridge. Foundations for the replacement bridge will likely consist of driven 
or drilled in H-piles for end bent foundations and drilled piers for interior bent foundations. S&ME will 
perform field explorations, laboratory testing, and will provide geotechnical engineering 
recommendations for the project in general accordance with NCDOT practices. These tasks are presented 
in detail below: 

♦ Soil Test Boring Field Exploration - Field exploration activities are discussed in detail below: 

Field Exploration Coordination – S&ME will call North Carolina 811 to request the location 
marking of utilities in the vicinity of the proposed boring locations. The proposed borings will 
be located within proximity to, or in existing roadways. Additionally, some obstructions and 
access limiting factors may exist (i.e., existing overhead utilities, underground utilities, wooded 
areas, and other site features). Traffic control will be performed in general accordance with 
the Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices. We will coordinate with the responsible 
entities to determine lane closure schedules and potential working time restrictions for the 
affected roads prior to performing this work. S&ME will rely on others to obtain necessary 
property owner access permission, if required.  
 
Interior Bent borings are expected to be performed through the existing bridge deck. Borings 
performed through the bridge deck will be patched with concrete. 
 
 
Test Borings (Structure) – S&ME proposes to perform four (4) End Bent borings (two at each 
end bent) and four (4) Interior Bent borings (two at each interior bent) for a total of eight (8) 
bridge borings. Bridge borings will extend to a depth of 50 feet or to auger refusal (whichever 
occurs first). If rock is encountered in the first 20 feet at End Bent borings, 15 feet of rock 
coring will be performed in one boring at each end bent (30 feet total) and 20 feet of rock 
coring at each interior bent location for a total of 110 feet of rock core (rock coring at 6 
borings total). 
 
The borings will be drilled with engineering/geologist oversight and will be performed in 
accordance with AASHTO T-206-19 “Standard Method of Test for Penetration Test and Split-
Barrel Sampling of Soils.” Soil samples will be collected using a split-barrel sampler during 
drilling, visually classified in the field, sealed in moisture-proof containers, and transported to 

81



Replace Bridge No. 120320 
Prepared for: Stantec 
Prepared by: Joey Daily, PE 
1/24/2022 

2 

our laboratory. Soil samples will be classified in general accordance with the AASHTO Soil 
Classification System.  

 
• Boring Elevations - S&ME will utilize existing survey information (if available) to determine 

test boring elevations. A simple level survey will be performed to determine approximate 
boring elevations. Licensed surveyors will not be used. 

 
• Field Investigation Summary: 

Investigation 
Description 

Number of 
Locations 

Estimated SPT 
Total (feet) 

Estimated Rock 
Coring Total (feet) 

Bridge End Bent 4 200 30 

Bridge Interior Bent 4 200 80 

 
♦ Laboratory Testing - Laboratory testing will be performed in a NCDOT, AMRL, and AASHTO 

accredited laboratory in accordance with the applicable procedures. This is discussed in detail below: 

• Soil Sample Testing - Representative split-spoon soil samples will be laboratory tested as 
follows: 2 samples for natural moisture (AASHTO T 265); 2 samples for Atterberg limits and 
gradation (AASHTO T 88, T 89, and T 90). 
 

• Rock Sample Testing - Representative rock core samples will be laboratory tested as follows:  
6 samples (estimated by 1 sample per core hole) for Unconfined Compression Strength 
Testing (ASTM D7012). 
 

♦ Engineering Evaluation and Report Preparation – S&ME will prepare one Structure 
Recommendations report for the bridge project. If roadway recommendations are required, they will 
be incorporated into the Structure Recommendations report. The reports will be sealed by a 
professional engineer registered in the State of North Carolina and submitted to Stantec for review. 
 

PAVEMENT DESIGN 

♦ Pavement Investigations 

In general accordance with the NCDOT Geotechnical Investigation and Recommendations Manual 
section 6.0, the Consultant’s geotechnical sub-consultant proposes to perform pavement investigations for 
the tie-ins. Existing pavement sections will be cored & measured, followed by in-situ subgrade CBR testing 
with a Kessler Dynamic Cone Penetrometer (DCP).  

♦ Pavement Design Investigation (PDI) - The following PDI services are proposed: 

• Coordinate with TCSS (Traffic Control Safety Services) to provide the necessary traffic control 
services. 

• Mobilize a truck drill rig and support truck with portable core drill rig to the site. 

82



Replace Bridge No. 120320 
Prepared for: Stantec 
Prepared by: Joey Daily, PE 
1/24/2022 

3 

• Core and extract the pavement section at up to 4 locations with a four-inch diameter thin walled 
core barrel powered by a truck mounted drill rig or similar.  

• Measure the thickness of the pavement section and retain the extracted core samples for each 
location.  

• Perform in-place dual-mass dynamic cone penetrometer (DCP) tests on all structures beneath the 
asphalt and/or concrete including the ABC layer and soil subgrade to a depth of approximately 
3.0 feet below the top of pavement. The dual-mass DCP consists of a steel extension shaft 
assembly with a 60 degree hardened steel cone tip attached to one end. The depth of penetration 
will be measured at selected hammer drop intervals and recorded values are converted to 
California Bearing Ratio (CBR) values through correlations used by NCDOT. The DCP tests in the 
ABC may be terminated within the ABC layer if 50 blows over 4 inches are achieved. If this occurs, 
the remaining portion of the ABC stone should be augered to the top of subgrade and DCP 
testing continued in the subgrade soils. DCP test will be terminated if 30 blows in the top one 
foot of subgrade are achieved.  

• Measurement of any base course materials beneath the pavements and retention of samples to 
be examined by the geologist. 

• The boreholes will be backfilled up to the original soil subgrade level with hand tamped auger 
cuttings or select granular soils and the core holes will be patched with hand tamped cold patch 
asphalt level with the pavement surface.  

♦ Engineering Evaluation and Report Preparation - After completion of the above geotechnical 
investigation services, S&ME will prepare separate Roadway Recommendations, and PDI reports for 
the roadway portion of the project. The reports will be in general accordance with Section 400 of 
NCDOT Guidelines and include pavement design(s). The engineering report and foundation 
recommendation summary sheet will be sealed by a professional engineer registered in the State of 
North Carolina.  

Investigation Description Number of Asphalt Core Locations 

-L- 4 
 

♦ Preliminary Pavement Design 

• Provide preliminary pavement design for the pavement on Rutherford Road/Lincoln Street to 
accommodate the existing and planned development traffic. Pavement design will require 
inputs for traffic information including truck percentages.  
 

• The Consultant’s geotechnical sub-consultant will provide up to two (2) alternative pavement 
designs. Pavements will be designed using the AASHTO Guide for Design of Pavement 
Structures (1993) and in accordance with the most recent version of the NCDOT Pavement 
Management Unit Pavement Design Procedure. Prepare a pavement design memo with 
recommended pavement thickness designs. The pavement design memo will be signed and 
sealed by a professional engineer specializing in pavement design in the state of North 
Carolina. 

83



Replace Bridge No. 120320 
Prepared for: Stantec 
Prepared by: Joey Daily, PE 
1/24/2022 

4 

♦ Final Pavement Design 

• Provide final pavement design for the replacement of the bridge at Lincoln Street. Pavement 
design will require inputs for traffic information including truck percentages for Lincoln Street. 
Pavement survey and testing including coring and DCP will be conducted for characterization 
of the existing pavement distress, pavement layer thicknesses and condition, and subgrade 
strength. Collected data will be analyzed and calculations performed for required structural 
overlay and/or other pavement rehabilitation techniques.  
 

• Final Pavement Report and Recommendations: The Consultant’s geotechnical sub-consultant 
will provide up to two (2) alternative final pavement designs for Lincoln Street as well as 
pavement rehabilitation recommendations for the existing pavement on Lincoln Street. 
Pavements will be designed using the AASHTO Guide for Design of Pavement Structures 
(1993) and in accordance with the most recent version of the NCDOT Pavement Management 
Unit Pavement Design Procedure. Prepare a pavement design and existing pavement 
recommendations memo with recommended pavement thickness designs for the mainline. 
The pavement design memo will be signed and sealed by a professional engineer specializing 
in pavement design. Final Pavement Report and Recommendations will include the following: 

 Description of pavement cores condition. 
 List of the present pavement layers, ABC, and treated subgrade. 
 Photos of cores with scale for thickness identification.  
 DCP analysis sheets and graphs. 
 Pavement design analysis sheets. 

Exclusions 

Without attempting to provide a complete list of all services or potential services that will be excluded 
from this proposal and not performed by S&ME, the following services are specifically excluded from this 
proposal: 

• S&ME will only be responsible for our safety and not for the safety of others 
• Inspection of repairs or maintenance operations 
• Preparation of geotechnical inventory report 

84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127

williamsjm
Rectangle

williamsjm
Text Box
Lincoln Street Bridge Location



Executive Summary 

Agreement ID # 11107  

 

The Executive Summary is a summation of this agreement and is not intended to be used 
as the agreement between the Department (North Carolina Department of Transportation) 
and the Party (Entity). 

Entity: City of Concord County: Cabarrus 

TIP: HL-0001   

Project: Poplar Tent and Harris Intersection 

Scope: Design and construction for Improvements at the intersection of Poplar Tent Road and 
Harris Road to a Reduced Conflict Intersection. 

Eligible Activities: 

PE 49345.1.1 
Design 

Environmental 

ROW 49345.2.1 
ROW Acquisition 

Utility Relocation 

CON 49345.3.1 Construction 

FEDERAL-AID XXXXXX  

 

Fund Source Federal Funds 
Amount 

Reimbursement 
Rate 

Non-Federal 
Match $ 

Non-Federal 
Match Rate 

STP-DA $12,064,000 80 % $3,016,000 20 % 
Total Estimated Cost  $15,080,000 

 

Responsibility: The City of Concord shall be responsible for all aspects of the project.  

128



 

Agreement ID # 11107  1 

NORTH CAROLINA LOCALLY ADMINISTERED PROJECT - 
FEDERAL 

CABARRUS COUNTY  
 DATE:  2/16/2022 
NORTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF 
TRANSPORTATION 

 

 TIP #: HL-0001 
AND WBS Elements: PE 49345.1.1 

  ROW 49345.2.1 
CITY OF CONCORD  CON 49345.3.1 

 FEDERAL-AID NUMBER: XXXXXX 
 CFDA #: 20.205 

Total Funds [NCDOT Participation] $12,064,000 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into on the last date executed below, by and between the 

North Carolina Department of Transportation, an agency of the State of North Carolina, hereinafter 

referred to as the “Department” and the City of Concord, hereinafter referred to as the “Municipality”. 

W I T N E S S E T H: 

WHEREAS, Fixing America’s Surface Transportation (FAST) Act allows for the allocation of federal 

funds to be available for certain specified transportation activities; and,  

WHEREAS, the Municipality  has requested federal funding for Poplar Tent and Harris Intersection, 

hereinafter referred to as the Project, in Cabarrus County, North Carolina; and,  

WHEREAS, subject to the availability of federal funds, the Municipality has been designated as a 

recipient to receive funds allocated to the Department by the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) 

up to and not to exceed the maximum award amount of $12,064,000 for the Project; and, 

WHEREAS, the Department has agreed to administer the disbursement of said funds on behalf of 

FHWA to the Municipality for the Project in accordance with the Project scope of work and in 

accordance with the provisions set out in this Agreement; and, 

WHEREAS, the Department has programmed funding in the approved Transportation Improvement 

Program for the Project; and, 

WHEREAS, the governing board of the Municipality has agreed to participate in certain costs and to 

assume certain responsibilities in the manner and to the extent as hereinafter set out; and, 

WHEREAS, this Agreement is made under the authority granted to the Department by the North 

Carolina General Assembly including, but not limited to, the following applicable legislation: General 

129



 

Agreement ID # 11107  2 

Statutes of North Carolina (NCGS) Section 136-66.1, Section 136-71.6, Section 160A-296 and 297, 

Section 136-18, Section 136-41.3 and Section 20-169, to participate in the planning, construction 

and/or implementation of the Project approved by the Board of Transportation. 

NOW, THEREFORE, this Agreement states the promises and undertakings of each party as herein 

provided, and the parties do hereby covenant and agree, each with the other, as follows: 

1. GENERAL PROVISIONS 

FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY ACT 

All parties to this Agreement, including contractors, subcontractors, and subsequent workforces, 

associated with any work under the terms of this Agreement shall provide reports as required by 

the Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) for this Project. 

AGREEMENT MODIFICATIONS 

Any modification to scope, funding, responsibilities, or time frame will be agreed upon by all 

parties by means of a Supplemental Agreement. 

LOCAL PUBLIC AGENCY TO PERFORM ALL WORK 

The Municipality shall be responsible for administering all work performed and for certifying to the 

Department that all terms set forth in this Agreement are met and adhered to by the Municipality 

and/or its contractors and agents.  The Department will provide technical oversight to guide the 

Municipality.  The Department must approve any assignment or transfer of the responsibilities of 

the Municipality set forth in this Agreement to other parties or entities. 

PERSON IN RESPONSIBLE CHARGE 

The Municipality shall designate a person or persons to be in responsible charge of the Project, in 

accordance with Title 23 of the Code of Federal Regulations, Part 635.105.  The person, or 

persons, shall be expected to: 

§ Administer governmental project activities, including those dealing with cost, time,  

adherence to contract requirements, construction quality and scope of Federal-aid 

projects; 

§ Maintain knowledge of day to day project operations and safety issues; 

130



 

Agreement ID # 11107  3 

§ Make or participate in decisions about changed conditions or scope changes that 

require change orders or supplemental agreements; 

§ Visit and review the project in accordance with the project scope and scale; 

§ Review financial processes, transactions and documentation to reduce the likelihood 

of fraud, waste, and abuse; 

§ Direct project staff, agency or consultant, to carry out project administration and 

contract oversight, including proper documentation; and 

§ Be aware of the qualifications, assignments and on-the-job performance of the 

agency and consultant staff at all stages of the project. 

The person in responsible charge must be a full-time employee of the Municipality, but the duties 

may be split among several employees, if necessary. 

COMPLIANCE WITH STATE/FEDERAL POLICY  

The Municipality, and/or its agent, including all contractors, subcontractors, or sub-recipients shall 

comply with all applicable Federal and State policies and procedures, stated both in this 

Agreement and in the Department’s guidelines and procedures, including the Local Programs 

Management Handbook.  

FAILURE TO COMPLY - CONSEQUENCES 

Failure on the part of the Municipality to comply with any of the provisions of this Agreement will 

be grounds for the Department to terminate participation in the costs of the Project and, if 

applicable, seek repayment of any reimbursed funds. 

2. SCOPE OF PROJECT 

The Project consists of design and construction for Improvements at the intersection of Poplar 

Tent Road and Harris Road to a Reduced Conflict Intersection. 

The Department’s funding participation in the Project shall be restricted to the following eligible 

items: 

§ Design 

131



 

Agreement ID # 11107  4 

§ Environmental Documentation 

§ ROW Acquisition 

§ Construction 

as further set forth in this Agreement. 

3. FUNDING  

PROGRAMMING AND AUTHORIZATION OF FEDERAL FUNDS 

The funding currently programmed for the project in the State Transportation Improvement 

Program (STIP) is BGDA.  The funding source may be modified with the coordination and 

approval of the respective Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) and/or the Department prior 

to authorization of funds.  The Department will authorize and reimburse federal funding based on 

the type of federal funding that is programmed in the STIP at the time of the authorization 

request.  The Department will notify the Municipality of the type of federal funds authorized by 

issuing a Technical Amendment – Funds Authorization letter.  A modification in the source of 

funds will have no effect on project responsibilities outlined in this agreement. 

REIMBURSEMENT FOR ELIGIBLE ACTIVITIES 

Subject to compliance by the Municipality with the provisions set forth in this Agreement and the 

availability of federal funds, the Department shall reimburse (80%) of eligible expenses incurred 

by the Municipality up to a maximum amount of Twelve Million Sixty Four Thousand Dollars 

($12,064,000), as detailed below.  The Municipality shall provide the non-federal match, as 

detailed in the FUNDING TABLE below, and all costs that exceed the total estimated cost. 

FUNDING TABLE 

Fund Source Federal Funds 
Amount 

Reimbursement 
Rate 

Non-Federal 
Match $ 

Non-Federal 
Match Rate 

BGDA $12,064,000 80 % $3,016,000 20 % 
Total Estimated Cost  $15,080,000 

WORK PERFORMED BY NCDOT 

All work performed by the Department on this Project, including, but not limited to, reviews, 

inspections, and Project oversight, during any phase of the delivery of the Project, shall reduce 

the funding available to the Municipality under this Agreement.  The Department will set aside ten 

132



 

Agreement ID # 11107  5 

percent (10%) of the total estimated cost, or $1,508,000 to use towards the costs related to 

review and oversight of this Project, including, but not limited to review and approval of plans, 

environmental documents, contract proposals, engineering estimates, construction engineering 

and inspection oversight, and other items as needed to ensure the Municipality’s appropriate 

compliance with state and federal regulations. 

In the event that the Department does not utilize all the set-aside funding, then those remaining 

funds will be available for reimbursement to the Municipality at the above reimbursement rate.  

For all costs of work performed on the Project, whether incurred by the Municipality or by the 

Department, the Municipality shall provide the non-federal match.  The Department will bill the 

Municipality for the non-federal match of any costs that the Department incurs on the Project and 

for any costs that exceed the Total Estimated Cost. 

4. PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE 

The Municipality has five (5) years to complete all work outlined in the Agreement from the date 

of authorization of Federal funds for the initial phase of work.  Completion for this Agreement is 

defined as completion of all construction activities or implementation activities, acceptance of the 

project, and submission of a final reimbursement package to the Department.  

If additional time is needed to complete the Project, then a supplemental agreement must be 

executed.  The Department and/or FHWA reserves the right to revoke the funds awarded if the 

Municipality is unable to meet milestone dates included herein. 

5. PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING AUTHORIZATION 

If Preliminary Engineering is an eligible expense, then upon receipt of an executed agreement, 

the Department will authorize Preliminary Engineering funds and shall notify the Municipality, in 

writing, once funds have been authorized and can be expended.  The Municipality shall not 

initiate any work, nor solicit for any professional services prior to receipt of written authorization 

from the Department to proceed.  Any work performed, or contracts executed, prior to receipt of 

written authorization to proceed will be ineligible for reimbursement. 

6. PROFESSIONAL AND ENGINEERING SERVICES 

The Municipality shall comply with the policies and procedures of this provision if the Municipality 

is requesting reimbursement for the Preliminary Engineering contract or the Construction 

Contract Administration / Construction Engineering and Inspection contract. 

133



 

Agreement ID # 11107  6 

PROCUREMENT POLICY 

When procuring professional services, the Municipality must adhere to Title 2 Code of Federal 

Regulations Part 200; Title 23 of the Code of Federal Regulations, Part 172; Title 40 United 

States Code, Chapter 11, Section 1101-1104; NCGS 143-64, Parts 31 and 32; and the 

Department’s Policies and Procedures for Major Professional or Specialized Services Contracts.  

Said policies and standards are incorporated in this Agreement by reference at 

www.fhwa.dot.gov/legsregs/legislat.html and www.ncleg.net/gascripts/Statutes/Statutes.asp. 

§ The Municipality shall ensure that a qualified firm is obtained through an equitable 

selection process, and that prescribed work is properly accomplished in a timely manner 

and at a just and reasonable cost. 

§ All Professional Services Firms shall be pre-qualified by the Department in the Work 

Codes advertised. 

§ A pre-negotiation audit will be conducted by the Department’s External Audit Branch.   

The Municipality shall not execute a consultant contract until the Department’s review has 

been completed. 

SMALL PROFESSIONAL AND ENGINEERING SERVICES FIRMS REQUIREMENTS 

Any contract entered into with another party to perform work associated with the requirements of 

this Agreement shall contain appropriate provisions regarding the utilization of Small Professional 

Services Firms (SPSF).  This policy conforms with the SPSF Guidelines as approved by the 

North Carolina Board of Transportation. 

§ The Municipality shall not advertise nor enter into a contract for services performed as 

part of this Agreement, unless the Department provides written approval of the 

advertisement or the contents of the contract. 

§ If the Municipality fails to comply with these requirements, the Department will withhold 

funding until these requirements are met. 

WORK BY ENTITY 

If the Design, Planning, Contract Administration and/or Construction Engineering and Inspection 

required for this project will be undertaken by the Municipality, and the Municipality requests 

reimbursement, then the Municipality must submit a request and supporting documentation to the 

Department for review and approval, prior to any work being initiated by the Municipality.    

134

http://www.fhwa.dot.gov/legsregs/legislat.html
http://www.ncleg.net/gascripts/Statutes/Statutes.asp


 

Agreement ID # 11107  7 

7. PLANNING / ENVIRONMENTAL DOCUMENTATION 

The Municipality shall prepare the environmental and/or planning document, including any 

environmental permits, needed to construct the Project, in accordance with the National 

Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) and all other appropriate environmental laws and regulations. 

All work shall be performed in accordance with Departmental procedures and guidelines. Said 

documentation shall be submitted to the Department for review and approval.  

§ The Municipality shall be responsible for preparing and filing with all proper agencies the 

appropriate planning documents, including notices and applications required to apply for 

those permits necessary for the construction of the desired improvements. Copies of 

approved permits should be forwarded to the Department.  

§ The Municipality shall advertise and conduct any required public hearings. 

§ If any permit issued requires that action be taken to mitigate impacts associated with the 

improvements, the Municipality shall design and implement a mitigation plan. The 

Department will determine if any mitigation costs are eligible for reimbursement. The 

Municipality shall bear all costs associated with penalties for violations and claims due to 

delays. 

§ The Municipality shall be responsible for designing an erosion control plan if required by 

the North Carolina Sedimentation Pollution Control Act of 1973, NCGS 113A, Article 4, 

incorporated in this Agreement by reference at 

www.ncleg.net/gascripts/Statues/Statutes.asp and obtaining those permits required 

thereby in order to construct the Project. During the construction of the improvements, 

the Municipality, and its contractors and agents, shall be solely responsible for 

compliance with the provisions of said Act and the plan adopted in compliance therewith.  

8. DESIGN 

CONTENT OF PLAN PACKAGE 

The Municipality, and/or its agent, shall prepare the Project’s plans, specifications, and a 

professional estimate of costs (PS&E package), in accordance with the Department’s guidelines 

and procedures, and applicable Federal and State standards.  All work shall be submitted to the 

Department for review and approval.  The plans shall be completed to show the design, site 

plans, landscaping, drainage, easements, and utility conflicts. 

135

http://www.ncleg.net/gascripts/Statues/Statutes.asp


 

Agreement ID # 11107  8 

9. RIGHT OF WAY / UTILITY AUTHORIZATION 

If the costs of right of way acquisition or utility relocation are an eligible expense, the Municipality 

shall submit a letter of request to the Department to authorize and set up right of way and/or utility 

funding.  The acquisition for right of way, construction easements, and/or utility relocation may be 

undertaken only after the Municipality receives written authorization from the Department to 

proceed. 

10. PROJECT LIMITS AND RIGHT OF WAY (ROW) 

The Municipality shall comply with the policies and procedures of this provision regardless of 

whether the Municipality is requesting reimbursement for the Right of Way phase of the Project. 

SPONSOR PROVIDES ROW 

The Municipality, at no liability whatsoever to the Department, shall be responsible for providing 

and/or acquiring any required ROW and/or easements for the Project. 

ROW GUIDANCE 

The Municipality shall accomplish all ROW activities, including acquisition and relocation, in 

accordance with the following: Title 23 of the Code of Federal Regulations, Part 710, Subpart B 

and Title 49 of the Code of Federal Regulations, Part 24, [Uniform Act] incorporated by reference 

at www.fhwa.dot.gov/legsregs/directives/fapgtoc.htm; NCGS, Chapter 133, Article 2, Sections 

133-5 through 133-18, Relocation Assistance, incorporated by reference at 

www.ncleg.net/gascripts/Statutes/Statutes.asp; and the North Carolina Department of 

Transportation Right of Way Manual. 

APPRAISAL 

The Municipality shall submit the appraisal to the Department for review and approval in 

accordance with Departmental policies and procedures. 

CLEARANCE OF PROJECT LIMITS / ROW 

The Municipality shall remove and dispose of all obstructions and encroachments of any kind or 

character (including hazardous and contaminated materials) from said ROW, with the exception 

that the Municipality shall secure an encroachment agreement for any utilities (which shall remain 

136

http://www.fhwa.dot.gov/legsregs/directives/fapgtoc.htm
http://www.ncleg.net/gascripts/Statutes/Statutes.asp


 

Agreement ID # 11107  9 

or are) to be installed within the Department’s ROW, or follow other applicable approval process, 

for utilities within the Municipality’s  ROW.  The Municipality shall indemnify and save harmless 

the Department, Federal Highway Administration, and the State of North Carolina, from any and 

all damages and claims for damages that might arise on account of said right of way acquisition, 

drainage, and construction easements for the construction of said Project.  The Municipality shall 

be solely responsible for any damages caused by the existence of said material now and at any 

time in the future and will save the Department harmless from any legal actions arising as a result 

of this contaminated and/or hazardous material and shall provide the Department with 

documentation proving the proper disposal of said material. 

RELOCATION ASSISTANCE 

The Municipality shall provide relocation assistance services and payments for families, 

businesses, and non-profit organizations being displaced by the Project in full accordance with 

the Federal relocation requirements of Title 49 Code of Federal Regulations, Part 24 [Uniform 

Act], as amended.  Relocation assistance services and payments may be accomplished by 

contract with any other municipal corporation, or State or Federal agency, rendering such 

services upon approval by the Department and Federal Highway Administration. 

11. UTILITIES 

The Municipality, and/or its agent, at no liability to the Department, shall relocate, adjust, relay, 

change or repair all utilities in conflict with the Project, regardless of ownership.  All utility work 

shall be performed in a manner satisfactory to and in conformance with State and Federal rules 

and regulations, prior to Municipality beginning construction of the project.  This Agreement does 

not modify or supersede any existing Utility Encroachment Agreements that may be in place. 

12. RIGHT OF WAY / UTILITY / RAILROAD CERTIFICATION 

The Municipality, upon acquisition of all right of way/property necessary for the Project, relocation 

of utilities, and coordination with the railroad shall provide the Department all required 

documentation (deeds/leases/easement/plans/agreements) to secure certification.  Certification is 

only issued after all ROW is in public ownership or property is publicly accessible by a legal 

document; utilities in conflict with the project are relocated, or a plan for their relocation during 

construction has been approved; and coordination with the railroad (if applicable) has occurred 

and been documented. 

137



 

Agreement ID # 11107  10 

13. CONTRACT PROPOSAL AND ENGINEER’S ESTIMATE 

CONTRACT PROPOSAL 

The Municipality shall develop a contract proposal that will be advertised for bids.  The proposal 

shall comply with NCDOT Specifications and Standard Drawings as applicable to the Project.  

The proposal shall also contain provisions, as applicable, per Title 23 Code of Federal 

Regulations 633 and 635 to include, but not be limited to: FHWA 1273, Buy America, Davis-

Bacon Wage Rates, Non-discrimination, DBE Assurances, Contractor Certification regarding 

suspension and debarment, and other provisions as required by the Department. 

ENGINEER’S ESTIMATE 

The Municipality shall develop an itemized engineer’s estimate to show items referenced to the 

NCDOT Standard Specifications, if applicable, along with units and unit price.  The engineer’s 

estimate will be used as the basis for comparing bids received. 

14. CONSTRUCTION AUTHORIZATION 

The Municipality shall submit the required environmental and/or planning document, ROW 

certification, final construction plans, total contract proposal, and an estimate of Project costs 

(final PS&E package) to the Department for review and approval. 

§ After approval of all documentation, the Department will request construction 

authorization from the Federal Highway Administration. 

§ The Municipality shall not advertise for bids prior to receiving written construction 

authorization from the Department. 

15. CONTRACTOR PROCUREMENT 

ADVERTISE FOR BIDS 

Upon receipt of written construction authorization from the Department, the Municipality may 

advertise the Project.  The Municipality shall follow applicable Federal and/or State procedures 

pertaining to the advertisement of the Project, bid opening, and award of the contract, according 

to Title 2 of the Code of Federal Regulations, Part 200 and Title 23 of the Code of Federal 

Regulations, Part 633 and Part 635, incorporated by reference at 

138



 

Agreement ID # 11107  11 

www.fhwa.dot.gov/legsregs/directives/fapgtoc.htm; and NCGS, Chapter 143, Article 8 (Public 

Contracts), incorporated by reference at www.ncleg.net/gascripts/Statutes/Statutes.asp. 

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR REQUIREMENTS 

All Contractors submitting bids on the project shall be pre-qualified by the Department.  All 

proposed subcontractors must be pre-qualified before construction work begins.  Any 

subcontractors who are proposed to meet the Disadvantaged Business Enterprise goal must be 

certified by the Department. 

CONSTRUCTION SUBCONTRACTOR REQUIREMENTS 

Any contract entered into with another party to perform work associated with the requirements of 

this Agreement shall contain appropriate provisions regarding the utilization of Disadvantaged 

Business Enterprises (DBEs), or as required and defined in Title 49 of the Code of Federal 

Regulations, Part 26 and the North Carolina Administrative Code.  These provisions are 

incorporated into this Agreement by reference 

https://connect.ncdot.gov/projects/Contracts/Pages/LGA-Projects.aspx. 

§ The Municipality shall not advertise nor enter into a contract for services performed as 

part of this Agreement, unless the Department provides written approval of the 

advertisement or the contents of the contract. 

§ If the Municipality fails to comply with these requirements, the Department will withhold 

funding until these requirements are met. 

AWARDING CONTRACT 

After the advertisement of the Project for construction bids, the Municipality shall request 

concurrence from the Department to award the construction contract by submitting a letter along 

with tabulated bids received depicting Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBE) goals, and a 

resolution recommending award of the Project to the lowest responsible, responsive bidder.  The 

Department will review the submitted information and provide written approval to the Municipality 

prior to the contract being awarded by the Municipality. 

DELAY IN PROCUREMENT 

In the event the Project has not been let to contract within six (6) months after receiving 

construction authorization from the Department, the Municipality shall be responsible for 

139

http://www.fhwa.dot.gov/legsregs/directives/fapgtoc.htm
http://www.ncleg.net/gascripts/Statutes/Statutes.asp
https://connect.ncdot.gov/projects/Contracts/Pages/LGA-Projects.aspx


 

Agreement ID # 11107  12 

documenting to the Department justification for project delay and that the Project remains in 

compliance with the terms of this Agreement, the approved plans and specifications, and current 

codes. 

FORCE ACCOUNT 

Force account work is only allowed when there is a finding of cost effectiveness for the work to be 

performed by some method other than a contract awarded by a competitive bidding process, or 

there is an emergency. Written approval from the Department is required prior to the use of force 

account by the Municipality.  Federal Highway Administration regulations governing Force 

Account are contained in Title 23 Code of Federal Regulations, Part 635.201, Subpart B; said 

policy being incorporated in this Agreement by reference 

www.fhwa.dot.gov/legsregs/directives/cfr23toc.htm.  North Carolina General Statutes governing 

the use of Force Account, Chapter 143, Article 8 (Public Contracts) can be found at 

www.ncleg.net/gascripts/Statutes/Statutes.asp.  

16. CONSTRUCTION 

The Municipality, and/or its agents shall construct the Project in accordance with the plans and 

specifications of the Project as filed with, and approved by, the Department.  During the 

construction of the Project, the procedures set out below shall be followed: 

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION 

The Municipality shall comply with the NCDOT Construction Manual as referenced at 

http://www.ncdot.org/doh/operations/dp%5Fchief%5Feng/constructionunit/formsmanuals/construc

tion/, which outlines the procedures for records and reports that must be adhered to in order to 

obtain uniformity of contract administration and documentation.  This includes, but is not limited 

to, inspection reports, material test reports, materials certification, documentation of quantities, 

project diaries, and pay records. The Municipality, and/or its agent, shall perform the construction 

engineering, sampling and testing required during construction of the Project, in accordance with 

Departmental procedures, including the Department’s Guide for Process Control and Acceptance 

Sampling and Testing.  The Municipality shall document that said compliance was accomplished 

in accordance with State and Federal procedures, guidelines, standards and specifications. 

RETAINAGE 

The Municipality shall not retain any portion of a payment due the contractor. 

140

http://www.fhwa.dot.gov/legsregs/directives/cfr23toc.htm
http://www.ncleg.net/gascripts/Statutes/Statutes.asp
http://www.ncdot.org/doh/operations/dp%5Fchief%5Feng/constructionunit/formsmanuals/construc


 

Agreement ID # 11107  13 

SIGNAGE 

The Municipality shall provide and maintain adequate signage and other warning devices for the 

protection of the public in accordance with the approved traffic control plans for the Project and 

the current edition of the Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD) for Streets and 

Highways, or any subsequent revision of the same, published by the Federal Highway 

Administration and effective at the time of award of the contract. 

SITE LAYOUT 

The Municipality shall be responsible for ensuring that all site layout, construction work, and 

Project documentation are in compliance with applicable city, state and federal permits, 

guidelines, and regulations, including American Association of State Highway and Transportation 

Officials (AASHTO) guidelines and Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) Standards for 

Accessible Design (www.usdoj.gov/crt/ada/stdspdf.htm). 

RIGHT TO INSPECT 

The Department and representatives of the Federal Highway Administration shall have the right 

to inspect, sample or test, and approve or reject, any portion of the work being performed by the 

Municipality or the Municipality’s contractor to ensure compliance with the provisions of this 

Agreement.  Prior to any payment by the Department, any deficiencies inconsistent with approved 

plans and specifications found during an inspection must be corrected. 

CONTRACTOR COMPLIANCE 

The Municipality will be responsible for ensuring that the contractor complies with all of the terms 

of the contract and any instructions issued by the Department or FHWA as a result of any review 

or inspection made by said representatives.  

CHANGE ORDERS 

If any changes in the Project plans are necessary, the Department must approve such changes 

prior to the work being performed. 

SHOP DRAWINGS 

Shop Drawings shall be submitted in accordance with the approved plans and specifications and 

may require review by the Designer. 

141

http://www.usdoj.gov/crt/ada/stdspdf.htm


 

Agreement ID # 11107  14 

17. CLOSE-OUT 

Upon completion of the Project, the Municipality shall be responsible for the following: 

FINAL INSPECTION 

The Municipality shall arrange for a final inspection by the Department.  Any deficiencies 

determined during the final field inspection must be corrected prior to final payment being made 

by the Department to the Municipality.  Additional inspection by other entities may be necessary 

in accordance with the Department’s guidelines and procedures.  The Municipality shall provide 

the Department with written evidence of approval of completed project prior to requesting final 

reimbursement. 

FINAL PROJECT CERTIFICATION 

The Municipality will provide a certification to the Department that all work performed for this 

Project is in accordance with all applicable standards, guidelines, and regulations. 

18. MAINTENANCE 

The Municipality, at no expense or liability to the Department, shall assume all maintenance 

responsibilities for the Poplar Tent at Harris Intersection, or as required by an executed 

encroachment agreement. 

19. REIMBURSEMENT 

SCOPE OF REIMBURSEMENT  

Activities eligible for funding reimbursement for this Project shall include:  

§ Design 

§ Environmental Documentation 

§ ROW Acquisition 

§ Construction 

142



 

Agreement ID # 11107  15 

REIMBURSEMENT GUIDANCE 

The Municipality shall adhere to applicable administrative requirements of Title 2 Code of Federal 

Regulations, Part 200 (www.fhwa.dot.gov/legsregs/directives/fapgtoc.htm) “Uniform 

Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards.”  

Reimbursement to the Municipality shall be subject to the policies and procedures contained in 

Title 23 Code of Federal Regulations, Part 140 and Part 172, which is being incorporated into this 

Agreement by reference at www.fhwa.dot.gov/legsregs/directives/fapgtoc.htm.  Reimbursement 

to the Municipality shall be subject to the guidance contained in Title 2 Code of Federal 

Regulations, Part 170 (http://edocket.access.gpo.gov/2010/pdf/2010-22705.pdf) and Office of 

Management and Budget (OMB) “Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act” 

(FFATA).  Said reimbursement shall also be subject to the Department being reimbursed by the 

Federal Highway Administration and subject to compliance by the Municipality with all applicable 

federal policy and procedures. 

REIMBURSEMENT LIMITS 

§ WORK PERFORMED BEFORE NOTIFICATION 

Any costs incurred by the Municipality prior to written notification by the Department to 

proceed with the work shall not be eligible for reimbursement.   

§ NO REIMBURSEMENT IN EXCESS OF APPROVED FUNDING 

At no time shall the Department reimburse the Municipality costs that exceed the total 

funding per this Agreement and any Supplemental Agreements. 

§ UNSUBSTANTIATED COSTS 

The Municipality agrees that it shall bear all costs for which it is unable to substantiate 

actual costs or any costs that have been deemed unallowable by the Federal Highway 

Administration and/or the Department’s Financial Management Division. 

§ WORK PERFORMED BY NCDOT 

All work performed by the Department on this Project, including, but not limited to, 

reviews, inspections, and Project oversight, shall reduce the maximum award amount of 

$12,064,000 available to the Municipality under this Agreement.  The Department will bill 

the Municipality for the non-federal match of any costs that the Department incurs on the 

Project and for any costs that exceed the Total Estimated Cost. 

143

http://www.fhwa.dot.gov/legsregs/directives/fapgtoc.htm
http://www.fhwa.dot.gov/legsregs/directives/fapgtoc.htm
http://edocket.access.gpo.gov/2010/pdf/2010-22705.pdf


 

Agreement ID # 11107  16 

§  CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION 

Reimbursement for construction contract administration will be made as governed by 

Departmental policy that limits reimbursement for construction contract administration to 

no more than fifteen (15%) percent of the actual construction contract of the Project.  

These costs will also include any cost overruns and charges to the Project by the 

Department during the Construction Phase. 

§ CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT UNIT PRICES 

Reimbursement for construction contract work will be made on the basis of contract unit 

prices in the construction contract and any approved change orders. 

§ RIGHT OF WAY  

Reimbursement will be limited to the value as approved by the Department.  Eligible 

costs for reimbursement of Right of Way Acquisition include: realty appraisals, surveys, 

closing costs, and the agreed upon just compensation for the property, at the 

reimbursement rate as shown in the FUNDING TABLE. 

§ FORCE ACCOUNT  

Invoices for force account work shall show a summary of labor, labor additives, 

equipment, materials and other qualifying costs in conformance with the standards for 

allowable costs set forth in 2 CFR 200 “Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 

Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards.”  Reimbursement shall be based 

on actual eligible costs incurred with the exception of equipment owned by the 

Municipality or its Project partners.  Reimbursement rates for equipment owned by the 

Municipality or its Project partners cannot exceed the Department’s rates in effect for the 

time period in which the work is performed.  

BILLING THE DEPARTMENT 

§ PROCEDURE 

The Municipality may bill the Department for eligible Project costs in accordance with the 

Department’s guidelines and procedures.  Proper supporting documentation shall 

accompany each invoice as may be required by the Department.  By submittal of each 

invoice, the Municipality certifies that it has adhered to all applicable state and federal 

laws and regulations as set forth in this Agreement. 

144



 

Agreement ID # 11107  17 

Along with each invoice, the Municipality is responsible for submitting the FFATA 

Subrecipient Information Form, which is available at 

https://connect.ncdot.gov/municipalities/Funding/Pages/default.aspx.  

§ INTERNAL APPROVALS 

Reimbursement to the Municipality shall be made upon approval of the invoice by the 

Department’s Financial Management Division. 

§ TIMELY SUBMITTAL OF INVOICES 

The Municipality may invoice the Department monthly for work accomplished, but no less 

than once every six (6) months to keep the Project funds active and available.  If the 

Municipality is unable to invoice the Department, then they must provide an explanation. 

Failure to submit invoices or explanation may result in de-obligation of funds.  

§ FINAL INVOICE 

All invoices associated with the Project must be submitted within six (6) months of the 

completion of construction and acceptance of the Project to be eligible for reimbursement 

by the Department.  Any invoices submitted after this time will not be eligible for 

reimbursement. 

20. REPORTING REQUIREMENTS AND RECORDS RETENTION 

PROJECT EVALUATION REPORTS 

The Municipality is responsible for submitting quarterly Project evaluation reports, in accordance 

with the Department’s guidelines and procedures, that detail the progress achieved to date for the 

Project. 

PROJECT RECORDS 

The Municipality and its agents shall maintain all books, documents, papers, accounting records, 

Project records and such other evidence as may be appropriate to substantiate costs incurred 

under this Agreement.  Further, the Municipality shall make such materials available at its office 

and shall require its agent to make such materials available at its office at all reasonable times 

during the contract period, and for five (5) years from the date of payment of the final voucher by 

the Federal Highway Administration, for inspection and audit by the Department’s Financial 

145

https://connect.ncdot.gov/municipalities/Funding/Pages/default.aspx


 

Agreement ID # 11107  18 

Management Section, the Federal Highway Administration, or any authorized representatives of 

the Federal Government. 

21. OTHER PROVISIONS 

REFERENCES 

It will be the responsibility of the Municipality to follow the current and/or most recent edition of 

references, websites, specifications, standards, guidelines, recommendations, regulations and/or 

general statutes, as stated in this Agreement. 

INDEMNIFICATION OF DEPARTMENT 

The Municipality agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Department, FHWA and the State of 

North Carolina, to the extent allowed by law, for any and all claim for payment, damages and/or 

liabilities of any nature, asserted against the Department in connection with this Project.  The 

Department shall not be responsible for any damages or claims, which may be initiated by third 

parties. 

DEBARMENT POLICY 

It is the policy of the Department not to enter into any agreement with parties that have been 

debarred by any government agency (Federal or State).  By execution of this agreement, the 

Municipality certifies that neither it nor its agents or contractors are presently debarred, 

suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible or voluntarily excluded from participation 

in this transaction by any Federal or State Agency or Department and that it will not enter into 

agreements with any entity that is debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared 

ineligible or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction. 

TITLE VI - CIVIL RIGHTS ACT OF 1964 

The Municipality shall comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, (Title 49 CFR, Subtitle 

A, Part 21).  Title VI prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin, disability, 

gender, and age in all programs or activities of any recipient of Federal assistance. 

146



 

Agreement ID # 11107  19 

OTHER AGREEMENTS 

The Municipality is solely responsible for all agreements, contracts, and work orders entered into 

or issued by the Municipality for this Project.  The Department is not responsible for any 

expenses or obligations incurred for the Project except those specifically eligible for the funds and 

obligations as approved by the Department under the terms of this Agreement. 

AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS 

All terms and conditions of this Agreement are dependent upon, and, subject to the allocation of 

funds for the purpose set forth in the Agreement and the Agreement shall automatically terminate 

if funds cease to be available. 

IMPROPER USE OF FUNDS 

Where either the Department or the FHWA determines that the funds paid to the Municipality for 

this Project are not used in accordance with the terms of this Agreement, the Department will bill 

the Municipality. 

TERMINATION OF PROJECT 

If the Municipality decides to terminate the Project without the concurrence of the Department, the 

Municipality shall reimburse the Department one hundred percent (100%) of all costs expended 

by the Department and associated with the Project.  

AUDITS 

In accordance with 2 CFR 200 “Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 

Requirements for Federal Awards,” Subpart F – Audit Requirements, and the Federal Single 

Audit Act Amendments of 1996, the Municipality shall arrange for an annual independent financial 

and compliance audit of its fiscal operations.  The Municipality shall furnish the Department with a 

copy of the annual independent audit report within thirty (30) days of completion of the report, but 

not later than nine (9) months after the Municipality’s fiscal year ends. 

REIMBURSEMENT BY MUNICIPALITY 

For all monies due the Department as referenced in this Agreement, reimbursement shall be 

made by the Municipality to the Department within sixty (60) days of receiving an invoice.  A late 

147



 

Agreement ID # 11107  20 

payment penalty and interest shall be charged on any unpaid balance due in accordance with 

NCGS 147-86.23. 

USE OF POWELL BILL FUNDS 

If the other party to this agreement is a Municipality and fails for any reason to reimburse the 

Department in accordance with the provisions for payment hereinabove provided, NCGS 136-

41.3 authorizes the Department to withhold so much of the Municipality’s share of funds allocated 

to Municipality by NCGS 136-41.1, until such time as the Department has received payment in 

full. 

ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

This Agreement contains the entire agreement between the parties and there are no 

understandings or agreements, verbal or otherwise, regarding this Agreement except as 

expressly set forth herein. 

AUTHORIZATION TO EXECUTE 

The parties hereby acknowledge that the individual executing the Agreement on their behalf is 

authorized to execute this Agreement on their behalf and to bind the respective entities to the 

terms contained herein and that he has read this Agreement, conferred with his attorney, and fully 

understands its contents. 

FACSIMILE SIGNATURES 

A copy or facsimile copy of the signature of any party shall be deemed an original with each fully 

executed copy of the Agreement as binding as an original, and the parties agree that this 

Agreement can be executed in counterparts, as duplicate originals, with facsimile signatures 

sufficient to evidence an agreement to be bound by the terms of the Agreement. 

GIFT BAN 

By Executive Order 24, issued by Governor Perdue, and NCGS 133-32, it is unlawful for any 

vendor or contractor (i.e. architect, bidder, contractor, construction manager, design professional, 

engineer, landlord, offeror, seller, subcontractor, supplier, or vendor), to make gifts or to give 

favors to any State employee of the Governor’s Cabinet Agencies (i.e. Administration, 

Commerce, Environmental Quality, Health and Human Services, Information Technology, Military 

148



 

Agreement ID # 11107  21 

and Veterans Affairs, Natural and Cultural Resources, Public Safety, Revenue, Transportation, 

and the Office of the Governor). 

22. SUNSET PROVISION 

All terms and conditions of this Agreement are dependent upon, and subject to, the allocation of 

funds for the purpose set forth in the Agreement and the Agreement shall automatically terminate 

if funds cease to be available. 

IT IS UNDERSTOOD AND AGREED that the approval of the Project by the Department is 

subject to the conditions of this Agreement, and that no expenditures of funds on the part of the 

Department will be made until the terms of this Agreement have been complied with on the part of 

the Municipality. 

149



 

Agreement ID # 11107  22 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed, in duplicate, the day and year 

heretofore set out, on the part of the Department and the Municipality by authority duly given. 

 CITY OF CONCORD 

  BY:  __________________________________ 

  TITLE:  ________________________________ 

 DATE:  ________________________________ 

NCGS 133-32 and Executive Order 24 prohibit the offer to, or acceptance by, any State Employee of 
any gift from anyone with a contract with the State, or from any person seeking to do business with 
the State.  By execution of any response in this procurement, you attest, for your entire organization 
and its employees or agents, that you are not aware that any such gift has been offered, accepted, or 
promised by any employees of your organization. 

 

 This Agreement has been pre-audited in the manner 
required by the Local Government Budget and Fiscal 
Control Act. 

 _________________________________________ 
         (FINANCE OFFICER) 

 Federal Tax Identification Number 

 _________________________________________ 

  

 City of Concord 

 Remittance Address: 

 _________________________________________ 

 _________________________________________ 

  

 DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

 BY: ______________________________________ 
                                   (CHIEF ENGINEER) 

 DATE:  ___________________________________ 

APPROVED BY BOARD OF TRANSPORTATION ITEM O:                  03/10/2022                  (Date) 

150



Commercial Property Agent Full w/photos
 708 Arbor Street NE, Concord, NC 28025
CMLS#: 3820320 Category: Commercial Parcel ID: 56214502360000
Status: Active Tax Location: Cabarrus County: Cabarrus
Project Name: Tax Value: $413,900 Zoning Desc:
Zoning: C-1 Deed Reference: 4854/0327
Road Front: Cross Street:
Legal Desc: 56214502360000

List Price: $365,000

General Information Listing Information
Type: Office Trans Type: For Sale
Secondary Type: Retail Sale/Lease Incl: Building, Land
Documents: In City: Yes
Restrictions: None Potential Income:
Restrictions Rmks: none

Bldg Information Square Footage
New Const: No Total:
Builder: Min Sqft Avail: 1,826
Year Built: 1940 Max Sqft Avail: 1,826
Construction Type: Min Lse$/Sqft: $1,826.00
Construction: Max Lse$/Sqft: $1,826.00
# of Bldgs: Office Sqft:
# of Units: Warehouse Sqft:
# of Rentals: Garage Sqft:
# of Stories:
Baths Total:

Additional Information
Prop Fin:
Assumable: Occupant Type: Vacant
Ownership: Seller owned for at least one year
Special Conditions: None
Road Responsibility: Publicly Maintained Road

Features

Total Parking: # of Docks: # Drive In Doors: Rail Service:
Fixtures Exceptions: No Wall Rvalue:

Land Information

Approx Acres: 1.27 Flood Plain: Approx Lot Dim:
Association Information

Remarks

Public Remarks: - SALES PRICE: $365,000 ($199 PSF) +/- 1,826 TOTAL SQ. FT. ± 1.27 ACRES - AREA TO EXPANSAND - C-1 COMMERCIAL
ZONING - AMPLE PARKING SPACES This freestanding office building that was a former day care, is suitable for a variety of
small businesses. This property could be great for an insurance office, financial services, attorneys office, day care, etc.
Less than 5 miles from I-85, downtown Concord, CMC Northeast, Hospitals, banks, restaurants, retails centers, gyms, and
more more.

Instructions: Call Listing Agent, Call Listing Office
Listing/Agent/Office Information

DOM: 76 CDOM: 76 TOM Dt: Expiry Dt:
Mkt Dt: 01/13/22 UC Dt: DDP-End Date: With Dt:
Agent/Own: No
For Appointment Call: 800-746-9464 List Type: Exclusive Right
List Agent: Ryan Kinney (64129) Agent Phone: 704-786-8888
Office: New Branch Real Estate Advisor (0864) Office Ph: 704-786-8888
Buyer Agency: 3% Sub Agency: 0% Transaction Broker: Bonus:
Named Prosp: No Dual/Var: No Seller Name: None
Web UrL: Full Service: No

151



Prepared By: Ellen Thomas
©2022 Canopy MLS. All rights reserved. Information herein deemed reliable but not guaranteed. Generated on 03/30/2022 1:13:30 PM

 

152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



No. Item Units Quantity Unit Price ($) Item Total ($) Unit Price ($) Item Total ($) Unit Price ($) Item Total ($) Unit Price ($) Item Total ($) Unit Price ($) Item Total ($) Unit Price ($) Item Total ($) Unit Price ($) Item Total ($) Unit Price ($) Item Total ($)
1 8-inch Lining LF 21,433 $31.40 $672,996.20 $33.00 $707,289.00 $49.00 $1,050,217.00 $35.50 $760,871.50 $26.70 $572,261.10 $28.00 $600,124.00 $30.85 $661,208.05 $41.00 $878,753.00
2 Re-connection of service lines EA 272 $79.00 $21,488.00 $150.00 $40,800.00 $350.00 $95,200.00 $107.00 $29,104.00 $120.00 $32,640.00 $75.00 $20,400.00 $90.00 $24,480.00 $25.00 $6,800.00
3 Removing protuding taps EA 10 $240.00 $2,400.00 $500.00 $5,000.00 $750.00 $7,500.00 $356.00 $3,560.00 $275.00 $2,750.00 $300.00 $3,000.00 $475.00 $4,750.00 $325.00 $3,250.00
4 4-foot diameter manhole rehabilitation (97 MH's) EA 582 $160.00 $93,120.00 $255.00 $148,410.00 $200.00 $116,400.00 $196.00 $114,072.00 $146.10 $85,030.20 $170.00 $98,940.00 $148.45 $86,397.90 $385.00 $224,070.00
5 Invert Reconstruction VF 15 $447.00 $6,705.00 $2,750.00 $41,250.00 $1,000.00 $15,000.00 $462.00 $6,930.00 $344.00 $5,160.00 $500.00 $7,500.00 $349.65 $5,244.75 $600.00 $9,000.00
6 Rebuild Shelf of line-through MH EA 10 $394.00 $3,940.00 $3,850.00 $38,500.00 $1,500.00 $15,000.00 $363.00 $3,630.00 $270.00 $2,700.00 $350.00 $3,500.00 $274.35 $2,743.50 $450.00 $4,500.00
7 Lateral Seals EA 53 $3,019.00 $160,007.00 $3,650.00 $193,450.00 $3,000.00 $159,000.00 $5,119.00 $271,307.00 $2,983.60 $158,130.80 $3,000.00 $159,000.00 $3,092.20 $163,886.60 $3,250.00 $172,250.00
8 Traffic Control LS 1 $24,465.00 $24,465.00 $40,000.00 $40,000.00 $30,000.00 $30,000.00 $46,185.00 $46,185.00 $14,250.00 $14,250.00 $18,000.00 $18,000.00 $8,000.00 $8,000.00 $74,000.00 $74,000.00

$985,121.20 $1,214,699.00 $1,488,317.00 $1,235,659.50 $872,922.10 $910,464.00 $956,710.80 $1,372,623.00
$49,256.06 $60,734.95 $74,415.85 $61,782.98 $43,646.11 $45,523.20 $47,835.54 $68,631.15

$1,034,377.26 $1,275,433.95 $1,562,732.85 $1,297,442.48 $916,568.21 $955,987.20 $1,004,546.34 $1,441,254.15

Minor mathematical error

Insituform Technologies, LLC
CaJenn Construction & 

Rehabilitation Services Inc
Granite Inliner

Alfred M. Brown Operations  Center
City of Concord   635 Alfred Brown Jr Ct.  P.O. Box 308  Concord, North Carolina 28026

(704) 920-5425  Fax (704) 786‑4521  TDD 1-800-735-8262  www.ci.concord.nc.us

5% CONTINGENCY
 TOTAL ESTIMATED COST

This is to certify that bids tabulated herein were publicly opened and read aloud at 10:30 AM on 3/24/2022 at the Brown Operations Center  635 Alfred Brown Jr Ct. Concord, NC, and the said bids were accompanied by acceptable bidders bonds in the amount of 5% of the bid.  This Certified Bid Tabulation is 
true and correct to the best of my abilities and knowledge. 

Did not affect the bid result.

ESTIMATED BASE COST

Engineering Department

 City of Concord Project Bid Tabulation

 Sewer CIPP Lining Contract - 2022
 Project # 2022-005

Tri-State Utilities Co. Vortex Services, LLC

CIPP Lining, Manhole & Lateral Rehab
Tabulation of Bids Received March 24, 2022

Prism Contractors, IncBionomic Services, IncAM-Liner East, Inc.

164



Adopted 12/21/21. Amended 3/10/22. 
 

City of Concord 

Sewer Allocation Policy  

 

1.  Term and applicability of this Policy 
a. This policy shall control the preliminary allocation of sewer to projects requiring 

permits based upon 15A NCAC Subchapter 2T rules and the Water and Sewer 
Authority of Cabarrus County sewer allocation and Commitment Policy.  This 
policy may be amended by the City Council at any time. 

2. Amount of sewer which may be allocated 
a. The amount of sewer available for allocation and attributable to any designated 

calendar year shall be the amount given by WSACC as determined through the 
interlocal agreement and City Council.   

b. The City shall reserve at least 250,000 gpd of its available sewer allocation for 
Economic Development projects. As Economic Development flow is allocated, 
non-residential flow will be used to re-balance the Economic Development 
reserve if available. 

c. The City shall allot from the remaining amount 35% to residential, 55% to non-
residential, and 10% to mixed use. Within the 35% residential allotment, 50% 
shall be allotted to single family, 25% to townhomes, and 25% to apartments.  
City Council at anytime may transfer allocation from one category to another. 

d. If the mixed-use allocation is exhausted, mixed-use projects may be allocated 
using allocations from the non-residential and residential allocations if available 
and approved by Council. 

e. Public project allocation shall be assigned on a pro rata basis from all the use 
categories except economic development.   

3. Preliminary Allocation approvals 
a. City Council will be the body to approve preliminary allocation requests. 
b. Projects with construction plans in review as of 10/31/2021 with activity in the 

past year will be presented first for approval. If approved, these projects will have 
6 months to achieve final plan approval and flow acceptance. Projects thereafter 
(excluding Economic Development) will be presented quarterly to Council.  
Council will approve Economic Development projects separately. 

c. City Council will be presented with current allocation available and the impact of 
the projects presented on remaining capacity.  Projects will be assigned 
prioritization points based upon the point system attached.  

d. Residential approvals may be phased to allow a maximum of 50 units per year.  
The 50 units is within a project and not cumulative city-wide.   

e. Preliminary sewer allocation will be good for a period of one year after the date of 
Council approval except for public projects.  Public project’s preliminary sewer 
allocation will remain valid until final sewer allocation is received or the project 
is abandoned by the public entity.  A project must have a valid preliminary sewer 

165



Adopted 12/21/21. Amended 3/10/22. 
 

allocation approval before receiving a final sewer allocation at the time of utility 
permitting.  The final sewer allocation shall not be more than the preliminary 
sewer allocation approved. 

4. Project Prioritization Scoring 
a. Projects will be scored using the table below. 
b. The project score is simply a guide for City Council to evaluate the projects 

based on the given criteria. A project scoring high is not automatically given 
allocation. A project scoring low is not automatically rejected for allocation. 
Projects are also not specifically competing against each other. The final 
allocation authority will be granted solely by City Council.  

c. Projects deemed Economic Development projects will not be scored and will be 
evaluated by City Council and potentially awarded an allocation through existing 
Economic Development processes. 

 d.  Speculative Industrial Buildings. Speculative Industrial Buildings under 75,000 sq 
ft can request to obtain a preliminary flow allocation provided the total per phase 
is not greater than 7,500 gpd. Speculative industrial buildings in I-2 zoning that 
are greater than 75,000 sf can request a preliminary flow allocation provided the 
total per building is not greater than 12,500 gpd. If a tenant(s) requires an 
allocation greater than approved it will require a separate request from City 
Council.  Speculative buildings in I-1 zoning that are greater than 75,000 sf will 
only be considered once an industrial use is determined. 

 

RESIDENTIAL PRIORITIZATION EVALUATION 
 

• Located within a small area plan   +2 
• Vertical mixed use     +2 
• Redevelopment Site     +1 
• Horizontal mixed use     +1 
• Downtown (MSD)     +1 
• Located adjacent to existing sewer line.  +1 
• Annexation      -2 

 
 

NON-RESIDENTIAL PRIORITIZATION EVALUATION 
 

• Office       +1 
• Located within a small area plan   +1 
• Part of an approved mixed use plan   +1 
• Annexation (Not economic development)   -2  
• Logistics/Distribution use     -2 

166



Adopted 12/21/21. Amended 3/10/22. 
 

 
 
 

5.  Additional Factors which Council may consider. 
a. Whether in Council’s opinion, the application is for a land use which is consistent 

with the City’s adopted policies concerning growth and development, and 
b. Such other factors as may be identified by the Council in its deliberations, which 

either suggest that a particular application promotes or undermines the public 
health or safety, or the general welfare of the City. 

6. Preliminary Allocation Procedures 
a.  City Staff will present Council with the projects described in 3(b) first for 

consideration without an application provided by the developer. 
b. Thereafter, a preliminary allocation application will be required for proposed 

development.  City Staff will present the applications to Council in March, June, 
September and December. Review of the allocation applications shall be 
conducted in the order in which the completed applications have been received. 

c. Development projects requiring flow allocations as descripted in 1a must receive 
a preliminary flow allocation approval prior to submitting construction documents 
for review. Speculative Industrial Buildings can proceed without preliminary flow 
allocation only after acceptance of risk documents have been signed by the legally 
responsible party. 

167



City of Concord, North Carolina 
 Preliminary Application – Extension of Concord Utilities outside Concord City Limits 

(Please type or print in black ink)  

1. Name of development: 

2. Name and address of owner(s)/developer(s):  

3. Owner(s)/developer(s) telephone:                                               Fax: 

4. Name and address of surveyor/engineer:  

5. Surveyor/engineer’s telephone:                                             Fax: 

6. Name, telephone and fax number, and address of agent (if any):  

7. Name and address of person to whom comments should be sent:  

8. Telephone number of person to whom comments should be sent: 

Fax: 

9. Location of property: 

10. Cabarrus County P.I.N.#: 

11. Current zoning classification: 

12. Total acres:                                           Total lots proposed: 

13. Brief Description of development: __________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________ 

14. Proposed Construction Schedule ___________________________________________ 

_________________________________________________________________________  

15. Type of Service requested  ________________________________________________ 

_________________________________________________________________________  

Date                                                                    Signature of Owner/Agent        

    ___________________________________________       
     Name (printed)  

NOTE:  By affixing his or her signature hereto, the owner/developer acknowledges understanding of and 
agreement to comply with all provisions of the Concord City Code section 62.   

Staff Use Only: 

Received by: ____________________________     Date: __________________________   

168



NC HWY 49 S

WARREN C COLEMAN BLVD S

ZION CHURCH RD

WILSHIRE AVE SW

FAITH DR SW

LITAKER LN

BARBEE RD SW

AM
HU

RS
T S

T S
W

WEBB RD SW

CHALICE ST SW

QUEENS DR SW

CHAMPION LN SW

MANOR AV
E S

W

MA
IN

 ST
 SW

PA
DD

ING
TO

N D
R S

W

WOODLAND DR SW

UNION CEMETERY RD SW

MORNING DEW DRBROWNLEE DR SW

LANCASHIRE WAY

TR
EA

SU
RE

 D
R 

SW

SHORT ST SW

TU
LIP

 AV
E S

W

VIKING DR SW

ZIO
N C

HU
RC

H R
D E

SP
LIC

EW
OO

D 
DR

 S
W

HIGHLAND AVE SW

GLE
N LA

UREL D
R

AR
ME

NT
RO

UT
 DR

 SW

FRYLING AVE SW
LACOMA LN

UNION ST S

OAK DR SW

OLD CHARLOTTE RD SW

WINDROSE LN SW

ALFRED BROWN JR CT SW

WRENFIE
LD

 LN

EASTSIDE DR SW

SC
HA

D C
T S

W

RAINBOW ST SW

GLE
NWOOD DR SW

PA
RA

DE
 LN

 S
W

SU
MM

ER
LA

KE
 DR

 SW

MEMORY LN

WILSHIRE CT SW

DE
BR

A 
CI

R 
SW

OPTIMIST CLUB DR

PEARL AVE SW

STONECREST CIR SW ITHACA DR

ST
ON

EW
AL

L C
IR

 SW

PRINCE CIR

CUMBERLAND CT SW

ROCKINGHAM LN SW

LAVERNE DR SW

LLOYD GARMON LN

DIVISION ST SW

PU
LL

MA
N 

ST
 SW

LONG ARROW DR

VIK
IN

G 
PL

 SW

GARRISON CT SW

CO
MM

ER
CE

 D
R 

SW

STURBRIDGE LN

ELATIA CIR

SOSSAMON PL

WOODLAND CIR SW

RA
ILW

AY
 PL

 SW

SIGNAL CT SW

ROSEHILL CT SWWI
NN

ER
S C

IR
 SW

TR
EA

SU
RE

 PL
 SW

IND
US

TR
IAL

 CT
 SW

FARGO DR SW

CO
NF

ED
ER

AT
E A

VE
 SW

PLOTT DR SW

TALLEDAGA LN SW

AERSHIRE CT

KENTUCKY AVE SW
GENERAL SERVICES DR SW

GREEN HAVEN CT

AUTUMN LN SW

DULIN DR SW

MELODY CT

FIR
ST

 TU
RN

 C
T S

W

COUNTRY VIEW RD

Preliminary Application²

1 in = 800 ft

Braswell

169



170



Hatley

NC HWY 49 S

CENTRAL HEIGHTS DR

ZION CHURCH RD

PINEY CHURCH RD

ZION CHURCH RD E

FALLS LAKE DR SW

NANNYBERRY LN

AR
LE

E C
T S

W

SHELLBARK DR

FAMOUS DR

OLD GLORY DR

GLE
NWOOD DR SW

LARCHLEA PL

TR
EASU

RE DR SW

CENTRAL C
ABARRUS DR SW

TH
AN

ET
 ST

 SW

SAGEWOOD PL S
W

LAVERNE DR SW

WINBORNE AVE SW

RAMSGATE DR SW

TO
M 

RE
ID 

RD

BRIGHT ORCHID AVE

BARTRAM AVE

MA
NS

TO
N 

PL
 SW

DE
NIS

E C
T S

W

QUEENS DR SW

GARDEN TER

LONG ARROW DR

MA
RS

HA
LL

 DR

CONTINENTAL DR

MANASSAS DR

BROWNLEE DR SW

SIR RALEIGH DR

RU
FU

S C
T

BLOOMOVER ST

POTTS GROVE PL

BE
TH

ES
DA

 PL

PEGWELL AVE SW

HOLL
IS 

CIR SW

LLOYD GARMON LN

ST
 CA

TH
ER

INE
S C

T S
W

HALLSTEAD ST

DOGWOOD PARK

CAPSTONE AVE SW

CHASTAIN AVE SW

KIM
BE

RL
Y L

N

WOODLAWN AVE SW

NE
W 

RI
VE

R 
DR

 SW

OLDE NORTH CHURCH DR

SE
PT

EM
BE

R C
T S

W

LO
NG

 LE
AF

 C
T

PATRIOTS POINTE DR

BROADSTAIRS DR SW

WINTHROP LN

ZION CHURCH RD

Preliminary Application²

1 in = 600 ft 171



172



173



ZION CHURCH RD

D C DR

NC HWY 49 S

CENTRAL HEIGHTS DR

ZION CHURCH RD E

PIN
EY

 C
HU

RC
H 

RD

FALLS LAKE DR SW

DILEEN DR

HE
AR

TH
 LN

 SW

NANNYBERRY LN

SHELLBARK DR

GROUSE DR

AR
LE

E C
T S

W

WINTERCREST DR

FLINTRIDGE DR

FAMOUS DR

OLD GLORY DR

KIS
ER

 W
OO

DS
 DR

 SW

PATR
ICK AVE SW

DA
FF

OD
IL 

LN
BRAXTO

N DR

RAMSGATE DR SW

MARSHALL DR

LARCHLEA PL

MANASSAS DR

PINTAIL DR

OL
D 

CH
AR

LO
TT

E R
D 

SW

CE
NT

RA
L C

AB
AR

RU
S D

R S
W

TH
AN

ET
 ST

 SWSAGEWOOD PL S
W

RU
FU

S C
T

CY CIR

LOCH LOMOND CIR

WINBORNE AVE SW

HE
ND

RI
X C

T

TO
M 

RE
ID 

RD

BRIGHT ORCHID AVE

BARTRAM AVE

KENDRA DR SW

BU
RN

ING
 EM

BE
RS

 LN
 SW

MA
NS

TO
N 

PL
 SW

DE
NIS

E C
T S

W

JESSICA LN

LITTLETON DR SW

DEA
CON CT S

W
GA

RD
EN

 TE
R

NO
RF

LE
ET

 ST
 SW

KELLYBROOK DR SW

CONTINENTAL DR

WEE
JU

NS
 DR

ST
 CA

TH
ER

INE
S C

T S
W

GLENWOOD DR SW

DOGWOOD PARK

SEBRING CT SW

SIR RALEIGH DR

AVERY CT

HIG
HL

AN
DE

R C
T

FIREBRICK LN SW

AFTERGLOW AVE SW

BLOOMOVER ST

KI
ND

LIN
G 

PL
 SW

POTTS GROVE PL

QU
IE

T S
TR

EA
M 

DR

SA
BL

E C
T

PEGWELL AVE SW

ST
 AN

DR
EW

S P
LHOLL

IS 
CIR SW

NEW RIVER DR SW

MELANIE CT
MA

TC
HS

TIC
K 

PL
 S

W

REYNOLDS CIRHOLSHOUSER RD

HALLSTEAD ST

LO
NG

 AR
RO

W 
DR

CA
RO

L C
T

TWIN OAKS CT

JERMAN DR

CASTLE ROCK CT

MARGATE ST SW

CHASTAIN AVE SW

KIM
BE

RL
Y L

N

WOODLAWN AVE SW

BR
IG

AD
OO

N C
T

SUFFIELD LN

BLANCHETTE CT

OX
FO

RD
 CT

WINTHROP LN

TY
NE

 C
AS

TL
E C

T

AM
BE

RD
EE

N 
CT

RAVEN ROCK PL SW

VALLEY TRAIL CT

PINEY CT

Preliminary Application²

1 in = 739 ft

Hinson

174



 

 
 

CITY OF CONCORD 2022 STATE LEGISLATIVE PRIORITIES 
 
1. “Government closest to the people governs best” – This adage is often attributed to a 
founding father, either as a direct quote or as symbolic of a philosophy upon which our 
nation was founded. The City of Concord (Concord) opposes laws that centralize authority 
in Raleigh and Washington to undermine the ability of local elected officials, those closest 
and most accessible to the people, to govern. We urge the General Assembly to use this 
adage as a yard stick when considering legislation that impacts municipalities and replace 
local governance with dictates from Raleigh. 

 
2. Funding and Control of Local Infrastructure – Concord supports legislation that 
provides municipalities with the authority to assess the level of fees and charges necessary 
for the continued growth and economic development in the future. 

 
Concord continues to oppose any effort leading to the forced taking of any local 
government infrastructure as it sets a dangerous precedent in the State of North Carolina, 
a precedent that will have a chilling effect on any local government investing in needed 
infrastructure in the future. Where issues arise, a local solution arrived at by an open, 
collaborative process is preferable to a legislative directed disposition of local government 
assets. 

 
3. Local Government Revenues and Tax Reform – If there are continued efforts 
regarding tax reform, Concord requests the General Assembly make sure any changes 
impacting local government are at least revenue neutral. There are too many infrastructure 
and customer service needs that are essential for the growth of the economy and jobs to 
further reduce revenues to municipal governments. 

 
Concord supports efforts to provide municipalities with additional locally-controlled 
revenue options. Changes in revenue options, such as the elimination of business license 
fees, have narrowed the ability of municipalities to respond to local needs beyond 
increasing property taxes. Other actions, such as providing homebuilders with tax 
exemptions on property, have eroded the property tax base. More local revenue options are 
needed to reflect the differences within municipalities across the State to order to provide 
the flexibility to meet those needs and to replace lost revenues. 
 
Concord continues to oppose efforts to divert local and State revenues from urban 
counties and supports open dialogue to develop creative ways to help those areas in 
North Carolina with declining tax bases. Concord urges the General Assembly to 
develop strategies to promote economic development activity throughout North Carolina 
rather than trying to divide the State. The idea that you assist areas that may be struggling 
economically by sending even more of the local revenues generated elsewhere disregards 
the formulas that already redistribute various types of revenues in North Carolina. 

175



Penalizing those areas that have growing economies to the point it undermines their ability 
to pay for basic services and infrastructure to support that growth and address issues of 
urban poverty within their own borders. It will also eventually compromise other State 
revenues benefiting from that growth, ultimately leading to reductions in State revenue 
sources. At the same time, Concord pledges to work with other local governments and State 
representatives to develop strategies to target improvements in those areas that are not 
growing and have specific needs. 

 
Finally, Concord opposes any legislation imposing mandated requirements on 
municipalities unless full funding or adequate new revenue sources are provided for 
implementation. 

 
4. Economic Development – Concord urges continued support and expansion of State 
economic development funding to spur job creation and revenue in low growth areas as 
well as parts of the state where growth is already helping to produce jobs and revenues to 
support State services used by all. 

 
5. Planning and Providing Services for Urban Growth – Cities and towns are the 
economic engines of the state and should be permitted to grow in an orderly and reasonable 
fashion that does not diminish the quality of life of current and future residents. All North 
Carolina citizens have gained greatly from strong and healthy urban areas. 

 
Concord opposes state-wide or local bills that will further undermine local land use 
authority, such as tools within zoning ordinances, to impact development that is or will 
become urban in nature. 

 
6. Surface Transportation – The current methods of paying for transportation 
improvements in North Carolina are inadequate to meet future needs. However, it is 
important that proposed changes in legislation be monitored, local government input be 
solicited and considered, and that parties work to improve the relationship between the 
N.C. Department of Transportation and local government. 

 
The gas tax is the North Carolina Department of Transportation's primary source of revenue 
for building and maintaining our transportation infrastructure across North Carolina and is 
the source for Powell Bill funding for municipalities. There are billions of dollars of unmet 
new construction needs in the State, and we are even more concerned about the State 
having the funds to take care of our investment in existing infrastructure through ongoing 
maintenance of our roads. Concord supports efforts to make sure North Carolina has 
revenue to support the schedule for the Concord related improvements outlined in the STIP 
and to add critical projects as proposed.  In addition, Concord supports the 
recommendations put forth by the NC First Commission to develop new and multiple 
investment strategies for our State.   

 
7. Air Transportation – Concord encourages the continuation of and growth in funding 
as airports are vitally important to economic development efforts in our State. 

 
8. Mental Health Needs and Opioid Abuse – Concord supports and advocates for 
Federal, State, and local efforts to bolster the State’s mental health treatment resources, 
including resources and solutions to lessen the strain on law enforcement officers when 
providing custody of individuals in crisis. 

 

176



Concord supports and advocates for efforts at the Federal, State and local levels to develop 
and provide resources to break the cycle of opioid and heroin abuse that is devastating 
communities throughout the United States. 

 
9. Collective Bargaining – Concord opposes any effort to change existing laws impacting 
public employee collective bargaining in North Carolina. 

 
10. Provide for annexation of “donut holes” - In the 2012 annexation reform bill, some 
legislative leaders intended to allow cities to retain the authority to annex areas completely 
surrounded by municipal jurisdiction without utilizing the referendum process otherwise 
required for city-initiated annexations. However, this authority was not preserved in the 
final version of the bill. Annexation of these areas allows for a continuity of municipal 
services and eliminates the dangerous confusion between municipalities and the county 
over responsibility for providing essential services. 

 
11. NCLM and Metro Mayors Legislative Agendas – In addition, the Concord City 
Council supports those items listed on the agendas of the North Carolina League of 
Municipalities and the Metro Mayors not covered in the items above. 

177



 

 

 
 
 

Draft 2022 Federal Agenda 
 

 
Mayor 

William C. “Bill” Dusch 

 
Council Member, District 4 

JC McKenzie 
 

 
Council Member, District 1 

Andy Langford 

 
Council Member, District 5 

Terry Crawford (Mayor Pro Tem) 
 

 
Council Member, District 2 

W. Brian King 

 
Council Member, District 6 

Jennifer P. Hubbard 
 

 
Council Member, District 3 

Betty M. Stocks 
 

 
Council Member, District 7 

John Sweat, Jr. 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Prepared in coordination with The Ferguson Group, LLC 
 

_______________ 
 

35 CABARRUS AVE. W 
CONCORD, NC 28025 

(704) 920-5215  
178



City of Concord, NC Federal Agenda  
 
 

Page 2 of 4 
 

Draft 2022 Federal Priorities 
 
 

Transportation Action Item: 
Concord-Padgett 
Regional Airport 

 

Ensure projects that are included on FAA's Work Plan, like runway widening, 
maintain priority and funding.  
 
Secure discretionary funding for development projects on the north and south 
ends of the airport.  
 
Support full funding for the contract tower program in FY 2023 budget and 
appropriations. 
 
Support contract tower staffing/annuity bill to address growing shortage in 
qualified air traffic controllers at federal contract towers.  
 
Ensure FAA’s AIP funds can be used for remote tower operations.  
 
Work with TSA to become an approved gateway airport and participating Fixed 
Based Operator in the TSA's DCA Access Standard Security Program into 
Washington Reagan National Airport.  
 

Rider Transit 
 

Support efforts to secure discretionary funding for system needs, such as new 
buses, and funds to implement the City’s long-range transportation plan. 
 
Assess and support transit options (including High Capacity) to serve The 
Grounds at Concord, CMS, Concord Mills/Exit 49, and Concord-Padgett Regional 
Airport.  
 
Pursue change to federal policy that does not allow FTA funds to be used to 
purchase buses from the General Services Administration; doing so would 
streamline procurement.  
 

Additional 
Transportation 

Priorities 

Support continued funding for DOT’s Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality 
Program, which is used for the City’s intersection projects.  
 
Explore opportunities to address sidewalk gaps using federal transportation 
funds. 
 

 
  

179



City of Concord, NC Federal Agenda  
 
 

Page 3 of 4 
 

Energy and 
Environment Action Item: 

Water 
Infrastructure 

Monitor federal funding opportunities for improvements at Hilgrove and Coddle 
Creek water treatment plants.  
 

Federal 
Regulations and 

Policy 

Monitor and report on: 
• Changes to EPA/Corps’ "Waters of the US" 

o Draft public comments in response to upcoming proposed rule.  
• Emerging contaminants – PFAS 

Brownfields Review potential brownfield locations and monitor EPA funding opportunities.  
 

 
Public Safety Action Item: 

Concord Police 
Department 

Monitor funding opportunities for: 
• Law enforcement technology: skytower, mobile field force equipment, 

mobile vehicle barriers 
• K-9s and related training 
• Training for de-escalation, simunition, co-responders  

 
Monitor and report on police reform initiatives. 
 

Concord Fire 
Department 

Pursue federal assistance for department needs through FEMA’s SAFER Grant 
Program and Fire Prevention and Safety Grant Program. 
 
Support firefighter cancer registry and other health and wellness legislation.  
 

Police and Fire 
Departments 

Monitor funding opportunities to help support the Public Safety Complex, 
including a driving simulator, indoor firearms range, firearms simulator, and 
burn tower.  
 

 
Housing Action Item: 

Housing 
Department 

Pursue federal assistance for department needs, including funds from the 
following HUD programs: FSS Services Coordinator Grant Program; Resident 
Opportunity and Self Sufficiency Program; Emergency Safety and Security 
Grant; Lead-Based Paint Capital Fund Program; Supportive Housing for the 
Elderly and the Family Unification Program through the Housing Choice 
Voucher Program; Project Safe Neighborhood; and Good Neighbor Next Door. 

 
Support HUD VASH Program and continued efforts to secure additional VASH 
vouchers working with the VA hospital in Salisbury. 
  

 

180



City of Concord, NC Federal Agenda  
 
 

Page 4 of 4 
 

Parks and 
Recreation Action Item: 

Future Park Sites Pursue federal assistance to secure land for future park site. 
 

Open Space and 
Connectivity Plan 

Pursue federal assistance to implement parts of the City's Open Space and 
Connectivity Plan – greenways, trails, sidewalks, bike lanes.  
 

 
Other 

Priorities Action Item: 
Coronavirus Relief 

Funding 
Monitor and report on Congressional and US Treasury Department action and 
guidance related to local fiscal relief. Provide updates to the City on eligible 
uses of funds.  
 

Municipal 
Financing 

The City of Concord supports preservation of tax-exempt municipal bonds and 
the reinstatement of advance refunding. 
 

Opportunity Zones Monitor and report on additional federal guidance or updates to the 
Department of Treasury’s Opportunity Zones, including any changes to 
investment terms to coincide with banks (standard bank financing is 5-6 year 
terms; OZs have 10-year investment criteria). 
 

 

181



3/14/22 

 
 
 

CURRENT CONCORD UNTIED COMMITTEE MEMBERS WITH EXPIRING 
TERMS THAT WOULD LIKE TO BE REAPPOINTED TO THEIR FIRST 3-YEAR 

TERM: 
 
 
Bertram Hinton, Jr.      5/21/21 – 4/30/22 – Co-Chair 
Aimy Steele       5/21/21 – 4/30/22 
Bob Anderson      5/21/21 – 4/30/22 
Caroline Overcash      5/21/21 – 4/30/22 
Greg Mills       5/21/21 – 4/30/22 
Lamarie Austin-Stripling     5/21/21 – 4/30/22 
Quinton Locklear      5/21/21 – 4/30/22 
 
 

182



U.S. Department of Justice
Office of Community Oriented Policing Services

cops.usdoj.gov Fact Sheet

2022 Law Enforcement Mental Health  
and Wellness Act Program
Law Enforcement Mental Health and Wellness Act (LEMHWA) funds are used to improve the delivery of and access  
to mental health and wellness services for law enforcement through the implementation of peer support, training, family 
resources, suicide prevention, and other promising practices for wellness programs. The 2022 LEMHWA program will fund 
projects that develop knowledge, increase awareness of effective mental health and wellness strategies, increase the skills and 
abilities of law enforcement, and increase the number of law enforcement agencies and relevant stakeholders using peer sup-
port, training, family resources, suicide prevention, and other promising practices for wellness programs.

March 2022

WHEN: Deadline for first part of application 
in Grants.gov is April 27, 2022, at 
7:59 p.m. ET. Deadline for completed 
application in JustGrants is April 29, 
2022, at 7:59 p.m. ET.

Start EARLY. This is more than  
a one-day process.

WHERE: 1. Register at www.grants.gov.

2. Complete the application  
in the JustGrants Justice  
Grants System.

HOW: Online only. No hard copies sent  
by U.S. Mail or electronic copies  
sent via email.

COPS Office Law Enforcement  
Mental Health and Wellness Act Topics

The LEMHWA program has two open solicitations  
this year:

�	Implementation Projects

�	National Level Training and Technical Assistance,  
which has two subcategories:

1. National Peer Support Training Program

2. LEMHWA Implementation Technical Assistance  
and Resources

Please see the Funding Provisions section on page 2 for  
an overview description of each solicitation. All awards  

 
 

are subject to the availability of appropriated funds and 
any modifications or additional requirements that may 
be imposed by law.

The COPS Office is committed to advancing work that promotes civil rights and racial equity, increases access to justice, supports crime 
victims and individuals impacted by the justice system, strengthens community safety and protects the public from crime and evolving 
threats, and builds trust between law enforcement and the community. 

183

https://cops.usdoj.gov
https://www.grants.gov


2
2022 Law Enforcement Mental Health and Wellness Act Program

Funding Provisions

Provisions include the following:

�	The LEMHWA Implementation Projects solicitation aims 
to support law enforcement agencies seeking to imple-
ment new or enhance existing programs that offer training 
and services on officer mental health, peer mentoring, sui-
cide prevention, stress reduction, and police officer family 
services. Proposed projects may serve one agency, a con-
sortium of agencies, or personnel from agencies located 
within a county or state. This solicitation is open to local, 
state, tribal, and territorial law enforcement agencies.

�	The LEMHWA National Level Training and Technical 
Assistance solicitation—which has two subcategories,  
(1) National Peer Support Training Program and (2) LEMHWA  
Implementation Technical Assistance and Resources—aims 
to support the training, resources, and technical assistance 
efforts to help build knowledge and capacity of state, local, 
tribal, and territorial law enforcement agencies that are 
seeking to implement their mental health and wellness 
initiatives. This solicitation is open to any public govern-
mental agency, federally recognized Indian tribe, nonprofit 
organization, for-profit organization, institution of higher 
education, community group, or faith-based organization. 
Applicants may apply for both subcategories, but a separate 
application is required for each program. 

�	Proposals should be responsive to the solicitation and iden- 
tify specific program goals that will be directly accom-
plished if awarded LEMHWA funding. Detailed descrip-
tions of eligibility and additional information are available 
in the individual solicitation guide for each program.

�	There is up to $7.5 million in funding available through 
the LEMHWA Implementation Projects solicitation and 
$500,000 for the LEMHWA National Level Training and 
Technical Assistance solicitation. Awards made under both 
solicitations are two years (24 months) in length. There is 
no local match.

How to Apply

Applicants are first required to register via www.grants.gov  
and complete an SF-424. Deadline to complete this step is 
April 27, 2022. After submitting the SF-424, applicants will 
receive an email with instructions on completing the second 
part of the LEMHWA application through the JustGrants 
Justice Grants System.

Complete application packages for the FY 2022 LEMHWA 
solicitation are due by April 29, 2022, at 7:59 p.m. ET. 
Before submitting your application, please review the  
LEMHWA Solicitation Guide. Applications in hard or elec- 
tronic format sent via email or U.S. Mail will not be accepted.

PLEASE NOTE: Until April 4, 2022, the unique entity identi-
fier (UEI) that applicants for federal grants and cooperative 
agreements are required to have is a Data Universal Number 
System (DUNS) number. A DUNS number is a unique 
nine-character identification number provided by the com- 
mercial company Dun & Bradstreet (D&B). Once an appli- 
cant has applied for a DUNS number through D&B, its 
DUNS number should be available within two business days.

On April 4, 2022, the Federal Government will stop using 
the DUNS number and move to the System for Award 
Management (SAM) to generate the UEI. The UEI (SAM)  
is a 12-character alphanumeric value that, once issued, will 
not change. Entities that are currently registered in sam.gov  
already have a UEI (SAM) that can be viewed in sam.gov. 
The transition from DUNS number to UEI (SAM) will 
not impact an entity's registration expiration date or when 
renewal is necessary. All entities applying for DOJ funding 
opportunities with Grants.gov closing dates after March 31, 
2022, must take one of the following actions.

1. Complete and submit the SF-424 and SF-LLL no later 
than March 30, 2022, at 8:00 p.m. ET. If the SF-424  
is not completed and submitted by this time, any infor-
mation contained in the SF-424 will be lost during the 
transition. If this occurs, applicants will need to re-enter 
their data in the new SF-424 form upon returning to 
Grants.gov on April 1, 2022.

2. Wait until April 1, 2022 to begin and submit the  
Grants.gov application.

Please note: the COPS Office requires two authorized repre- 
sentatives (Law Enforcement Executive/Program Official 
and Government Executive/Financial Official) for its grant 
applications. Confirm your two authorized representatives 
complete the steps to create their accounts. If they do not, the  
delay may prevent timely submission of your application.

Contact the COPS Office

For more information about COPS Office pro- 
grams and resources, please call the COPS Office 
Response Center at 800-421-6770 or visit the  
COPS Office website at https://cops.usdoj.gov.

March 2022184

https://cops.usdoj.gov
https://www.grants.gov
https://www.sam.gov
https://www.sam.gov


185

jwood
Text Box
Adopted June 11, 2020



HOME-ARP Policy-Concord, NC  Adopted: DATE 

 
 
 
 

Cabarrus/Iredell/Rowan 
HOME Consortium 

 
HOME-American Rescue Plan 

(HOME-ARP) Policy 
 
 
 

(For HOME-ARP Eligible Projects) 
 
 
 

CITY OF CONCORD 
Planning & Neighborhood Development Department 

35 Cabarrus Avenue West 
Concord, North Carolina 28025 

   

186



 
HOME-ARP Policy-Concord, NC 2 
 
 

 
Table of Contents 

 
 

I. Purpose .............................................................................................................................. 3 
II. Background ........................................................................................................................ 3 

III. Establishment of HOME-ARP Requirements ..................................................................... 3 
IV. Definitions of Frequently Used Terms ............................................................................... 4 
V. Use of Funds to Benefit Qualifying Populations ................................................................ 5 

A. Development & Support of Affordable Housing ......................................................... 5 
B. Tenant-Based Rental Assistance (TBRA) ..................................................................... 8 
C. Supportive Services ................................................................................................... 10 
D. Non-Congregate Shelter Units .................................................................................. 12 

a. Target Households and Eligibility Requirements ................................................ 14 
b. Period of Affordability/Restricted Use  ............................................................... 23 
c. Compliance & Monitoring Requirements ........................................................... 23 

VI. Administration & Planning .............................................................................................. 25 
VII. Overarching Program Regulations & Requirements ....................................................... 27 

A. Fair Housing and Civil Rights ..................................................................................... 27 
B. Affirmative Marketing and Outreach ........................................................................ 27 
C. Conflict of Interest ..................................................................................................... 28 
D. Program Accessibility ................................................................................................ 29 
E. Equal Opportunity ..................................................................................................... 29 
F. Non-Discrimination ................................................................................................... 30 
G. Reasonable Accommodations for Persons with Disabilities ..................................... 30 
H. Business Enterprises (owned by Minorities, Women, and Disadvantaged Businesses) ............... 30 

I. The Uniform Act and Section 104(d) ......................................................................... 30 
J. Financial Management .............................................................................................. 32 
K. Procurement .............................................................................................................. 33 
L. Environmental Review Requirement ........................................................................ 34 
M. Public Records ........................................................................................................... 35 
N. Additional General Policies and Procedures for Development Projects ................... 35 
O. Section 504 Barrier Removal Standards for Multifamily Housing ............................ 41 
P. Prevailing Wages and Labor Standards Requirements ............................................. 42 
Q. Section 3 Economic Opportunity ............................................................................... 42 
R. Subsidy Layering and Underwriting Guidelines ........................................................ 42 
S. Costs Associated with Administration of Development Projects ............................. 43 
T. Mixed-Use Projects ................................................................................................... 44 
U. Summary .................................................................................................................... 44 

  
 
 

187



 
HOME-ARP Policy-Concord, NC 3 
 
 

 
I. PURPOSE 

 
The City of Concord’s Planning & Neighborhood Development Department (P&NDD) administers both 
federally-funded and City-funded projects to provide decent, safe and affordable housing options for its 
residents. The purpose of this Policy is to establish the requirements for funds appropriated under 
section 3205 of the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (P.O. 117-2) (“ARP”) for the HOME Investment 
Partnerships Program (HOME) to provide homelessness assistance and supportive services. The City of 
Concord is the Lead Entity for the Cabarrus/Iredell Rowan HOME Consortium.  This Policy will provide 
guidance for the City of Concord and the Cabarrus/Iredell/Rowan HOME Consortium concerning this 
funding.  

 
II. BACKGROUND 

 
As a form of relief to address the continued impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the economy, public 
health, State and local governments, individuals, and businesses, President Biden signed ARP into law 
on March 11, 2021, which included $1.9 trillion to address the need for homelessness assistance and 
supportive services.  Congress appropriated $5 billion in ARP funds to be administered through HOME 
to perform four (4) activities that must primarily benefit qualifying individuals and families who are 
homeless, at risk of homelessness, or in other vulnerable populations.  These activities include: (1) 
development and support of affordable housing, (2) tenant-based rental assistance (TBRA), (3) provision 
of supportive services; and (4) acquisition and development of non-congregate shelter units. 
 
The HOME-ARP program defines qualifying individuals or families as those that are (1) homeless, as 
defined in section 103(a) of the McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act, as amended (42 U.S.C. 
11302(a) (“McKinney-Vento”); (2) at risk of homelessness, as defined in Section 401 of McKinney-Vento; 
(3) fleeing, or attempting to flee domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, stalking, or human 
trafficking; (4) part of other populations where providing supportive services or assistance would 
prevent a family’s homelessness or would serve those with the greatest risk of housing instability; or (5) 
veterans and families that include a veteran family member that meet the criteria in one of (1)-(4) 
above. 
 
The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) is authorized to allocate HOME-ARP 
funds to states, units of general local government, insular areas, and consortia of units of general local 
government that qualified for an allocation of HOME funds in Fiscal Year (FY) 2021, pursuant to section 
217 of the Cranston-Gonzalez National Affordable Housing Act of 1990, as amended (42 U.S. C. 12701 
et seq.) (NAHA”). 
 

III. ESTABLISHMENT OF HOME-ARP REQUIREMENTS 
 

The HOME-ARP program provides funds for homelessness and supportive services assistance under the 
HOME statute of Title II of NAHA (42 U.S.C. 12721 et seq.) and authorizes the Secretary of HUD to waive 
or specify alternative requirements for any provisions of NAHA or regulation for the administration of 
the HOME-ARP) program, except requirements related to fair housing, civil rights, nondiscrimination, 

188



 
HOME-ARP Policy-Concord, NC 4 
 
 

labor standards, and the environment, upon a finding that the waiver or alternative requirement is 
necessary too expedite or facilitate the use of HOME-ARP funds.  Pursuant to ARP, the per-unit cost 
limits (42 U.S.C. 12742€), commitment requirements (42 U.S.C.12748 (g)), matching requirements (42 
U.S.C. 12750), and set-aside for housing developed, sponsored, or owned by Community Housing 
Development Organizations (CHDOs) (42 U.S.C.12771) in NAHA do not apply to HOME-ARP funds. 
 
This Policy describes the requirements applicable to the Participating Jurisdiction’s (PJ’s) use of HOME-
ARP funds. Consolidated Plan requirements for HOME are in Title I of NAHA and 24 CFR Part 91. HOME 
program regulations are in 24 CFR Part 92.  Except as described in HOME-ARP and this Policy, HOME 
statutory and regulatory provisions apply to a PJ’s use of HOME-ARP funds.  

 
IV. DEFINITIONS OF FREQUENTLY USED TERMS 

 
Affordable Housing: housing that can be purchased for no more than 2.5 to 3 times the total annual 
household income or housing that allows household costs (rent or mortgage plus utilities) not to exceed 
30 percent of household gross income, as defined by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 
Development (HUD). 
 
Area Median Income (AMI):  the yearly metric that is calculated by HUD to determine the income 
eligibility requirements of the eligible households. 
 
Income: any source of monetary compensation that is received, especially on a regular basis, in the form 
of earned wages or salary, investment earnings, disability, retirement or Social Security income, 
alimony, child support, public assistance or from any other source.   
 
Project Costs: the total funds that are needed to complete the project or work, including direct and 
indirect costs, such as assistance provided by the contract; equipment that is purchased solely for 
project use; utilities for a building that is used solely for the project and no other service; and other 
direct project costs. For service contracts, projects costs are to be documented as follows: 

• Repair costs – subcontractor invoices and receipts for materials. 
• Equipment – purchase orders and documentation of expenses in the ledger, including 

documentation of 100% use by the project.  
• Utilities – copies of bills paid for utilities.  
• Documentation of 100% of construction costs through project completion. 
• Documented proof that no other services are being provided within the building(s) except the 

services that were included in the initial written agreement. 
 
System Vision Standards:  design and construction standards that were created by Advanced Energy in 
conjunction with the North Carolina Housing Finance Agency. System Vision is an Advanced Energy 
program that provides training and technical support to improve the health, safety, durability, comfort, 
and energy efficiency of affordable homes in North Carolina. 
 
 
 

189



 
HOME-ARP Policy-Concord, NC 5 
 
 

V. USE OF FUNDS TO BENEFIT QUALIFYING POPULATIONS 
 
The HOME-ARP program requires funds to be used primarily to benefit the qualifying populations 
through the four (4) eligible activities: (1) development and support of affordable housing; (2) tenant-
based rental assistance (TBRA); (3) provision of supportive services; and (4) acquisition and 
development of non-congregate shelter (NCS) units.  Recognizing the urgent needs of individuals and 
families in qualifying populations, HUD is requiring that: 
 

• 100% of HOME-ARP funds used by a PJ for TBRA, supportive services, and acquisition and 
development of non-congregate shelter units must benefit individuals and families in qualifying 
populations.  Individuals and families in qualifying populations may be assisted by one or more 
of the HOME-ARP eligible activities, consistent with the requirements in this Policy. 

• Not less than 70 percent of affordable rental housing units acquired, rehabilitated, or 
constructed with HOME-AR) funds by a PJ must be occupied by households in the qualifying 
populations.  Units that are not restricted to occupancy by qualifying populations are subject to 
income targeting and rent requirements established under the HOME-AR) Rental Program rules 
and are only permitted in projects with rental units restricted for occupancy by qualifying 
populations. 

 
HUD recognizes that, because many households in the qualifying populations are unable to pay rents 
sufficient to cover unit operating costs, PJs and project owners should attempt to obtain Federal or state 
project-based rental subsidies, if available.  Since project-based rental subsidies can be difficult to 
secure, HUD determined that additional flexibility was necessary to properly structure or underwrite 
HOME-ARP rental projects to ensure that the projects will remain both affordable and financially viable 
during the minimum compliance period.  One of these flexibilities is permitting up to 30 percent of 
HOME-ARP rental housing units funded by a PJ to be occupied by low-income households.  PJs are 
encouraged to use this flexibility only when it is required to facilitate development of a HOME-ARP 
rental project. 
  
PJs must determine and document that households meet the definition of a qualifying population or, 
for the portion of HOME-ARP rental units not restricted to these populations, that households are low-
income. 
 
A. Development & Support of Affordable Housing 
 

Overview: 

A PJ may use HOME-ARP funds to acquire, construct and rehabilitate rental housing for occupancy 
by individuals and families that meet one of the Qualifying Populations defined in CPD Notice: 
Requirements for the Use of Funds in the HOME-American Rescue Plan Program (“the Notice”). 
HOME-ARP rental housing may include single family or multifamily housing, transitional or 
permanent housing, group homes, single room occupancy (SRO) units, and manufactured housing. 

To promote the development of financially viable housing, PJs may pay the entire amount of eligible 
costs associated with HOME-ARP rental units, are encouraged to work with local PHAs and state or 
local agencies to obtain project-based rental assistance and may provide ongoing operating cost 

190



 
HOME-ARP Policy-Concord, NC 6 
 
 

assistance or capitalize a project operating cost assistance reserve to address operating deficits of 
HOME-ARP units occupied by qualifying households. To promote inclusion of HOME-ARP units in 
mixed-income housing, up to 30 percent of the units a PJ funds with its HOME-ARP grant may be 
restricted for occupancy by households that are low-income. 
 
Eligible Activities and Costs: 

• Eligible Activities: Acquisition, construction, and rehabilitation of affordable rental housing, 
including reconstruction as defined in 24 CFR 92.2. Acquisition of vacant land or demolition may 
be undertaken only with respect to a HOME-ARP project for which construction is expected to 
start within 12 months of commitment. 

• Eligible Costs: HOME-ARP funds may pay for up to 100 percent of the following eligible costs 
associated with HOME-ARP rental units: 
o Development hard costs include the actual cost of constructing and rehabilitating housing 

to meet applicable property standards. Eligible development costs also include site 
improvements, utility connections and costs to construct or rehabilitate laundry and 
community facilities located within the same building as the HOME-ARP housing; 

o Refinancing of existing debt secured by a HOME-ARP rental project rehabilitated with 
HOME-ARP funds; 

o Acquisition costs of improved or unimproved real property; 
o Related soft costs including reasonable and necessary costs incurred by the PJ or project 

owner associated with the financing, development, acquisition, or rehabilitation of HOME-
APR rental housing; 

o Relocation costs as defined in 24 CFR 92.206(f), 24 CFR 92.353, and the Notice; 
o Certain costs related to the payment of construction, bridge, or guaranteed loans, if HOME-

ARP is part of original financing; and 
o Operating cost assistance, through a capitalized operating reserve or ongoing operating 

cost payments, for HOME-ARP units restricted for occupancy by qualifying households. 

Beneficiary Requirements: 

• Eligible Beneficiaries: HOME-ARP funds must primarily benefit individuals and families that 
meet one of the qualifying populations defined in the Notice. However, not more than 30 
percent of the total number of rental units assisted with HOME-ARP funds may be occupied by 
low-income households as defined in 24 CFR 92.2. 

• Household Income: The following income requirements apply to HOME-ARP households: 
o Qualifying Households: At initial occupancy and each subsequent year during the minimum 

15-year compliance period, the PJ must use the definition of annual income at 24 CFR 5.609 
and the process described in the Notice to determine the household’s contribution to rent. 

o Low-Income Households: The PJ must use the definition of annual income at 24 CFR 5.609 
and the process described in the Notice to examine the household’s income at initial 
occupancy and each subsequent year during the minimum 15-year compliance period to 
determine the household’s ongoing income eligibility and applicable contribution to rent. 

• Tenant Contribution to Rent: A qualifying household may not contribute to rent more than is 
affordable based on the PJ’s determination of the household’s income. 

 

191



 
HOME-ARP Policy-Concord, NC 7 
 
 

Project Requirements: 

• Targeting and Occupancy: Not less than 70 percent of the total number of rental units a PJ 
assists with HOME-ARP funds must be restricted to occupancy by households that are qualifying 
households at the time of the household’s initial occupancy. Not more than 30 percent of the 
total number of rental units assisted with HOME-ARP funds by the PJ may be restricted for 
occupancy by low-income households. A household that met the definition of one or more 
qualifying populations at initial occupancy remains a qualifying household throughout their 
period of occupancy irrespective of changes in income or whether they continue to meet a 
qualifying population definition (e.g., no longer qualify as homeless after being admitted to a 
HOME-ARP unit). 

• Property Standards: HOME-ARP rental units must comply with all rental property standards 
required in 24 CFR 92.251 paragraphs (a), (b), (c)(1) and (2), (e), and (f). 

• Minimum Compliance Period: HOME-ARP rental units must comply with the HOME-ARP rental 
requirements for a minimum of 15 years, irrespective of the amount of HOME-ARP funds 
invested in the project or the activity undertaken. If a project-based rental assistance Housing 
Assistance Payments (HAP) contract is awarded to a HOME-ARP rental project, the minimum 
compliance period is the greater of 15 years or the term of the HAP contract. 

• Rent Limitations: HOME-ARP establishes rent limitations for units restricted for qualifying 
households and units restricted for low-income households as follows: 
o Units Restricted for Occupancy by Qualifying Households: The HOME-ARP rent may not 

exceed 30 percent of the adjusted income of a household whose annual income is equal to 
or less than 50 percent of the median income for the area, as determined by HUD (i.e., Low 
HOME Rents). 

o Units Restricted for Occupancy by Low-Income Households: HOME-ARP rental units 
restricted for low-income households must comply with the rent limitations at 24 CFR 
92.252(a). 

o Additional HOME-ARP Unit Limitations, if applicable: 
 Federal/State Project-Based Rental Subsidy: A HOME-ARP unit that receives Federal or 

state project-based rental subsidy may charge the rent allowable under the rental 
subsidy program. 

 Single Room Occupancy Units (SRO): If an SRO unit has both sanitary and food 
preparation facilities, the maximum HOME-ARP rent is based on the zero-bedroom fair 
market rent. If the SRO unit only has sanitary facilities, the maximum HOME- ARP rent 
is based on 75 percent of the zero-bedroom fair market rent. 

• Changes in Income and Over Income Households: A PJ must take action to address over- income 
households occupying HOME-ARP units as follows: 
o Qualifying Households: A qualifying household whose annual income at the time of 

recertification is above 50 percent of median income for the area but below 80 percent of 
median income for the area must pay the rent specified in 24 CFR 92.252(a). 

o Low-Income Households: A low-income household whose income is above 80 percent of the 
median income for the area must pay rent that complies with 24 CFR 92.252(i)(2). 

• Lease and Tenant Protections: Each household that occupies a HOME-ARP assisted unit must 
execute a lease that complies with the tenant protection requirements prescribed in the Notice. 

• Master Leasing and Use of a HOME-ARP Sponsor: A HOME-ARP sponsor – a nonprofit 

192



 
HOME-ARP Policy-Concord, NC 8 
 
 

organization that provides housing or supportive services to qualifying households – may 
execute a lease for a HOME-ARP unit or a master lease for multiple units in a project. The HOME-
ARP sponsor may then sublease the HOME-ARP rental unit to a qualifying household. 

• Coordinated Entry and Project-Specific Waitlists: On a project-by-project basis, a PJ must 
decide whether a project owner may use a Continuum of Care’s (CoC) Coordinated Entry (CE), 
a CoC’s CE and other referral sources, or a project-specific waitlist to select qualifying 
households for HOME-ARP units restricted for occupancy by qualifying households. A project 
owner must use a project-specific waitlist to select low-income households to occupy units 
restricted for occupancy by low-income households. 

 
Oversight and Management: 

A PJ is responsible for the day-to-day management and oversight of its HOME-ARP program in-
cluding but not limited to the following: 

• Underwriting and Subsidy Layering: A PJ must establish underwriting and subsidy layering 
guidelines for determining the appropriate amount of HOME-ARP funds, including any 
operating cost assistance provided to maintain the financial viability of the HOME-ARP project 
through the 15-year minimum compliance period. 

• Enforcement of Rental Requirements: A PJ must impose the HOME-ARP rental requirements 
through a deed restriction, covenant running with the land, legally binding agreement 
restricting the use of the property and recorded on the property in accordance with State 
recordation laws, or other mechanism approved by HUD. 

• Project Completion, Occupancy and Noncompliance: A PJ must repay any HOME-ARP funds 
invested in units that are 1) not completed within 4 year of project commitment, 2) not rented 
to eligible qualifying or low-income households within 12 months of project completion, or 3) 
terminated before completion or otherwise not compliant with the HOME-ARP rental 
requirements. 

• Management and Oversight of Operating Cost Assistance Reserve: A PJ must require any HOME-
ARP funds expended for project operating cost assistance reserves be held by a project owner 
in a separate interest-bearing account with review and written approval from the PJ prior to 
any disbursement of HOME-ARP funds from the operating cost assistance reserve account. The 
PJ must, no less than annually, review the operating cost assistance reserve account to 
determine that it is appropriately sized based on projected deficits for units restricted for 
occupancy by qualifying households. 

 
B.  Tenant-Based Rental Assistance (TBRA) 

 
Overview: 

HOME-ARP funds may be used to provide tenant-based rental assistance (“HOME-ARP TBRA”) to 
individuals and families that meet one of the Qualifying Populations defined in the CPD Notice: 
Requirements for the Use of Funds in the HOME-American Rescue Plan Program (“the Notice”). A PJ 
may assist a qualifying household by providing payments towards housing and housing-related 
costs, such as rent, security deposits, utility deposits, and utility costs. Because HOME-ARP TBRA is 
attached to the qualifying household and not a particular rental unit, the household may choose to 

193



 
HOME-ARP Policy-Concord, NC 9 
 
 

move to another unit with continued assistance as long as the new unit meets the applicable 
property standards. HOME-ARP TBRA may be provided in coordination with a non-profit HOME-ARP 
sponsor that facilitates a qualifying household’s use of HOME-ARP TBRA. The HOME-ARP sponsor 
may make rental subsidy payments and a security deposit payment on behalf of a qualifying 
household or may sublease a unit to the qualifying household. 
 
Eligible Costs: 

• Eligible Costs: HOME-ARP funds may be used to provide rental assistance, security deposit 
assistance, utility deposits, and utility payments to qualifying households. HOME-ARP may pay 
up to 100% of these costs for a qualifying household. 

Project Requirements: 

• Portability of Assistance: A PJ may require the HOME-ARP TBRA assisted household to use the 
assistance within the PJ's boundaries or may permit the household to use the assistance outside 
its boundaries as outlined at 24 CFR 92.209(d). 

• Term of Rental Assistance Contract: The PJ must determine the maximum term of HOME- ARP 
TBRA assistance contracts and whether contracts will be renewable. 

• Maximum Subsidy: The PJ must establish policies for the allowable maximum subsidy, which 
may differ from the maximum subsidy requirements at 24 CFR 92.209(h). PJs may provide up to 
100 percent subsidy for rent, security deposit payments, and utility bills. The PJ must also 
establish policies for determining any household contribution to rent. 

• Rent Reasonableness: The PJ must determine whether the rent is reasonable in comparison to 
rent for other comparable unassisted units and must disapprove a lease if the rent is not 
reasonable. 

• Housing Quality Standards: Housing must comply with all housing quality standards required 
at 24 CFR 982.401 (or successor inspection standards issued by HUD) unless the tenant is 
residing in a HOME or HOME-ARP unit, in which case the PJ may defer to initial and ongoing 
inspection standards for the housing. 

• Use of a HOME-ARP Sponsor: A HOME-ARP sponsor – a nonprofit organization that provides 
housing or supportive services to qualifying households – may facilitate the leasing of a HOME-
ARP rental unit or the use and maintenance of HOME-ARP TBRA. A sponsor may make rental 
subsidy payments and a security deposit payment on behalf of a qualifying household. 

PJ Management and Oversight: 

• Rental Assistance Contract: HOME-ARP TBRA must be provided through a rental assistance 
contract with the PJ and (1) an owner that leases a unit to a qualifying household; (2) the 
qualifying household, (3) a HOME-ARP sponsor or (4) an owner and the qualifying household in 
a tri-party contract. 

• Lease and Sublease: PJs must require and verify that there is an executed lease between the 
qualifying household and the owner of the rental unit or a between an owner and a HOME- ARP 
sponsor with a sublease between the qualifying households and the HOME-ARP sponsor that 
complies with tenant protection requirements in accordance with 24 CFR 92.253(a). PJs may 
permit a HOME-ARP sponsor to execute a lease with an owner for an individual unit or a master 

194

https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?SID=c7002414006c31aaf1802b44c4b87168&mc=true&node=pt24.1.92&rgn=div5&se24.1.92_1209
https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?SID=c7002414006c31aaf1802b44c4b87168&mc=true&node=pt24.1.92&rgn=div5&se24.1.92_1209
https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?node=pt24.4.982&rgn=div5&se24.4.982_1401
https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?SID=c7002414006c31aaf1802b44c4b87168&mc=true&node=pt24.1.92&rgn=div5&se24.1.92_1253
https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?SID=c7002414006c31aaf1802b44c4b87168&mc=true&node=pt24.1.92&rgn=div5&se24.1.92_1253
https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?SID=c7002414006c31aaf1802b44c4b87168&mc=true&node=pt24.1.92&rgn=div5&se24.1.92_1253
https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?SID=c7002414006c31aaf1802b44c4b87168&mc=true&node=pt24.1.92&rgn=div5&se24.1.92_1253


 
HOME-ARP Policy-Concord, NC 10 
 
 

lease for more than one unit restricted for occupancy by HOME- ARP TBRA households. 
• Written Agreement with HOME-ARP Sponsor: The PJ must enter into a written agreement with 

the HOME-ARP sponsor if the HOME-ARP TBRA rental assistance contract is not with the HOME-
ARP sponsor and the HOME-ARP sponsor will be receiving the HOME-ARP TBRA subsidy directly 
from the PJ. 

 
C. Supportive Services 
 

Overview: 

A PJ may use HOME-ARP funds to provide a broad range of supportive services to individuals and 
families that meet one of the qualifying populations as defined in CPD Notice: Requirements for the 
Use of Funds in the HOME-American Rescue Plan Program (“the Notice”). Supportive services may 
be provided to individuals and families who are not already receiving the services outlined in the 
Notice through another program. PJs may establish a separate supportive services activity or 
activities or may combine supportive services with other HOME- ARP activities. 

Eligible Services and Costs: 

Eligible Supportive Services: There are three categories specifically included as supportive services 
under HOME-ARP: 

 
• McKinney-Vento Supportive Services: McKinney-Vento Supportive Services under HOME- ARP 

are adapted from the services listed in section 401(29) of the McKinney-Vento Homeless 
Assistance Act (“McKinney-Vento Supportive Services”) (42 U.S.C. 11360(29)). 
 

• Homelessness Prevention Services: HOME-ARP Homelessness Prevention Services are adapted 
from certain eligible homelessness prevention services under the Emergency Services Grant 
(ESG) regulations at 24 CFR Part 576. 
 

• Housing Counseling Services: Housing counseling services under HOME-ARP are those 
consistent with the definition of housing counseling and housing counseling services defined 
at 24 CFR 5.100 and 5.111, respectively, except that homeowner assistance and related 
services are not eligible HOME-ARP activities. 

Eligible Costs of Supportive Services for Qualifying Individuals and Families: HOME-ARP funds 
may be used to pay eligible costs associated with the HOME-ARP supportive services activity in 
accordance with the requirements of the Notice. 
 
Eligible Costs Associated with McKinney-Vento and Homelessness Prevention Supportive Services: 

 
• All qualifying households are eligible to receive supportive services under the HOME-ARP 

supportive services activity. Eligible costs associated with McKinney-Vento supportive services 
and homelessness prevention supportive services include: 
o Costs of child care; 
o Costs of improving knowledge and basic educational skills; 
o Costs of establishing and/or operating employment assistance and job 

training programs 

195

https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?title=42&section=11360
https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?c=ecfr%3Bsid%3Ddc4c2f93cdadf08974315fa2bfdf4cec%3Brgn%3Ddiv5%3Bview%3Dtext%3Bnode%3D24%3A3.1.1.3.8%3Bidno%3D24%3Bcc%3Decfr
https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?rgn=div5&node=24%3A1.1.1.1.5&se24.1.5_1105
https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?rgn=div5&node=24%3A1.1.1.1.5&se24.1.5_1111


 
HOME-ARP Policy-Concord, NC 11 
 
 

o Costs of providing meals or groceries 
o Costs of assisting eligible program participants to locate, obtain and retain housing 
o Costs of certain legal services 
o Costs of teaching critical life management skills 
o Financial assistance costs, including: 
 Rental application fees 
 Security deposits 
 Utility deposits 
 Payment of rental arrears 

 
Please consult Notice CPD-21-10 for a full list and description of eligible costs. 

 
• The costs of homelessness prevention services are only eligible to the extent that the assistance 

is necessary to help program participants regain stability in their current permanent housing or 
move into other permanent housing to achieve stability in that housing. 
 

• PJs must establish requirements documenting an eligible cost as McKinney-Vento supportive 
services to an individual or family in a qualifying population, homelessness prevention services, 
or Housing Counseling. 

 
Eligible Costs Associated with Housing Counseling: Costs associated with housing counseling 
services as defined at 24 CFR 5.100 and 5.111 are eligible. Costs may only be paid under HOME- ARP 
if housing counseling services are provided by HUD-certified housing counselors and organizations. 

 
• Eligible costs include: 

o Staff salaries and overhead costs of HUD-certified housing counseling agencies related to 
directly providing eligible housing counseling services to HOME- program participants 

o Development of a housing counseling workplan 
o Marketing and outreach 
o Intake 
o Financial and housing affordability analysis 
o Action plans that outline what the housing counseling agency and the client will do to meet 

the client's housing goals and that address the client's housing problem(s) 
o Follow-up communication with program participants 

• Costs for the provision of services to existing homeowners related to homeownership and 
mortgages to existing homeowners are not eligible under HOME-ARP. 

• If a program participant is a candidate for homeownership, costs associated with pre- purchase 
homebuying counseling, education and outreach are eligible under HOME-ARP. 

 

Oversight and Management:  
A PJ is responsible for the day-to-day management and oversight of its HOME-ARP program 
including but not limited to the following: 

• Oversight of Eligible Costs: All supportive service costs paid for by HOME-ARP must comply with 
the requirements of the Notice and Uniform Administrative Requirements at 2 CFR Part 200, 
Subpart E, Cost Principles that require costs be necessary and reasonable. 

• No Duplication of Services: PJs are responsible for establishing requirements that allow a 

196

https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?rgn=div5&node=24%3A1.1.1.1.5&se24.1.5_1100
https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?rgn=div5&node=24%3A1.1.1.1.5&se24.1.5_1111


 
HOME-ARP Policy-Concord, NC 12 
 
 

program participant to receive only the HOME-ARP services needed so there is no duplication 
of services or assistance in the use of HOME-ARP funds for supportive services. 

• Termination of Assistance: The PJ may terminate assistance to a program participant who 
violates program requirements or conditions of occupancy. 

 
D. Non-Congregate Shelter Units 
 

Overview: 

HOME-ARP funds may be used to acquire and develop non-congregate shelter (HOME-ARP NCS) for 
individuals and families that meet one of the Qualifying Populations defined in the CPD Notice: 
Requirements for the Use of Funds in the HOME-American Rescue Plan Program (“the Notice”). NCS 
provides private units or rooms as temporary shelter to individuals and families and do not require 
occupants to sign a lease or occupancy agreement. This activity may include the construction of new 
structures or the acquisition and/or rehabilitation of existing structures (such as motels, nursing 
homes, or other facilities) to be for use as HOME-ARP NCS. The Notice establishes requirements 
applicable to HOME-ARP NCS. 

Eligible Activities and Costs: 

• Eligible Activities: HOME-ARP funds may be used to acquire, rehabilitate, or construct NCS units 
to serve individuals and families Qualifying Populations. 

• Eligible Costs: HOME-ARP funds may be used for: 
o Acquisition Costs: Costs to acquire improved or unimproved real property for use as or 

development of HOME-ARP NCS. 
o Demolition Costs: Costs to demolish existing structures for the purpose of developing 

HOME-ARP NCS. 
o Development Hard Costs: Costs to rehabilitate or construct HOME-ARP NCS units to meet 

the HOME-ARP minimum habitability standards. Costs to make improvements to the project 
site, including installation of utilities or utility connections, laundry facilities, community 
facilities, on-site management, or supportive service offices. 

o Related Soft Costs: Reasonable and necessary costs incurred by the PJ, subrecipient, or 
project owner associated with financing, acquisition, and development of HOME-ARP NCS 
projects. 

o Replacement Reserve: Costs to capitalize a replacement reserve to cover reasonable and 
necessary costs of replacing major systems and their components. 

• Ineligible Costs: HOME-ARP funds may not be used to pay ongoing costs of operating HOME-
ARP NCS or to convert NCS to housing. 

 
Admission and Occupancy: 

• HOME-ARP NCS units may only be occupied by individuals or families that meet the criteria for 
one or more of the Qualifying Populations. 

• Program participants may not be charged occupancy fees or other charges to occupy a HOME-
ARP NCS unit unless the PJ determines such fees and charges are customary and reasonable and 
the charges comply with 24 CFR 578.77(b). 

• PJs are encouraged to incorporate HOME-ARP NCS units into the CE established by the 

197

https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?node=pt24.3.578&rgn=div5&se24.3.578_177


 
HOME-ARP Policy-Concord, NC 13 
 
 

CoC(s) for the area the NCS is funded to serve, if the CE complies with the requirements 
established in the HOME-ARP Notice. 

• HOME-ARP supportive services may also be provided, if needed, to Qualifying 
Populations served by the NCS. 

Project Requirements: 

• Property and Habitability Standards: At project completion, HOME-ARP NCS units and common 
areas must meet all applicable State and local codes, ordinances, and requirements and HUD’s 
Lead Safe Housing Rules at 24 CFR Part 35. Project classification as acquisition only, rehabilitation, 
or new construction is determined by the PJ’s local code requirements based on specific work to 
be performed. Projects must meet HOME-ARP NCS ongoing property standards throughout the 
restricted use period. 

• Restricted Use Period: HOME-ARP NCS projects must comply with HOME-ARP requirements 
during the restricted use period established in the HOME-ARP Notice. 

 
New Construction: 15 years 
Rehabilitation: 10 years 
Acquisition Only: 10 years 

 
• Use as NCS: The NCS may remain as HOME-ARP NCS for the restricted use period or may be used 

as NCS under the Emergency Shelter Grant (ESG) program. 
• Conversion to Housing: ARP permits HOME-ARP NCS units to be converted into permanent 

housing under the Continuum of Care (CoC) program or permanent affordable housing during 
the restricted use period in accordance with requirements established in the Notice. No HOME-
ARP funds may be used for conversion. 
o Minimum Use Period: All HOME-ARP NCS projects must be operated as NCS for a minimum 

period of time prior to conversion. The minimum use period prior to conversion varies based 
on the original HOME-ARP NCS eligible activity undertaken and the amount of funds invested 
in the project. 

o Permanent Affordable Housing: During the restricted use period, but only after the HOME-
ARP NCS minimum use period, a PJ may provide written approval to convert the project from 
HOME-ARP NCS to permanent affordable housing (e.g., affordable multifamily rental 
housing, transitional housing) in accordance with the requirements prescribed in the PJ’s 
written agreement with the HOME-ARP NCS owner. 

o CoC Permanent Housing: During the restricted use period, but only after the HOME-ARP NCS 
minimum use period has been met, a PJ may permit conversion of a HOME-ARP NCS project 
to permanent housing under 24 CFR 578.43 (acquisition) and/or 24 CFR 578.45 
(rehabilitation) of the CoC program regulations. Conversions must comply with any 
conversion requirements established in the PJ’s written agreement with the HOME- ARP NCS 
owner. If conversion is planned, the HOME-ARP NCS use restrictions must remain in place 
until the project is approved for CoC funding and the required CoC restrictions are imposed 
on the property. 

PJ Management and Oversight: 

• Project Development Due Diligence: Before awarding HOME-ARP funds to a HOME-ARP NCS 

198

https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?node=pt24.3.578&rgn=div5&se24.3.578_143
https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?node=pt24.3.578&rgn=div5&se24.3.578_145
https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?node=pt24.3.578&rgn=div5&se24.3.578_145
https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?node=pt24.3.578&rgn=div5&se24.3.578_145
https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?node=pt24.3.578&rgn=div5&se24.3.578_145


 
HOME-ARP Policy-Concord, NC 14 
 
 

project, PJs must determine that acquisition and/or development is financially feasible. The PJ is 
responsible for maintaining continued operation of the NCS and must consider whether the 
HOME-ARP NCS project has secured or has a high likelihood of securing operating funding, 
because operating costs cannot be paid with HOME-ARP. 

 
PJs must assess HOME-ARP NCS projects, including a review of information from the owner and/or 
developer that demonstrates the project’s financial feasibility throughout the restricted use period. 
 
Before committing funds, PJs should also determine whether the owner intends to continue 
operating the project as HOME-ARP NCS or emergency shelter NCS under ESG for the restricted use 
period or plans to convert the HOME-ARP NCS to housing after the minimum use period has been 
met. In such instances, the PJ should consider the physical design needs of an eventual conversion 
in its evaluation of the HOME-ARP NCS project. 

 
a. Target Households and Eligibility Requirements 

The HOME-ARP program requires t-hat funds be used to primarily benefit individuals and 
families in the following specified “qualifying populations.” Any individual or family who meets 
the criteria for these populations is eligible to receive assistance or services funded through 
HOME-ARP without meeting additional criteria (e.g., additional income criteria). All income 
calculations to meet income criteria of a qualifying population or required for income 
determinations in HOME- ARP eligible activities must use the annual income definition in 24 CFR 
5.609 in accordance with the requirements of 24 CFR 92.203(a)(1). 

A. Qualifying Populations 
 

1. Homeless, as defined in 24 CFR 91.5 Homeless (1), (2), or (3): 
 

(1) An individual or family who lacks a fixed, regular, and adequate nighttime residence, 
meaning: 

 
(i) An individual or family with a primary nighttime residence that is a public or 

private place not designed for or ordinarily used as a regular sleeping 
accommodation for human beings, including a car, park, abandoned building, bus 
or train station, airport, or camping ground; 

 
(ii) An individual or family living in a supervised publicly or privately-operated shelter 

designated to provide temporary living arrangements (including congregate 
shelters, transitional housing, and hotels and motels paid for by charitable 
organizations or by federal, state, or local government programs for low-income 
individuals); or 

 
(iii) An individual who is exiting an institution where he or she resided for 90 days or 

less and who resided in an emergency shelter or place not meant for human 
habitation immediately before entering that institution; 

 
(2) An individual or family who will imminently lose their primary nighttime residence, 

provided that: 

199

https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?rgn=div5&node=24%3A1.1.1.1.5&se24.1.5_1609
https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?rgn=div5&node=24%3A1.1.1.1.5&se24.1.5_1609
https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?SID=3eeb7d181f48fdbc8e9079bc9a771235&mc=true&node=pt24.1.92&rgn=div5&se24.1.92_1203
https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?SID=79211b6ce7a76fa29ed4acb17212c081&mc=true&node=se24.1.91_15&rgn=div8


 
HOME-ARP Policy-Concord, NC 15 
 
 

 
(i) The primary nighttime residence will be lost within 14 days of the date of 

application for homeless assistance; 
 
(ii) No subsequent residence has been identified; and 
(iii) The individual or family lacks the resources or support networks, e.g., family, 

friends, faith-based or other social networks needed to obtain other permanent 
housing; 

 
(3) Unaccompanied youth under 25 years of age, or families with children and youth, who 

do not otherwise qualify as homeless under this definition, but who: 
 

(i) Are defined as homeless under section 387 of the Runaway and Homeless Youth 
Act (42 U.S.C. 5732a), section 637 of the Head Start Act (42 U.S.C. 9832), section 
41403 of the Violence Against Women Act of 1994 (42 U.S.C. 14043e-2), section 
330(h) of the Public Health Service Act (42 U.S.C. 254b(h)), section 3 of the Food 
and Nutrition Act of 2008 (7 U.S.C. 2012), section 17(b) of the Child Nutrition Act 
of 1966 (42 U.S.C. 1786(b)), or section 725 of the McKinney-Vento Homeless 
Assistance Act (42 U.S.C. 11434a); 

 
(ii) Have not had a lease, ownership interest, or occupancy agreement in permanent 

housing at any time during the 60 days immediately preceding the date of 
application for homeless assistance; 

 
(iii) Have experienced persistent instability as measured by two moves or more 

during the 60-day period immediately preceding the date of applying for 
homeless assistance; and 

 
(iv) Can be expected to continue in such status for an extended period of time 

because of chronic disabilities, chronic physical health or mental health 
conditions, substance addiction, histories of domestic violence or childhood 
abuse (including neglect), the presence of a child or youth with a disability, or two 
or more barriers to employment, which include the lack of a high school degree 
or General Education Development (GED), illiteracy, low English proficiency, a 
history of incarceration or detention for criminal activity, and a history of unstable 
employment; 

 
2. At risk of Homelessness, as defined in 24 CFR 91.5 At risk of homelessness: 

 

(1) An individual or family who: 

(i) Has an annual income below 30 percent of median family income for the area, as 
determined by HUD; 

 
(ii) Does not have sufficient resources or support networks, e.g., family, friends, 

faith- based or other social networks, immediately available to prevent them from 
moving to an emergency shelter or another place described in paragraph (1) of 
the “Homeless” definition in this section; and 

200

https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?SID=79211b6ce7a76fa29ed4acb17212c081&mc=true&node=se24.1.91_15&rgn=div8


 
HOME-ARP Policy-Concord, NC 16 
 
 

 
(iii) Meets one of the following conditions: 

 
(A) Has moved because of economic reasons two or more times during the 60 

days immediately preceding the application for homelessness prevention 
assistance; 

 
(B) Is living in the home of another because of economic hardship; 
(C) Has been notified in writing that their right to occupy their current housing 

or living situation will be terminated within 21 days after the date of 
application for assistance; 

 
(D) Lives in a hotel or motel and the cost of the hotel or motel stay is not paid by 

charitable organizations or by federal, State, or local government programs 
for low- income individuals; 

 
(E) Lives in a single-room occupancy or efficiency apartment unit in which there 

reside more than two persons or lives in a larger housing unit in which there 
reside more than 1.5 people per room, as defined by the U.S. Census Bureau; 

 
(F) Is exiting a publicly funded institution, or system of care (such as a health-

care facility, a mental health facility, foster care or other youth facility, or 
correction program or institution); or 

 
(G) Otherwise lives in housing that has characteristics associated with instability 

and an increased risk of homelessness, as identified in the recipient's 
approved consolidated plan; 

 
(2) A child or youth who does not qualify as “homeless” under this section, but qualifies 

as “homeless” under section 387(3) of the Runaway and Homeless Youth Act (42 
U.S.C. 5732a(3)), section 637(11) of the Head Start Act (42 U.S.C. 9832(11)), section 
41403(6) of the Violence Against Women Act of 1994 (42 U.S.C. 14043e-2(6)), section 
330(h)(5)(A) of the Public Health Service Act (42 U.S.C. 254b(h)(5)(A)), section 3(l) of 
the Food and Nutrition Act of 2008 (7 U.S.C. 2012(l)), or section 17(b)(15) of the Child 
Nutrition Act of 1966 (42 U.S.C. 1786(b)(15)); or 

 
(3) A child or youth who does not qualify as “homeless” under this section but qualifies 

as “homeless” under section 725(2) of the McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act 
(42 
U.S.C. 11434a(2)), and the parent(s) or guardian(s) of that child or youth if living with 
her or him. 

 
3. Fleeing, or Attempting to Flee, Domestic Violence, Dating Violence, Sexual Assault, 

Stalking, or Human Trafficking, as defined by HUD. 
 

For HOME-ARP, this population includes any individual or family who is fleeing, or is 
attempting to flee, domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, stalking, or human 

201



 
HOME-ARP Policy-Concord, NC 17 
 
 

trafficking. This population includes cases where an individual or family reasonably 
believes that there is a threat of imminent harm from further violence due to dangerous 
or life-threatening conditions that relate to violence against the individual or a family 
member, including a child, that has either taken place within the individual’s or family’s 
primary nighttime residence or has made the individual or family afraid to return or 
remain within the same dwelling unit. In the case of sexual assault, this also includes 
cases where an individual reasonably believes there is a threat of imminent harm from 
further violence if the individual remains within the same dwelling unit that the 
individual is currently occupying, or the sexual assault occurred on the premises during 
the 90-day period preceding the date of the request for transfer. 
 
Domestic violence, which is defined in 24 CFR 5.2003 includes felony or misdemeanor 
crimes of violence committed by: 

 
1) A current or former spouse or intimate partner of the victim (the term “spouse or 

intimate partner of the victim” includes a person who is or has been in a social 
relationship of a romantic or intimate nature with the victim, as determined by the 
length of the relationship, the type of the relationship, and the frequency of 
interaction between the persons involved in the relationship); 

2) A person with whom the victim shares a child in common; 
3) A person who is cohabitating with or has cohabitated with the victim as a spouse or 

intimate partner; 
4) A person similarly situated to a spouse of the victim under the domestic or family 

violence laws of the jurisdiction receiving HOME-ARP funds; or 
5) Any other person against an adult or youth victim who is protected from that 

person's acts under the domestic or family violence laws of the jurisdiction. 
 

Dating violence which is defined in 24 CFR 5.2003 means violence committed by a 
person: 

 
1) Who is or has been in a social relationship of a romantic or intimate nature with the 

victim; and 
2) Where the existence of such a relationship shall be determined based on a 

consideration of the following factors: 
a. The length of the relationship; 
b. The type of relationship; and 
c. The frequency of interaction between the persons involved in the relationship. 

 
Sexual assault which is defined in 24 CFR 5.2003 means any nonconsensual sexual act 
proscribed by Federal, Tribal, or State law, including when the victim lacks capacity to 
consent. 
 
Stalking which is defined in 24 CFR 5.2003 means engaging in a course of conduct 
directed at a specific person that would cause a reasonable person to: 

 
1) Fear for the person’s individual safety or the safety of others; or 
2) Suffer substantial emotional distress. 

202

https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?SID=96b973025525632a03648d20e5ec8cd8&mc=true&node=se24.1.5_12003&rgn=div8
https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?SID=96b973025525632a03648d20e5ec8cd8&mc=true&node=se24.1.5_12003&rgn=div8
https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?SID=96b973025525632a03648d20e5ec8cd8&mc=true&node=se24.1.5_12003&rgn=div8
https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?SID=96b973025525632a03648d20e5ec8cd8&mc=true&node=se24.1.5_12003&rgn=div8


 
HOME-ARP Policy-Concord, NC 18 
 
 

 
Human Trafficking includes both sex and labor trafficking, as outlined in the Trafficking 
Victims Protection Act of 2000 (TVPA), as amended (22 U.S.C. 7102). These are defined 
as: 

1) Sex trafficking means the recruitment, harboring, transportation, provision, 
obtaining, patronizing, or soliciting of a person for the purpose of a commercial sex 
act, in which the commercial sex act is induced by force, fraud, or coercion, or in 
which the person induced to perform such act has not attained 18 years of age; or 

2) Labor trafficking means the recruitment, harboring, transportation, provision, or 
obtaining of a person for labor or services, through the use of force, fraud, or 
coercion for the purpose of subjection to involuntary servitude, peonage, debt 
bondage, or slavery. 

4. Other Populations where providing supportive services or assistance under section 
212(a) of NAHA (42 U.S.C. 12742(a)) would prevent the family’s homelessness or would 
serve those with the greatest risk of housing instability. HUD defines these populations 
as individuals and households who do not qualify under any of the populations above 
but meet one of the following criteria: 

 
(1) Other Families Requiring Services or Housing Assistance to Prevent Homelessness 

is defined as households (i.e., individuals and families) who have previously been 
qualified as “homeless” as defined in 24 CFR 91.5, are currently housed due to 
temporary or emergency assistance, including financial assistance, services, 
temporary rental assistance or some type of other assistance to allow the household 
to be housed, and who need additional housing assistance or supportive services to 
avoid a return to homelessness. 

 
(2)  At Greatest Risk of Housing Instability is defined as household who meets either 

paragraph (i) or (ii) below: 

(i) has annual income that is less than or equal to 30% of the area median income, 
as determined by HUD and is experiencing severe cost burden (i.e., is paying 
more than 50% of monthly household income toward housing costs); 

(ii) has annual income that is less than or equal to 50% of the area median income, 
as determined by HUD, AND meets one of the following conditions from 
paragraph (iii) of the “At risk of homelessness” definition established at 24 CFR 
91.5: 

(A) Has moved because of economic reasons two or more times during the 
60  days immediately preceding the application for homelessness prevention 
 assistance; 

(B) Is living in the home of another because of economic hardship; 

(C) Has been notified in writing that their right to occupy their current 
 housing or  living situation will be terminated within 21 days after 
the  date of application for assistance; 

(D) Lives in a hotel or motel and the cost of the hotel or motel stay is not paid 

203

http://uscode.house.gov/quicksearch/get.plx?title=42&section=12742
https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?SID=79211b6ce7a76fa29ed4acb17212c081&mc=true&node=se24.1.91_15&rgn=div8
https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?SID=79211b6ce7a76fa29ed4acb17212c081&mc=true&node=se24.1.91_15&rgn=div8
https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?SID=79211b6ce7a76fa29ed4acb17212c081&mc=true&node=se24.1.91_15&rgn=div8


 
HOME-ARP Policy-Concord, NC 19 
 
 

 by charitable organizations or by Federal, State, or local government 
 programs for low-income individuals; 

(E) Lives in a single-room occupancy or efficiency apartment unit in which 
 there reside more than two persons or lives in a larger housing unit in 
 which there  reside more than 1.5 persons reside per room, as defined 
 by the U.S. Census Bureau; 

(F) Is exiting a publicly funded institution, or system of care (such as a health-
 care facility, a mental health facility, foster care or other youth facility, or 
 correction program or institution); or 

(G) Otherwise lives in housing that has characteristics associated with 
 instability and an increased risk of homelessness, as identified in the 
 recipient's approved consolidated plan. 

 
Veterans and Families that include a Veteran Family Member that meet the criteria for 
one of the qualifying populations described above are eligible to receive HOME-ARP 
assistance. 

 
B. Use of Funds to Benefit Qualifying Populations 

ARP states that funds must be used to primarily benefit the qualifying populations through 
the four eligible activities: (1) TBRA, (2) development and support of affordable housing, (3) 
provision of supportive services; and (4) acquisition and development of non-congregate 
shelter (NCS) units. Recognizing the urgent needs of individuals and families in qualifying 
populations, HUD is requiring that: 

• 100% of HOME-ARP funds used by a PJ for TBRA, supportive services, and acquisition and 
development of non-congregate shelter units must benefit individuals and families in 
qualifying populations. Individuals and families in qualifying populations may be assisted 
by one or more of the HOME-ARP eligible activities, consistent with the requirements in 
Notice CPD-21-10. 

• Not less than 70 percent of affordable rental housing units acquired, rehabilitated, or 
constructed with HOME-ARP funds by a PJ must be occupied by households in the 
qualifying populations. Units that are not restricted to occupancy by qualifying 
populations are subject to income targeting and rent requirements established under 
the HOME-ARP Rental Program rules and are only permitted in projects with rental units 
restricted for occupancy by qualifying populations. 

 
HUD recognizes that, because many households in the qualifying populations are unable to 
pay rents sufficient to cover unit operating costs, PJs and project owners should attempt to 
obtain Federal or state project-based rental subsidies, if available. Since project-based rental 
subsidies can be difficult to secure, additional flexibility may be necessary to structure and 
underwrite projects so that they remain both affordable and financially viable. HUD is 
providing PJs with additional flexibilities in Notice CPD-21-10. to structure and underwrite 
HOME-ARP rental projects so they remain financially viable during the minimum compliance 
period. One of these flexibilities is permitting up to 30 percent of HOME-ARP rental housing 
units funded by a PJ to be occupied by low-income households. PJs are encouraged to use 

204



 
HOME-ARP Policy-Concord, NC 20 
 
 

this flexibility only when it is required to facilitate development of a HOME-ARP rental 
project. 
 
PJs must determine and document that households meet the definition of a qualifying 
population or, for the portion of HOME-ARP rental units not restricted to these populations, 
that households are low-income. 

 
C. Preferences Among Qualifying Populations, Referral Methods, and Subpopulations 

 
1. Preferences 

 

The HOME-ARP program establishes the qualifying populations that are eligible for 
assistance with HOME-ARP funds. A PJ may establish reasonable preferences among the 
qualifying populations to prioritize applicants for HOME-ARP projects or activities based 
on the PJ’s needs and priorities, as described in its HOME-ARP allocation plan. For 
example, a PJ may set a preference among qualifying individuals and families for a 
HOME-ARP non-congregate shelter for individuals and families who are homeless; 
fleeing or attempting to flee domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, stalking, 
or human trafficking; and veterans and families with a veteran family member that meet 
the criteria of one of these prior qualifying populations, consistent with its HOME-ARP 
allocation plan. 
 
The PJ must comply with all applicable fair housing, civil rights, and nondiscrimination 
requirements, including but not limited to those requirements listed in 24 CFR 5.105(a) 
when applying preferences through its referral methods. Persons who are eligible for a 
preference must have the opportunity to participate in all HOME-ARP activities of the PJ 
in which they are eligible under Notice CPD-21-10, including activities that are not 
separate or different, and cannot be excluded because of any protected characteristics 
or preferential status. 
 
Targeted assistance: If HOME-ARP funds are used for TBRA, the PJ may establish a 
preference for individuals with special needs or persons with disabilities among the 
HOME- ARP qualifying populations. Within the qualifying populations, participation may 
be limited to persons with a specific disability only, if necessary, to provide effective 
housing, aid, benefit, or services that would be as effective as those provided to others 
in accordance with 24 CFR 8.4(b)(1)(iv). The PJ may also provide a preference for a 
specific category of individuals with disabilities (e.g., persons with HIV/AIDS or chronic 
mental illness) within the qualifying populations only if the specific category is identified 
in the PJ’s HOME-ARP allocation plan as having unmet need and the preference is needed 
to narrow the gap in benefits and services received by such persons. 

 
2. Referral Methods for Projects or Activities 

 

A PJ may use the referral methods described below to administer HOME-ARP assistance to 
qualifying individuals and families. Regardless of the referral method used by the PJ, HUD 
holds the PJ responsible for determining and documenting that beneficiaries meet the 
definition of a qualifying population or, for the portion of HOME-ARP rental units not 
restricted to qualifying populations, that beneficiaries are low-income. 

205

https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?SID=96b973025525632a03648d20e5ec8cd8&mc=true&node=se24.1.5_1105&rgn=div8
https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?SID=96b973025525632a03648d20e5ec8cd8&mc=true&node=se24.1.5_1105&rgn=div8
https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?SID=96b973025525632a03648d20e5ec8cd8&mc=true&node=se24.1.8_14&rgn=div8
https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?SID=96b973025525632a03648d20e5ec8cd8&mc=true&node=se24.1.8_14&rgn=div8


 
HOME-ARP Policy-Concord, NC 21 
 
 

A PJ may use the coordinated entry or coordinated entry process (CE) of a continuum of care 
(CoC) for referrals for projects and activities as described below. Under 24 CFR 578.3, a CE is 
a centralized or coordinated process designed to coordinate program participant intake 
assessment and provision of referrals within a defined area. HUD requires each CoC to 
establish and operate a CE with the goal of increasing the efficiency of local crisis response 
systems and improving fairness and ease of access to resources, including mainstream 
resources. A PJ may permit a CoC CE to collect information and documentation required to 
determine whether an individual or family meets the criteria of a HOME-ARP qualifying 
population at any point in the coordinated entry process, (i.e., after or concurrently with the 
assessment and intake processes) as long as that information is not used to rank a person for 
HOME-ARP assistance other than as specified by the preferences or method of prioritization 
established by the PJ, in accordance with HOME-ARP requirements. If the PJ uses CE, the PJ 
cannot require HOME- ARP victim service providers to use the CE but may permit them to do 
so. 

The PJ must comply with all applicable nondiscrimination and equal opportunity laws and 
requirements listed in 24 CFR 5.105(a) and any other applicable fair housing and civil rights 
laws and requirements when using the following referral methods: 

i. Use of Expanded CE in HOME-ARP 
 

Under this referral method, a PJ may use a CE established by a CoC operating within its 
boundaries for one or more projects or activities if the CE accepts all HOME-ARP qualifying 
populations eligible for those activities or projects, in accordance with the preferences 
and prioritization, if any, established or approved by the PJ in its HOME-ARP allocation 
plan and imposed through the PJ’s written agreements. 
 
Before using a CoC’s CE, PJs should consider whether the CE covers the same service area 
as the HOME-ARP project or activity that would use that CE. At a minimum, the PJ must 
establish policies and procedures that describe the relationship of the geographic area(s) 
served by the project or activity to the geographic area(s) covered by the CoC CE and 
address how the CE will provide access and implement uniform referral processes in 
situations where a project’s geographic area(s) is broader than the geographic area(s) 
covered by the CE. 

The PJ must require a project or activity to use CE along with other referral methods (as 
provided in section ii below) or to use only a project/activity waiting list (as provided in 
section iii below) if: 

 
1. the CE does not have a sufficient number of qualifying individuals and families to refer 

to the PJ for the project or activity; 
2. the CE does not include all HOME-ARP qualifying populations; or, 
3. the CE fails to provide access and implement uniform referral processes in situations 

where a project’s geographic area(s) is broader than the geographic area(s) covered by 
the CE. 

 
ii. Use of CE with Other Referral Methods 

 
The PJ may use a CoC CE with additional referrals from outside organizations or project- 
specific waiting lists consistent with HOME-ARP requirements. If using this referral 

206

https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?SID=96b973025525632a03648d20e5ec8cd8&mc=true&node=se24.1.5_1105&rgn=div8


 
HOME-ARP Policy-Concord, NC 22 
 
 

method, the PJ must establish or approve any preferences or prioritization criteria applied 
by a CoC CE or other referral sources. The PJ may also use a waiting list to receive referrals 
from a CoC CE and other referral agencies for a project or activity, where a CoC CE or 
referral agency refers an applicant that is placed on the waiting list for that project or 
activity in chronological order. 
 
If applicable, a PJ must establish policies and procedures for applying a PJ’s established 
preferences and method of prioritization, if any, when accepting direct referrals from a 
CoC CE and other referral agencies and must document that such the policies and 
procedures were followed for each applicant served. 

 
iii. Use of a Project/Activity Waiting List 

 
The PJ may establish a waiting list for each HOME-ARP project or activity. All qualifying 
individuals or families must have access to apply for placement on the waiting list for an 
activity or project. Qualifying individuals or families on a waiting list must be accepted in 
accordance with the PJ’s preferences, if any, consistent with Notice CPD-21-10 or, if the 
PJ did not establish preferences, in chronological order, insofar as practicable. 

 
3. Limiting Eligibility to Subpopulations 

 
PJs must follow all applicable fair housing, civil rights, and nondiscrimination requirements, 
including but not limited to those requirements listed in 24 CFR 5.105(a). This includes, but 
is not limited to, the Fair Housing Act, Title VI of the Civil Rights Act, section 504 of 
Rehabilitation Act, HUD’s Equal Access Rule, and the Americans with Disabilities Act, as 
applicable. 
 
HOME-ARP rental housing or NCS may be limited to a specific subpopulation of a qualifying 
population identified in Section IV.A. of Notice CPD-21-10, so long as admission does not 
discriminate against any protected class under federal nondiscrimination laws in 24 CFR 
5.105 (e.g., the housing may be limited to homeless households and at risk of homelessness 
households, veterans and their families, victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual 
assault, stalking or human trafficking and their families). 
 
Recipients may limit admission to or provide a preference for HOME-ARP rental housing or 
NCS to households who need the specialized supportive services that are provided (e.g., 
domestic violence services). However, no otherwise eligible individuals with disabilities or 
families including an individual with a disability who may benefit from the services provided 
may be excluded on the grounds that they do not have a particular disability. 
 
Consistent with the statutory authority under ARP, HOME-ARP NCS may be converted to 
permanent housing under the CoC program or used as shelters under the ESG program, when 
all program and fair housing and nondiscrimination requirements are met. As such, HOME-
ARP NCS may need to limit eligibility to households that are homeless and/or at risk of 
homelessness if the shelter will be converted to permanent housing under the CoC program 
or used as an emergency shelter in the ESG program. 

 
 

207

https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?SID=96b973025525632a03648d20e5ec8cd8&mc=true&node=se24.1.5_1105&rgn=div8
https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?SID=96b973025525632a03648d20e5ec8cd8&mc=true&node=se24.1.5_1105&rgn=div8
https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?SID=96b973025525632a03648d20e5ec8cd8&mc=true&node=se24.1.5_1105&rgn=div8


 
HOME-ARP Policy-Concord, NC 23 
 
 

b. Period of Affordability/Restricted Use Period 
 

The period of affordability/restricted use period begins at project completion as defined in 
Notice CPD-21-10 and must be imposed for at least the following periods: 

 
a. New Construction: Newly constructed HOME-ARP NCS units must be operated as HOME-

ARP NCS units for qualifying populations for a restricted use period of 15 years, regardless 
of the amount of HOME-ARP funds invested in the project. 
 

b. Rehabilitation: HOME-ARP NCS units which receive any amount of HOME-ARP funds for 
rehabilitation but are not designated as new construction by the PJ’s state or local building 
code requirements must be operated as HOME-ARP NCS units for qualifying populations for 
a restricted use period of 10 years. 
 

c. Acquisition Only: Units acquired for use as HOME-ARP NCS that do not require 
rehabilitation for occupancy must serve the qualifying populations for a restricted use 
period of 10 years. 
 

d. PJs may impose longer restricted use periods but must require the project remain 
financially viable for the extended period. 

 
c. Compliance & Monitoring Requirements 

 
During the course of a project, monitoring shall be implemented through periodic on-site 
visits so that any problems that may occur will be resolved as soon as possible. The goal of 
monitoring is to assist and support recipients in complying with applicable State, Federal, 
and Local requirements and in implementing their project activities in a timely manner. 
 
The Consortium Members are required to maintain complete financial and program files and to 
comply with program reporting requirements. Recipients must also provide citizens with 
reasonable access to records pertaining to the use of funds. 
 
Technical Assistance Visit: A technical assistance visit is an informal visit. The intent of this 
meeting is to share information that will enable the Consortium Members to meet the various 
State and Federal requirements for their grant. A technical assistance visit could consist of 
explanations of project start-up requirements and the establishment of program files.  The 
Consortium Members must demonstrate compliance with applicable regulations and document 
this by maintaining accurate and complete records and files.  The filing system must provide a 
historical account of The Consortium Members’ activities, be easy to use, and centrally located. 
 
Monitoring Visit: A monitoring visit is more formal than a technical assistance visit.  The 
monitoring visit is utilized to determine if the project is being conducted in compliance with 
applicable Federal and State laws and requirements.  The review also determines The 
Consortium Members’ ability to implement the program in a timely manner. 
 

208



 
HOME-ARP Policy-Concord, NC 24 
 
 

The monitoring visit consists of a review of project files, records and documentation, and may 
include a visit to the project site. The Consortium Members should have all records, files, and 
documentation available for review at the monitoring visit. If other public agencies, attorneys, 
or consultants have assisted in program implementations, these records must be available for 
review at the locality for the monitoring visit. Failure to produce such records upon request 
will result in issuance of either a program “concern” or “finding” of non-compliance, and will 
jeopardize the organization’s eligibility for future HOME project funding. The issuance of a 
program “concern” or “finding” may, at the discretion of the City of Concord’s staff, result in 
recapture of funds provided by the Cabarrus/Iredell/Rowan HOME Consortium. 

 
Project Completion Deadline and Terminated Projects 
 
As required in 24 CFR §92.205(e), the City of Concord’s staff must be able to execute a written 
agreement with the Consortium Members for the project within 12 months of July 1 of the year 
in which funding is awarded. The Consortium Members must typically be able to complete the 
project and expend all funds within two (2) years of the execution of the written agreement. 
 
When HOME funds are expended for projects that are terminated before completion, for 
whatever reason, the HOME funds that have been expended are ineligible and must be repaid. 
The Consortium Members must terminate any project that does not meet the HOME 
requirements for affordable housing (i.e., affordability provisions, income targeting, property 
standards, etc.) and repay HOME funds that are expended for the project. 
 
Corrective and Remedial Actions 
 

The inability to properly execute the terms of the contract and/or maintain records in the 
prescribed manner may result in a finding that the Consortium Member has failed to meet the 
applicable requirement of the contract. Remedial actions may include technical assistance to 
bring the project into compliance, or recapture of HOME funds. 
 
HOME-assisted Development Projects must meet the following standards: 
 
• New construction: New construction is required to meet all state and local codes and 

ordinances plus the Model Energy Code and all Handicapped Accessibility requirements. 
While new single-family homes are not required to comply with Section 504 accessibility 
standards, if the applicant for the housing is disabled, the home must meet their accessibility 
needs. Where it is practical to do so, new single-family homes should be constructed to be 
accessed by a person with mobility impairments and adaptable to the needs of future 
residents seeking to age in place. New construction of rental housing must meet HOME site 
and neighborhood standards, as described below. 

 
• Acquisition (no rehabilitation): Acquired housing must meet applicable state and local 

housing quality standards, if relevant standards exist, including lead-based paint hazard 
requirements. If none exist, then acquired housing must comply with Section 8 Housing 
Quality Standards. 
 

Construction contracts and construction documents must be provided in adequate detail and 

209



 
HOME-ARP Policy-Concord, NC 25 
 
 

reviewed by The Consortium Members to ensure that the documents address minimum housing 
and property standards, as well as city and/or state code requirements. Applicants must also 
provide written cost estimates prior to execution of construction contracts to ensure that costs 
are reasonable. 
 

VI. Administration & Planning 
 
The PJ may expend, for payment of reasonable administrative and planning costs, up to 15 percent of 
its HOME-ARP allocation. Reasonable administrative and planning costs for the HOME-ARP program 
include: 

1. Reasonable costs of overall HOME-ARP program management, coordination, monitoring, and 
evaluation. Such HOME-ARP costs include, but are not limited to, necessary expenditures for the 
following: 

 
a. Salaries, wages, and related costs of the PJ’s staff. If a PJ charges costs to this category, the PJ 

may either include the entire salary and related costs allocable to the HOME-ARP program of 
each person whose primary responsibilities with regard to the HOME-ARP program involves 
program administration assignments, or the prorated share of the salary, wages, and related 
costs of each person whose job includes any program administrative assignments. A PJ may 
only use one of these two methods. Program administration includes: 

i. Developing systems and schedules for complying with HOME-ARP program 
requirements, including systems to prevent a duplication of benefits among 
beneficiaries of HOME-ARP activities; 

ii. Developing interagency agreements and agreements with entities receiving HOME-
ARP funds; 

iii. Monitoring HOME-ARP activities for progress and compliance with HOME- ARP 
program requirements; 

iv. Preparing HOME-ARP reports and other documents related to the HOME-ARP 
program for submission to HUD; 

v. Coordinating the resolution of audit and monitoring findings on HOME-ARP activities; 
vi. Evaluating HOME-ARP program results against stated objectives in the HOME- 

ARP allocation plan, and 
vii. Managing or supervising persons whose primary responsibilities with regard to the 

HOME-ARP program include such assignments as those described above. 
 

b. Travel costs incurred for official business in carrying out the HOME-ARP program. 
 

c. Administrative services performed under third party contracts or agreements, including such 
services as general legal services, accounting services, and audit services. 

 
d. Other costs for goods and services required for administering the HOME-ARP program, such 

as: rental or purchase of equipment, insurance, information systems necessary to track and 
implement beneficiaries of HOME-ARP activities in accordance with the requirements of 
Notice CPD-21-10, utilities, office supplies, and rental and maintenance (but not purchase) of 
office space. 

 
e. Costs of administering HOME-ARP TBRA and HOME-ARP supportive services 

210



 
HOME-ARP Policy-Concord, NC 26 
 
 

programs. 
 

2. Staff and overhead costs of the PJ directly related to carrying out a HOME-ARP project, in 
accordance with 24 CFR 92.207(b). 

 
3. The provision of information and other resources to residents and citizen organizations 

participating in the planning, implementation, or assessment of projects being assisted with 
HOME-ARP funds. 

 
4. Activities to affirmatively further fair housing (AFFH) in accordance with 24 CFR 5.151 and the PJ’s 

certification as required under Notice CPD-21-10 and 24 CFR 5.152. The AFFH definition in HUD’s 
Interim Final Rule entitled, “Restoring Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing Definitions and 
Certifications” (86 FR 30779, June 10, 2021), as amended, at 24 CFR 5.151, and the AFFH 
certification requirement, at 24 CFR 5.152, available at 
https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2021/06/10/2021-12114/restoring-affirmatively- 
furthering-fair-housing-definitions-and-certifications. 

 
5. Indirect costs may be charged to the HOME-ARP program under a cost allocation plan prepared in 

accordance with 2 CFR part 200, subpart E, as amended. 
 

6. Preparation of the HOME-ARP allocation plan as required in Notice CPD-21-10. Preparation 
includes the costs of public hearing, consultations, and publications. 

 
7. Costs of complying with the applicable Federal requirements in 24 CFR part 92, subpart H. Project-

specific environmental review costs may be charged as administrative or project costs in 
accordance with 24 CFR 92.206(d)(8) and is at the discretion of the PJ. 

 

Funds available under the HOME-ARP appropriation for administration and planning may not be used 
to pay costs attributable to the regular HOME Program. 

 
PJs may provide all or a portion of its HOME-ARP administrative funds to subrecipients and 
contractors that are administering activities on behalf of the PJ (e.g., CoC entity, other non- Federal 
entity), in accordance with the requirements in Notice CPD-21-10. However, from the obligation date 
of the HOME-ARP funds in the HOME-ARP Grant Agreement and prior to HUD’s acceptance of the 
PJ’s HOME-ARP allocation plan, a subrecipient or contractor to the PJ may only incur and expend 
HOME-ARP funds for eligible administrative and planning costs if the subrecipient or contractor is 
responsible for the use of the PJ’s entire HOME-ARP award and has executed a HOME-ARP written 
agreement that complies with 24 CFR 92.504 and Notice CPD-21-10. The PJ must also identify the 
subrecipient or contractor administering the PJ’s entire HOME-ARP award and describe the 
subrecipient or contractor’s responsibilities in the PJ’s HOME-ARP allocation plan. 

 
All costs must comply with the Cost Principles contained in subpart E of the Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards at 2 CFR part 200, as 
amended (Uniform Administrative Requirements). 

 

Once HUD obligates the HOME-ARP funds, as described in Section VIII.C.2 of Notice CPD-21-10, the 
PJ may incur and expend up to 5 percent of its HOME-ARP allocation on eligible administrative and 

211

https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?SID=3eeb7d181f48fdbc8e9079bc9a771235&mc=true&node=pt24.1.92&rgn=div5&se24.1.92_1207
https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx
https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx
https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx
https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?node=sp2.1.200.e&rgn=div6
https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?SID=5951fd96884f1120f9a23c27542967fd&mc=true&node=pt24.1.92&rgn=div5&sp24.1.92.h
https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?SID=5951fd96884f1120f9a23c27542967fd&mc=true&node=pt24.1.92&rgn=div5&se24.1.92_1206
https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/retrieveECFR?gp&SID=447222f257ec8575d265972d10c04398&mc=true&n=pt24.1.92&r=PART&ty=HTML&se24.1.92_1504


 
HOME-ARP Policy-Concord, NC 27 
 
 

planning costs, as described in this section and 24 CFR 92.207. Before HUD’s acceptance of the PJ’s 
HOME-ARP allocation plan, the PJ is only permitted to incur and expend HOME-ARP funds on eligible 
administrative and planning costs. 

 
If the PJ does not submit a HOME-ARP allocation plan or if the PJ’s plan is not accepted within a 
reasonable period of time, as determined by HUD, all HOME-ARP administrative and planning costs 
incurred by the PJ will be ineligible costs and any HOME-ARP funds expended by the PJ must be repaid 
to the PJ’s HOME Investment Trust Fund Treasury account, in accordance with guidance issued by 
HUD. Moreover, if the PJ’s HOME-ARP allocation plan does not identify or include a description of the 
responsibilities of the subrecipient or contractor that is responsible for the PJ’s entire HOME-ARP 
award, if applicable, the administrative and planning costs incurred or expended by the subrecipient 
or contractor will also be ineligible and any HOME-ARP funds expended by the PJ’s subrecipient or 
contractor must be repaid to the PJ’s HOME Investment Trust Fund Treasury account, in accordance 
with guidance from HUD. 
 
 

VII. Overarching program regulations and requirements 
 

Fair Housing and Civil Rights 
 
Agencies must comply with federal, State, and local fair housing and civil rights laws, regulations, and 
Executive Orders, including Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended (42 U.S.C. 2000d et seq); 
the Fair Housing Act (42 U.S.C. 3601-3602); Equal Opportunity in Housing (Executive Order 11063, as 
amended by Executive Order 12259); and the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended (42 U.S. C. 
6101-6107). 
 
Discrimination in the provision of housing is prohibited on the basis of a protected class; federal and 
North Carolina State protected classes include: 
 

• Race 
• Color 
• National Origin 
• Religion 
• Disability 
• Sex 
• Familial Status 

 
Affirmative Marketing and Outreach 
 
All Consortium Members must undertake outreach efforts in accordance with state and federal fair 
lending regulations to assure nondiscriminatory treatment, outreach, and access to the Program. 
 
The Consortium Members must inform potential applicants of the program via flyers, public notices, 
local media articles, or meetings with Subrecipient staff. The marketing information will include basic 
eligibility requirements, a general description of the Program, and the appropriate Fair Housing logo. 
 
The Consortium Members’ marketing approach must address: (1) how the program will be announced 
(i.e., which media and other sources); (2) where applications will be taken (i.e., at one site or more); (3) 

212

https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?SID=29cf6b803e9a0ccd69fc80dbc117dbf3&mc=true&node=se24.1.92_1207&rgn=div8


 
HOME-ARP Policy-Concord, NC 28 
 
 

when applications will be accepted (i.e., daily, during normal working hours, or extended hours for a 
specified period); and (4) the method for taking applications (i.e., in person, by mail). 

 
The Consortium Members must maintain a file that contains all marketing efforts (i.e., copies of 
newspaper ads, memos of phone calls, copies of letter, etc.) The records, which help assess the results 
of these actions, must be available for inspection by the Consortium. 
The Consortium Members also has an obligation to assure that information about the program reaches 
the broadest possible range of potentially qualified applicants. 
 
To further fair housing objectives, The Consortium Members should identify those households that have 
been determined to be “least likely to apply,” and determine what special outreach activities, including 
placing advertising in minority-specific media, will ensure that this population is fully informed about 
the program. The Consortium Members should work with the Consortium to assure that all marketing 
initiatives and materials adequately reflect the available assistance types. 
 
Conflict of Interest 
 
In the procurement of property and services by the Consortium Members, the conflict of interest 
provisions in 24 CFR 85.36 and 24 CFR 84.42, respectively, apply. Any person who exercises or has 
exercised any functions or responsibilities 

with respect to activities assisted with HOME funds or who are in a position to participate in a decision-
making process or gain inside information with regard to these activities, may not have an interest in 
any contract or agreement with respect thereto, or the proceeds there under, either for themselves or 
those with whom they have family or business ties, during their tenure or for one year thereafter. 
Conflict of interest provisions apply to any person who is an employee, agent, consultant, officer, board 
member, loan committee member, elected official or appointed official of the participating jurisdiction 
or the Consortium Member that is receiving HOME funds. 
 
The Consortium Members shall ensure that officers, employees, agents or consultants will not occupy 
any HOME assisted affordable housing units in the project. This provision does not apply to an individual 
who receives HOME funds to acquire or rehabilitate his or her principal residence or to an employee or 
agent of the CHDO who occupies a housing unit as the project manager or maintenance worker. 
 
As lead agency for the Consortium, the City of Concord may provide an exception to the provisions listed 
above on a case-by-case basis when the Consortium Members determine that the exception will serve 
to further the purposes of the HOME program and the effective and efficient administration of the 
Consortium Member’s HOME-assisted project. For the City and the Consortium Members to provide 
this exception, The Consortium Members must make a written request and the City and the Consortium 
Members will make its determination based on the following factors: 

 
a. Whether the person receiving the benefit is a member of a group or class of low-income persons 

intended to be the beneficiaries of the assisted housing, and the exception will permit such 
person to receive generally the same interests or benefits as are being made available or 
provided to the group; 

b. Whether the person has withdrawn from his or her functions or responsibilities, or the decision-
making process with respect to the specific assisted housing in question; 

c. Whether the tenant protection requirements of Section 92.53 are being observed; 
d. Whether the affirmative marketing requirements of Section 92.351 are being observed and 

213



 
HOME-ARP Policy-Concord, NC 29 
 
 

followed; and 
e. Any other factor relevant to the City and the Consortium’s determination, including the timing 

of the requested exception. 
 

The Consortium Members must maintain a written code of standards of conduct that will govern the 
performance of its officers, employees, or agents engaged in the award and administration of contracts 
funded with Federal dollars. 
 
Program Accessibility 
 
Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 requires that a HOME-funded activity, when viewed in its 
entirety, is usable and accessible to persons with disabilities. The obligation to provide accessible units, 
in accordance with 24 CFR 8.22 and 8.23 is broader and includes the following: 
 
All program activities, including public hearings, homebuyer briefings, counseling sessions, and 
meetings should be held in locations that are accessible to persons with disabilities. 
 
Information about all programs and activities should be disseminated in a manner that is accessible to 
persons with disabilities. Auxiliary aids and special communication systems should be used for program 
outreach, public hearings related to housing programs, and other program activities. 
 
Reasonable steps should be taken to provide information about available accessible units to eligible 
persons with disabilities. Homebuyer projects are not required to produce accessible units but 
reasonable accommodations during the application process are required for any buyers with 
accessibility needs. Program advertising should acknowledge that the program will work with 
households with accessibility needs. Should a successful homebuyer applicant have a need for a unit 
with an accessible design, the program must accommodate those needs. 
 
Information about the accessibility requirements of HOME-funded multifamily housing is included in 
the rental housing chapter of this manual. 
 
Equal Opportunity 
 
Federally-funded housing projects/programs are subject to Executive Order 11246, as amended, which 
prohibits agencies from discriminating against employees or applicants for employment on the basis of 
race, color, religion, national origin, citizenship status, unfair documentary practices regarding 
employment verification, sex, age, and disability.  These requirements are included in all contracts with 
Agencies. 
• Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Act of 1968 (Section 3): 

The purpose of Section 3 is to ensure that employment and other economic opportunities 
generated by HUD financial assistance is directed to low- and very low-income persons to the 
greatest extend feasible. In accordance with the Section 3 Plan, solicitation of Section 3 businesses 
is required during procurement for any construction contract of $100,000 or more and is 
encouraged for contracts of lesser amounts.  The Section 3 Plan also requires 
contractors/subcontractors to follow a specific hiring plan in order to target Section 3 residents. 

• Women- and Minority-Owned Business Enterprises: 
The Consortium Members are required to take affirmative actions to allow Women- and Minority-
Owned Business Enterprises (WMBE) to benefit from federal funds.  The Consortium Members 
passes this requirement on to funded agencies, which must make a good faith effort to employ 

214



 
HOME-ARP Policy-Concord, NC 30 
 
 

WMBE firms when implementing projects/programs.  These efforts can include advertising for 
professional services or construction contractors in minority publications, notifying WMBE firms 
directly of employment opportunities, or requiring that contractors hire WMBE subcontractors.  
Solicitation of MBE firms is required during procurement for any construction contract of $50,000 
or more. 

 
Non-Discrimination 
 
No person shall be excluded from participation in, denied the benefit of, or be subject to discrimination 
under any program or activity funded in whole or in part with HOME funds on the basis of religion or 
religious affiliation, age, race, color, creed, gender, sexual orientation, marital status, familial status, 
physical or mental disability, gender identity or expression of a person, national origin, ancestry, military 
status, or other arbitrary cause. 
 
Reasonable Accommodations for Persons with Disabilities 
 
Employers receiving HOME funds may not discriminate against prospective or current employees with 
disabilities. Employers must remove physical and administrative barriers to employment and make 
reasonable accommodations for employees with known disabilities. 
 
If a subrecipient has 15 or more employees, it must designate a Section 504 Coordinator and notify 
program participants and employees of its non-discrimination policies. 
 
Business Enterprises Owned by Minorities, Women and Disadvantaged Business Enterprises 
 
The Cabarrus/Iredell/Rowan HOME Consortium encourages participation by business enterprises 
owned by minorities and women, and disadvantaged business enterprises (M/W/D-BE). Contracts for 
the procurement of services should be awarded to the maximum extent possible to M/W/D-BE. Section 
24 CFR 84.44(b) of the Uniform Administrative Requirements outlines recommended steps for achieving 
participation goals. 
 
The Uniform Act and Section 104 (d) 
 
HOME-assisted projects are subject to the Uniform Relocation and Assistance and Real Property 
Acquisition Polices Act of 1970, as amended (URA) (42 U.S.C. 4601-4655), and the government wide 
implementing regulations issued by the Federal Highway Administration at 49 CFR part 24. In addition, 
projects that include demolition or conversion of low-income housing are subject to Section 104(d) (also 
called the Barney Frank amendment). 
 
Acquisition 
The URA requirements apply to any and all real property acquisition for a project that receives any 
amount of HOME funding, regardless of whether the funds are used to purchase the property or for 
other project costs. The regulations may apply to any acquisition for which a purchase offer was made 
at any time after the date the applicant first intended to apply for HOME funds for the project. 
 
Agencies are exempt from complying with most acquisition requirement of the Uniform Act (Subpart B) 
only if an identified site can be acquired “voluntarily” in accordance with Section 49 CFR § 24.101 of 
Subpart B.  

215



 
HOME-ARP Policy-Concord, NC 31 
 
 

 
A “voluntary” acquisition requires the Agency (buyer) to inform the seller, prior to executing an 
agreement to purchase: 
- That it does not have the power of eminent domain (buyers with eminent domain authority, must 

agree not to use it, and must not have specific site needs); 
- That it will not be able to purchase the property if negotiations fail to result in an amicable 

agreement; and 
- Of the buyer’s estimate of fair market value (FMV) of the property to be acquired. 
 
Estimating Fair Market Value: 
An appraisal is not required to establish the FMV of a property, but there must be documentation that 
includes an explanation, with reasonable evidence, of the basis for the estimate. A Comparative Market 
Analysis is acceptable for this purpose. 
 
Section 104(d) 
Section 104(d) of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as amended (104(d)) 
requirements apply when HOME assistance is used for a project involving demolition or conversion. 
 
Section 104(d) has two distinct components: 

 
- One for One Replacement: Requires one-for-one replacement of lower-income dwelling units that 

are demolished or converted to another use.  For Section 104(d) purposes, “conversion” is defined 
as: Altering a housing unit that would rent at or below the fair market rent (FMR) so that it is used 
for non-housing purposes, rents for above the FMR or is used as an emergency shelter. 

- Relocation of Lower-Income Tenants: Requires relocation assistance for displaced lower-income 
residential tenants and does not provide protection or assistance for persons with incomes above 
the Section 8 Low Income Limit. 

 
Housing Replacement 
The City of Concord has adopted a “Residential Anti-displacement and Relocation Assistance Plan”, 
which addresses the Section 104(d) requirement for one-for-one replacement of low- income housing 
units: 

 
Consortium Members may replace all occupied and vacant occupiable low- and moderate- income 
dwelling units demolished or converted to a use other than as low- and moderate- income housing as 
a direct result of activities assisted with HOME funds. 
 
Replacement units do not need to be provided by the same fund recipient whose project resulted in 
the housing loss. Consortium Members will count any net gain in units achieved through the 
investment of HOME funds as having met the one-for-one replacement requirement. 

 
Relocation 
The Cabarrus/Iredell/Rowan HOME Consortium strongly discourages the permanent displacement of 
low-income households by project and programs. The URA stipulates the content and timing of notices 
for residents of properties to be acquired with HOME funds. If residents will be displaced by the project, 
they must receive moving cost reimbursement, relocation assistance payments, and relocation 
assistance services. If an otherwise feasible and fundable project does necessitate permanent or 
temporary displacement and relocation, the relocation must be carried out in strict compliance with the 

216



 
HOME-ARP Policy-Concord, NC 32 
 
 

URA. Prior to selection for funding, the Agency must demonstrate that: 
 

- Both personnel and budget resources are available to implement relocation, and 
- Such projects must have qualified County-approved relocation personnel as part of the 

development team. 
 

A pre-application conference with staff is required for any project which may involve relocation to 
ensure that the Agency understands the URA requirements and that proper relocation notices are given. 
 
No relocation may be initiated prior to funding award except with the prior written approval of the 
Consortium Member. If relocation is required, a detailed Relocation Plan must be submitted with an 
application for HOME funds.  
 
Temporary Relocation 
All conditions of temporary relocation must be reasonable and tenant shall be provided with 
reimbursement for all reasonable out-of-pocket expenses incurred in connection with temporary 
relocation. 
 
Tenant shall receive advisory services, including written notice of the date and approximate duration of 
the temporary relocation, address of suitable temporary unit, and the terms and conditions under which 
the tenant may lease and occupy the building/complex upon completion of the project. 
 
Temporary relocation may not extend beyond one year before the person is returned to his or her 
previous unit or location. Any residential tenant who has been temporarily relocated for more than one 
(1) year must be offered all permanent relocation assistance which may not be reduced by the amount 
of any temporary relocation assistance previously provided. 
 
If the project requires tenants to be temporarily relocated off site, a detailed Temporary Relocation 
Plan is required.  
 
Financial Management 

The Consortium Members that receive HUD funds must abide by the financial management 
requirements of the Federal Office of Management and Budgets found at 2 CFR part 200. 
 
Audit Requirements 
 
The Consortium Members must follow OMB Uniform Guidance: Cost Principles, Audit, and 
Administrative Requirements for Federal Awards. 
 
IDIS Drawdowns 
 
A separation of duties has been established by the Cabarrus/Iredell/Rowan HOME Consortium, the City 
of Concord’s Finance Department, and the City of Concord as the designated Lead Entity for the 
Consortium, in order to provide proper checks and balances from grant set-up, project and activity set-
up, sub-funding, sub-granting and drawdown process in the following manner: 

 
 

217



 
HOME-ARP Policy-Concord, NC 33 
 
 

IDIS Administrator Procedures: 
• The City of Concord submits completed IDIS Access Request Forms in the IDIS system to gain 

approval for access by function for all Consortium Members’ projects. 
• The City of Concord also maintains drawdown request vouchers with copies of deposit 

transactions and payment disbursement documentation. 
Program Income 

Some housing activities generate program income, which must be disbursed before seeking 
reimbursement/draw down of additional HOME funds. Program income is defined as “gross income 
received by the Consortium Members, or an agency, which was generated from the use of HOME funds 
or HOME matching contributions.” Income generated by housing projects or programs would typically 
fall into one of the following categories: 
 
• Income from the use or rental of HOME-assisted real property owned by The Consortium 

Members, or a public or nonprofit agency selected by The Consortium Members to operate a 
portion of its housing program minus the costs of generating the income.   

• Payments of principal and/or interest on loans made with HOME funds. 
• Proceeds from the sale of real property that was purchased or rehabilitated with HOME funds. 

 
For example, funds for housing are often provided as low-interest or deferred payment loans. The loan 
repayments are considered program income. The federal regulations require that: 

 
• Program income be spent before drawing funds from the Consortium’s HOME account; 
• Program income be spent only for eligible activities; and 
• Written agreements with agencies that will generate program income must specify whether 

program income must be returned to the Consortium’s HOME account or be used by the 
Consortium Members for an eligible activity. 

 
Program Income does not include gross income from the use, rental, or sale of real property received 
by the project owner, developer, or sponsor, unless the funds are paid by the project owner, developer, 
or sponsor to the Consortium’s HOME account or the Consortium Members. The Consortium Members 
are required to track and report program income that is generated during each fiscal year to the City of 
Concord’s staff. 

 
Procurement 
 
All projects must comply with the most restrictive of the applicable federal or state, competitive 
procurement regulations or costs may not be reimbursable. 
 
Federal procurement requirements at 2 CFR Part 200 apply to all non-profit organizations action as a 
Subrecipient and to all public entities.  The Owners/Sponsors/Developers are not subject to the federal 
procurement requirements.  
 
Nonprofit organizations receiving HOME funds must comply with the procurement requirements of 24 
CFR Part 84, with the exception of currently certified CHDOs undertaking CHDO-eligible projects (as 
stated in HUD CPD Notice 97-11). 

 
Procurement requirements are provided in the Consortium Members’ funding notices and written 

218



 
HOME-ARP Policy-Concord, NC 34 
 
 

agreements.  The Consortium Members are encouraged to contact the City of Concord’s staff if they 
have any questions regarding the procurement requirements that apply to a specific project.  The 
Consortium Members will be expected to provide a copy of their procurement policies and procedures 
that meet applicable federal and state requirements. If a project includes any construction or 
rehabilitation, a required component of a completed application for funding will be a written 
description of how the Agency intends to procure prime or general contractors, subcontractors, 
architects, engineers, consultants, etc. in a competitive manner. 
 
For construction or facility improvement projects exceeding $100,000, minimum Federal requirements 
located in 24 CFR 85.36 or 84.48(c)) for bid guarantees, performance bonds, and payment bonds must 
be met.  Prior to publishing a Notice of Bid Opening in the local newspapers, as a minimum 
requirement, and through other approved forms of communication mediums, each Consortium 
Member must review and approve all bid documents to ensure that all federal, state, and program 
requirements are included.   
 
Only contractors and subcontractors that are not federally barred or suspended and have current State 
of North Carolina business licenses with current Workers’ Compensation accounts, including proper 
insurance and bonding, can work on capital construction projects.  The Consortium Members will check 
the status of the general contractor and all subcontractors for federal debarment and suspension, 
licensing, insurance, bonding, and Workers’ Compensation accounts for capital construction projects.  
The Consortium Members also are responsible for checking the licensing and debarment status for 
owner-occupied housing rehabilitation and minor home repair clients. 
 
The Cabarrus/Iredell/Rowan HOME Consortium’s subrecipients are subject to the procurement 
requirements of 24 CFR parts 84 and 85 as well as state and local laws and regulations.  Subrecipients 
will be monitored annually to ensure compliance with these regulations.  Owners and developers, 
including CHDO’s, are not subject to federal procurement requirements. 

 
Contractor Procurement 
 
The Consortium Members must require all subrecipients to obtain a minimum of two (2) bids on 
planned repairs, based on the preliminary work write-up prepared by the municipality, county code 
enforcement or the Consortium Members’ inspector. Bids are to be returned on the specific due date. 
Subrecipient staff will record the total amount of the bid and the date and time the bid was received. 
The subrecipient will evaluate the bid documents to determine which bids are eligible. Bids are 
considered eligible when the following conditions are met: 
• The submitting contractor currently meets all program requirements and is not debarred or 

suspended from participating in the HOME Owner-Occupied Rehabilitation Program. 
• The contractor is not currently on probation, suspended or debarred by the state licensure 

board. 
• The total dollar amount of the bid is within 10% of the total cost listed on the initial work write-

up prepared for or by the Consortium Member. 
 

Environmental Review 
 
Prior to entering into a contract with a Consortium Member, the City of Concord, as the Lead Entity for 
the Consortium, will review and approve a federal Environmental Review in compliance with the 

219



 
HOME-ARP Policy-Concord, NC 35 
 
 

National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) and other related federal and state environmental laws. No 
choice-limiting activities may be undertaken by the applicant for HOME funds during the time between 
the submission of the application and the completion of the Environmental Review (prior to the receipt 
by the Consortium Member and the City of Concord of the Authority to Use Grant Funds from HUD). 
 
Tenant-Based Rental Assistance is categorically excluded and not subject to §58.5 authorities. Each 
Consortium Member will document this determination, provide a copy of the Environmental Review 
Record to the City of Concord’s staff for review and approval, and keep the document in the 
Environmental Review Records files. 
 

Phase 1 Environmental Site Assessment 
 
Development projects must provide a Phase 1 Environmental Site Assessment (ESA) at the time of 
application to ensure that any environmental hazards are recognized and mitigated. The Phase I 
ESA should be prepared in accordance with the requirements of ASTM E-1527 “Standard Practice 
for Environmental Site Assessments, Phase I Environmental Site Assessment Process,” and must 
clearly document compliance with 24 CFR 58.5(i)(2) or 50.3(i). Each assessment will include limited 
surveys of lead-based paint, asbestos, mold, and wetlands as applicable. If any hazards are 
identified, they will be abated or mitigated before occupancy. The Phase I ESA must be dated six 
months or less from the due date of the Consortium application. If, at the time that the Consortium 
Member undertakes the federal Environmental Review, the Phase I ESA is more than six months 
old, an update will be required. If the Phase I ESA is more than a year old at the time that the 
Consortium Member undertakes the federal Environmental Review, a new Phase I ESA must be 
completed. Development projects must also meet state requirements under the State 
Environmental Policy Act (SEPA) and federal environmental review requirements under the 
National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) as applicable. 

 
Public Records 
 
Materials and information submitted to or received by the Consortium Members are subject to public 
disclosure unless otherwise exempt from disclosure under the North Carolina General Assembly’s 
G.S.§132.  No assurances can be given that any materials provided can be protected from public review 
and copying. 
 
Recordkeeping and Retention of Records 
 
Records related to HOME-funded projects and programs must be retained for at least five (5) years. For 
rental and homeownership development projects, general records must be kept for five (5) years after 
project completion, and tenant/homeowner data must be maintained for the most recent five (5) years, 
until five years after the conclusion of the affordability period. 
 

Additional General Policies and Procedures for Development Projects 
 
The remaining provisions in this chapter apply to HOME-funded rental housing development, rental 
housing acquisition (no rehabilitation), and homebuyer development projects, collectively referred to 
as “Development Projects.” 

220



 
HOME-ARP Policy-Concord, NC 36 
 
 

 
Appraisal and Real Property Acquisition 
 
If the applicant is proposing the purchase of real property and/or building(s), a full appraisal must 
support the purchase price. Appraisals and acquisition must comply with the requirements of the 
Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 (URA), as amended. 
The URA generally applies to federally- funded projects involving acquisition, rehabilitation, or 
demolition, and requires compliance with the following real property acquisition process, unless the 
project meets the requirements of 49 CFR 24.101(b)(1)-(5). 
 
Applicants must follow the procedures for a Voluntary Acquisition under the URA. Prior to making an 
offer for the property, the applicant must, in writing, advise the owner of the property that federal 
funds may be involved in the purchase of the property, let the owner know that the applicant does not 
have the power of eminent domain and that it will be unable to acquire the property if negotiations 
fail to result in agreement, and provide the owner with what it currently believes to be the market 
value of the property. If the applicant has not yet completed an appraisal of the property at the time 
of the offer, the statement of market value provided to the seller must have a reasonable basis (e.g., 
assessed value). 
 
The application for HOME funding must include a current appraisal. An appraisal must be dated no 
more than 12 months prior to the application due date. A letter updating an appraisal completed more 
than 12 months prior to the application due date will be accepted. The appraisal must be conducted 
by someone with a current general appraisal certificate in the State of North Carolina. 
 
Minimum Property Standards 
 
New Construction Projects 
 
All new construction projects within the Consortium service areas will meet local codes, ordinances 
and zoning requirements for the municipality or county in which the project is located. Projects also 
must comply with the N.C. State Building Codes that are applicable to new construction, residential, 
and existing structures, which the Cabarrus/Iredell/Rowan HOME Consortium has adopted as its 
construction performance standards. Housing must meet all applicable requirements upon project 
completion. 
All new construction HOME-assisted projects will also meet the requirements described below: 

 
• Accessibility. All housing will meet the accessibility requirements of 24 CFR part 8, which 

implements Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. 794), and Titles II and III of the 
Americans with Disabilities Act (42 U.S.C. 12131-12189) implemented at 28 CFR parts 35 and 36, 
as applicable. Covered multi-family dwellings, as defined at 24 CFR 100.201, must also meet the 
design and construction requirements at 24 CFR 100.205, which implements the Fair Housing Act 
(42 U.S.C. 3601-3619). 
 

• Disaster mitigation. Where relevant, housing must be constructed to mitigate the impact of 
potential disasters (e.g., earthquakes, hurricanes, flooding, and wildfires), in accordance with 
municipal, county, State ICC or IFC codes, or such other requirements as HUD may establish. 

221



 
HOME-ARP Policy-Concord, NC 37 
 
 

 
• Written cost estimates, construction contracts and construction documents.  The 

Cabarrus/Iredell/Rowan HOME Consortium will ensure that construction contracts and 
construction documents describe the work to be undertaken in adequate detail to conduct 
inspections.  The Cabarrus/Iredell/Rowan HOME Consortium Members must review and approve 
written cost estimates for construction and determine that costs are reasonable. 

• Construction progress inspections. The Consortium Members conduct progress and final 
inspections of construction to ensure that work is done in accordance with the applicable codes, 
the construction contract, and construction documents (draw requests). 

 
Rehabilitation Projects 
 
For existing single-family rental properties assisted with the Consortium Members’ HOME funds, the 
unit must meet local codes, ordinances and zoning requirements for the municipality or county in which 
the project is located. Projects must also comply with the N.C. Building Code and the Concord 
Development Ordinance, and must address the major systems of the unit in the following manner: 
 
Structural support 

 
• If the initial inspection by the Consortium Members or the approved designee shows any evidence 

of foundation, sill, joist or other structural support damage these items must be corrected as part 
of the initial rehabilitation of unit prior to lease. 

 

Roofing 
 

• If deemed as not meeting the five-year threshold of useful life, the roofing, including all wood 
sheeting, framing, boxing and fascia that is identified as compromised (rotted, missing, etc.) must 
be replaced along with shingles. 

• If the roofing is deemed as meeting the five-year threshold of useful life, any specifically-identified 
issues (damaged fascia, guttering, boxing, etc.) must be corrected as part of the initial 
rehabilitation of the unit prior to lease. 

• All attics must be vented. 
 

Cladding and Weatherproofing (e.g., windows, doors, siding) 
 

• If initial inspection by the Consortium Members, or approved designee, shows any evidence of 
specified damage, the items must be corrected as part of the initial unit rehabilitation prior to 
lease. 

• If existing windows are single-pane and determined to be in working order, the Consortium 
Member/developer/subrecipient must ensure that all windows have been properly sealed, both 
inside and out, to remove any potential air leakage.  

 

Plumbing and Water Heater 
 

• All plumbing issues identified in the initial inspection by the Consortium Members or approve 

222



 
HOME-ARP Policy-Concord, NC 38 
 
 

designee must be corrected. 
• If the water heater is deemed as not meeting the five (5) year threshold of useful life, it must be 

replaced. 
• Water heaters must be placed in drain pans with drain piping plumbed to disposal point as per the 

latest approved addition of the International Plumbing Code, only if located in living space. 
• Pipe all Water Heater Temperature & Pressure (T&P) relief valve discharges to disposal point as 

per the latest approved edition of the International Plumbing Code. 
 

Electrical 
 
• If deemed as not meeting the five-year threshold of useful life, the electrical system must be 

replaced as part of the initial rehabilitation of the unit prior to lease. 
• If deemed as meeting the five (5) year threshold of useful life, any specifically-identified issues 

associated with the wiring must be corrected prior to lease. 
• Wall switch-controlled Energy Star rated overhead lighting is required in all rooms. 
• Each bedroom and hallway, etc. must have, as required by Code (local, state or Federal) a hard-

wired or battery back-up smoke detector. 
 

Heating, Ventilation, and Air Conditioning 
 
• If the unit is not properly insulated, a minimum of R19 insulation must be installed under all living 

space flooring and a minimum of R-38 insulation must be installed above all living space ceilings. 
• If the heating or air conditioning systems do not meet the five (5) year threshold of useful life, they 

must be replaced with proper-capacity, high efficiency system which are of proper seer capacity of 
heated and cooled space. 

 
Site and Neighborhood Standards 

 
A site for newly constructed housing must meet the following site and neighborhood standards: 

 
• The site must be adequate in size, exposure, and contour to accommodate the number and type of 

units proposed, and adequate utilities (water, sewer, gas, and electricity) and streets must be 
available to service the site. 
 

• The site must promote greater choice of housing opportunities. 
 

• The housing must be accessible to social, recreational, educational, commercial, and health facilities 
and services and other municipal facilities and services that are at least equivalent to those typically 
found in neighborhoods consisting largely of unassisted, standard housing of similar market rents. 

 
Lead-Based Paint 

 
The Lead-Based Paint Regulations described in 24 CFR Part 35 require that lead hazard evaluation and 
reduction activities be carried out for all single and multi-family residences constructed prior to 1978 

223



 
HOME-ARP Policy-Concord, NC 39 
 
 

that receive HOME Program assistance. Applications for rehabilitation funds for existing buildings 
constructed prior to 1978 must include a lead hazard evaluation by appropriate lead-certified personnel. 
 
If lead-based paint is present in the unit, the application must also include a detailed lead hazard 
reduction plan, in accordance with the regulations, and separately identify within the rehabilitation 
budget, the costs associated with reduction of lead hazards in accordance with the regulation and 
guidelines. 
 
All HOME program fund allocations are contingent upon the applicant agreeing to complete lead hazard 
reduction, evidenced by a clearance report performed by appropriate lead-certified personnel. The 
Cabarrus/Iredell/Rowan HOME Consortium permits use of HOME funds for lead-based paint testing, 
assessment, abatement and clearance report. In a multi-family project where HOME Program funds will 
be used for only a portion of the units, lead-based paint requirements apply to ALL units and common 
areas in the project. 

 
Accessibility 

 
• All housing must meet the accessibility requirements in 24 CFR part 8, which implements Section 

504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. 794), and Titles II and III of the Americans with 
Disabilities Act (42 U.S.C. 12131-12189) implemented at 28 CFR parts 35 and 36, as applicable. 
Covered multifamily dwellings, as defined at 24 CFR 100.201, must also meet the design and 
construction requirements at 24 CFR 100.205, which implements the Fair Housing Act (42 U.S.C. 
3601-3619). Rehabilitation may include improvements that are not required by regulation or statute 
that permit use by a person with disabilities. 

 
Disaster Mitigation 

 
• Where relevant, the Cabarrus/Iredell/Rowan HOME Consortium requires housing to be improved 

to mitigate the impact of potential disasters (e.g., earthquake, hurricanes, flooding, and wildfires) 
in accordance with State and local codes, ordinances, and requirements. 

 
Compliance with State/Local Codes, Ordinances, and Zoning Requirements 

 
• The Cabarrus/Iredell/Rowan HOME Consortium standards require that rehabilitated housing meet 

all applicable State and local codes, ordinances, and requirements or, in the absence of a State or 
local building code, the International Existing Building Code of the International Code Council. 

 
Uniform Physical Condition Standards 

 
• The Cabarrus/Iredell/Rowan HOME Consortium will use the Uniform Physical Conditions Standards 

(UPCS), HUD’s prescribed physical inspection procedures. UPCS requires that upon completion, all 
HOME assisted projects and units will be decent, safe, sanitary and in good repair. 

 
 

224



 
HOME-ARP Policy-Concord, NC 40 
 
 

Capital Needs Assessments 
 
• For multifamily rental housing projects of 26 or more total units, the Consortium Members will 

determine all work to be performed on the rehabilitation of the housing and the long-term physical 
needs of the project through a capital needs assessment. 

 
Construction Documents and Cost Estimates 

 
• The City of Concord’s staff will ensure that work to be undertaken meets the 

Cabarrus/Iredell/Rowan HOME Consortium rehabilitation standards. The construction documents 
(i.e., written scope of work to be performed) must be in sufficient detail to establish the basis for a 
uniform inspection of the housing to determine compliance with the Consortium Members’ 
standards. The Consortium Members will review and approve a written cost estimate for 
rehabilitation after determining that costs are reasonable. 

 
Frequency of Inspection 

 
• The Consortium Members must conduct an initial property inspection to identify the deficiencies 

that must be addressed. The Consortium Members’ and the City of Concord’s inspectors will 
conduct progress and final inspections to determine that work was done in accordance with work 
write-ups. 
 

• All other existing housing that is acquired with HOME assistance for rental housing must meet the 
rehabilitation property standards requirements. 
 

• The Consortium Members will document compliance based upon an inspection that is conducted 
no earlier than 90 days before the commitment of HOME assistance. If the property does not meet 
these standards, HOME funds will not be used to acquire the property unless it is rehabilitated to 
meet the standards. 

 
• The Consortium Members will adhere to the following guidelines: 

 
• On-site inspections will be performed within one (1) year following project completion 

and every one 
to three (3) years during the affordability period. 

• Property owners must annually certify to the Consortium Members that each building 
and all HOME assisted units in the project are suitable for occupancy. 

• For projects with one (1) to four (4) HOME assisted units, 100% of the HOME assisted 
units will be inspected for site, building exterior, building systems, and common areas for 
each building that houses HOME assisted units. 

 

Ongoing Property Condition Standards for Rental Housing 
 
• As with all other types of HOME assisted housing, the Consortium Members’ established 

construction standards will be used to ensure that owners of all rental housing maintain the housing 

225



 
HOME-ARP Policy-Concord, NC 41 
 
 

as safe, decent, sanitary and in good repair throughout the affordability period. 
 

Inspection Procedures 
 
• The Consortium Members will establish written inspection procedures. The procedures must 

include detailed inspection checklists, description of how and by whom inspections will be carried 
out, and procedures for training and certifying qualified inspectors. The procedures must also 
describe how frequently the property will be inspected. 

 
Section 504 Barrier Removal Standards for Multifamily Housing 

 
For new construction of rental or owner-occupied multifamily projects of four or more units, a minimum 
of 5 percent of the units in the project (but not less than one unit) must be accessible to individuals with 
mobility impairments, and an additional 2%, at a minimum, of the units (but not less than one unit) must 
be accessible to individuals with sensory impairments. The total number of units in a HOME-assisted 
project, regardless of whether they are all HOME-assisted, is used as the basis for determining the 
minimum number of accessible units. Also, in a project where not all the units are HOME-assisted, the 
accessible units may be either HOME-assisted or non- HOME-assisted. The standards for ensuring 
compliance with Section 504 are the Uniform Federal Accessibility Standards, although deviations are 
permitted in specific circumstances. Accessible units must be, to the maximum extent feasible, 
distributed throughout the projects and sites and must be available in a sufficient range of sizes and 
amenities so as not to limit choice. 
 
Owners and managers of projects with accessible units must adopt suitable means to assure that 
information regarding the availability of accessible units reaches eligible individuals with handicaps. 
They must also take reasonable non-discriminatory steps to maximize use of such units by eligible 
individuals. When an accessible unit becomes vacant, before offering the unit to a non-handicapped 
individual, the owner/manager should offer the unit first, to a current occupant of the project requiring 
the accessibility feature; and second, to an eligible qualified applicant on the waiting list requiring the 
accessibility features. 
 
Prevailing Wages and Labor Standards Requirements 

 
Labor standards requirements may impact the cost of construction work and should be factored in 
during the development of the project budget.  The labor standards processes may require additional 
reporting and documentation during construction.  Monitoring for compliance with labor standards 
requirements will be performed by The Consortium Members. 
 
Applicants should assume that state prevailing wage rates will apply and build the requisite costs into 
all project development budgets, unless they obtain a determination otherwise from the North Carolina 
Department of Labor (NCDOL). Applicants are advised to consult with the NCDOL and/or private legal 
counsel prior to applying for funding to determine whether prevailing wages must be paid and, if so, 
whether commercial or residential rates apply. 
 
If an applicant receives a loan that is incurring interest, is not forgivable, and is required to be repaid in 
full, such loan in and of itself is not expected to trigger a requirement that prevailing wages be paid on 
the project. However, if the applicant is receiving other public funds and/or is a public entity (e.g., 
housing authority), it may be required to pay state prevailing wages on the project. A definitive 

226



 
HOME-ARP Policy-Concord, NC 42 
 
 

determination regarding the applicability of state Prevailing Wage law can only be obtained from the 
NCDOL. 
 
Federal Davis Bacon prevailing wages apply to all projects with 12 or more HOME-assisted units 
regardless of whether HOME funds were used for construction or other projects costs. When triggered, 
Davis Bacon wages apply to the entire project. When federal funds trigger prevailing wages determined 
under the Davis-Bacon Act in a project, the higher of either the State Residential Prevailing Wage Rates 
(unless modified as stated below) or Davis- Bacon wage rates will apply to each job classification, unless 
applicable law requires otherwise. In cases where Davis-Bacon wages are triggered, Davis-Bacon 
monitoring procedures are followed. 

 
Related Acts: 
• The Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (CWHSSA) requires contractors and 

subcontractors to pay laborers and mechanics one and one-half (1.5) times their standard rate 
of pay for all hours worked in excess of 40 hours in a workweek. 

• The Copeland Anti-Kickback Act prohibits a contractor or subcontractor from coercing an 
employee into giving up any part of their earned wages. 

 
Section 3 Economic Opportunity 

 
Section 3 requirements apply to recipients of Housing and/or Community Development Assistance 
exceeding $200,000 combined from all sources in any one year, per 24 CFR §135. Section 3 covers the 
expenditure of any portion of those funds for any activity that involves housing construction, 
rehabilitation, or other public construction. All contractors or subcontractors that receive covered 
contracts in excess of $100,000 for housing construction, rehabilitation, or other public construction 
are required to comply with the requirements of Section 3. The purpose of Section 3 to ensure that 
employment (e.g., new hires) and other economic opportunities generated by this HUD financial 
assistance shall, to the greatest extent feasible, be directed to low- and very low-income persons, 
particularly those who are recipients of government assistance for housing, and to business concerns 
which provide economic opportunities to low- and very low-income persons. 

 
Subsidy Layering and Underwriting Guidelines 

 
The Consortium must determine that no more than the necessary and allowable amount of HOME funds 
(in combination with other governmental funds), are invested in projects. The procedure for making this 
determination is the layering review. 

The layering review will be conducted for those projects that include state or other public funds. It will 
take place as part of the review of applications for funding and again at the time of funding commitment. 
The review will consider the sources and uses of funds proposed for a project, the reasonableness of 
project development costs, the proposed project operating costs, and the amount of cash flow 
generated over time. 
 
Subsidy layering also applies to homebuyer units with multiple government funding awards. 
 
Before committing funds to a project, the Consortium Members must evaluate the project in 
accordance with the following guidelines that determine a reasonable level of profit or return on the 
owner's or developer's investment in a project. 

 

227



 
HOME-ARP Policy-Concord, NC 43 
 
 

• Reasonable Costs: 
o Rental Development Projects: Rental development project costs are considered reasonable if they 

are within the Total Development Cost (TDC) Limits set by the North Carolina Housing Finance 
Agency. If the project exceeds these limits, the owner or developer will be required to submit a 
waiver request that identifies project characteristics that create cost levels above these limits. 

o Homebuyer Projects: No housing purchase value, constructed or after-rehabilitation, may exceed 
95 percent of the median purchase price of owner-occupied homes or exceed the maximum per 
unit HOME investment value. 

• Debt Coverage Ratio for Rental Projects: Projects must have an overall Debt Coverage Ratio (DCR) 
that provides a cushion against risk that may result from unforeseen circumstances, including higher 
than anticipated vacancy rates. Deferred loans are not considered in the DCR calculation during the 
deferral period, only the year when they become due and payable. The annual contributions to 
operating and replacement reserves must be included in the operating expenses when calculating the 
DCR. Projects should have an overall DCR of at least 1.10:1. The Consortium Members reserve the 
right, during contract development, to direct the use of excess cash flow when a project has an overall 
DCR granter than 1.20:1. 

• Developer Fee: A reasonable maximum developer fee is ten percent (10%). For projects serving 
homeless, special needs populations or with 12 or fewer units, a reasonable developer fee is 15 
percent (15%). 

• Project Contingencies: If a Consortium Member is providing funds for construction of housing, a 10% 
contingency for new construction is required, with the right to request an exception, if needed. 

• Market Demand: Applicants must, at a minimum, describe efforts to identify properties that are 
within the proposed project’s market area and are available to the target population. A third-party 
market study must accompany the application if the project involves low-income housing tax credits 
or if another funder requires a market study. Market studies are not required for the following 
projects: 
o Projects for persons with Developmental Disabilities (DD) 
o Projects for persons with chronic mental illness (CMI) 
o Projects for homeless persons 
o Domestic violence (DV) projects 
o Special needs projects for persons with chronic substance abuse issues combined with 

homelessness and/or other conditions requiring intensive support services 
If the project does not meet any of the above criteria, a market study is required. The market study 
must be submitted with an application for funding if the applicant has site control. If site control has not 
been obtained, the market study must be submitted upon receipt of site control. 
• Vacancy Rates: Applicants should use a 5% residential vacancy rate for rental projects and a 10% non-

residential vacancy rate when preparing their operating pro forma. Exceptions will be allowed if 
adequate justification is provided, such as in the case of very small or special needs projects. 

 
Costs Associated with the Administration of Development Projects 
 
The Consortium Members incur the costs associated with the oversight and administration of individual 
development projects, including both those that occur during the development phase (e.g., 
environmental review, underwriting, subsidy layering analysis, loan processing, and construction 
inspection/oversight) and those that occur during the affordability periods (e.g., monitoring and 
inspections). The Consortium Members may charge these costs to individual projects. 
 
The costs incurred during the development phase will be included in the project’s per-unit subsidy and 
match calculations, but they will not be included in any indebtedness incurred by The Consortium 

228



 
HOME-ARP Policy-Concord, NC 44 
 
 

Members and thus are not included in the loan amount. 
 
Costs incurred during the affordability periods will be charged as they are incurred by The Consortium 
Members. The Consortium Members must include the estimated monitoring costs as an allowable 
operating expense in their operating budget for the project. 
 
Mixed-Use Projects 
 
The Cabarrus/Iredell/Rowan Home Consortium funds may be used in developing missed-use structures 
that contain residential and other uses (i.e., retail space, commercial office space, spaces for the 
provision of services).  The inclusion of non-residential spaces for the exclusive use of the residents does 
not create a mixed-use project.  Residential spaces include common area, corridors, stairways, laundry 
areas, storage areas, office space for management of the building, entry ways and lobbies. 
HOME funds may only be used for costs associated with the residential portion of the building.  The 
costs must represent a portion of the total development cost that does not exceed the proportion of 
residential space in the entire project. 
 
Summary 
 
The HOME-American Rescue Plan (HOME-ARP) Policy was implemented in response to the City’s need 
to define its process, and the guidelines for the Cabarrus/Iredell/Rowan HOME Consortium, to assist 
individuals or households who are homeless, at risk of homelessness, and other vulnerable populations, 
by providing rental assistance, supportive services and non-congregate shelter, to reduce homelessness 
and increase housing stability within the Cabarrus/Iredell/Rowan Home Consortium’s jurisdictions.   

229



MEMORADUM 

DATE: 

TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

PROJECT NAME: 

PROJECT NUMBER: 

DEVELOPER: 

Wednesday, March 9, 2022  

Sue Hyde, Director of Engineering 

Gary Stansbury, Construction Manager 

Infrastructure Acceptance 

Haven at Rocky River PH 1 MP 4 

2018-054 

Dependable Development, Inc. 

FINAL CERTIFICATION - LOT NUMBERS: 20-56, 63-87

INFRASTRUCTURE TYPE: Water and Sewer

COUNCIL ACCEPTANCE DATE: 

ONE-YEAR WARRANTY DATE: 

Thursday, April 14, 2022 
Thursday, April 13, 2023

Water Infrastructure Quantity 

2-inch in LF 280.00 

8-inch in LF 2174.00 

8-inch Valves 5 

Hydrants 5 

Sanitary Sewer Infrastructure Quantity 

8-inch in LF 2293.00 

Manholes as EA 12 

230



MEMORADUM 

DATE: 

TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

PROJECT NAME: 

PROJECT NUMBER: 

DEVELOPER: 

Monday, March 28 2022  

Sue Hyde, Director of Engineering 

Gary Stansbury, Construction Manager 

Infrastructure Acceptance 

Kensley East Subdivision, PH 1 

2021-023 

Niblock Homes, LLC 

FINAL CERTIFICATION - LOT NUMBERS: 1-13

INFRASTRUCTURE TYPE: Water and Sewer

COUNCIL ACCEPTANCE DATE: Thursday, April 14, 2022

ONE-YEAR WARRANTY DATE: Friday, April 14, 2023

Water Infrastructure Quantity 

8-inch in LF 383.00 

8-inch Valves 1 

2-inch in LF 244.00 

2-inch Valves 2 

Hydrants 2 

Sanitary Sewer Infrastructure Quantity 

8-inch in LF 959.00 

Manholes as EA 7 

231



232



233



234



235



236



237



238



239



240



241



  
ORD.  #  

 

GRANT PROJECT ORDINANCE  
American Rescue Plan Fund 

    
BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Concord, North Carolina 

that pursuant to Section 13.2 Chapter 159 of the General Statutes of North Carolina, 
the following grant project ordinance is hereby amended: 
 

SECTION 1. The project authorized is various projects funded by the 
American Rescue Plan Funds.  

 
SECTION 2. The City Manager is hereby authorized to proceed with the 

implementation and amendments of the projects within the 
terms of the plans and specifications for the projects. 

 
 SECTION 3. The following revenues are anticipated to be available to the 

City of Concord for the completion of the projects: 
Revenues 

Account Title 
 Current 
Budget  

 Amended 
Budget  

 (Decrease) 
Increase  

 
  

SECTION 4.  The following amounts are appropriated for the project: 
Expenses/Expenditures 

Account Title 
 Current 
Budget  

 Amended 
Budget  

 (Decrease) 
Increase  

3300-5811082   
3300-5475100 
3300-5475000 

Future Projects 
We Build 
Affordable Housing 

14,777,247 
0 
0 

10,000,000 
3,500,000 
1,277,247 

(4,777,247) 
3,500,000 
1,277,247 

 Total    $0 
 

SECTION 5. Accounting records are to be maintained by the Finance 
Department of the City of Concord in such manner as (1) to provide all information 
required by the grant agreement and other agreements executed or to be executed 
with the various parties involved with the project; and (2) to comply with the Local 
Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act of the State of North Carolina. 
 

SECTION 6. Within five (5) days after adoption, copies of this grant projects 
ordinance shall be filed with the City Manager, Finance Director, and City Clerk for 
direction in carrying out this project. 
 

     SECTION 7. The Finance Director is directed to report on the financial status of 
this project in accordance with the existing City policy.  She shall also report to the 
City Manager any unusual occurrences. 

 
Duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Concord, North Carolina this      

     14th day of April, 2022. 
       CITY COUNCIL 
       CITY OF CONCORD 
       NORTH CAROLINA  
    
       ____________________________ 
       William C. Dusch, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:_____________________  ______________________________ 
              Kim Deason, City Clerk   VaLerie Kolczynski, City Attorney 

242



ORD. 
 

GRANT PROJECT ORDINANCE 
FY 2019 EMERGENCY SAFETY AND SECURITY GRANT 

PROJECT NC19E00850219 
 

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Concord, North Carolina 
that pursuant to Section 13.2 Chapter 159 of the General Statutes of North Carolina, 
the following grant project ordinance is hereby ordained: 

 
SECTION 1. The project authorized is the Capital Fund grant, which is a 

program to assist the Housing Department in carrying out development, capital 
and management activities in order to ensure that the program continues to 
service low-income families. 

 
SECTION 2. The City Manager is hereby authorized to proceed with the 

implementation of the project within terms of a grant agreement with the U.S. 
Department of Housing and Urban Development. 

 
SECTION 3. The following revenues are anticipated to be available to the City 

of Concord for the project: 
 

2019 Emergency Safe Security Grant 692-4703308 $97,676 
 
 

SECTION 4. The following amounts are appropriated to the project: 
 
 

Security Cameras 9212-5800296 $97,676 
 
 

Total $97,676 
 

SECTION 5. Accounting records are to be maintained by the Finance 
Department of the City of Concord in such manner as (1) to provide all information 
required by the grant agreement and other agreements executed or to be executed 
with the various parties involved with the project; and (2) to comply with the Local 
Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act of the State of North Carolina. 

 
SECTION 6. Within five (5) days after adopted, copies of this grant project 

amendment shall be filed with the City Manager, Finance Director, and City Clerk for 
direction in carrying out this project. 

 
SECTION 7. The Finance Director is directed to report on the financial status of 

this project in accordance with the existing City policy. She shall also report to the 
City Manager any unusual occurrences. 

 
Duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Concord, North Carolina this 

10th day of March 2022. 
CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF CONCORD 
NORTH CAROLINA 

 
 
 

William Dusch, Mayor 
 
 
 
ATTEST:  _ 

 
Kim Deason, City Clerk Valerie Kolczynski, City Attorney 

243



 
ORD. #  

 
 AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND FY 2021-2022 BUDGET ORDINANCE 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Concord, North Carolina did on the 10th 
day of June, 2021, adopt a City budget for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2021 and 
ending on June 30, 2022, as amended; and 
 

WHEREAS, it is appropriate to amend the expense/expenditures and the revenue 
accounts in the funds listed for the reason stated; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Concord 
that in accordance with the authority contained in G.S. 159-15, the following accounts are 
hereby amended as follows: 

 
 

Revenues 
Account Title Current 

Budget 
Amended 

Budget 
(Decrease) 
Increase 

100-4501400  Transfer from Cap Project 0 80,000 80,000 
 Total   80,000 

 
 

   
Expenses/Expenditures 

Account Title 
 Current 
Budget  

 Amended 
Budget  

 (Decrease) 
Increase  

4340-5540000 Vehicles - Capital 2,619,065 2,699,065 80,000 
 
 Total   80,000  

   
Reason:   To appropriate funds being transferred back to the General Fund from the Fire 
Project Fund related to Fire Station #10 savings to cover the costs of vehicles needed.  
  

Adopted this 14th day of April, 2022. 
 

 
      CITY COUNCIL 
      CITY OF CONCORD 
      NORTH CAROLINA 
    
      _______________________ 
      William C. Dusch, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________ 
  Kim Deason, City Clerk 

       
 
__________________________ 

      VaLerie Kolczynski, City Attorney 

244



ORD.   

 

CAPITAL PROJECT ORDINANCE  
Fire Projects 

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Concord, North Carolina 
that pursuant to Section 13.2 Chapter 159 of the General Statutes of North Carolina, 
the following project ordinance is hereby ordained: 
 

SECTION 1. The project authorized is the Transfer to General Fund. 
 
SECTION 2.  The City Manager is hereby authorized to proceed with the 

implementation and amendments of the projects within the terms of the plans and 
specifications for the projects. 

 
SECTION 3. The following revenues are anticipated to be available to the 

City of Concord for the project: 
 

Revenues 

Account Title 
 Current 
Budget  

 Amended 
Budget  

 (Decrease) 
Increase  

     
     

SECTION 4.  The following amounts are appropriated for the project:   
         

Expenses/Expenditures 

Account Title 
 Current 
Budget  

 Amended 
Budget  

 (Decrease) 
Increase  

8670-5811024 
8670-5811024 Fire Station #10 $5,171,919 $5,091,919 $(80,000) 
8670-5983000 
8670-5983000 
 

Transfer to General Fund 
 

 
$0 

 
$80,000 

 

 
$80,000 

$0 
  

  
SECTION 5. Accounting records are to be maintained by the Finance 

Department of the City of Concord in such manner as (1) to provide all information 
required by the grant agreement and other agreements executed or to be executed 
with the various parties involved with the project; and (2) to comply with the Local 
Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act of the State of North Carolina. 
 

SECTION 6. Within five (5) days after adopted, copies of this grant project 
amendment shall be filed with the City Manager, Finance Director, and City Clerk 
for direction in carrying out this project. 
 

     SECTION 7. The Finance Director is directed to report on the financial status 
of this project in accordance with the existing City policy.  She shall also report to 
the City Manager any unusual occurrences. 
 

Duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Concord, North Carolina this  
14th day of April, 2022. 

 
       CITY COUNCIL 
       CITY OF CONCORD 
       NORTH CAROLINA 
       
             
       ____________________________ 
       William C. Dusch, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: ______________________  ______________________________ 
                Kim Deason, City Clerk   VaLerie Kolczynski, City Attorney 

245



 
ORD. #  

 
 AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND FY 2021-2022 BUDGET ORDINANCE 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Concord, North Carolina did on the 10th 
day of June, 2021, adopt a City budget for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2021 and 
ending on June 30, 2022, as amended; and 
 

WHEREAS, it is appropriate to amend the expense/expenditures and the revenue 
accounts in the funds listed for the reason stated; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Concord 
that in accordance with the authority contained in G.S. 159-15, the following accounts are 
hereby amended as follows: 

 
 

Revenues 
Account Title Current 

Budget 
Amended 

Budget 
(Decrease) 
Increase 

     
     
 Total    

 
 

   
Expenses/Expenditures 

Account Title 
 Current 
Budget  

 Amended 
Budget  

 (Decrease) 
Increase  

4120-5194000 Contract Services 220,364 245,364 25,000 
4190-5992000 Contingency 464,839 439,839 (25,000) 
 
 Total   0  

   
Reason:   To transfer contingency funds for an IT study.  
  

Adopted this 14th day of April, 2022. 
 

 
      CITY COUNCIL 
      CITY OF CONCORD 
      NORTH CAROLINA 
    
      _______________________ 
      William C. Dusch, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________ 
  Kim Deason, City Clerk 

       
 
__________________________ 

      VaLerie Kolczynski, City Attorney 

246



ORD.   

 

CAPITAL PROJECT ORDINANCE AMENDMENT  
 

  
BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Concord, North Carolina 

that pursuant to Section 13.2 Chapter 159 of the General Statutes of North Carolina, 
the following project ordinance is hereby ordained: 
 

SECTION 1. The project authorized is the Concessions Rent Relief 2022. 
 
SECTION 2.  The City Manager is hereby authorized to proceed with the 

implementation of the project within terms of a grant agreement with the N.C. 
Department of Transportation – Division of Aviation. 

 
SECTION 3. The following revenues are anticipated to be available to the City 

of Concord for the project: 
 

Revenues 

Account Title 
 Current 
Budget  

 Amended 
Budget  

 (Decrease) 
Increase  

451-4357300 
451-4357300 

Federal Aid $4,047,307 $4,201,501 $154,194 

 Total    154,194 
     

SECTION 4.  The following amounts are appropriated for the project:   
         

Expenses/Expenditures 

Account Title 
 Current 
Budget  

 Amended 
Budget  

 (Decrease) 
Increase  

6305-5986000 
6305-5986000 Transfer to Aviation  0 154,194 154,194 

     
     

Total    154,194 
  
SECTION 5. Accounting records are to be maintained by the Finance 

Department of the City of Concord in such manner as (1) to provide all information 
required by the grant agreement and other agreements executed or to be executed 
with the various parties involved with the project; and (2) to comply with the Local 
Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act of the State of North Carolina. 
 

SECTION 6. Within five (5) days after adopted, copies of this grant project 
amendment shall be filed with the City Manager, Finance Director, and City Clerk for 
direction in carrying out this project. 
 

     SECTION 7. The Finance Director is directed to report on the financial status of 
this project in accordance with the existing City policy.  She shall also report to the 
City Manager any unusual occurrences. 
 

Duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Concord, North Carolina this  
10th day of February, 2022. 

 
       CITY COUNCIL 
       CITY OF CONCORD 
       NORTH CAROLINA     
             
       ____________________________ 
       William C. Dusch, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: ______________________  ______________________________ 
                Kim Deason, City Clerk   Valerie Kolczynski, City Attorney 

247



  

 

 
ORD.  #  

 
CAPITAL PROJECT ORDINANCE AMENDMENT 

Wastewater Projects 
 

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Concord, North Carolina that pursuant to Section 13.2 
 Chapter 159 of the General Statutes of North Carolina, the following project ordinance is hereby 
 adopted/amended: 
 

SECTION 1. The projects authorized are the projects included for the Streetscape project. 
 
SECTION 2. The City Manager is hereby authorized to proceed with the implementation and 

amendments of the projects within the terms of the plans and specifications for the projects. 
 
 SECTION 3. The following revenues are anticipated to be available to the City of 

Concord for the completion of the projects: 
 

Revenues 

Account Title 
 Current 
Budget  

 
Amended 
Budget  

 
(Decrease)  
Increase 

421-4501640 Transfer from Sewer 5,314,468 5,080,468 (234,000) 
    (234,000) 

 
SECTION 4. The following amounts are appropriated for the project: 

Expenses/Expenditures 

Account Title 
 Current 
Budget  

 
Amended 
Budget  

 
(Decrease)  
Increase 

8402-5811272 Streetscape 234,000 0 (234,000) 
 Total    (234,000) 

 
SECTION 5. Accounting records are to be maintained by the Finance Department of the City of Concord 

in such manner as (1) to provide all information required by the project agreement and other agreements executed 
or to be executed with the various parties involved with the project; and (2) to comply with the Local Government 
Budget and Fiscal Control Act of the State of North Carolina. 
 

SECTION 6. Within five (5) days after adoption, copies of this capital projects ordinance shall be filed 
with the City Manager, Finance Director, and City Clerk for direction in carrying out this project. 

 
 SECTION 7. The Finance Director is directed to report on the financial status of this project in accordance 

with the existing City policy, and shall also report to the City Manager any unusual occurrences. 
 

Duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Concord, North Carolina this 14th day April, 2022. 
        
 
 CITY COUNCIL 
       CITY OF CONCORD 
       NORTH CAROLINA  
    
                                                                               ____________________________ 
       William C. Dusch, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST:_____________________  ______________________________ 
              Kim Deason, City Clerk   Valerie Kolczynski, City Attorney 

248



ORD.   

 

CAPITAL PROJECT ORDINANCE  
Transportation Projects 

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Concord, North Carolina 
that pursuant to Section 13.2 Chapter 159 of the General Statutes of North Carolina, 
the following project ordinance is hereby ordained: 
 

SECTION 1. The project authorized is the Streetscape project. 
 
SECTION 2.  The City Manager is hereby authorized to proceed with the 

implementation and amendments of the projects within the terms of the plans and 
specifications for the projects. 

 
SECTION 3. The following revenues are anticipated to be available to the 

City of Concord for the project: 
 

Revenues 

Account Title 
 Current 
Budget  

 Amended 
Budget  

 (Decrease) 
Increase  

423-4501100 
423-4501100 Transfer from Gen Fund 21,194,645 21,171,937 (22,708) 

    
(22,708) 

 
SECTION 4.  The following amounts are appropriated for the project:   

         
Expenses/Expenditures 

Account Title 
 Current 
Budget  

 Amended 
Budget  

 (Decrease) 
Increase  

8600-5811272 
8600-5811272 
 

Streetscape 
 

22,708 
 

0 
 

 
(22,708) 
(22,708) 

  
  
SECTION 5. Accounting records are to be maintained by the Finance 

Department of the City of Concord in such manner as (1) to provide all information 
required by the grant agreement and other agreements executed or to be executed 
with the various parties involved with the project; and (2) to comply with the Local 
Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act of the State of North Carolina. 
 

SECTION 6. Within five (5) days after adopted, copies of this grant project 
amendment shall be filed with the City Manager, Finance Director, and City Clerk 
for direction in carrying out this project. 
 

     SECTION 7. The Finance Director is directed to report on the financial status 
of this project in accordance with the existing City policy.  She shall also report to 
the City Manager any unusual occurrences. 
 

Duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Concord, North Carolina this  
14th day of April, 2022. 

 
       CITY COUNCIL 
       CITY OF CONCORD 
       NORTH CAROLINA 
       
             
       ____________________________ 
       William C. Dusch, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: ______________________  ______________________________ 
                Kim Deason, City Clerk   VaLerie Kolczynski, City Attorney 

249



ORD.   

 

CAPITAL PROJECT ORDINANCE  
 

Water Projects 
  

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Concord, North Carolina 
that pursuant to Section 13.2 Chapter 159 of the General Statutes of North Carolina, 
the following project ordinance is hereby ordained: 
 

SECTION 1. The projects authorized and amended are Water Projects-
Streetscape. 

 
SECTION 2.  The City Manager is hereby authorized to proceed with the 

implementation and amendments of the projects within the terms of the plans and 
specifications for the projects. 

 
SECTION 3. The following revenues/expenditures are anticipated to be 

available to the City of Concord for the project: 
         

 

Account Title 
 Current 
Budget  

 Amended 
Budget  

 (Decrease) 
Increase  

429-4501620 
429-4501620 

8700-5811272 
8700-5811272 

 
Transfer from Water  
 
Streetscape 

 
$33,849,079 

 
$878,000 

 
$32,971,079 
 

$0 

 
$(878,000) 

 
$(878,000) 

     
SECTION 4. Accounting records are to be maintained by the Finance 

Department of the City of Concord in such manner as (1) to provide all information 
required by the grant agreement and other agreements executed or to be executed 
with the various parties involved with the project; and (2) to comply with the Local 
Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act of the State of North Carolina. 
 

SECTION 5. Within five (5) days after adopted, copies of this grant project 
amendment shall be filed with the City Manager, Finance Director, and City Clerk 
for direction in carrying out this project. 
 

     SECTION 6. The Finance Director is directed to report on the financial status 
of this project in accordance with the existing City policy.  She shall also report to 
the City Manager any unusual occurrences. 
 

Duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Concord, North Carolina this 
14th day of April, 2022. 

 
       CITY COUNCIL 
       CITY OF CONCORD 
       NORTH CAROLINA 
       
             
       ____________________________ 
       William C. Dusch, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: ______________________  ______________________________ 
                Kim Deason, City Clerk  VaLerie Kolczynski, City Attorney 
 

250



ORD.   

 

CAPITAL PROJECT ORDINANCE  
General Capital Projects 

  
BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Concord, North Carolina 

that pursuant to Section 13.2 Chapter 159 of the General Statutes of North Carolina, 
the following project ordinance is hereby ordained: 
 

SECTION 1. The projects authorized are General Capital Projects for 
Streetscape. 

 
SECTION 2.  The City Manager is hereby authorized to proceed with the 

implementation and amendments of the projects within the terms of the plans and 
specifications for the projects. 

 
SECTION 3. The following revenues are anticipated to be available to the 

City of Concord for the project: 
Revenues 

Account Title 
 Current 
Budget  

 Amended 
Budget  

 
(Decrease) 
Increase  

430-4501100 
430-4501100 From General Fund 2,777,814 2,800,522 22,708 
430-4501600 
430-4501600 From Stormwater 471,646 907,646 436,000 
430-4501610 
430-4501610 From Electric 329,586 1,437,806 1,108,220 
430-4501620 
430-4501620 From Water 1,771,829 2,649,829 878,000 
430-4501640 
430-4501640 From Sewer 250,427 484,427 234,000 
 Total    2,678,928 
     

SECTION 4.  The following amounts are appropriated for the project:   
         

Expenses/Expenditures 

Account Title 
 Current 
Budget  

 Amended 
Budget  

 (Decrease) 
Increase  

8804-5811272 
8804-5811272 Streetscape 10,694,643 13,373,571 2,678,928 

 Total    2,678,928 
 

SECTION 5. Accounting records are to be maintained by the Finance 
Department of the City of Concord in such manner as (1) to provide all information 
required by the grant agreement and other agreements executed or to be executed 
with the various parties involved with the project; and (2) to comply with the Local 
Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act of the State of North Carolina. 
 

SECTION 6. Within five (5) days after adopted, copies of this project 
amendment shall be filed with the City Manager, Finance Director, and City Clerk 
for direction in carrying out this project. 
 

     SECTION 7. The Finance Director is directed to report on the financial status 
of this project in accordance with the existing City policy.  She shall also report to 
the City Manager any unusual occurrences. 
 

Duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Concord, North Carolina this 
14th day of April, 2022. 

 
       CITY COUNCIL 
       CITY OF CONCORD 
       NORTH CAROLINA 
             
       ____________________________ 
       William C Dusch, Mayor 

251



 
ATTEST: ______________________  ______________________________ 
                Kim Deason, City Clerk  VaLerie Kolczynski, City Attorney 

252



ORD.   

 

CAPITAL PROJECT ORDINANCE  
Electric Project-Streetscape 

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Concord, North Carolina 
that pursuant to Section 13.2 Chapter 159 of the General Statutes of North Carolina, 
the following project ordinance is hereby ordained: 
 

SECTION 1. The project authorized and amended is Streetscape. 
 
SECTION 2.  The City Manager is hereby authorized to proceed with the 

implementation and amendments of the projects within the terms of the plans and 
specifications for the projects. 

 
SECTION 3. The following revenues/expenditures are anticipated to be 

available to the City of Concord for the project: 
 

Account Title 
 Current 
Budget  

 Amended 
Budget  

 (Decrease) 
Increase  

473-4501610 
473-4501610 

6949-5811272 
6949-5811272 
 

Transfer fm Electric 
 
Streetscape 
 
 

$41,952,932 
 

$1,108,220 
 
 

$40,844,712 
 

$0 
 
 

 
$(1,108,220) 

 
$(1,108,220) 

 
 

     
SECTION 4. Accounting records are to be maintained by the Finance 

Department of the City of Concord in such manner as (1) to provide all information 
required by the grant agreement and other agreements executed or to be executed 
with the various parties involved with the project; and (2) to comply with the Local 
Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act of the State of North Carolina. 
 

SECTION 5. Within five (5) days after adopted, copies of this grant project 
amendment shall be filed with the City Manager, Finance Director, and City Clerk 
for direction in carrying out this project. 
 

     SECTION 6. The Finance Director is directed to report on the financial status 
of this project in accordance with the existing City policy.  She shall also report to 
the City Manager any unusual occurrences. 
 

Duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Concord, North Carolina this 
14th day of April, 2022. 

 
       CITY COUNCIL 
       CITY OF CONCORD 
       NORTH CAROLINA 
       
             
       ____________________________ 
       William C. Dusch, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: ______________________  ______________________________ 
                Kim Deason, City Clerk  VaLerie Kolczynski, City Attorney 

253



ORD.   

CAPITAL PROJECT ORDINANCE AMENDMENT 
Stormwater Projects 

  
BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Concord, North Carolina 

that pursuant to Section 13.2 Chapter 159 of the General Statutes of North Carolina, 
the following project ordinance is hereby ordained/amended: 
 

SECTION 1. The project authorized and amended is Streetscape. 
SECTION 2.  The City Manager is hereby authorized to proceed with the 

implementation and amendments of the projects within the terms of the plans and 
specifications for the projects. 

SECTION 3. The following revenues are anticipated to be available to the 
City of Concord for the project: 

Revenues 

Account Title 
 Current 
Budget  

 Amended 
Budget  

 (Decrease) 
Increase  

474-4501600 
474-4501600 Transfer from Stormwater $8,284,613 $7,848,613 $(436,000) 
Total    $(436,000) 

 
 
 
SECTION 4.  The following amounts are appropriated for the projects: 

Expenses/Expenditures 

Account Title 
 Current 
Budget  

 Amended 
Budget  

 (Decrease) 
Increase  

7103-5811272 
7103-5811272 Streetscape $436,000 $0 $(436,000) 
Total    $(436,000) 

 
  
SECTION 4. Accounting records are to be maintained by the Finance 

Department of the City of Concord in such manner as (1) to provide all information 
required by the grant agreement and other agreements executed or to be executed 
with the various parties involved with the project; and (2) to comply with the Local 
Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act of the State of North Carolina. 

SECTION 5. Within five (5) days after adopted, copies of this grant/project 
amendment shall be filed with the City Manager, Finance Director, and City Clerk 
for direction in carrying out this project. 

     SECTION 6. The Finance Director is directed to report on the financial status 
of this project in accordance with the existing City policy.  She shall also report to 
the City Manager any unusual occurrences. 
 

Duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Concord, North Carolina this 
14th day of April, 2022. 

 
       CITY COUNCIL 
       CITY OF CONCORD 
       NORTH CAROLINA 
       
             
       ____________________________ 
       William C. Dusch, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: ______________________  ______________________________ 
                Kim Deason, City Clerk  VaLerie Kolcznski, City Attorney 

254



3.2 Salary Increases     
                  

The following types of salary increases may be provided. These increases are 
subject to funding by the City Council in the annual budget or in amendments to 
the budget, except for those that fall within the discretionary authority of the City 
Manager. 

 
 A.     Performance Review and Development Increases                                      

 
• Annual increases will be based on performance. Section 8.2 

Performance Evaluation and pay outlines additional details. 
• An employee may receive a pay increase upon completion of the 

prescribed probationary period provided they have demonstrated 
satisfactory job performance. The employee shall be terminated during 
or upon completion of the probationary period if performance is less than 
satisfactory.  

• If an employee has reached the maximum of the grade, he/she may 
receive a lump sum payment in the amount of the increase 
recommended by their supervisor and department director. 

• The employee's rating on the Performance Evaluation must be at least 
"achieves expectations" in order to receive a salary increase. All 
employees will be evaluated on their review dates even if they are not 
eligible for an increase. 

 
        B.     Administrative Increases 
 

The City Manager may award administrative increases upon continuing, 
long-term exceptionally meritorious service performed by any City 
employee, when recommended in writing with justification, by the 
Department Director and review by Deputy/Assistant City Manager and the 
Human Resources Director. 
        

C. Promotional Increases 
 
When an employee is promoted to a position in a higher grade, his/her 
salary shall be increased to the minimum rate for the higher grade. In cases 
where employees are already at or above the minimum of the new grade, 
employees will receive a 5-10% pay increase depending on the level of the 
new grade. Promotional salary increases shall be effective at the beginning 
of the pay period in which the increase is effective. Failure to perform at 
"achieves expectations" may result in dismissal or, if available, movement 
to any vacant position for which the individual is qualified.   
 

 
 
 

255



D. Career Development Increases 
 

Career Development increases are granted in accordance with individual 
career development plans. The increases are added to base pay and the 
employees retain their current salary grade. In cases where employees are 
already at the maximum of their salary grade, they will receive a lump sum 
for their increase. 

 
E. Bilingual Increases 
 

Employees in positions requiring proficiency in a second language are 
eligible for a 5% increase in base pay not to exceed the maximum rate of 
pay identified for the job. To function in this capacity the employee will be 
required to pass a proficiency test with an acceptable level of proficiency 
arranged by the Human Resources Department.  All employees, including 
native speakers, are required to be tested. Testing is paid for by the City. 
Bilingual pay increases are effective the pay period following the results of 
the proficiency test and are not retroactive. The review date is not changed 
as a result of this pay increase. Bilingual pay increases will be removed from 
an employee’s salary if they cease to use this skill or move to a position that 
does not require bilingual skills. 

 

F. Temporary Assignments 

In cases where the assignment of work requires an employee to perform in 
a higher-level classification/grade, a temporary pay rate may be established 
for the period of that assignment. Temporary increases range from 5-10% 
depending on the level of responsibility, with the same guidelines as 
promotional increases. The incumbent must be working in the higher 
classification at least 50% of the time for a minimum of 30 days.  Temporary 
increases require review and recommendation of Deputy/Assistant City 
Manager, Human Resources Director and approval of City Manager. 
Temporary increases are not retroactive and will be paid after the 30th day. 
Temporary increases are effective the beginning of the pay period in which 
the increase is effective.  

 

G. Retention Adjustments 

In special circumstances and for positions considered critical to 
accomplishing departmental objectives, Department Directors may request 
approval to adjust an employee's salary in response to a bona fide external 
job offer provided there are no equity issues. The salary will not exceed the 
maximum of the salary grade.  This policy will not apply if the employee is 
transferring within the City. Retention adjustments require review and 

256



recommendation of the Deputy/Assistant City Manager, Human Resources 
Director and approval of City Manager.  

 
H. Amendments to the Compensation Structure 

Approved amendments to the classification system may result in a salary increase 
in the following conditions: 

• In the instance of an overall increase to all established salary grades 
(commonly referred to a Compensation Structure Move), the employee’s 
pay rate shall be increased to the new minimum pay rate for the 
established salary grade, if applicable; 

• In the instance of the implementation of amendments to the 
compensation plan, as a result of the Human Resources Director’s 
review and recommendation (Article 3.2 Administration), the employee’s 
pay rate shall be increased to the new minimum for the newly 
established salary grade, if necessary; 

• In either instance, if the employee’s pay rate is higher than the new 
minimum pay rate, no increase to the employee’s pay rate shall be 
granted. 

257



Tax Report for Fiscal Year 2021-2022
FINAL REPORT February

Property Tax Receipts- Munis  
2021 BUDGET YEAR 897,543.88         
2020 19,973.48           
2019 2,801.69             
2018 458.11                
2017 667.33                
2016 370.90                
2015 130.61                
2014 107.06                
2013 65.24                  
2012 18.72                  
Prior Years 213.43                
Interest 23,928.76           
Refunds

946,279.21         

Vehicle Tax Receipts- County
2021 BUDGET YEAR 409,148.84         
2020
2019
2018
2017
2016
2015
Prior Years
Penalty & Interest 4,995.15             
Refunds

414,143.99         

Fire District Tax - County
2021 BUDGET YEAR 7,664.83             

   Less: Collection Fee from County
Net Ad Valorem Collections 1,368,088.03      

423:Vehicle Tag Fee-Transportion Impr Fund 31,046.40           
100:Vehicle Tag Fee 126,067.20         
292:Vehicle Tag Fee-Transportion Fund 31,046.40           
   Less Collection Fee - Transit 
Net Vehicle Tag Collection 188,160.00         

Privilege License 133.13                
Prepaid Privilege Licenses
Privilege License interest
Total Privilege License 133.13                

 

Oakwood Cemetery current 1,325.00               
Oakwood Cemetery endowment -                      
Rutherford Cemetery current 7,908.36               
Rutherford Cemetery endowment 2,366.64             
West Concord Cemetery current 8,475.00             
West Concord Cemetery endowment 2,400.00             
Total Cemetery Collections 22,475.00           

Total Collections 1,578,856.16$    

258



 
Current Year
Original Scroll
    Levy
    Penalty
    Adjustments
Public Service 
    Levy
    Penalty
Discoveries/Annex 3,881.97             
Discovery Penalty 676.28                
Total Amount Invoiced - Monthly 4,558.25             
Total Amount Invoiced - YTD 65,477,744.27    

Current Year
Less Abatements (Releases)
    Real 470.33                
    Personal
    Discovery
    Penalty - all
Total Abatements 470.33                

Adjusted Amount Invoiced - monthly 4,087.92
Adjusted Amount Invoiced - YTD 65,372,472.60    

 
Current Levy Collected 897,543.88         
Levy Collected from previous years 24,806.57           
Penalties & Interest Collected 23,928.76            
Current Month Write Off - Debit/Credit -                      
Total Monthly Collected 946,279.21         
Total Collected - YTD 64,513,842.02    

Total Collected - net current levy -YTD 64,167,177.54    

Percentage of Collected -current levy      98.16%

Amount Uncollected - current year levy 1,205,295.06      

Percentage of Uncollected - current levy 1.84%

100.00%

  

259



CITY OF CONCORD

RELEASES 
CITY OF CONCORD 470.33$                
CONCORD DOWNTOWN -$                     

REFUNDS 
CITY OF CONCORD 8,237.38$             
CONCORD DOWNTOWN -$                     

DISCOVERIES
CITY OF CONCORD

TaxYear Real Personal Total Rate Calculated Penalties
2016 0 0 0 0.0048 0.00 0.00
2017 0 0 0 0.0048 0.00 0.00
2018 0 3,970 3,970 0.0048 19.06 7.62
2019 0 3,540 3,540 0.0048 16.99 5.10
2020 0 11,899 11,899 0.0048 57.12 15.65
2021 0 789,335 789,335 0.0048 3,788.81 647.91

Total 0 808,744 808,744 3,881.97$          676.28$        

DOWNTOWN 
TaxYear Real Personal Total Rate Calculated Penalties

2017 0 0 0 0.0023 0.00 0.00
2018 0 0 0 0.0023 0.00 0.00
2019 0 0 0 0.0023 0.00 0.00
2020 0 0 0 0.0023 0.00 0.00
2021 0 0 0 0.0023 0.00 0.00

Total 0 0 0 -$                   -$              

Summary of Releases, Refunds and Discoveries for the Month of February 2022

260



Description CUSIP/Ticker Face Amount/Shares Cost Value Maturity Date YTM @ Cost % of Portfolio Settlement Date Cost Price Days To Maturity

CP BAYERISCHE LANDESBK GIRO 0 3/16/2022 07274MCG8 5,000,000.00 4,996,250.00 3/16/2022 0.150 1.26 N/A 99.925 16
CP CREDIT SUISSE 0 3/25/2022 2254EBCR0 5,000,000.00 4,993,672.22 3/25/2022 0.170 1.25 N/A 99.873444 25
CP ICBC LTD 0 4/8/2022 45581CD85 5,000,000.00 4,995,895.83 4/8/2022 0.150 1.25 N/A 99.917917 39
CP CROWN PT CAP CO LLC 0 4/18/2022 2284K1DJ9 5,000,000.00 4,994,970.85 4/18/2022 0.170 1.25 N/A 99.899417 49
CP BAQUE ET CAISSE EPARGNE 0 5/2/2022 0667K1E23 5,000,000.00 4,995,955.56 5/2/2022 0.130 1.25 N/A 99.919111 63
CP NATIXIS 0 5/24/2022 63873KEQ6 5,000,000.00 4,994,923.60 5/24/2022 0.170 1.25 N/A 99.898472 85
CP LLOYDS BANK CORP 0 5/31/2022 53948BEX3 5,000,000.00 4,994,422.22 5/31/2022 0.160 1.25 N/A 99.888444 92
CP BANCO DE CHILE 0 6/1/2022 05952TF16 5,000,000.00 4,993,369.44 6/1/2022 0.220 1.25 N/A 99.867389 93
CP ING US FUNDING LLC 0 6/10/2022 4497W1FA9 5,000,000.00 4,993,427.78 6/10/2022 0.260 1.25 N/A 99.868556 102
CP CHARLOTTE MECK HOSP 0 6/22/2022 16085KFN4 5,000,000.00 4,995,550.00 6/22/2022 0.120 1.25 N/A 99.911 114
CP LMA S A DISC CP 0 7/11/2022 53944RGB8 5,000,000.00 4,990,605.56 7/11/2022 0.381 1.25 N/A 99.812111 133
CP MOUNTCLIFF 0 7/20/2022 62455BGL3 5,000,000.00 4,990,200.00 7/20/2022 0.281 1.25 N/A 99.804 142
CP CREDIT SUISSE 0 8/19/2022 2254EBHK0 5,000,000.00 4,988,000.00 8/19/2022 0.321 1.25 N/A 99.76 172
CP NATIXIS 0 8/31/2022 63873KHX8 5,000,000.00 4,987,020.83 8/31/2022 0.351 1.25 N/A 99.740417 184
CP SALVATION ARMY 0 9/2/2022 79583TJ22 5,000,000.00 4,990,286.11 9/2/2022 0.261 1.25 N/A 99.805722 186
CP ING US FUNDING LLC 0 9/21/2022 4497W1JM9 5,000,000.00 4,981,743.06 9/21/2022 0.552 1.25 N/A 99.634861 205
CP JP MORGAN SECURITIES 0 10/25/2022 46640QKR1 5,000,000.00 4,965,912.50 10/25/2022 1.017 1.25 N/A 99.31825 239
CP TOYOTA MTR CR CORP 0 11/10/2022 89233HLA0 5,000,000.00 4,959,950.00 11/10/2022 1.089 1.25 N/A 99.199 255
Sub Total / Average Commercial Paper 90,000,000.00 89,802,155.56 0.330 22.56 99.780572 122

FFCB 0.14 5/18/2023-21 3133EMZP0 5,000,000.00 4,997,000.00 5/18/2023 0.170 1.26 N/A 99.94 444
FFCB 0.32 8/10/2023-21 3133EL3E2 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 8/10/2023 0.320 1.26 N/A 100 528
FFCB 0.19 9/22/2023-21 3133EMLE0 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 9/22/2023 0.190 1.26 N/A 100 571
FFCB 0.31 11/30/2023-21 3133EMHL9 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 11/30/2023 0.310 1.26 N/A 100 640
FFCB 0.23 1/19/2024 3133EMNG3 5,000,000.00 4,997,850.00 1/19/2024 0.244 1.26 N/A 99.957 690
FFCB 0.25 3/1/2024-21 3133EMSD5 5,000,000.00 4,990,000.00 3/1/2024 0.317 1.25 N/A 99.8 732
FFCB 0.33 4/5/2024-22 3133EMVD1 3,470,000.00 3,467,918.00 4/5/2024 0.354 0.87 N/A 99.94 767
FFCB 0.46 8/19/2024-21 3133EM2U5 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 8/19/2024 0.460 1.26 N/A 100 903
FFCB 0.43 9/10/2024-20 3133EL6V1 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 9/10/2024 0.430 1.26 N/A 100 925
FFCB 0.63 10/21/2024-22 3133ENBM1 4,189,000.00 4,172,244.00 10/21/2024 0.768 1.05 N/A 99.6 966
FFCB 0.97 12/9/2024-22 3133ENGN4 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 12/9/2024 0.970 1.26 N/A 100 1,015
FFCB 0.71 4/21/2025-22 3133EMWH1 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 4/21/2025 0.710 1.26 N/A 100 1,148
FFCB 0.53 9/29/2025-21 3133EMBH4 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 9/29/2025 0.530 1.26 N/A 100 1,309
FFCB 1.21 12/22/2025-22 3133ENHU7 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 12/22/2025 1.210 1.26 N/A 100 1,393
FFCB 0.625 6/16/2026-21 3133EMKV3 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 6/16/2026 0.625 1.26 N/A 100 1,569
FFCB 0.94 9/28/2026-22 3133EM6E7 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 9/28/2026 0.940 1.26 N/A 100 1,673
FFCB 1.55 3/30/2027-23 3133ELUN2 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 3/30/2027 1.550 1.26 N/A 100 1,856
FFCB 1.4 3/10/2028-22 3133EMSW3 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 3/10/2028 1.400 1.26 N/A 100 2,202
FFCB 1.5 3/23/2028-22 3133EMUB6 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 3/23/2028 1.500 1.26 N/A 100 2,215
FFCB 1.04 1/25/2029-22 3133EMNL2 5,000,000.00 4,986,250.00 1/25/2029 1.076 1.25 N/A 99.725 2,523
FFCB 1.55 3/15/2029-22 3133EMSX1 5,000,000.00 4,960,000.00 3/15/2029 1.658 1.25 N/A 99.2 2,572

City of Concord
Portfolio Holdings
Monthly Investments to Council
Report Format: By CUSIP / Ticker
Group By: Security Type
Average By: Cost Value
Portfolio / Report Group: All Portfolios
As of 2/28/2022

Commercial Paper

FFCB Bond

261



Sub Total / Average FFCB Bond 102,659,000.00 102,571,262.00 0.755 25.77 99.914899 1,278

FHLB 0.3 9/29/2023-21 3130AK3S3 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 9/29/2023 0.300 1.26 N/A 100 578
FHLB 0.22 10/5/2023-21 3130AKAF3 5,000,000.00 4,992,500.00 10/5/2023 0.270 1.25 N/A 99.85 584
FHLB 0.3 11/27/2023-21 3130AKGL4 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 11/27/2023 0.300 1.26 N/A 100 637
FHLB 0.3 2/9/2024-21 3130AMHP0 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 2/9/2024 0.300 1.26 N/A 100 711
FHLB 2.5 2/13/2024 3130AFW94 520,000.00 554,662.30 2/13/2024 0.225 0.14 N/A 106.665827 715
FHLB 0.45 4/29/2024-21 3130ALYE8 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 4/29/2024 0.450 1.26 N/A 100 791
FHLB 0.375 5/24/2024-21 3130AMPB2 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 5/24/2024 0.375 1.26 N/A 100 816
FHLB 0.4 5/24/2024-21 3130AMEP3 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 5/24/2024 0.400 1.26 N/A 100 816
FHLB 0.4 6/7/2024-21 3130AMKX9 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 6/7/2024 0.400 1.26 N/A 100 830
FHLB 0.5 7/15/2024-21 3130AMXL1 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 7/15/2024 0.500 1.26 N/A 100 868
FHLB 0.5 7/29/2024-21 3130ANCU2 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 7/29/2024 0.500 1.26 N/A 100 882
FHLB 0.45 8/27/2024-20 3130AJZH5 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 8/27/2024 0.450 1.26 N/A 100 911
FHLB 1.27 1/27/2025-23 3130AQMJ9 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 1/27/2025 1.270 1.26 N/A 100 1,064
FHLB 0.4 7/15/2025-21 3130AKM29 5,000,000.00 4,999,000.00 7/15/2025 0.405 1.26 N/A 99.98 1,233
FHLB 0.5 10/20/2025-21 3130AKNK8 5,000,000.00 4,999,000.00 10/20/2025 0.504 1.26 N/A 99.98 1,330
FHLB Step 12/30/2025-21 3130AKLH7 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 12/30/2025 0.636 1.26 N/A 100 1,401
FHLB Step 1/29/2026-21 3130AKRA6 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 1/29/2026 1.002 1.26 N/A 100 1,431
FHLB 0.53 2/17/2026-21 3130AKWS1 5,000,000.00 4,995,000.00 2/17/2026 0.550 1.25 N/A 99.9 1,450
FHLB 0.8 3/10/2026-21 3130ALFS8 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 3/10/2026 0.800 1.26 N/A 100 1,471
FHLB Step 4/29/2026-21 3130ALZA5 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 4/29/2026 1.432 1.26 N/A 100 1,521
FHLB 0.825 8/17/2027-21 3130AJXH7 5,000,000.00 4,986,250.00 8/17/2027 0.866 1.25 N/A 99.725 1,996
FHLB 2.32 11/1/2029-22 3130AHEU3 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 11/1/2029 2.320 1.26 N/A 100 2,803
Sub Total / Average FHLB Bond 105,520,000.00 105,526,412.30 0.666 26.51 100.008318 1,146

FHLMC 0.375 4/20/2023 3137EAEQ8 1,290,000.00 1,291,301.24 4/20/2023 0.341 0.32 N/A 100.100871 416
FHLMC 2.75 6/19/2023 3137EAEN5 1,225,000.00 1,317,965.25 6/19/2023 0.244 0.33 N/A 107.589 476
FHLMC 0.25 6/26/2023 3137EAES4 3,220,000.00 3,219,567.60 6/26/2023 0.254 0.81 N/A 99.986726 483
FHLMC 0.25 9/8/2023 3137EAEW5 2,120,000.00 2,120,844.05 9/8/2023 0.236 0.53 N/A 100.039854 557
FHLMC 0.3 12/14/2023-21 3134GXEW0 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 12/14/2023 0.300 1.26 N/A 100 654
FHLMC 0.45 7/29/2024-22 3134GWFS0 2,250,000.00 2,250,000.00 7/29/2024 0.450 0.57 N/A 100 882
FHLMC 0.8 7/14/2026-21 3134GV5T1 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 7/14/2026 0.800 1.26 N/A 100 1,597
Sub Total / Average FHLMC Bond 20,105,000.00 20,199,678.14 0.425 5.07 100.503675 849

FNMA 2 10/5/2022 3135G0T78 1,595,000.00 1,614,442.20 10/5/2022 1.549 0.41 N/A 101.218947 219
FNMA 2.375 1/19/2023 3135G0T94 1,820,000.00 1,884,180.01 1/19/2023 1.134 0.47 N/A 103.531596 325
FNMA 0.3 8/10/2023-22 3135G05R0 4,000,000.00 3,973,000.00 8/10/2023 0.731 1.00 N/A 99.325 528
FNMA 0.31 8/17/2023-22 3136G4K51 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 8/17/2023 0.310 1.26 N/A 100 535
FNMA 2.875 9/12/2023 3135G0U43 1,170,000.00 1,263,483.00 9/12/2023 0.221 0.32 N/A 107.99 561
FNMA 0.3 10/27/2023-21 3136G46A6 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 10/27/2023 0.300 1.26 N/A 100 606
FNMA 0.25 11/27/2023 3135G06H1 3,705,000.00 3,707,833.90 11/27/2023 0.223 0.93 N/A 100.076557 637
FNMA 0.28 12/29/2023-21 3135GABN0 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 12/29/2023 0.280 1.26 N/A 100 669
FNMA 2.5 2/5/2024 3135G0V34 1,500,000.00 1,590,870.00 2/5/2024 0.225 0.40 N/A 106.058 707
FNMA 1.75 7/2/2024 3135G0V75 1,510,000.00 1,571,618.47 7/2/2024 0.361 0.39 N/A 104.080727 855
FNMA 0.455 8/27/2024-21 3136G4Y72 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 8/27/2024 0.455 1.26 N/A 100 911
FNMA 1.625 10/15/2024 3135G0W66 2,380,000.00 2,454,218.36 10/15/2024 0.577 0.62 N/A 103.119202 960
FNMA 0.5 12/16/2024-21 3135G06M0 5,000,000.00 4,989,850.00 12/16/2024 0.560 1.25 N/A 99.797 1,022
FNMA 1.625 1/7/2025 3135G0X24 1,055,000.00 1,072,574.78 1/7/2025 1.060 0.27 N/A 101.665856 1,044
FNMA 0.7 7/14/2025-21 3136G4YH0 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 7/14/2025 0.700 1.26 N/A 100 1,232
FNMA 0.55 8/19/2025-22 3136G4H63 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 8/19/2025 0.550 1.26 N/A 100 1,268
FNMA 0.58 8/25/2025-22 3136G4J20 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 8/25/2025 0.580 1.26 N/A 100 1,274

FHLB Bond

FHLMC Bond

FNMA Bond

262



FNMA 0.73 10/29/2026-21 3136G46F5 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 10/29/2026 0.730 1.26 N/A 100 1,704
FNMA 0.8 11/4/2027-22 3135GA2L4 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 11/4/2027 0.800 1.26 N/A 100 2,075
Sub Total / Average FNMA Bond 68,735,000.00 69,122,070.72 0.556 17.36 100.590249 992

NCCMT LGIP NCCMT599 71,475.36 71,475.36 N/A 0.010 0.02 N/A 100 1
NCCMT LGIP NCCMT481 518,889.97 518,889.97 N/A 0.010 0.13 N/A 100 1
NCCMT LGIP NCCMT271 118,446.62 118,446.62 N/A 0.010 0.03 N/A 100 1
Sub Total / Average Local Government Investment Pool 708,811.95 708,811.95 0.010 0.18 100 1

PINNACLE BANK MM PINNACLE 10,154,786.12 10,154,786.12 N/A 0.080 2.55 N/A 100 1
Sub Total / Average Money Market 10,154,786.12 10,154,786.12 0.080 2.55 100 1
Total / Average 397,882,598.07 398,085,176.79 0.566 100 100.058824 876

Local Government Investment Pool

Money Market

263


	Agenda
	I. Call to Order
	II. Pledge of Allegiance and Moment of Silent Prayer:
	III. Approval of Minutes:
	IV. Presentations
	IV. 1. Presentation of a Proclamation recognizing April 18, 2022, as National LineworkerAppreciation Day. (Work Session)
	IV. 2. Presentation of a retirement plaque to Lannie A. Cruse Jr. for 30 plus years of serviceto the City of Concord. (Work Session)
	IV. 3. Presentation of a Proclamation recognizing April 10-16, 2022 as National PublicSafety Telecommunicator Week.
	IV. 4. Administer Oath of Office to newly appointed Board of Adjustment member, RobertDanner.
	V. Unfinished Business
	VI. New Business
	A. Informational Items
	B. Departmental Reports
	C. Recognition of persons requesting to be heard
	D. Public Hearings
	VI. D. 1. Conduct a public hearing to consider approving the submission of the Cabarrus, Iredell, Rowan County HOME Consortium's HOME-American Rescue Plan (HOME-ARP) Action Plan to the Department of Housing and Urban Development.
	HOME-ARP Plan

	VI. D. 2. Conduct a public hearing to consider approving the submission of the Cabarrus,Iredell, Rowan County HOME Consortium's HOME-American Rescue Plan(HOME-ARP) Action Plan to the Department of Housing and Urban Development.
	VI. D. 3. Conduct a public hearing to consider adopting an ordinance amending Articles 8, Use Regulations, and 14, Definitions, of the Concord Development Ordinance (CDO) relative to the spacing requirements for tattoo and piercing parlors and the addition of a definition for tattoo parlors.
	Staff Report
	Full Staff Packet
	TA-08-21 Ordinance for Council

	E. Presentations of Petitions and Requests
	VI. E. 1. Consider authorizing the City Manager to sign a contract with Gillig LLC utilizing the Piedmont Authority for Regional Transportation (PART) consortium contract for the purchase of six (6) new 35' heavy duty hybrid electric diesel replacement buses for the Rider system.
	2022.3.24 - Gillig Hybrid Bus Quote

	VI. E. 2. Consider a request from WeBuild Concord for a $1,000,000 contribution from the City's affordable housing revolving fund.
	We Build Apr 2022

	VI. E. 3. Consider adopting a resolution directing the publication of Notice of Intention to Apply to the Local Government Commission for Approval of Bonds.
	Resolution re Notice of Intent to Apply - City of Concord - 2022 GO Referendum (Parks  Rec)

	VI. E. 4. Consider adopting a resolution making certain statement of fact concerning proposed bond issue and authorizing the application to the Local Government Commission.
	Resolution re statement of facts - City of Concord - 2022 GO Referendum (Parks  Rec)

	VI. E. 5. Consider approving the acquisition of one parcel totaling 6.1733 acres adjacent to Clarke Creek, Cox Mill Road, and the Granary Oaks subdivision (parcel ID# 4680-40-3406-0000) from Beverly D. Hooks and Freddie Anne Davis for future development of the Clarke Creek Greenway and sidewalk connectivity along Cox Mill Road and consider adopting budget ordinances to amend the Parks and Recreation Capital Reserve Fund and Recreation Capital Project Fund.
	Hooks Final Survey
	Sale of Property
	Cox Mill Loop Phase
	Transfer to 420
	Clarke Creek - Hooks Property

	VI. E. 6. Consider authorizing the City Manager to negotiate and execute a contract with J.D. Goodrum Co., Inc., in the amount of $3,132,489.99, for the North Apron expansion project at the Concord-Padgett Regional Airport.
	Bid Tab for North Apron Expansion

	VI. E. 7. Consider adopting a resolution to impose and use a passenger facility charge at the Concord-Padgett Regional Airport.
	JQF PFC Resolution vs.1

	VI. E. 8. Consider authorizing the City manager to execute an amendment to the On-Call Transportation Services contract for the engineering and design work to permit the replacement of the Lincoln Street Bridge.
	Task Order
	Location Map

	VI. E. 9. Consider entering into an Agreement with the North Carolina Department of Transportation (NCDOT) covering work to be performed under Project Agreement ID No. 11107, TIP # HL-0001 - WBS Elements 49345.1.1, 49345.2.1, 49345.3.1 for the Poplar Tent and Harris Intersection.
	Agreement

	VI. E. 10. Consider approving the acquisition of the property at 708 Arbor St. NE (PIN 5621-45-0236) for $365,000 to facilitate future expansion at the Hillgrove Water Treatment Plant.
	Listing
	Offer

	VI. E. 11. Consider authorizing the City Manager to negotiate and execute a contract with Insituform Technologies, LLC. for the lining of 21,433 linear feet of sewer lines and rehabilitation of 89 manholes.
	Bid Tabulation

	VI. E. 12. Consider amending the sewer allocation policy for the development of speculative industrial projects less than 75,000 sf in I-1 and any size building in I-2 zoning.
	Revised Policy

	VI. E. 13. Consider a Preliminary Application from Karen Braswell.
	Braswell App
	Braswell Map

	VI. E. 14. Consider a Preliminary Application from Bobby Hatley.
	Hatley application
	Hatley map

	VI. E. 15. Consider a Preliminary Application from Danny Hinson
	Hinson App
	Hinson map

	VI. E. 16. Consider adopting the 2022 State and Federal Legislative Goals
	2022 State Legislative Goals
	2022 Federal Legislative Goals

	VI. E. 17. Consider appointing a voting delegate for the NCLM CityVision 2022 conference.(Work Session)
	VI. E. 18. Consider making reappointments to the Concord United Committee.
	CUC reappointments

	VI. E. 19. Discussion relating to the distribution of remaining American Rescue Plan(ARP) funds.
	VII.Consent Agenda
	VII. A. Consider authorizing the Concord Police Department to apply for the 2022 Office of Community Oriented Policing Services (COPS) Law Enforcement Mental Health and Wellness Act (LEMHWA) Program grant from the US Department of Justice.
	COPS LEMHWA grant

	VII. B. Consider authorizing Parks and Recreation staff to submit an application for a Kubota Hometown Proud Grant for up to $100,000 for Caldwell Park.
	Caldwell Park Master Plan

	VII. C. Consider approving policies and procedures manual for the HOME-American Rescue Plan (HOME-ARP) allocation for the Cabarrus, Iredell, Rowan County HOME Consortium.
	HOME - ARP Policy

	VII. D. Consider accepting an offer of infrastructure at The Haven at Rocky River Subdivision, PH 1 MP 4 and Kensley East Subdivision PH 1.
	Infra Acceptance to ENGR Haven at Rocky River PH 1 MP 4 Lots 20-56 and 63-87
	Infra Acceptance to ENGR - Kensley East PH 1 lots 1-13

	VII. E. Consider accepting an Offer of Dedication of utility easements and public rightsof-ways in various subdivisions.
	VII. F. Consider accepting an Offer of Dedication of an access easement and approval of the maintenance agreement.
	Yoxbox Agreement

	VII. G. Consider adopting an American Rescue Plan Fund grant project budget amendment.
	CPOA - Addl projects Apr 2022

	VII. H. Consider approving the 2019 Emergency Safety and Security Grant from the US Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) and adopt a budget ordinance in the amount of $97,676.
	Budget Ordinance

	VII. I. Consider adopting a Fire Project Fund project budget amendment and a General Fund operating budget amendment.
	Transfer from 426 FS 10 savings
	Transfer to Gen Fund - savings from FS10

	VII. J. Consider adopting an ordinance to amend the FY 2021/2022 Budget Ordinance for the General Fund.
	IT study from contingency

	VII. K. Consider authorizing the City Manager to accept and execute Federal AviationAdministration Grant Offer for 2022 in the amount of $ 3,748,306.62 for AirportImprovement Projects at Concord-Padgett Regional Airport and budgetamendment.
	VII. L. Consider authorizing the City Manager to accept and execute the Concessions Rent Relief Airport Rescue Grant Agreement and to adopt a budget ordinance appropriating the grant funds.
	Concessions Grant Jan 2022 154194.00 (002)

	VII. M. Consider adopting ordinances to amend the General Capital Project Fund budget, the Stormwater Project Fund budget, the Water Project Fund budget, the Wastewater Project Fund budget, the Electric Project Fund budget, and the Transportation Project Fund budget.
	Streetscape cleanup Fund 421
	Streetscape cleanup Fund 423
	Streetscape cleanup Fund 429
	Streetscape cleanup Fund 430
	Streetscape cleanup Fund 473
	Streetscape cleanup Fund 474

	VII. N. Consider amending Article 3.2, Salary Increases, in the Personnel Policies and Procedures manual.
	Article 3.2 Salary Increases

	VII. O. Consider acceptance of the Tax Office reports for the month of February 2022.
	TAX COLLECTIONS FEB22

	VII. P. Consider approval of Tax Releases/Refunds from the Tax Collection Office for the month of February 2022.
	RELEASE REFUND DISCOVERY REPORT FEB22

	Receive monthly report on status of investments as of February 28, 2022.
	Investments as of Feb 28 2022

	VIII. Matters not on the agenda
	IX. General comments by Council of non-business nature
	X. Closed Session (if needed)
	XI. Adjournment



